


Quick Reference Chart to 
Contents of SEC Filings 

Registration 

"' Statements 
" c => .Q 

"' u '34 Act '33 
"'n; ,._E "' Act c. ".!:! a: 

x.!! "' F-10 8-A "S" :a. <( 

e~ e :J ~ "I 
REPORT CONTENTS 10-K 20-F 10-0 8-K 10-C 6-K n. Ul n. B·B Type AAS z 
Auditor 

~ Name A A A A A A 

.::::: Opinion A A A A 

C Changes A 

Compensation Plans 

= Cquity F F A F 

C Monetary A F A F 

Company Information 

O Nature of Business A A A A A 

C History F A A F A 

'.J Organization and Change F F A A F A 

Debt Structure A A A ,,., 

Depreciation & Other Schedules A A A A A 

Dilution Factors A A F A A A 

Directors, Officers, Insiders 

C Identification 

C Background 

C Holdings 

C Compensation 

Earnings Per Share A 

Financial Information 

C Annual Audited 

O Interim Audited 

D Interim Unaudited 

Foreign Operations 

Labor Contracts 

Legal Agreements 

Legal Counsel 

Loan Agreements 

Plants and Properties 

Portfolio Operations 

0 Content (Listing of Securities) A 

D Management A 

Product-Line Breakout A A A 

Securities Structure A A 

Subsidiaries A A 

UnderwritinG A 

Unregi3ter~!d Securities A 

Block Movements A 

Legend A - afways included - included - if occurred or significant F - frequently included - special ctrcumstances on/}' 

TENDER OFFER/ACQUISITION REPORTS 13D 13 G 14D-1 14D-9 13E-3 13E-4 

Name of Issuer (Subject Company) A A A 

Filfng Person (or Company) A A A 

Amount of Shares Owned A A 

Percent of Class Outstanding A A 

Financial Statements of Bidders F 

Purpose of Tender Offer A 

Source and AmoUnt of Funds A A 

Identity and Background Information A 

Persons Retained Employed or to be Compensated A 

Exhibits F F 

©copyright 1988 dscLOSLJRE.1NcoRPoRATEo 
S161 River Road D Bethesda, MD 20816 D 301i951-1300 

A A A 

" A A 

F F 

A A A 

A 

A A 

A A A 

F F F 



C-t0\~0-0 

\ I I /-D1 

6:31105 



Decentralization is the cornerstone of our management philosophy. 
Our goal is to hire the best people we carr possibly find and give them 
the responsibility and authority they need to perform their jobs. 
All decisions are made at the local level, consistent with the basic 
legal and ethical responsibilities of corporate management. 
Budgets, which are set yearly and reviewed quarterly, originate 
with the operating units which are responsible for them. We expect 
a great deal from our managers. We expect them to be forever 
cost-conscious and to recognize and exploit sales potential. 
But above all, we expect them to manage their operations as good 
citizens and to use their facilities to further the community welfare. 
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PART! 

Item 1. Business. 

Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. and/or its subsidiaries (the "Company") operate the ABC Television 
Network, eight television stations, six re· o networks and 21 radio stations, and provide programming 
for cable television. The Company pu, ,/shes newspapers, shopping guides, various specialty and 
business periodicals and books; and a' :o distributes information from data bases. 

Employees 

At January 1, 1989, the Company had approximately 19,720 full-time employees: 10,260 in 
broadcasting operations, 9,210 in publishing operations and 250 in corporate activities. 

Industry Segments 

Information relating to the industry segments of the Company's operations is included on page 
33 of the Company's Annual Report to Shareholders and is hereby incorporated by reference. Jn 
1988, the Company derived substantially all broadcasting revenues and approximately 67% of its 
publishing revenues from the sale of advertising. Virtually all of the balance of publishing reve~ues 
was derived from subscription and ::::.er circulation receipts and the sale of books and records. 

Broadcasting 

Television and Radio Networks 

The Company operates the ABC Television Network which as of January 1, 1989, had 222 
primary affiliated stations reaching over 99% of all U.S. television households. A number of secondary 
affiliated stations add to the primary coverage. The ABC Television Network has a program 
schedule consisting of Week-Day Early-Morning, Monday through Friday Daytime, Prime Time, News, 
Children's, Late Night and Sports programming. The Company also operates the ABC Radio 
Networks which served a total of approximately 2, 100 affiliated stations as of January 1, 1989 through 
six different network program services, each with its own group of affiliated stations. The ABC Radio 
Networks also produce and distribute a number of radio program series, servicing affiliated and non­
affiliated stations throughout the country. The Company has entered into an agreement to acquire 
Satellite Music Network, Inc. which provides music programming live via satellite to commercial AM 
and FM radio stations. 

Generally, the Company pays the cost of producing or purchasing the broadcast rights for '~s 
network programming and pays varying amounts of compensation to its affiliated stations for 
broadcasting the programs and commercial announcements included therein. Substantially all 
revenues from network operations are derived from the sale to advertisers of time in network 
programs for commercial announcements. The ability to sell time for commercial announcements 
and the rates received are dependent on the quantitative and qualitative audience that the network 
can deliver to the advertiser. 

Radio and Television Stations 

The Company owns eleven standard (AM) radio stations, ten frequency modulation (FM) radio 
stations, seven very high frequency (VHF) television stations and one ultra high frequency (UHF) 
television station. All radio stations, except as noted, are affiliated with the ABC Radio Networks, 
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,elf, 

and all television stations are affiliated with the ABC Television Network. Markets, frequencies and 
other station details are set forth in the following tables: 

Radio stations 

Frequency Expiration Radio 
Station AM-Kilohertz date of FCC mark·Jt 

and market FM-Megahertz authorization ranklris fl> 
WABC •.....•....•.•.......•..•..•.••..•......•....•..•.............. 770 K June 1, 1991 1 

New York, New York 
KABC ........................................................•..•.•.. 790 ~ Dec. 1, 1990 2 

Los Angeles, California 
WLS •.•. :.: ......•..•.•..•.......•..•..•............•................. 890 K 

Chicago, Illinois 
Dec. 1, 1989 3 

KGO .................................................................• 810 K Dec. 1, 1990 4 
San Francisco, California 

WJR ...•......•.•....•..•.••.•..•..•.....•..• ;; ....................... 760 K Oct. 1, 1989 6 
Detroit, Michigan 

WBAP ...............................................................• 820 K 
Fort Worth-Dallas, Texas 

Aug. 1, 1990 8 

WMAL .............................................................. 630 K Oct. 1, 1995 9 
Washington, D.C. 

WKHX(2) ..................•........................................ 
Atlanta, Georgia 

590 K (3) 13 

KQRS ............................................................... 
Minneapolis-St.Paul, Minnesota 

1440 K Apr. 1, 1990 19 

KRXY .•.............•.•..•..•..•.............•....................... 1600 K 
Denver, Colorado 

Apr.1,1990 24 

WPRO .............................................................. 630 K Apr.1, 1991 28 
Providence, Rhode Island 

WPLJ(FM) .......•...•..••.•..•..•................................ 
New York, New York 

95.5M June 1, 1991 1 

KLOS(FM) ..•.....•..•............................................ 
Los Angeles, California 

95.5M Dec. 1,1990 2 

W\'TZ(FM) .................................•....•.........•.•..•.. 
Chicago, Illinois 

94.7M Dec. 1, 1989 3 

WHYT(FM) ..•.•..•••.•..••.•.•...•....•.•.•....................... 
Detroit, Michigan 

96.3M Oct. 1, 1989 6 

KSCS(FM) (2) ...................................................• 
. Fort Worth-Dallas, Texas 

96.3M Aug.1, 1990 8 

WRQX(FM) ··''··················································· Washington, D.C. 
107.3 M Oct. 1, 1995 9 

WKHX-FM (2) ....•.......•..••.•.•..•....•..............•.•..... 
Atlanta, Georgia 

101.5 M (3) 13 

KQRS-FM .......•..•.......•.....•..•.•.....................•..... 92.5 M (3) 19 
Minneapolis-St. Paul, Minnesota 

KRXY-FM ......................................................... 107.5 M Apr. 1, 1990 24 
Denver, Colorado 

WPRO-FM •.•.•....•..............................•......•......•. 92.3M Apr. 1, 1991 28 
Providence, Rhode Island 
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Televi.sion ~lations 

Station 
and market 

WABC-TV ...................................................... . 
New York, New York 

KABC-TV ....................................................... . 
Los Angeles, California 

WLS-TV ......................................................... . 
Chicago, Illinois 

WPVl-TV ......................................•.................. 
Philadelphia, Pennsyl1•ania 

KGO-TV .........................................•................ 
San Francisco, California 

KTF,i.K~TV .............. .,, ...................................... . 
Houston, Texas· 

WTVD ........................ .,,, ................................ . 
Durh<im-Raleigh, Nbt~h Carolina 

KFSN-TV ....................................................... . 
Fresno, California 

Channel 

7 

7 

7 

6 

7 

13 

11 

30 

Fxpiration Television 
d .. '1te of FCC market 
al·1ihorization ranking (4~ 

June 1, 1989 

Dec. 1, 1993 2 

Dec. 1, 1992 3 

Aug. 1, 1989 4 

(3) 5 

Aug. 1, 1993 10 

Dec. 1, 1991 34 

(3) 62 

(1) Based on Arbitron Radio Market Metro Population Rankings as of January 1, 1989. 
(2) No network affiliation. 
(3) See "Licenses-Federal Regulation of Broadcasting/Renewal Matters" below for descrip­

tion of pending license renewal applications. 
(4) Based on Arbitron ADI Market Rankings, 1988-1989 season. 

Video Ellierprises 
Th·a Company's video enterprise operations are involved in the production and supply of cable 

television programming, and in the licensing of programming to domestic and international home 
video markets and television stations abroad. Its primary services are: 

ESPN, a cable sports programming service, which is 80%-owned; 

The Arts & Entertainment Network, a cable programming service devoted to cultural and 
entertainment programming, which is 38%-owned; and 

Lifetime, a cable programming service devoted to women's lifestyle and health programming 
with special material for health care professionals, which is 33YJ%-owned. 

Competition 
The ABC Television Network competes for viewers with the other television networks, indepen­

dent television stations and other video media such as cable television, satellite television program 
services and video cassettes; in the sale of advertising time, it competes with the other television 
networks, independent television stations, suppliers of cable television programming, and other 
advertising media such as newspapers, magazines and billboards. Substantial competition also 
existe for exclusive broadcasting rights for television programming. The ABC Radio Networks 
likewise compete with other radio networks and radio programming services, independent radio 
stamms, and other advertising media. 

The Company's television and radio stations are in competition with other television and radio 
stations, cable te!evision systems ~nd other advertising media such as newspapers, magazines and 
billboards. Suell competition occurs primarily in individual market areas. Generally, a television 
station in one market does not compete directly with other stations in other market arer1s. Nor does 
a group of stations, such as those owned by the Company, compete with any other group of stations 
as such. While the pattern of competition in the radio station industry is basically the same, it is not 
uncommon for radio stations outside of a market area to place a signal of sufficient strength within 
that area (particularly during nighttime hours) to gain a share of the audience. However, they 
generally do not gain a significant share of the advertising marketplace. 
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In addition to management and experience, factors which are material to competitive position 

include authorized power allowance, assigned frequency, network affiliation, and local program 
acceptance, as well as strength of local co; ,1petition. 

The most common sources of television service other than conventional television stations are 
cable television systems. Cable television can provide more competition for a station by making 
additional signals available to its audience. In addition, most cable television systems supply 
programming that is not available on conventional television stations. These include a wide range 
of advertiser-supported and subscription-supported video programming services. Subscription­
supported video programming services is al>o:> provided by multipoint distribution services which 
employ non-broadcast i'requencies to transmit subscription television services to individual homes 
and businesses. Additional services are being provided by low power television stations and by 
direct s.:itellite-to-home transmissions. Finally, the increased in-homo use of video cassette recorders 
and players provides what is, in effect, an alternative television service. 

The Company's video enterprise operations compete with a number of companies involved in 
developing and supp.'ying program services for cable, distribuiion of video cassettes, television 
syndication and theatrical distribution, and with conventional tel!!vision broadcasters. The develop­
ment of these busineSSflS could adversely affect the future of conventional television t:roadcasting. 

Technological developments have created the possibility that one or more of the television 
services with which the ABC Television Network and the Company's stations compete will provide 
enhanced or "high definition" pictures and sound of a quality that is technically superior to that 
which is currently available to consumers. It is noi yet clear when and :o 'Nhat extent technology of 
this kind will be availabie in the various television services, whether and how television stations will 
be able to avail themselves of these improvements, or whe-tller t11e viewing public will make choices 
among services on the basis of such differences. The Company and many other segments of the 
television industry are intensively studying enhanced and high definition television technology, 
and both the Congress and the Federal Communications Commission (the "FCC") have initiated 
proceedings and studies of its potential and application to television s1;rvice in the United States. 

Licenses-Federal Regulation of Broi:dcasting 

Television and radio broadcasting are subject to the jurisdiction of the FCC under the Communica­
tions Act of 1934, as amended (the "Communications Act"). T~e Communications Act empowers 
the FCC, among other things, to issue, revoke or modify broadcasting licenses, determine the 
location of stations, regulate the equipment used by stations, adopt such regulfltions as may be 
necessary to carry out the provisions of the Communications Act and impose certain penalties for 
violation of such regulations. 

Renev.:al Matters 

Broadcasting licenses are granted for a maximum period of seven years, in the case of radio 
stations, and five years, in the case of television stations, and are renewable upon application 
therefor. During certain periods when a renewal application is pending, competing applicants may 
file for the frequency and may be entitled to compete with the renewal applicant in a comparative 
hearing, and others may file petitions to deny the application for renewal of license. Renewal 
applications are now pending for KGO-TV, KFSN-TV, WKHX and WKHX-FM. No formal petition to 
deny has been filed against these stations. However, an informal complaint alleging discriminatior. 
in employment and in the selection of programming has been filed against KGO-TV. The Company 
has responded to the complaint, denying its allegations. All of the Company's other owned stations 
have been granted license renflwals by the FCC for regular terms except for KQRS-FM. Action on 
the KQRS-FM renewal application was delayed pending the outcome of a long-standing dispute 
involving the technical facilities of several of the FM stations in the KQRS-FM market. The dispute 
has now been resolved and grant of the station's renewal application is expected soon. 
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Ownership Matters 

The Communications Act prohibit~ the assignment of a license or the transfer of control of a 
licensee without prior ;;pproval of the FCC, and prohibits the Company 1mm having any officer or 
director who is an alien, and from having more than one-fifth of its stock owned by aliens or foreign 
goveirnments. 

The F;'~'s "multiple ownership" rules provide that a license for a radio or television station will 
not be granted if the app11icant owns, or has a significant interest in, another station of the same type 
(TV; AM or FM} which plovides service to areas already served by the station operated or controlled 
by the applicant or if granting the license would result in a concentration of control of broadcasting. 
Under present FCC rules, a single entity may dira.ctly or indirectly own, operate or have a significant 
interest in up to twelve AM anci twelve FM radio stations, and up to twelve television stations (VHF 
or UHF), provided that those television stations operate in r.iarkets containing cumulatively no more 
than 25% of the television housenolds in the country. For this·,:Jrpose, ownership of a UHF station 
will result in the attribution of only 50% of the television households in the relevant market. The 
Company owns eight television stations, of which seven are VHF, resulting in a total penetration of 
the nation's television households, for purposes of the multiple ownership rules, of 24.39%. The 
Cornpany also owns eleven AM and ten FM radio stations. 

In addition, the FCC rule precludes the grant of applications for station acquisitions which would 
result in the creation of new•AM-VHF or FM-VHF combinations in the same market under common 
ownership, or the sale of such a combination to a single party. The Company holds radio-televiGir;n 
combinations in New York, Los Angeles, Chicago and San Francisco pursuant to a temporary waiver 
of these rules by the FCC .. The Company has filed a request for a permanent waiver in accordance 
with a recently announced FCC decision permitting such waivers for stations in the cities involved. 

Furthermore, under the FCC's rules, radio and/or television licensees may not acquire new 
ownership interests in dai!)' newspapers puplished in the same markets served by their broadcast 
stations; television licensees may not own cabi.~ television systems in communities within the service 
contours of their television stations; and a tele1vision network owner may not own a cable system. 
The Company presently owns daily newspapers in two markets in which it also holds radio licenses. 
For purpose:: of these rules, The Oakland Press and WJR and WJ-FfT-FM, licensed to Detroit, are 
treated as in the same market, as are the Fort V.~0rth Star-Telegram and WBAP and KSCS-FM, 
licensed to Fort Worth. Although these holdings are "grandfathered," under the rules these 
commonly owned broadcast/newspaper combinations could not be transferred together. 

With respect to publicly held companies, the FCC's rules provide that an entity will have the 
licensee's broadcast stations or newspapers attributed to it for purposes of the multiple ownership 
rules only if it holds the power to vote or control the vote of 5% or more of the stock of a publicly 
held licensee (i.e., one with 50 or more stockholders). Qualifying mutual funds, insurance companies, 
or bank trust depe:tments may vol.e or control the vote of up to 10% of the stock of a publicly held 
broadcast licensee before the licen:;ee's stations would be attributed to that entity. 

Network Regulations 

The Company's television network .operations are subject to a consent decree (United States v. 
American Broadcasting Companies, lt1c., 74-3600-RJK), in the United States District Court for the 
Central District of California, entered into and effective on r ;.:,vember 14, 1980. The consent decree 
contains provisions which prohibit the acquisition of subsidiary rights and interests in television 
programs produced by independent suppliers and forbid the Company fron; engaging in the business 
of domestic syndication. These injunctive provisions of the consent judgment continue in perpetuity. 
ln addition, the conse(lt judgment contains provisions regulating for periods expiring in 1990 and 
1995 certain aspects of the Company's contractual relationships with suppliers of entertainment 
programming and with talent p~rformers and other creative contributors to ABC Television Network 
entertainment programming, and .limiting the number of hours of entertainment programming pro­
duced by the Company which may be offered for broadcast by the ABC Television Network. Similar 
judgments have been entered against CBS Inc. and the National Broadcasting Company, Inc. with 
respect to their television networks. 
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All three of the major television networks are also subject to FCC rules which restrict their abilil\I 
to acquire financial interests in television programs or engage in program syndication. In addition, 
FCC rules effectively restrict the prime-time programming schedules of each of the three major 
television networks to three hours per night during the period 7:00 P.M. to 11:00 P.M., Monday 
through Saturday. 

Radio Proceedings 
In an action designed to increase tho number of aural outlets, the FCC has initiated studies of 

the possible expansion of the AM band to inclcde new frequencies. This action woul~l require, 
among other matters, some modifications er interhaticnal treaties governing use of tf\s radio 
spectrum. The FCC has also asked for comments on a proposal to make a number of changes in 
the criteria used for making assignments in the AM band. One of the proposals would permit an 
increase in the amount of interference AM stations may cause to, or receive from, other stations. 
The Company is not a))le tc oredict the outcome or impact of these proceedings. 

Cable Television amt Other Competing Services 
As previously noted (see "Competition" above), cable television can provide more competition 

to a television station by making additional signals availabletq the audience. In Hl87, for the second 
time, the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit ruled unconstitutional 
FCC rules which requirec! cable tc!P.vision systems generally to carry the signals of television stations 
in whose service areas they operate. The rulmg became final in 1988 when the Supreme Court 
declined to hear the caiJe. There may be attempts to obtain legislation reinstituting the rules in some 
form. Currently, cable television systems may decFne to carry the signals of television stations in 
their service areas, including the signals of television stations owned by the Company or affiliated 
with its television network. 

Most cable television systems supply additional programming to subscribers that is not originated 
on, or transmitted from, co~ventional television broadcasting stations. Many of these services 
(including ESPN, Arts & Enfirtainment and Lifetime) are also being distributed directly to viewers by 
means of satellite transmis·.!ions to home satellite reception .disnes. 

The FCC also qµthonzes broadcast subscription television services ("STV") and multipoint 
distribution services (''MDS"), and has expanded the number of frequencies available for MDS by 
allocating two groups of four channels each for the so-celled multi-channel MDS, to be awarded by 
lottery. The FCC has authorized licensees in the Instructional Television Fixed Service ("ITFS") to 
lease their excess capacity fc commercial use, incluci;ng sub~cription television service and has 
adopted rules facilitating direc, ":oadcast satellite operations. It has also created a new service of 
low power television facilities to supplement existing conventional telE1 tision broadcast service. Ths 
Company cannot predict the competitive effect of these services. . . . . . 

From time to time legislation may be introduced in Congress which, if enacted, might affect the 
Company's operations or its advertising revenues. Proceedings, investigations, hearings and studies 
are periodically conducted by Congressional committees and by the FCC and other government 
agencies with respect to problems and practices of, and conditions in, the broadcasting industry. 
The Company cannol generally predict whether new legislation or regulations may result from any 
such studies or hearings or ttie adverse impact, if any, upon the Company's operations which might 
result therefrom. 

The information contained under this heading does not purport to be a complete summary of 
all the provisions of the Communications Act and the rules and regulations of the FCC thereunder, 
or of pending propos~.i= for other regulation of broadcasting <rnd related activities. For a complete 
statement of such provisions, reference is made to the Communications Act, and to suc!i rules, 
regulations and pending proposals thereunder. 
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Publishing 

The Company publishes 11cwspapers and shopping guides, var:•JUS specialty and business 
periodicals and books; and also distributes information from data bases. Following is a sw ~mary 
of the Company's historical operating per1ormance, by type of publication for the last five years 

(OOO's omitted): 

1988 ·.987 1986 ·)985 1984 

Inches of advertising 

Newspapers (a) .•................... 16,855 17,384 17,006 18,276 18,620 

Specialized publications ........ 3,729 3,766 3,914 2,691 2,837 

Advertising revenue 

Newspapers-ROP ............... $278,789 $270,905 $255,844 $257,244 $249,771 

Newspapers-inserts ........... 43,523 35,997 32,849 ZB,093 25,825 

Shopping guides .................... 61..238 60,845 56,291 52,608 41,927 

Specialized publications ........ 305,665 312,508 311,593 179,071 165,832 

Cl•culation revenue 

Newspapers .......................... $ 75,025 $ 71l,686 $ 56,260 $ 51,418 $ 49,468 

Specialized publications ........ 64,311 612,225 62,870 31,087 24,886 

Other opilfating revenue 

Newspapers .......................... $ 5,218 $ 4,074 $ 3,603 $ 3,778 $ 3,593 

Shopping guides .................... 5,024 5,120 7,508 11,902 9,56() 

Specialized publicc:tions 

Books/liiJ'u.sic ...................... 100,909 99,504 102,413 2,314 2,448 

Data base and other .......•.. 84,194 84,733 81,524 25,068 18,306 

Total revenue 

Newspapers ......•................•.. $402,555 $381,662 $348,556 $340,533 $328,657 

Shopping guides .................... 66,262 65,965 63,799 64,510 51 ,487. 

Specialized publications ........ 555,079 558,970 558,400 237,540 2111,472 

Paid circulation at year-end 

Newspapers (Mon.-Fri.) ........ 908 941 933 935 971 

Newspapers (Sun.) ................ 915 900 856 830 858 

Specialized publications ........ 4,515 4,234 4,437 785 769 

(a) Does not include inserts. 

/ 
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Ol!i!y Newspapers 

The Company publishes nine daily newspapers in seven communities (fi•<i of which have Sunday 
editions). The daily newspapers and their oaid circulation a! January 1, 1989 are as follows: 

Dally Sunday 

The Kansas City Times ................................................. .. 
The Kansas City Star .................................................... .. 
Fort Worth Star-Telegram ............................................ .. 
Fort Worth Star-Telegram .... , ....................................... .. 
The Oakland Press (Pontiac, M•c;!1.) .............................. . 
Belleville News-Democrat (Belleville, 111.) ...................... . 
The Times Leader (Wilkes-Barre, Pa.) .......................... . 
Albany Democrat-Herald (Albany, Oregon) ................... . 
The Daily Tidings (Ashland, Oregon) ............................ .. 

Morning 275,000 
Evening 184,000 411,000 
Morning 140,000 317,000 
Evening 113,000 
Evening 74,000 81,000 
Morning 47,000 54,000 
Morning 48,000 52,000 
Evening 21,000 
Evening 6,000 

Weekly Newspapers 

The Company publishes weekly community newspapers in five states. The location by state, 
number nf publications and aggregate circulation at January 1, 1989 is set forth.'Jelow: 

SIGte 

Number.of Aggregate 
PubllcatlO·n~ Circulation 

Connecticut .................................................................... . 
H!inois ............................................................................ .. 
Michigan .......................................................................... . 
Oregon .......................................................................... .. 
Rhode Island .................................................................. . 

15 197,000 
7 64,000 
2 4,000 
6 45,000 
3 22,000 

Shopping Guides 

The Company distributes shopping guides in six stateis. The location by state, number of 
publications and aggregate circulation at January 1, 1989 is set forth below: 

State 

Number of Aggregate 
Publications Circulation 

California ........................................................................ . 
Conri:i-:ticut ................................................................... .. 
Kansas ............................................ , .............................. . 
Mis.soi.Jr i ......................................................................... . 
Oregon .......... , ............................................................... .. 
Was!1ington .................................................................... . 

4 1,533,000 
7 213,000 
2 242,000 
1 129,000 
3 212,000 
2 298,000 

SpecializeJ Publications 

The Specialized Publications Group, through Fairchild Publications, Institutional Investor, Practi­
cal Homeowner, <.md ABC Publishing, is engaged in gathering and publishing business news and 
ideas for industries covered by its various publications; in the publishing of consumer, special interest, 
trade and agricultural publications; and in data base services and inspirational communications. All 
of the publications are printed by outside printing contractors. Following are the significant 
publications and services: 
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Tltte 

Fairchild Publications 
Newspapers 

Woman's Wear Daily ........................................... . 
Daily News Record .............................................. . 
American Metal Market ...................................... .. 
HFD-Retailing Home Furnishings .................... .. 
Energy User News .............................................. .. 
Footwear News ................................................... .. 
Supermarket News ............................................. .. 
Electronic News ................................................... . 
Metalworking News .......................... , ................. .. 
MIS Week ............................................................. . 
Multichannel News ............................................... . 
w ......................................................................... .. 
SportStyle ............................................................ . 
Entree .................................................................... . 
Children's Business ............................................. . 
Financial Services Week ...................................... . 
Automotive Electronics ........................................ .. 

Magazin&s 
M, The Civilized Man ........................................... .. 
Metal Center News .............................................. . 
Home Fashions .................................................... . 
Heat Treating ...................................................... .. 
Travel Agent ......................................................... . 
Iron Age/Metal Producers .................................. .. 

International Medical NfJws Group 
Family Practice News ......................................... .. 
Internal Medicine News ...................................... .. 
Ob. Gyn. News ............... , .................................... .. 
Pediatric News .................................................... .. 
Clinical Psychiatry News .................................... .. 
Skin & Allergy News ........................................... .. 

Professional Press Group 
Optical Index ........................................................ . 
lnternatioflal Contact Lens Clinic ........................ . 

Institutional Investor 
Domestic Edition .................................................. . 
International Edition ............................................ .. 

Practical Homeowner ........................................................ .. 

·i=hilatelic Publications 
Stamp Collector .................................................. .. 
The Stamp Wholesaler. ....................................... .. 
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Frequency 

Daily 
Daily 
Daiiy 
Weekly 
Monthly 
Weekly 
WnF.1kly 
Weekly 
Weekly 
Weekly 
Weekly 
Biweekly 
Biweekly 
Monthly 
Monthly 
Biweekly 
Biweekly 

Monthly 
Monthly 
Monthly 
Monthly 
Twice Weekly 
Monthly 

Semimonthly 
Semimonthly 
Semimonthly 
Monthly 
Monthly 
Monthly 

Semimonthly 
Monthly 

Monthly 
Monthly 

9 times per year 

Weekly 
Bimonthly 

Circulation 

61,000 
23,000 
11,000 
32,000 
11,000 
22,000 
57,000 
92,000 
86,00o· 

125,000· 
14,000 

259,000 
26,ooo· 
11,000' 
20,000· 
64,ooo· 
32,000· 

156,000 
13,ooo· 
12,000· 
21,000· 
45,000 
22,000· 

73,ooo· 
n,ooo· 
28,000· 
31,000· 
28,ooo· 
38,ooo· 

17,ooo· 
4,ooo· 

113,00CY 
43,ooo· 

750,000 

21,000 
6,000 



Title Frequency Circulation 

ABC Publishing 
Consumer and Special Interest Publications 

COMPUTE! ........................................................... . Monthly 250,000 

COMPUTE!'s Gazette .......................................... . Monthly 325,000 

COMPUTE!'s PC Magazine ................................. . Bimonthly 60,000 

High Fidelity ......................................................... . Monthly 300,000 

Los Angeles Magazine ........................................ . Monthly 172,000 

McCall's Needlework & Crafts ............................ . Bimonthly 500,000 

Modern Photography ........................................... . Monthly 675,000 

Musical America/Opus ......................................... . Bimonthly 15,000 

Personal Publishing ............................................. . Monthly 65,000 

Schwann CD .......•..•.............................................. Monthly 13,000 

Schwann Record & Tape Guide .......................... . \luarts;ly 16,000 

Trade Publications 

Assembly Engineering ......................................... . Monthly 79,ooo· 

Automotive Industries .......................................... . Monthly 86,00o· 

Automotive Marketing ......................................... . Monthly 21,000· 

Commercial Carrier Journal ................................ . Monthly ao,ooo· 

Distribution ........................................................... . Monthly 11,000· 

Electronic Component News ............................... . Monthly 115,000· 

Food Engineering North America ........................ . Monthly 60,00o· 

Food Engineering International ........................... . 10 times per year 13,000· 

Hardware Age ...................................................... . Monthly 11,000· 

IMPO (Industrial Maintenance & Plant 
Operations) ....................................................... . Monthly 120.000· 

Industrial Finishing ............................................... . Monthly 36,ooo· 

Industrial Safety & Hygiene News ....................... . Monthly 60,000· 

!AN (Instrumentation & Control News) ....•............ Monthly 11 a,000· 

Instrument & Control Systems ............................ . Monthly 90,000· 

Jewelers' Circular•Keystone ............................... . Monthly 40,000 

Machine and Tool Biue Book .............................. . Monthly 95,ooo· 

Manufacturing Systems ....................................... . Monthly 115,ooo· 

Motor Age ............................................................ . Monthly 140,000 

Office Products Dealer ......................................... . Monthly 32,000· 

Outdoor Power Equipment .................................. . Monthly 12,000· 

Owner Operator ................................................... . Bimonthly 92,000 

Product Design & Development .......................... . Monthly 160,000· 

Quality .................................................................. . Monthly 93,ooo· 

Review of Optometry ........................................... . Monthly 29,000 
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Title 

Agricultural Publications 

Prairie Parmer ...................................................... . 

Wal/aces Farmer .................................................. . 

Wisconsin Agriculturist .................•....................... 

Dairy Herd Management ...................................... . 

Farm Store Merchandising .................................. . 

Feedstuffs ............................................................ . 

Garden Supply Retailer ....................................... . 

Hog Farm Management ....................................... . 

Tack 'n Togs Merchandising .............................•.. 
----

.All, or substantially all, controlled circulation. 

Data Base Services 

Frequency 

17 times per year 
16 times per year 
17 times per year 
Monthly 
Monthly 
Weekly 

Monthly 
Monthly 
Monthly 

Circulation 

161,000 
144,000' 

52,000 
105,000' 
36,000' 
19,000 
42,000' 
44,000' 
21,000· 

NILS Publishing Company and National Price Service, Inc. publish information on insurance 
laws and regulations and publish price and product information for items available to the electrical 
and plumbing trades. 

lrspirational Communications 

Word, Incorporated, a diversified religious and inspirational communications company, 
publishes bibles and other religious and inspirational books and materials; and produces and 
distributes records, tapes, sheet music, song books, films and instructional materials. 

Certain operations within the Specialized Publications Group also publish books, visuals, 
directories and newsletters; conduct meetings and seminars; provide syndication, marketing and 
research services; and sell insurance products. 

Competition 

The Company's specialized publications operate in a highly competitive environment. In the 
Company's various news publishing activities, it competes with almost all other information media, 
including broadcast media, and this competition may become more intense as communications 
equipment is improved and new technologies are developed. Many metropolitan general newspapers 
and small-city or suburban papers carry business news. In addition to special magazines in the 
fields covered by the Company's specialized publications, competing general interest and consumer 
magazines and general news magazines publish substantial amounts of similar business material 
and deal with the same or related special interests or industries as those covered by the Company's 
publications. Nearly all of these publications seek to sell advertising space, and much of this effort 
is directly or indirectly competitive with the Company's specialized publications. 

The Company's newspapers and shopping guides compete with other advertising media such 
as broadcasting stations, suburban and metropolitan newspapers, magazines ar.d billboards. The 
Company's book publishing operations compete with other companies whose books deal with the 
same or related fields as those covered by the Company's titles. In most cases, there is also 
competition for acquisition of new book titles. In the religious and inspirational recording field, there 
is competition with others, not only to obtain the creative talent and "music essential to the business, 
but also in the sale and distribution of the product. 

Raw Materials 

The primary raw materials used by the Company's Publishing Group are newsprint and other 
paper stock, which are purchased from paper merchants, paper mills and contract printers and are 
readily available {ram numerous suppliers. 

K-12 



Item 2. Properties. 

The Company's new headquarters building at 77 West 66th Street in New York City houses the 
executive and corporate offices and the television network administrative staff, and is owned by the 
Company. 

The principal executive and editorial offices of Fairchild Publications are located in New York 
City and are owned by the Company. The Company owns and leases additional publishing 
subsidiaries' executive, editorial and other offices and facilities in various cities, for which leased 
properties the leases expire on various dates through 2004. All of the premises occupied by the 
newspapers are owned by the Company. 

The Company owns the ABC Television Center adjacent to the Company's headq~Jrters building 
on West 66th Street and the ABC Radio Network studios at 125 West End Avenue in New York City. 
In Los Angeles, tr,'l Company owns the ABC Television Center. The Company leases the ABC 
Television Networ~ ,,!fices in Los Angeles, the ABC News Bureau facility in Washington, D.C. and 
the computer facility in Hackensack, New Jersey, under leases expiring on various dates through 
2034. The Company's broadcast operations and engineering facility and local television studios and 
offices in New York City are leased, but the Company has the right to acquire such properties fol' a 
nominal sum in 1997. The Company owns the majority of its other broadcast studios and offices 
and broadcast transmitter sites elsewhere, and those which it does not own are occupied under 
leases expiring on various dates through 2039. 

Item 3. Legal Proceedings. 

Since 1982, the Company has been party to an action in the U.S. Claims Court against the 
government, seeking a determination that ABC was entitled to all or a portion of the investment tax 
credit with respect to various programs broadcast by ABC during the years 1962 to 1979. Certain 
program producers became parties to that litigation in 1983. In 1987, the U.S. Claims Court rejected 
a large part of the claim by ABC, and on May 19, 1988 the U.S. Court of Appeals for tho Federal 
Circuit affirmed the lower court's decision. It remanded the case to the Claims Caurt for a 
determination relating to a limited number of films. In 1986, a number of program producers 
instituted a separate action against the Company in the Superior Court for the State of California, 
County of Los Angeles, alleging, among other things, that ABC's efforts to recover investment tax 
credits were inconsistent with ABC's agreements with these producers. The Company has now 
agreed in principle to a settlement(for a non-material amount) of these related proceedings, pursuant 
to which it will dismiss the remaining portions of its Court of Claims actions and the program 
producers will dismiss the California lawsuit. The settlement, when finalized, will not affect certain 
other investment tax credit claims made by the Company with respect to a category of programs 
produced and broadcast by ABC which do not involve third-party producers. 

All other litigation pending during 1988 was routine and incidental to the business of the 
Company. 

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders. 

The information called for by this item is not applicable. 
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Executive Officer>S of the Company 

Director 
Name ~ since 

Thomas S. Murphy .......... 63 1957 

Daniel B. Burke ................ 60 1967 

John B. Fairchild .............. 62 1968 

John B. Sias ..................... 62 1977 

Ronald J. Doerfier ............ 47 

Michael P. Mallardi .......... 55 
' 

Phillip J. Meek .................. 51 

Stephen A. Weiswasser .. 48 

Allan J. Edelson .. ,............ 46 
David J. Vondrak ............. 43 

Philip R. Farnsworth ........ 47 

Officer 
since 

1958 

1962 

1968 

1975 

1977 

1986 

1975 

1981' 

1981 
1986 

1986 

Title 

Chairman of the Board of Directors and 
Chief Executive Officer. 

President, Chief Operating Officer and Di­
rector. 

Executive Vice President, Chairman and 
Chief Executive Officer of Fairchild Publi­
cations, and Director. 

Executive Vice President, President of ABC 
Television Network Group, and Director. 
Prior to 1986 he was Executive Vice 
President, President of Publishing 
Group, and Director. 

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial 
Officer. 

Senior Vice President and President of 
Bwadcast Group. Prior to 1986 he was 
Exe1cutive Vice President and Chief 
Financial Officer of American Broadcast­
ing Companies, Inc. 

Senior Vice President and President of 
Publishing Group. Prior to 1986 he was 
President and Publisher of the Fort 
Worth Star-Telegram. 

Senior Vice President and General Coun­
sel. Prior to 1986 he was engaged in the 
practice of law as a partner in the law 
firm of Wilmer, Cutler & Pickering. 

Vice President and Controller. 
Vice President and Treasurer. Prior to 

1986 he was Vice President and Treasur­
er of American Broadcasting Compan­
ies, Inc. J 

Secretary since May 1988. From 1986 to 
May 1988 he was Assistant Secretary. 
Prior to 1986 he was Assistant Secretary 
of American Broadcasting Companies, 
Inc. 

There is no relationship by blood, marriage or adoption among the officers. All officers hold 
office at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. 
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PART II 

Item 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Stock and Related Security Holder Matters. 

The information called for by this item is included on page 35 of the 1988 Annual Report to 
Shareholders and is incorporated herein by reference. 

Item 6. Selected Financial Data. 

The information called for by this item is included on pages 22 and 23 of the 1988 Annual Report 
to Shareholders and is incorporated herein by reference. 

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations. 

The information called for by this item is included on pages 17 through 21 of the 1988 Annual 
Report to Shareholders and is incorporated herein by reference. 

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. 

The information callF.ld for by this item is included on pages 24 through 36 of the 1988 Annual 
Report to Shareholders and is incorporated herein by reference. 

Item 9. Changes in and Disag.reements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial 
Disclosure. 

The information called for by this item is not applicable. 

PART Ill 

Item 1 O. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant. 

Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's definitive Proxy Statement for the annual 
meeting of shareholders to be held on May 2, 1989. Information concerning the executive officers 
is included in Part I, on page K-14. 

Item 11. Executive Compensation. 

Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's definitive Proxy Statement for the annual 
meeting of shareholders to be held on May 2, 1989. 

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management. 

Incorporated herein by reference to the Company's definitive Proxy Statement for the annual 
meeting of shareholders to be held on May 2, 1989. 

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions. 

The information called for by this item is not applicable. 
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PART IV 

Item 14. Exhibits, Finsncisl Statement Schedules snd Reports on Form 8-K. 

(a) 1. Financial statements and financial statement schedules 

The financial statements and schedules listed in the accompanying index to the 
consolidated financial statements are filed as part of this annual report. 

2. Exhibits 
' 

The exhibits listed 61. the accompanying index to exhibits are filed as part of this 
annual report. 

(b) Reports on Form 8-K. 

None filed during Fourth Quarter 1988. 
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CAPITAL CITIES/ABC, INC. 

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 

COVERED BY REPORT OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

(Item 14(a) 1.) 

Reference 

Annual Report 
to 

Shareholders 

Consolidateci balance sheet at January 1, 1989 and January 3, 1988 26 
For the years ended January 1, 1989, January 3, 1988 and December 

28, 1986: 
Consolidated statement of income ............................................... 24 
Consolidated statement of cash flows.......................................... 25 
Consolidated statement of stockholders' equity........................... 28 
Notes to consolidated financial statements ................................. 29 

Financial statement schedules for the years ended January 1, 1989, 
January 3, 1988 and December 28, 1986: 

Form 10·K 

V-Property, plant and equipment .............................................. K-20 
VI-Accumulated depreciation and amortization of property, 

plant and equipment ........................................................... K-21 
VIII-Valuation and qualifying 'lCcounts ......................................... K-20 

X-Supplementary income ;tatement information ...................... K-21 
All other schedules have been omitted sines the required information is not applicable or is not 

present in amounts sufficient to require submission of the schedule, or because the information 
required is included in the consolidated financial statements, including the notes thereto. 

The consolidated financial statements of Capital Citie:;;/ABC, Inc., listed in the above index which 
are included in the Annual Report to Shareholders for the year ended January 1, 1989, are hereby 
incorporated by reference. With the exception of the Items referred to in Items 1, 5, 6, 7 and 8, the 
1988 Annual Report to Shareholders is not to be deemed filed as part of this report. 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

We consent to the incorporation by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Capital 
Cities/ ABC, Inc. for the year ender1 January 1, 1989 of our report dated February 28, 1989, included 
in the 1988 Annual Report to Shareholders of Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. 

We also consent to the addition of the financial statement schedules listed in the accompanying 
index to financial statements and financial statement schedules to the financial statements covered 
by our report dated February 28, 1989 incorporated herein by reference. 

We also consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements Form S-8 No. 
2-58945 for the registration of 630,067 shares of the Company's common stock, Form S-8 No. 2-
59014 for the registration of 287, 195 shares, Form S-8 No. 2-86863 for the registration of 300,000 
shares, Form S-8 No. 33-2196 relating to the issuance of an indeterminate number of shares, Form 
S-8 No. 33-11806 for the registration of 200,000 shares, Form S-8 No. 33-16206 for the registration 
of 300,000 shares and Form S-8 No. 33-25918 for the registration of 200,000 shares, and in the 

~~pe~ of~u~;----
ARTHUR YOU~G & £MPANY 

New York, New York 
March 13, 1989 
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CAPITAL CITIES/ABC, INC• 

INDEX TO EXHIBITS (Item 14 (a) 2.) 

(3)(a) Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, with amendments. 
(3)(b) Current By-Laws of the Company. 

(4)(a) Capital Cities Communications, Inc. Standard Multiple-Series Indenture Provisions dated July 
25, 1985. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (4)(a) to Registration Statement No. 2-99204. 

(4)(b) Form of Indenture, dated as of July 25, 1985, between the Company and Manufacturers 
Hanover Trust Company, as Trustee, with respect to the Senior Debt Securities. Incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit (4)(b) to Registration Statement No. 2-99204. 

(4)(c) Form of Indenture, dated a.s of July 25, 1985, between the Company and Bankers Trust 
Company, as l rustee, with respect lo the Subordinated Debt Securities. Incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit (4)(c) to Registration Statement No. 2-99204. 

(4)(d) Revolving Crddit Agreement, dated as of January 3, 1986, as amended and restatA.d as of 
June 30, 1987, among the Company, Chemical Bank and certain other banks. 

(4)(e) Capital Cities/ABC Finance ·Company, Inc. (Issuer) and Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. (Guarantor) 
Standard Multiple-Series Indenture Provisions, dated February 11, 1986. Incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit (4)(a) to Registration Siaiement No. 33-3236. 

(4)(f) Indenture, dated as of February 11, 1986, between the Company, Guarantor, and Manufacturers 
Hanover Trust Company, as Trustee, with respect to the Senior Debt Securities. Incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit (4)(b) to Registration Statement No. 33-3236. 

(4)(g) Indenture, dated as of February 11, 1986, between the Company, Guarantor, and Bankers 
Trust Company, as Trustee, with respect to the Subordinated Debt Securities. Incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit (4)(c) to Registration Statement No. 33-3236. 

(4)(h) Note Purchase Agreement, dated November 15, 1985, between the Company and Metropolitan 
Life Insurance Company. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit C to the Company's Schedule 13D dated 
January 13, 1986. 

(4)(i) Note Purchase Agreement, dated November 15, 1985, between the Company and Teachers 
Insurance and Annuity Association of America. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit D to the Company's 
Schedule 13D dated January 13, 1986. 

(4)0) Note Purchase Agreement, dated November 15, 1985, between the Company and Equitable 
Variable Life Insurance Company. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit E to the Company's Schedule 
13D dated January 13, 1986. 

(4)(k) Note Purchase Agreement, dated November 15, 1985, between the Company and The Equitable 
Life Assurance Society of the United States. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit F to the Company's 
Schedule 13D dated January 13, 1986. 

(4)(1) Form of Senior Note and Guarantee issued in exchange for notes of equal principal amount 
and interest rate issued in connection with the Note Purchase Agreements referred to in Exhibits (4)(h) 
through (4)(k) above. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (4)(c) to Registration Statement No. 33-5315. 

(4)(m) Other instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt of the Company and its 
consolidated subsidiaries are not being filed since the total amount of securities authorized under any of 
such instruments does not exceed 10 percent of the total assets of the Company and its subsidiaries on 
a consolidated basis. The Company agrees to furnish a copy of any such instrument to the Securities 
and Exchange Commission upon request. 

(10)(a) Stock Purchase Agreement between the Company and Berkshire Hathaway Inc., dated March 
18, 1985. Incorporated by reference to Appendix B to the Company's and American Broadcasting 
Companies, lnc.'s Joint Proxy Statement-Prospectus dated May 10, 1985. 

(-10)(!::) Stock Purchase Agreement among the Company, Berkshire Hathaway Inc., National Indemnity 
Company, National Fire and Marine Insurance Company, Columbia Insurance Company, Nebraska 
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Furniture Mart, Inc. and Cornhusker Casualty c,;rnpany, dated January 2, 1986. Incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit A to the Schedule 13D dated January 18, 1986 filed by Berkshire Hathaway Inc. and others in 
regard to the Company's common stoc~. 

,' 

(13) The Company's 1988 Aronual Report to Shareholders. (This report, except for .~he. portions 
thereof whic!1 are incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K, is furnished fur the inforirlation of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission and is not to be deemed "filed" as part of this Form 10-K.) 

.(22) Subsidiaries of the Company. 

(28)(a), Form 11-K fof"the Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. Savings & Investment Plan for the year ended 
. December 31, 1988. 

//' : '(28)(b) Undertakings. 
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CJ>l\>ITAL CITIES/ABC, INC. 

PROPERrY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT-SCHEDULE V 
(Thousands of Dollars) 

C.~her 
fJ.l!!ance at Operating Additions l\etlre- chanQea- Be.lance 
begim1in3 companies at manta reclasslfi· at close 
of ~erio acgulred ~ or sales cations(a! of eeriod 

Year ended January 1, 1989: 
Land and Improvements ........................... $ 395,097 $ 22 $ 3,245 $ (67) $ 1,103 $ 399,400 
Buildings and improvements .................... 459,766 150 35,60'< (153) (53) 495,313 
Broadcasting equipment .......................... 307,756 55,185 (4,523) 2,530 360,948 
Printing machinery and equipment .......... 148,604 271 7,488 (4,220) (664) 151,4?9 
Other, including construction-in-proGress 113,325 40 51,892 (1,531) 1,448 165,174 

$1,424,548 $ 483 $153,413 $ (10.4~ $ 4,364 $1,572,314 

Year ended January 3, 1988: 
Land and Improvements ........................... $ 383,038 $ 299 $ 13,059 $ (11,004) $ 9,705 $ 395i097 
Buildings and improvements .................... ~22,031 334 46,786 (11,665) 2,280 459,766 
Broadcasting equipment ..• , ..................... 272,878 865 33,875 (4,488) 4,626 307,756 
Printing mactJnery and equipment .......... 168,535 4~9 5,896 (13,493) (12,753) 148,604 
Other, including construction-in-progress 96,897 315 16,693 (1,741) 1,161 113,325 

$1,343,379 $ 2,232 $116,309 $ (42,391) $ 5,019 $1,424,548 

Year ended December28, 19R6: 
Land and Improvements .•......................... $ 22,726 $ 323,498 $ 74,238 $ (37,424) $ 383,038 
Buildings and lmprovam-ents .................... 77,419 389,602 95,617 (140,607) 422,031 
Broadcasting equipment ........................... 71,873 186,830 51,633 (37,458) 272,878 
Printing machinery and equipment .......... 93,959 13,948 68,376 (7,748) 168,535 
Cabla television distribution systems and 

aquipme• ~ ............................................. 165,912 (165,912) 
Other, iiicluding construction-in-progress 86,603 164,732 (136,782) __J!I,556) 96,897 

$ 518,492 $1,078,610 $153,082 ~.(406,805) $1,343,379 

(a) Represents in 1988, final adjustments to the purchase price allocation of the 1987 acquisition 
of radio stations KRXY-AM/FM and the 1986 acquisition of American Broadcasting Companies, 
Inc. (ABC). In 1987, represents adjustments of the purchase price allocation of the acquisition 
of ABC. 

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the following estimated useful Jives: 
buildings and improvements-10 to 40 years; broadcasting equipment-4 to 8 years; printing 
machinery and equipment-5 to 20 years. 

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS~-SCHEDULE VIII 
(Thousands of Doilare) 

Additions OeducUons 

Deducted from accounts and 
notes receivable: 

Year ended January 1, 1989 ........................... . 
Year ended January 3, 1988 ........................... . 
Year ended December 28, 1986 ...................... . 

Balance at 
beginning 
of period 

$37,798 
32,764 

6,745 

Operating 
companies 

acquired 

$ 444 

30,326 
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Charged 
to 

expense 

$51,924 
58,777 
47,734 

Operating 
companies 
dlspossd 

$ (91) 

(669) 

Acc:>unts 
written-off, 

net 

$(52,373) 
(53,743) 
(51,372) 

Balance 
at clGJe 

of period 

$37,702 
37,798 
32,764 



CAPITAL C!TIES/ABC, INC. 

ACCUMULATED DEPR~CIATION AND AMORTIZATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT-SCHEDULE VI 
{Tho~~ands of Dollars} 

Other 
Balance at Retire- changes- Balance 
beginning Charged ments reclassifi- at close 
of period to expense or sales cations( a) of period 

Yf.1ar ended January 1, 1989: 
Land improvements ............................ $ 1,299 s 381 $ (13) $ 1,667 

Buildings and improvements .............. 63,702 20,370 (99) s (22) 83,951 

Broadcasting equipment .. _ .................. 131,380 54,068 (3,798) 1,366 183,016 

Printing machinery and equipment ..... 65,482 12,0S? (3,327) (270) 73,952 

Other .................................................... 25,552 ___!!,_819 (1,080) 556 33,847 
$287,415 $95,705 $ (8;C17) $1,630 $376,433 

Year ended January 3, 1988: 
Land improvements ............................ $ 02:7 s 375 $ (3) $ 1,299 

Buildings and improvements .............. 46/.261 19,752 $ (1,695) (616) 63,702 

Broadcasting equipment ..................... 71,761 52,733 (2,557) 9_,443 131,380 

Printing mar.hinery and equipment ..•.. 69,272 12,303 (12,936) (3,157) 65,482 

Other ...•.•.....•......................•...............•. 18,586 7,737 (1,470) 699 25,552 
$206,807 $92,900 $ (18,658) $6,366 $287,415 

Year ended December 28, 1986: 
Land improvements ............................ $ 772 $ 224 $ (69) $ 927 

BLtild!ngs and improvements .............. 30,763 22,501 (7,003) 46,261 

BrcSdcasting equipment ..................... 42,461 53,202 (23,902) 71,761 

Printing machiliery and equipment ..... 60,460 11,928 (3,116) 69,272 

Cable television dist:•":Jution systems 
49,456 (49,456) and equipment ................................. 

0th'" .................................................... 16,684 7,346 (5,444) 18,586 
$200,596 $95,201 $ (88,990) $206,807 

(a) Represents in 1988 and 1987, final adjustments to the purchase price allocation of the 1986 
acquisition of American Broadcasting Companies, Inc. 

SUPPLEF.'ENTARY INCOME STATEMENT INFORMATION-SCHEDULE X 
(Thousands of Dollars) 

Year ended January 1, 1989 ........................................................................................... . 
Year ended January 3, 1988 ........................................................................................... . 
Year ended December 28, 1986 ..................................................................................... . 
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Royalties 

$56,061 
49,961 
49,707 

Advertising 
costs 

$115,337 
111,511 
108,655 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1 S(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 
the • •gistrant has duly caused this Annual Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, 
thereunto duly authorized. 

CAPITAL CITIES/ABC, INC. 
(Registrant) 

Isl THOMAS S. MURPHY 
(Thomas S. Murphy) 

Chairman of the Board March 13. 1989 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this raport has been 
signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on 
the dates inr.iicaied: 

Principal Executive Officer: 
Isl THOMAS S. MURPHY 

(ThomH S. Murphy) March 13, 1989 
Principal Financial Officer: 

Isl RONALDJ.DOERFLER 
(Ronald J. Doerner) March 13, 1989 

Controller: 
Isl ALLAN J. EDELSON 

(Allan J. Edelson) March 13, 1989 
Directors: 

Isl ROBERT P. BAUMAN 
(Robert P. Bouman) March 13, 1989 

Isl WARREN E. BUFFETT 
(Warren E. Bullett) March 13, 1989 

Isl DANIEL B. BURKE 
(Daniel B. Burke) March 13, 1989 

Isl FRANK T. CARY 
(Frank T. Cery) March 13, 1989 

Isl JOSEPH P. DOUGHERTY 
(Jo..,ph P. Dougherty) March 13, 1989 

Isl JOHN 8. FAIRCHILD 
(John B. Fairchild) March 13, 1989 

Isl LEONARD H. GOLDENSON 
(Leonard H. Goldanson) March 13, 1989 

Isl LEON HESS 
(Leon Hess) March 13, 1989 

Isl GEORGE P. JENKINS 
(Geolge P. Jankins) March 13, 1989 

Isl FRANK S. JONES 
'(Frank S. Jones) March 13, 1989 

Isl ANN DIBBLE JORDAN 
(Ann Dibble Jordan) March 13, 1989 

Isl THOMAS M. MACIOCE 
(Thom11 M. Macioce) March 13, 1989 

Isl JOHN H. MULLER, JR. 
(John H. Muller, Jr.) March 13, 1989 

Isl THOMAS S. MURPHY 
(Thom11 S. Murphy) March 13, 1989 

Isl JOHN B. SIAS 
(John B. Sias) March 13, 1989 

Isl WILLIAM I. SPENCER 
(William I. Spencer) March 13, 1989 

Isl M. CABELL WOODWARD, JR. 
(M. Cebefl Woodward, Jr.) March 13, 1989 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 
the registrant has duly caused this Annual Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, 
thereunto duly authorized. 

M rch 13. 1989 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been 
signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on 
the dates indicated: 

Princi al Executive 

March 13. 1989 

March 13, 1989 

March 13, 1989 

, ,,-'-~ 
March 13, 1989 

1-_,,., 
March 13, 1989 

March 13, 1989 

March 13, 1989 

March 13, 1989 

March 13, 1989 

March 13, 1989 

March 13, 1989 

March 13, 1989 

March 13, 1989 

March 13, 1989 

March 13, 1989 

March 13, 1989 

March 13, 1989 

March 13, 1989 

March 13, 1989 

March 13, 1989 
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RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION 

OF CAPITAL CITIES/ABC, INC. 

Under S 807 of the Business Corporation Law 

Exhibit (3)(a) 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 807 of the 

Business Corporation Law, the undersi9ned, being the Senior Vice 

President and Assistant Secretary of capital Cities/ABC, :£nc., do 

hereby certify as follows: 

FIRST: The name of the corporation is Capital 

Cities/ABC, Inc. The name under which the corporation wa·s 

incorporated is Hudson Valley Broadcasting Company, Inc. Pur­

suant to a Certificate of Consolidation filed under Section 91 of 

the Stock Corporation Law, on October 22, 1957, the name of the 

corporation was changed to Capitol Cities Television Corporation. 

Pursuant to a Certificate of Change of Name, filed on December 

23, 1959, the name of the corporation was chan9ed to Capital 

Cities Broadcasting Corporation. The name of the corporation was 

changed further pursuant to a Certificate of Amendment, filed on 

May 4, 1973, to capital Cities communications, Inc. The name of 

the corporation was changed pursuant to a Certificate of Amend­

ment, filed on Januar.y 3, 1986, to its present name, Capital 

Cities/ABC, Inc. 



SECOND: The Certificate of Incorporation of the 

corporation was filed by the Department of State under the name 

Hudson Valley Broadcasting Company, Inc. on April 5, 1946 and a 

Certificate of Consolidation was filed by the Department of State 

as aforesaid on October 22, 1957. A Restated Certificate of 

Incorporation of Capital Cities Broadcasting Corporation 

("Restated Certificate of Incorporation") was filed by the 

Department of State on May 16, 1968. 

TijIRD: The text of the Certificate of 

Incorporation as heretofore amended, is hereby restated, without 

any amendment or change, to read as herein set forth in full: 

1. The name of the Corporation is Capital 
Cities/ABC, Inc. 

2. The purpose for which the Corporation is 
formed is to ·engage in any lawful act or activity for 
which corporations may be organized under the Business 
Corporation Law, proviced however, that the Corporation 
5.s not formed to engage in any act or activity re­
quiring the consent or approval of any state :>fficial, 
department, board, agency, or other body witliout first 
obtaining the consent of such body. 

3.A·. Authorized Shares. The aggregate number of 
shares which the Corporation shall have authority to 
issue is 84,000,000 of which 4,000,000 shares shall be 
without par value and shall be designated Preferred 
Stock, and 80,000,000 shares shall be with a par value 
of $1 per share and sha11 ba d~signated Common Stock. 

B. Preferred Stock. Shares of Preferred Stot:k 
may be issued from time to time in one or more serles 
as may be determined from time to time by the Board of 
Directors. Except in respect of the particulars t:o be 
fixed by the Board of Directors as provided belo~, all 
shares of Preferred Stock shall be of equal rank. All 
shares in any one series of Preferred Stock shall be 
alike in every particular except that shares of any one 
series issued at different times may differ as to the 
dates from which dividends thereon shall be cumulative. 
The voting rights, if any', of each such series and the 
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preferences and relative, participating, optional and 
other special rights of each aeries and the 
qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof, 
if any, may differ from those of any and all other 
series. The Board of Directors shall have the 
authority to fix by resolutions duly adopted prior to 
the issuance of any shares of a particular series of 
Preferred Stock designated by the Board of Directors, 
the voting rights, if any, of the holders of shares of 
such series and the designations, preferences and 
relative, participating, optional and other special 
rights of each series and the qualifications, 
limitations and restrictions thereof. 

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing 
authority of the Board of Directors, the Board of 
Directors from time to time may: 

(a) establish and designate a series of Preferred 
Stock, which may be distinguished by number, le'tter or 
title from other Preferred Stock of the Corporation or 
any series thereof; 

(b) fix and thereafter increase or decrease (but 
not below the number of shares thereof then outstand­
ing) the number of shares that shall constitute such 
series; 

(c) provide for dividends on shares of such 
series and, if provision is made for dividends, 
determine the dividend rate and the dates on which 
dividends, if declared, shall be payable, whether the 
dividends shall be cumulative and, if cumulative, for what 
date or dates dividends shall accrue, and the other 
conditions, if any, including rights of priority, if any, 
upon which the dividends shall be paid; 

(d) provide as to whether the shares of such series 
shall be redeemable, and if redeemable, the terms, 
limitations and restrictions with respect to such 
redemption, including without limitation, the manner of 
selecting shares for redemption if less than all shares are 
to be redeemed, the time or times and the pric~ or prices 
at which the shares of such series shall be subject to 
redemption, in whole or in part, and the amount, if any, in 
addition to any accrued dividends thereon which the holders 
of shares of any series shall be entitled to receive upon 
the redemption thereof, which amount may vary at different 
redemption dates and may be different with respect to shares 
redeemed through the operation of any purchase, retirement 
or sinking fund and with respect to shares otherwise 
redeemed; 
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(e) fix the amount, in addition to any accrued 
dividends thereon, which the holders of shares of such 
series shall be entitled to receive upon the voluntary or 
involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the 
Corporation, which amount may vary at different dates and 
may vary depending on whether such liquidation, dissolution 
or winding up is voluntary or involuntary, and to determine 
any other rights, if any, to which holders of the shares of 
such series shall be entitled in the event of any liquida­
tion, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation; 

(f) establish whether the shares of such series shall 
be subject to the operation of a purchase, retirement or 
sinking fund and, if so, the t~rms, limitations and 
restrictions with respect thereto, including.without 
limitation, whether such purchase, retirement or sinking 
fund shall be cumulative or noncumulative, the extent to and 
the manner in which such funds shall be applied to the 
purchase, retirement or redemption of the shares of such 
~eries for retirement or to other corporate purposes and the 
terms and provisions relative to the operation thereof; 

(<;) determine the extent of the voting rights, if any, 
of the shares of such series and determine whether the 
shares of such series having voting rights shall have 
multiple votes per share; 

(h) provide whether or not the shares of such series 
shall be convertible into or exchangeable for shares of any 
other class or classes of capital stock of the Corporation, 
including Common Stock, Preferred Stock or of any series 
thereof, and if convertible or exchangeable, establish the 
conversion or exchange price or rate, the adjustments 
thereof, and the other terms and conditions, if any, on 
which such shares shall be convertible or exchangeable; and 

(i) provide for any other preferences, any relative 
participating, optional or other special rights, any 
qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, or any 
other term or provision of shares of such series as the 
Board of Directors may deem appropriate or desirable. 

Shares of Preferred Stock may be issued by the 
Corporation for such consideration as is determined by the 
Soard of Directors. 

c. Common Stock. Subject to the preferential dividend 
rights applicable to shares of any series of Preferred 
Stock, the holder.s of shares of Common Stock shall be 
entitled to receive such dividends as may be declared by the 
Board of Directors. In the event of any voluntary or 
involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the 
Corporation, after distribution in full of the preferential 
amounts to be distributed to the holders of shares of the 
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Preferred Stock, the holders of shares of the Common Stock 
shall be entitled to receive all of the remaining assets of 
the Corporation available for distribution to its 
shareholders, ratably in proportion to the number of shares 
of the Common Stock held by them. Except as otherwise 
provided in paragraph B of this Article 3, the holders of 
shares of Common Stock shall be entitled to vote on all 
matters at all meetings of the shareholders of the 
Corporation and shall be entitled to one vote for each share 
of Common Stock entitled to vote at such meeting. 

Shares of Common Stock may be issued by the Board of 
Directors for such consideration, having a value of not less 
than the par value thereof, as is determined by the Board of 
Directors. 

D. Restrictions Upon Voting Rights of Aliens. Any 
provisions herein to the contrary notwithstanding, except as 
otherwise provided by law, not more than twenty percent of 
the aggregate number of shares outstanding entitled to vote 
on any matter shall at any time be voted by or for t~e 
account of aliens or their representatives, or by or.for the 
account of a foreign government or representative thereof, 
or by or for the account of any corporation organized under 
the laws of a foreign country. 

The Board of Directors shall make such rules and 
regulations as it shall deem necessary or appropriate to 
enforce the provisions of this paragraph D. 

E. Transfer of Shares to Aliens. Except as otherwise 
provided by law, not more than twenty percent of the aggre­
gate number of shares of voting stock outstanding shall at 
any time be owned of record by or for the account of aliens 
or their representatives or by or for the account of a 
foreign.government or representative thereof, or by or for 
the account of any corporation organized under the laws of a 
foreign country. 

Shares of stock shall be transferable on the books of 
the Corporation to aliens and their representatives, foreign 
governments and representatives thereof, and corporations 
organized under the laws of foreign countries, or to any 
?ersons holding for the account of aliens and their 
representatives, foreign governments and representatives 
thereof, and corporations organized under the laws of 
foreign countries, only, if after giving effect to such 
transfer, the aggregate number of shares of stock owned by 
or for the account of aliens and their representatives, 
foreign governments and representatives thereof, and 
corporations organized under the laws of foreign countries, 
would be not more than twenty percent of the number of 
shares of voting stock then outstanding. 
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The Board of Directors shall make such rules and 
regulations as it shall deem necessary or appropriate to 
enforce the foregoing provisions of this paragraph E. 

4. Neither the holders of the shares of the Common 
Stock nor the holders of the shares of the Preferred Stock 
shall have preemptive rights to purchase any shares of stock 
of any class or any other securities of the Corporation. 

S. The office of the Corporation is to be located in 
the City of New York, County of New York, State of New York. 
The address to which the Secretary of State shall mail a 
copy of process in any action or proceeding against the 
Corporation which may be served on hi~ is: c/o Gerald 
Dickler, 460 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10022. 

6. The Secretary of State of the State of New York is 
hereby designated as the agent of the Corporation upon whom 
process in any action or proceeding against it may be 
served. 

7. The duration of the Corporation shall be perpetual. 

8. The business and property of the Corporation shall 
be managed by a Board of not fewer than seven nor more than 
21 directors who shall be elected by the shareholders, 
except as otherwise provided in the By-laws of the 
Corporation. Directors need not be shareholders. 

9. The Board of Directors of the Corporation shall 
have power by vote of the majority of all the directors and 
without the assent of the shareholdlers to make, alter, 
amend and rescind the By-laws of the Corporation. 

FQURTH: The manner in which the aforesaid restated 

Certificate of Incorporation was authorized was by the unanimous 

written consent of all of the members of the Executive Committee 

of the Board of Directors of the Corporation. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have hereunto 

signed this certificate, this 3rd day of January, 1986, and 

affirm that the statements made herein are true under penalty of 

perjury. 
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT 

OF THE 

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION 

OF 

CAPITAL CITIES/ABC, INC. 

UNDER SECTION B05 OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATION LAW 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section a05 of the Business 

Corporation Law, the undersigned hereby certify: 

First: The name of the Corporation Is Capital Cities/ABC, 

Inc. The name under which it was fo"'11!d is Hudson Valley Broadcasting 

Company, Inc. 

Second: The Certificate of Incorporation was filed by the 

Department of State on April 5, 1946. 

CT 

Third: The Certificate of Incorporation Is hereby amended to 

add ar Article 10 to provide for the elimination of personal liability of 

directors under certain circumstances. 

Fourth: To effect the amendment set forth in Artfcle TMrd of 

this Certificate of Aniendment, the following Article 10 is hereby added 

to the Certificate of Incorporation: 

•10. llo director of the Corporation shall be 
personally liable to the Corporation or any of Its 
shareholders for monetary damages for breach of duty 
as a director, except In a case wllere a court of coni­
petent jurisdiction finds t~at the acts or 1111lsslons 
that are the subject of the cause of action vere (1) 
taken in bad faith, or (2) Involved Intentional •ls­
conduct or a k~!)Wing ~iolatlon of law, or (3) that 
the director penonally obtained a financial profit 
or other advantage, to which the director was not 
legally entitle~. or {4) that the director's actions 
violated Section 719 of the New York Business Corpo­
ration Law. Any repeal or 1111dlficatlon of this 
Article 10 shall be prospective only, and shall not 
adversely affect any right or protection of a direc­
tor of the Corporation existing at the time of such 
repeal or 1111dificatlon with respect to acts or 1111is­
sions occurring prior to such repeal or modification.• 



Fifth: The foregoing amendment of the Certificate of 

Incorporation was authorized by vote of the holders of a 1111jority of all 

outstanding shares entitled to vote on such amendment at the Annual 

Meeting of Shareholders duly held on May 19, 1988, subsequent to authorization 
by the Board of Directors. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this certifi,ate has been signed this 20th 

day of May, 1988, and we affinn the staterrents contained therein as 
true under penalties of perjury • 

.. ~ .. ~····· ""''' ,,,, President and General Counsel 

Secretary 



er 
CERTIFICATE OF CHANGE 

OF 

CAPITAL CITIES/ABC, INC. 

UNDER SECTION 805-A OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATION LAW 

er 

llE, THE UNDERSIGNED, Stephen A. Weiswasser and Philip R. 

Farnsworth, being respectively tile Senior Vice President and General 

Counsel and the Secretary of Clpital Cities/ABC, Inc. hereby certify: 

1. The name of the Corporation is Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. It 

was incorporated under the nv;iie Hudson Valley Broadcasting Collpany, Inc. 

2. The Certificate of Incorpt1ration of said Corporation was 

filed by the Departlllent of State on April 5, 1946. 

3. The following was authoriz,ed by tile Executive Co11111ittee of 

the Board of Directors: 

To change the post office address to which the Secretary of 

State shall 111ail a copy of process in any ~ction or proceeding against 

the Corporation which !IWIY be served on him from c/o Gerald Dic:kler, 460 

Par~ Avenue, l'lew York, New York 10022, to 1330 Avenue of the ~ericas, 

New Y~rk, New York 10019, Attention: Secretary • 

.. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have si!Pled this certificate on the 23rd 

day of May, 1988 and we affil'll the statements contained therein as true 

under penalties of perjury. 

i;fn.l~~r. sen1or Vice 
Pre$ident and General Counsel 

~ ... o>)_ 
fll111)R:fli"llth, Secretary 

: 
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CERTIFICATE OF CHANGE 

OF 

CAPITAL CITIES/ABC, INC. 

UNDER SECTION 805-A OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATION LAW 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, Etephen A. Weiswasser and Philip R. 

Farnsworth, being respectively the Senior Vice President and 

General Counsel and the Secre.tary of Capital Cities/ ABC, Inc., 

hereby certify: 

1. The name of thr Corporation is Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. 

It was incorporated under the name Hudson Valley Broadcasting 

Company, Inc. 

2. The Certificate of Incorporation was. filed bJ the 

Department of State on April S, 1946. 

3. The following was authorized by the Executive Committee 

of the Board of Directors: 

To change the post office address to which the Secretary 

of State shall mail a copy of process in any action or proceeding 

against the Corporation which may be served on him from 1330 Avenue 

of the Americas, Ne~ York, New York 10019, Attention: Secretary to 

77 West 66th Street, New York, New York !0023-6Z98, Attention: 

Secretary. 

IN WITNJ3S ~'HEREOF, we have signed this certificate on the 

15th day of February, 1989 and we affirm the statements contained 

therein are true under penalties of perjury. 

te en • eiswasser, enior ice 
Presidem: and General Counsel 



Exhibit (3)(b) 

Reatated •• of April 19, 198~ 
and thereafter •• amender. 
through March 17, 1987 

CAPITAL CITIES/ABC, INC. 

BY-LAWS 

ARTICLE I 

Offices 

Section 1. The principal office of the Corporation 

shall be located in the City of New York, State of New York. 

Section 2. Other offices for the transaction of 

business shall be locat·ed at such place as the Board of Directors 

may from time to time determine. 

ARTICLE II 

-Capital Stock 

Section 1. All certificates of stock shall be signed 

by the Chairman of the Board or the President and the Secretary, 

and shaJ.l be ~ealed with the Corporate Seal. 

Section 2. Treasury stoc~ shall be held by the 

Corporation subject to reissuance at the direction of the Board 

of Directors, and shall neither vote nor participate in 

dividends. 



Section 3. The Corporation shall have a first lien on 

all ahares of its capital stock, end upon all dividends declared 

upon the same, for any indebtedness of the respective 

shareholders thereof to the Corporation. 

Section 4. Transfers of any stock may be made and old 

certificates, properly endorsed, shall be surrendered and 

cancelled before a new certificate is issued. The stock transfer 

books shall not be closed bt,fore the date on which a dividend is 

declared, the Board of Directors in its discretion fixing a 

record date upon which the transfer agent shall, without actually 

closing the books for the transfer of stock, take a record of all 

shareholders entitled to the dividend. 

Section 5. In case of loss or destruction of a 

certificate of stock, no new certificate shall be issued in lieu 

thereof except upon satisfactory proof to the Board of Directors 

of such loss or destruction, and upon such"conditions as it may 

impose; except that upon the giving of satisfactory security by 

bond or otherwise against loss to the Corporation, a new 

certificate may be issued upon written authorization of the 

Chairman of the Board, the President, Secretary or Treasurer of 

the Corporation. 

ARTICLE III 

Meetings of Shareholders 

Section 1. The Annual Meeting of Shareholders shall be 

held on any business day during the month of May in each year at 

the principal office of the Corporation, or at such other place 
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ln the United States as the Board of Directors shall designate. 

Any such meeting may be adjourned or postponed by the Board of 

Directors, by the Executive Committee of the Board or by such 

officer or officers as the Board or the Executive Committee shall 

designate, to any date or dates after May 31 in such year as the 

Board, the Executive Committee or their designee or designees 
~ 

shall select. At such meeting, the shareholders shall elect 

directors to serve until their successors be elected and 

qualified and shall conduct such other business as may come 

before the meeting .. 

Section 2. A Special Meeting of the Shareholders to be 

held at such place as if called as an Annual Meeting, may be 

called at any time by the Chairman of the Board, or in his 

absence by the President or by the Board of Directors. 

Section 3. For the purpose of determining the 

shareholders entitled to notice of or to vote at any .Annual or 

Special Meeting of Shareholders or any adjournment thereof, or 

for the purpose of any other action, the Executive Committee 

shall fix, in advance, a date as the record date for any such 

determination of shareholders. Notice of the time and place of 

Annual or Special Meetings shall be mailed at least 10 days 

before the date of such Annual or Special Meeting by the 

Secretary of the Corporation to each shareholder of record on the 

date as determined by the Executive Committee. 

Section 4. The Chairman of the Board (or in his 

absence, the President or an Executive Vice President) shall 

preside at all such meetings. 
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Section S. At every •uch Annual or Special Meeting 

&ach shareholder shall be entitled to cast one vote for each 

share of voting capital stock held in his name; which vote may be 

cast by him either in person or by proxy. All proxies may be in 

writing o.nd s.hall be filed with the Secretary and entered of 

record by the Secretary in the minutes of the meeting. 

Section 6. A quorum for t.he transaction of business at 

ary such meeting shall consist of a number of persons 

represeniing a majority of the shares of voting capital stock 

issued and outstanding; but the shareholders present at any 

meeting though less than a quorum may adjourn the meeting to a 

future date. 

ARTICLE IV 

Directors 

Section 1. The business, property and affairs of the 

Corporation shall be managed by a Board of Directors. The number 

of members of the Board of Directors of the Corporatio.n shall be 

established from time to time by the Board of Directors; provided 

the number thereof shall be consistent with the number required 

by the Certificate of Incorporation. Directors need not be 

shareholders. 

Section 2. The Directors shall be elected by 

shareholders at the Annual Mee,ting and shall hold office for one 

year or until their successors shall have been duly elected and 

qualified. Notwithstanding the aforesaid, the Board of 

Directors, by a vote of a majority of its members at a duly 
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constituted meeting, •hall have the right to increase the 

membership of the Board, subject to the limitation in number 

provided in Section l of ARTICLE IV. Unless a majority of the 

members of the Board waives the applicable limitation in a given 

case: (1) any person who was not a Director on March 17, 1987 

and who shall have attained the age of 72 as of the date of an 

Annual Meeting shall be ineligible for election or re-election as 

a Director; and (2) any person who was a Director on March 17, 

1987 and who shall have attained the age of 75 as of the date of 

an Annual Meeting shall be ineligible for re-election as a 

Director. 

Section 3. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors 

shall be held at such date and time, and in such place within or 

outside of the State of New York, as the Chairman of the Board 

may designate in the notice of meeting. Such meetings should be 

held quarterly. 

Section 4. Special meetings of the Board of Directors 

shall be held at such date and time, and in such place within or 

outside of the State of New York, as may be designated in the 

notice of such meeting by the person or persons calling the 

meeting, who may be the Chairman of the Board or the President 

or, in the absence of the foregoing, not less than one-third of 

the members of the Board. By unanimous consent of the Directors, 

special meetings of the Board may be held without notice, at any 

time and place. 
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Section 5. Notice of all regular and apecial meetings 

of the Board of Directors, except those apecif ied in the aecond 

sentence of Section 4 of ARTICLE IV, ahall be mailed to each 

Director by the Secretary, at least three days previous to the 

time fixed for the meeting. All notices of special meetings 

shall state the purpose thereof. 

Section 6. A quorum for the transaction of business at 

any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors shall 

consist of a majority of the members of the Board of Directors 

except that the Directors present at any such meeting shall have 

th1~ power to adjourn the meeting to a future date; and no 

business of the Corporation shall be transacted except by a 

majority vote of the full Board of Directors at any such regular 

or special meeting of the Directors, or any adjournment thereof. 

-section 7.: The Directors shall elect the off ice rs of 

the Corporation ~nd fix their salaries; such election to be held 

at the meeting of the Board of Directors following each Annual 

Meeting of Shareholders. 

Section 8. Any vacancy in the Board of Directors 

occurring by reason of an increase in the number of Directors 

pursuant to Section 2 of ARTICLE IV, or by reason of death, 

resignation, disqualification or for any other reason, shall be 

filled for the unexpired portion of the term by a majority vote 

of the remaining Directors at any regular or special meeting of 

the Board of Directors. 
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Section 9. Between the meetings of the Board, the 

powers of the Board shall be exercised by an Executive Committee 

of not less than three members appointed by a majority of the 

Board at ~ny meeting at which a quorum is present. Tl1e Executive 

Committee shall meet at such intervals as the Board by resolution 

may determine, and the Executive Committee shall be permitted to 

take any action required or permitted to be taken by the 

Executive Committee if all members of the Executive Committee 

consent in writing to the adoption of a resolution authorizing 

the action. 

Section 10. Any one or more members of the Board or 

any Committee thereof may participate in a meeting of such Board 

or Committee by means of a conference telephone or similar 

communications equipment allowing all persons participating in 

the meeting to hear and communicate with one another at the same 

time. Participation by such means shall cons.ti tute prese"nce in 

person at any such meeting. 

Section 11. The Board, by resolutions adopted by a 

majority of the entire Board, may designate from among its 

members one or more Committees (in addition to the Executive 

Committee as provided in Section 9 of ARTICLE IV) each of which 

shall consist of threP. or more Directors, and to the extent 

provided in such resolution, shall have all authority of the 

Board with respect to the matters set forth therein. 

- 7 -



Section 12. At each Annual Meeting of Shareholders the 

Directors shall submit a statement of the business transacted 

during the preceding year, together with a report of the general 

financial condition of the Corporation and of the condition of 

its tangible property. 

ARTICLE V 

Officers 

Section 1. The officers of this Corporation shall be a 

Chairman of the Board, a President, one or more Executive Vice 

Presidents, one or more Senior Vice Presidents, one or more Vice 

Presidents, a Controller, a Secretary, one or more Assistant 

Secretaries, a Treasurer and one or more Assistant Treasurers, 

who shall each be elected for a term of one year, or for such 

shorter period as the Board of Directors may determine, and shall 

hold office until their respective successors shall have been 

duly elected and qualified. 

Section 2. The Chairman of the Board shall preside at 

all meetings of the Board of Directors at which he is present and 

shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation. In said 

capacity the Chairman of the Board shall have authority to sign 

all stock certificates and shall have the power to make, sign 

and/or direct the making and signing of all contracts, checks, 

drafts, warrants and orders for the payment of money, and shall 

perform all such other duties as are incident to his office. In 

the case of absence or disability of the Chairman, his duties 

shall be performed by the President. 
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Section 3. The President shall have general 

supervision and management of the business of the Corporation and 

its officers and agents and shall be its Chief Operating Officer. 

In said capacity the President shall have authority to sign all 

stock certificates and shall have the power to make, sign and/or 

direct the making and signing of all contracts, checks, drafts, 

warrants and orders for the payment of money, and shall perform 

all such other duties as ~re incident to his office. In case of 

the absence or disability of the President, his duties shall be 

performed by one or more of the Executive Vice Presidents. 

Section 4. The Secretary shall issue notices of all 

meetings of the Board of Directors and of the Shareholders, and 

shall attend and keep the minutes of the same, shall have charge 

of the corporate books, records and papers, shall be custodian of 

the Corporate Seal, shall attest with his signature, and impress 

with the Corporate Seal, all stock certificates and written 

contracts of the Corporation, and shall perform all other duties 

as are incident to his office. Any and all duties of the 

Secretary may be delegated to an Assistant Secretary in whole or 

in part, as the Chairman of the Board, the President or Board of 

Directors may direct. 

Section 5. The Treasurer shall have the care of and 

custody of and be responsible for all the funds and securities of 

the Corporation and shall deposit all such funds in the name of 

the Corporation in such bank or banks, trust company or trust 

companies, or safe deposit vaults as the Board of Directors may 

designate. Under the direction of the Chairman of the Board, the 
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President or the Board of Directors, he shall make, sign and 

endorse in the name of the Corporation all checks, draft~, 

warrants and orders for the payment of money and pay out and 

dispose of same and shall obtain receipt therefor. He shall keep 

at the off ice of the Corporation correct books of account of all 

its business and transactions and such other books of account as 

the Board of Directors may require. Any and all administrative 

duties of the Treasurer may be delegated to the Assistant 

Treasurer, Controller, or other employee of the Corporation in 

whole or in part, as the Chairman of the Board, the President or 

Board of Directors may direct. 

ARTICLE VI 

Dividends and Finances 

Section 1. Dividends, to be paid out of the surplus 

earnings of the Corporation, may be decl~red from time to time by 

resolution of the Board of Directors; but no dividends shall be 

paid that will impair the capital of the Corporation. 

Section 2. The funds of the Corporation shall be 

deposited in such bank or banks, or trust company or trust 

companies as the directors may designate and shall be drawn only 

upon the signature of persons authorized to do so under these 

By-laws or by resolution of the Board of Directors. 
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ARTICLE VII 

Amendment11 

Section 1. Amendments to these By-laws may be made by 

a vote of the sharehold~rs representing a majority of all of the 

voting capital atock ia&ued and outstanding at any Annual Meeting 

of 'i:.he Shareholders or at any Special MeeLi.\lfJ of the Shareholders 

when the proposed amend>.:ent h!!li been set out in the notice of 

such meeting: or by a majority vote of the full Board of 

Directors at a regulQr meeting or at any special meeting of the 

Board of Directors called for such purpose. 

A"\lTICLE Vlll 

Indemnification of Directors, 
Q!!.!.cers and Other$ 

Section 1. The Corporation shall, to the fullest 

extent permitted by Section 721 of the New York Business 

Corporation Law, indemnify any director or elected officer who is 

or was made, or threatened to be made, a party to an action or 

proceeding, whether civil or criminal, whether involving any 

actual or alleged breach of duty, neglect or error., any 

accountability, or any actual or alleged misstatement, misleading 

statement or other act or omission and whether brought or 

threatened in any court or administrative or legislative body or 

agency, including an action by or in the right of the Corporation 

to procure a judgment in its favor and an action by or in the 

right of any other corporation of any type or kind, domestic or 

foreign, or any partnership, joint veature, trust, employee 
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benefit plan or other enterp~lse, which any director or elected 

officer of the Corporation is serving or served in any capacity 

at the request of the Corporation, by reason of the fact that he, 

his testator or intestate, is or was a director or elected 

officer of the Corporation, or is serving or served such other 

corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit 

plan or other enterprise in any capacity, against judgments, 

fines, amounts paid in settlement, and costs, charges and 

expenses, including attorneys' fees, or any appeal therein; 

provided, however, that no indemnification shall be provided to 

any such director or elected officer if a judgment or other final 

adjudication adverse to the director or elected officer 

establishes that (i) his acts were committed in bad faith or were 

the result of active and deliberate dishonesty and, in either 

case, were material to the cause of action so adjudicated, or 

(ii) he personally galned in fact a financial profit or other 

advantage to which he was not legally entitled. 

Section 2. Employees of the Corporation who are not 

directors or elected officers shall be indemnified to the fullest 

extent as now or hereafter provided by Section 722 of the New 

York Business Corporation Law in connection with any actual or 

threatened action or proceeding (including civil, criminal, 

administrative or investigative proceedings) arising out of their 

service to the Corporation or to another organization at the 

Corporation's request. Such indemnification shall be authorized 
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by the President or his designee. The indemnification authorized 

by this Section 2 shall not be deemed to exclude any other rights 

of indemnification to which any employee may be entitled. 

Section 3. The Corporation may indemnify any other 

person to whom the Corporation is permitted to provide 

indemnification or the advancement of expenses by applicab}.e law, 

whether pursuant to rights granted pursuant to, or provided by, 

the New York Business Corporation Law or other· rights created by 

(i) a resolution of shareholders, (ii) a resolution of directors, 

or (iii) an agreement providing for such-indemnification, it 

being expressly intended that these by-laws authorize the 

creation of other rights in any such manner. 

Section 4. For the purposes qf this Article VIII, the 
-· 

term "elected officer• shall include only a person -.·~.o shall have 

been elected, designated or appointed to act as an officer of the 

Corporation by the Board of Directors but shall not include any 

person designated or appointed an officer of the Corporation, or 

any of its divisions or operating units, by an individual whether 

acting under authority delegated by the Board of Directors or in 

any other manner. 
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Exhibit (4)(d) 

FIRST AMENDMENT (the "First Amendment") 
d3ted as of June 30, 1987, to the Revolving 
Credit Agreement dated as of January 3, 1986 
(the "Credit Agreement"), among CAPITAL 
CITIES/ABC, INC. (formerly Capital Cities 
Communications, Inc.), a New York corporation 
(the "Company"), BANKERS TRUST COMPANY, THE 
BANK OF NEW YORK, THE CHASE MANHATTAN BANK, 
N.A., MORGAN GUARANTY TRUST COMPANY OF NEW 
YORK, MORGAN GUARANTY TRUST COMPANY OF NEW 
YORK, Channel Islands Branch, MANUFACTURERS 
HANOVER TRUST COMPANY, BANK OF AMERICA 
NATIONAL TRUST ASSOCIATION, MARINE MUlL·ANO 
BANK, N.A., THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF 
CHICAGO, CONTINENTAI, ILLINOIS NATIONAL BANK 
ANO TRUST COMPANY OF CHICAGO, NATIONAL BANK 
OF DETROIT, SECURITY PACIFIC NATIONAL BANK, 
THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF BOSTON, COMMERCE 
BANK OF KANSAS CITY and UNITED MISSOURI BANK 
OF KANSAS CITY, N.A. (the "Banks"), CITIBANK, 
N.A. ("Citibank"), and CHEMICAL BANK, a New 
York banking corporation, as Agent for the 
Banks (in such capacity, the "Agent"). 

A. The Company, the Banks and the Agent have 
agreed, subject to the terms and conditions hereof, to 
(i) reduce the Banks' Commitment Fees, (ii) eliminate the 
ability of each Bank to extend its Commitment on an annual 
basis and replace it with a Commitment from each Bank which 
terminates three years from the date hereof, (.i..ii) amend tlle 
provisions governing successors and assigns to allow the 
Banks to assign their respective obligations, including 
their respective Commitments, (iv) have the Company and the 
Borrowing Subsidiaries (collectively, the "Borrowers") 
provide the Banks with protection in case of increased 
capital adequacy requirements, (v) change the Prime Rate to 
an Alternative Base Rate and (vi) provide a procedure. 
pursuant to which each Bank may bid up to the full amount of 
its individual Commitment on borrowings by the Borrowers on 
an uncommitted basis. Additionally, Citibank has agreed, 
subject to the terms and conditions hereof, to terminate its 
Commitment in full and to cease to be a party to the Credit 
Agreement, and several of the Banks have agreed to increase 
their respective Commitments in place of Citibank's 
terminated Commitment. 

B. Capitalized terms used herein and not defined 
herein shall have the meanings assigned to such terms in the 
Credit Agreement, as amended by this First Amendment. 



Accordingly, in consideration of the mutual 
agreements herein contained and other good and valuable 
consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the 
Company, the Banks, Citibank and the Agent hereby agree as 
follows: 

SECTION 1. Amendment to the Credit Agreement. 
Upon the effectiveness of this First Amendment (the first 
date upon which all the conditions set forth in Secti~~ 3 
hereof have been satisfied being herein called the "E .c­
tive Date"), the Credit Agreement shall be and is her ';' 
amended and restated in the form of Annex A hereto. Except 
as expressly amended hereby, the Credit Agreement shall 
continue in full force and effect in accordance with the 
provisions thereof on the date hereof. As used therein, the 
terms "Agreement", "this Agreement", "herein", "herein­
after", ''hereto'', ''hereof" and words of similar import 
shall, unless the context otherwise requires, mean the 
Credit Agreement as amended by this First Amendment. 

SECTION 2. Reolacement Standby Notes. On the 
Effective Date, the Company will execute and deliver to the 
Agent, for the account of each Bank, replacement promissory 
Standby Notes, dated the same date as the original Notes 
delivered under the Credit Agreement, identical in all 
respects to the Standby Note set forth in Exhibit E-2 to the 
Amended und Restated Revolving Credit Agreement attached as 
Annex A hereto, one of which shall be made payable to each 
Bank in the amount of its total Commitment. The schedule of 
loans and payments attached to each such replacement Standby 
Note shall reflect th~ Loans outstanding to each Bank on the 
Effective Date. Each such replacement Standby Note shall 
for all purposes be deemed a "Note" under the Credit Agree­
ment, as amended hereby, and the Loans represented thereby 
shall for all purposes be deemed "Loans" of the Bank which 
made the same. On the Effective Date, the old Notes shall 
be deemed canceled, anc each Bank and Citibank shall 
promptly deliver to the Agent, for delivery to the Company, 
its old Note with an appropriate notation as to the 
cancelation of such Note. The Agent shall, upon receipt by 
it of each such Note marked canceled, release from escrow 
and transmit the old Notes to the Company and a repldcume11L 
Standby Note to each of the Banks. 

SECTION 3. Conditions to Effectiveness. 1'his 
First Amendment shall become effective only upon the 
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satisfaction in full, on or prior to the Effective Date, of 
the following conditions precedenc: 

(a) The Agent shall have received a signed copy 
for each Bank of a favorable written opinion of Hall, 
Dickler, Lawler, Kent & Friedman, counsel for the 
Company, addressed to the Banks, dated the Effective 
Date, and satisfactory in form and substance to 
Cravath, Swaine & Moore, special counsel for the Bi ':•, 
to the effect set forth in Exhibit l hereto. 

(b) The Agent shall have received a signed copy 
for each Bank of a favorable written opinion of General 
Counsel for the Company, addressed to the Banks, dated 
the Effective Date, and satisfactory in form and 
substance to Cravath, Swaine & Moore, special counsel 
for the Banks, to the effect set forth in Exhibit 2 
hereto. 

(c) Each Bank shall have received (x) a copy of 
all amendments, if any, to the Company's Certificate of 
Incorporation and By-laws from January 3, 1986, and 
January 7, 1986, respectively, to the Effective Date, 
each certified by the Secretary or an Assistant Secre­
tary of the Company and (y) a certificate dated as of 
the Effective Date and signed by the Secretary or an 
Assislant Secretary of the Company, certifying (A) that 
neither the Certificate of Incorporation nor the · 
By-laws of the Company, have been amended from 
January 3, 1986, and January 7, 1986, respectively, to 
the Effective Date except as disclosed pursuant to 
clause (x) hereof, (B) that attached thereto are true 
and complete copies of all resolutions adopted by the 
Executive Committee of the Company, authorizing the 
execution and delivery of this First Amendment, and 
(C) as to the incumbency and specimen signature of each 
officer of the Company executing this First Amendment 
and any certificates or instruments furnished pursuant 
hereto, such certificate to contain a certification by 
another officer of the Company as to the incumbency and 
signature of the officer signing such certificate. 

(d) Each Bank shall have received a certificate 
dated the Effective Date and signed by the chief 
financial officer or chief accounting offic~r of the 
Company to the effect (x) that all the representations 
and warranties of the Company set forth in Article III 
of the Credit Agreement as amended hereby, are true and 
correct in all material respects on and as of such date 
with the same effect as though made on and as of such 
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date and (y) that on such date (and giving effect to this 
First Amendment) the Company is in compliance with all the 
terms and provisions set forth in the Credit Agreement, as 
amended hereby, on its part to be observed or performed and 
no Event of Default or event which upon notice or lapse of 
time or both would constitute an Event of Default has 
occurred and is continuing. 

(e) The Agent sha21 have received counterparts of 
this First Amendment which, when taken together, bear 
the signatures of all the parties hereto. 

(f) The Agent shall have received in escrow the 
replacement Standby Notes referred to in Section 2 
hereof, duly executed by the Company. 

(g) All legal matters in connection with this 
First Amendment shall be satisfactory to Cravath, 
Swaine & Moore, special counsel for the Banks. 

SECTION 4. Applicable Law. 
shall be governed by and construed in 
laws of the State of New York. 

This First Amendment 
accordance with the 

SECTION 5. Counterparts. This First Amendment 
may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which 
shall constitute an original, but all of which when taken 
together shall constitute but one instrument. 

SECTION 6. Expenses. The Company agrees to 
reimburse the Agent for its out-of-pocket expenses in 
connection with this First Amendment, including the fees and 
expenses of special counsel for the Banks. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Capital Cities/ABC, Inc., each 
of the Banks and the Agent have caused this First Amendment 
to be duly executed by their duly authorized officers, all 
as of the date and year first above written. 

CAPITAL CITIES/ABC, INC., 

by 
Ronald J. Doerfler 

Title: Senior Vice President 
and Chief Financial 
Officer 
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CHEMICAL BANK, individually and 
as Agent, 

by 
Robert c. Ruocco 

Title: Vice President 

CITIBANK, N.A., 

by 
Gayle F. Robinson 

Title: Vice President 

THE BANK OF NEW YORK, 

by 
Joseph J. Savage 

Title: Vice President 

THE CHAt;E MANHATTAN BANK, N.A., 

by 
Bruce L. Gregory 

Title: Vice President 

MORGAN GUARANTY TRUST COMPANY OF 
NEW YORK, 

by 
Bruce E. Langenkamp 

Title: Vice President 
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MANUFACTURERS HANOVER TRUST COM­
PANY, 

by 
Leslie S. Florio 

Title: Vice President 

BANK OF AMERICA NATIONAL TRUST 
AND SAVINGS ASSOCIATION, 

by 

Title: Vice President 

BANKERS TRUST COMPANY, 

by 
Allison H. Coleman 

Title: Vice President 

MARINE MIDLAND BANK, N.A., 

by 
Alison E. Melick 

Title: Assistant Vice 
President 

THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF 
CHICAGO, 

by 
William J. Hake 

Title: Vice President 

CONTINENTAL ILLINOIS NATIONAL 
BANK AND TRUST COMPANY OF 
CHICAGO, 

by 
Leonard B. Sebesta 

Title: Vice President 
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NATIONAL BANK OF DETROIT, 

by 
Carolyn J. Parks 

Title: Vice President 

SECURITY PACIFIC NATIONAL BANK, 

by 
Caron c. Brandlin 

Title: Vice President 

THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF 
BOSTON, 

by 
Robert A. Bachelder 

Title: Vice President 

COMMERCE BANK OF KANSAS CITY, 

by 
Stephen P. Hall 

Title: Senior Vice President 

UNITED MISSOURI BANK OF KANSAS 
CITY, N.A., 

by 
Walter Beck 

Title: Vice Chairman 



Substance of Opinion of 
Hall, Dickler, Lawler, Kent & Friedman, 

Counsel for the Company, 
To Be Delivered on June 30, 1987 

EXhlBI'l' 1 

1. The Company is duly organized, validly exist­
ing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction 
of its organization, has the requisite power and authority 
to own its property and assets and to carry on its busi­
nesses as now conducted and is qualified to do business in 
every jurisdiction where such qualification is required, 
except where the failure so to qualify would not have a 
material adverse effect on the condition, financial or 
otherwise, of the Company or the Company and the Subsidiar­
ies taken as a. whole. The Company has the corporate power 
to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under ~he 
Credit Agreement as amended by the First Amendment, to 
borrow thereunder and to execute and deliver the replacement 
Standby Notes and the Competitive Notes to be delivered by 
it. 

2. The execution, delivery and performance by the 
Company of the Credit Agreement as amended by the First 
Amendment, the borrowings thereunder and the execution and 
delivery of the replacement Standby Notes and the Competi­
tive Notes (a) have been duly authorized by all requisite 
corporate and, if required, shareholder action of the 
Company, and (b) will not (i) violate (A) any provision of 
law, statute, rule or regulation or the articles of incor­
poratio~ or the By-laws of the Company, (B) to the best of 
our knowledge after due inquiry, any order of any court or 
any rule, regulation or order of any other agency of govern­
ment binding upon the Company or any Subsidiary or (C) to 
the best of our knowledge after due inquiry, any provisions 
of any indenture, agreement or other instrument to which the 
Company or any Subsidiary, or any of their respective 
properties or assets are or may be bound or (ii) to the best 
of our knowledge after due inquiry, be in conflict with, 
result in a breach of or constitute (alone or with due 
notice or lapse of time or both) a default under any inden­
ture, agreement or other instrument referred to in (b)(i)(C) 
above. 

3. The Credit Agreement as amended by the First 
Amendment and the replacement Standby Notes being d~livered 
by the Company have been duly executed and delive·red by the 
Company, and constitute, and the Competitive Notes when duly 



executed and delivered by the Company will constitute, 
legal, valid and binding obligations of the Company, 
enforceable in accordance with their respective terms 
(subject, as to the enforcement of remedies, to ~pplicable 
bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency and similar laws 
affecting creditors' rights generally and to moratorium laws 
from time to time in effect). 

4. No registration with or consent or approval 
of, or other action by, any Federal, state or other govern­
mental agency, authority or regulatory body is required in 
connection with the execution, delivery and performance by 
the Company of the Credit Agreement as amended by the First 
Amendment.- the execution and delivery by the Company of the 
replacement Standby Notes and the Competitive Notes or its 
borrowings thereunder. 

5. To the best of our knowledge after due 
inquiry, there are not any actions, suits or proceedings at 
law or in equity or by or before any governmental instru­
mentality or other agency or regulatory authority now 
pending or threatened against or affecting the Company or 
any Subsidiary, or the business, assets or rights of the 
Company or any Subsidiary, which involve the Credit 
Agreement as awended by the First Amendment or any of the 
transactions contemplated thereby. 



Substance of Ooinion of 
General Counsel for the Company, 
To Be Delivered on June 30, 1987 

EXHIBIT 2 

To ~he best of our knowledge after due inquiry, 
there are not any actions, suits or proceedings at law or in 
equity or by or before any governmental instrumentality or 
other agency or regulatory authority (other than any 
proceedings under the Federal Communications Act of 1934 or 
the rules and regulations of the Federal Communications 
Commission) now pending or threatened against or affecting 
the Company or any Subsidiary as to which there is a 
te.:isonable possibility of; an adverse determination and 
which, if adversely determined, would be likely, in our 
judyment, individually or in the aggregate, materially to 
impair the ability of the Company or the Company and the 
Subsidiaries taken as a whole to conduct business 
substantially as now conducted, or materially and adversely 
to affect the business, assets, operations, prospects or 
condition, financial or otherwise, of the Company or the 
Company and the Subsidiaries taken as a whole, or to impair 
the validity or enforceability of or the ability of the 
Company to perform its obligations under the Credit 
Agreement as amended by th2 First Amendment or under the 
replacement Standby Notes executed and delivered, or the 
Competitive Notes to be executed and delivered, by the 
Company. 
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AMENDED AND RESTATED REVOLVING CREDIT 
AGREEMENT dated as of January 3, 1986, as 
amended through June 30, 1987, among CAPITAL 
CITIES/ABC, INC. (formerly Capital Cities 
Communications, Inc.), a New York corporation 
(the "Company"), the Banks named in para­
graph 2.01 hereof (the "Banks"), end CHEMICAL 
BANK, a New York banking corporation, as 
Agent for the Banks (in such capacity, the 
".11gent"). 

The Company entered into a Credit Agreement dated 
as of January 3, 1986, pursuant to which the Banks, together 
with Citibank, N. A. (''CiLibank"), have made loans to the 
Company on a revolving credit basis. 

The Company, the Banks and the Agent have agr~~d. 
subject to the terms and conditions hereof, to amend certain 
terms of the Credit Agreement and restate the Credit Agree­
ment in its entirety, and Citibank has agreed to terminate 
its Commitment hereunder in full and to cease to be a party 
to this Agreement. 

Accordingly, the Company, the Banks and the Agent 
hereby agree that the Credit Agreement is hereby amended and 
restated to read in its entirety as follows: 

I. DEFINITIONS 

For purposes hereof, the terms: 

"ABC'' shall mean American Broadcasting Companies, 
Inc., a New York corporation. 

''Acauisition'' shall mean CCC Acquisition Corp., a 
New York corporation and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary 
of the Company. 

"Adjusted CD Rate" shall mean, with respect to any 
Certificate of Deposit Loan for any Interest Period, an 
interest rate per annum (rounded upwards, if necessary, to 
the next higher 1/8 of 1%) equal to the sum of (a) a rate 
per annum equal to the product of (i) the Fixed Certificate 
of Deposit Rate in effect for such Interest Period and 
(ii) Statutory Reserves, plus (b) the Assessment Rate. For 
purposes hereof, the term "Fixed Certificate of Deposit 
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Rat2'' shall mean the arithmeti~ average (rounded to the 
n~arest 1/8 of 1% or, if tjere is no nearest 1/8 of 1%, the 
next higher 1/8 of 1%) of the prevailirg rates per annurn bid 
on or about 10:00 a.m. (New York City time) to the Agent on 
the first Business Day of the Interest Period for the 
Certificate of Deposit Loan by three New York City negotia­
ble certificate of deposit dealers of recdgnized. standing 
selected by the Ag~nt for the purchase at face value of 
negotiable certificates of deposit of major United States 
money center banks in an amount approximately equal to the 
principal amount of the Agent's portion of the Certificate 
of Deposit toan and with a maturity comparable to such 
Interest Period. 

''Adjusted LIBO Rate" shall mean, with respect to 
any Eurodollar Loan for any Interest Period, an interest 
rate per ai'.\num (rounded 1·;,,wards, if necessary, to the next 
higher 1/8 of 1%) equal to the product of (a) the LIBO Rate 
and (b) Statutory Res•rves. For purposes hereof, the term 
''LIBO Rate'' shall mean the rate (rounded to the nearest 
1/8 cf JI or, i~ there is no nearest 1/8 of 1%, the next 
higher 1/8 of 1%) at which dollar deposits approximalely 
equal in principal amount to the Agent's portion of lh~ 
Eurod8llar Loan and Ear a maturity equal to lhe applicable 
Inte~est Period are offered by major banks to major banks i11 
immediately available funds in the London Interbank Markel 
for Eurodollars at appro3imately 11:00 a.m., London tin1e, 
two Business Days prior to the commencement of such Interest 
Period. 

''Alternate Base Loan'' shall mean any Loan based on 
the Alternate Base Rate in accordance with the pruvisions of 
Article II. 

"Alternate Base Rate" shall mean, for any day, a 
rate per annu., (rounded upwards, if necessary, to the next 
1/3 of 1%) equal to the greatest of (a) the Prime Rate 
(computed on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed 
over a year of 365 or 366 days, as the case may be) in 
effect on such day, (b) the Base CD Rate in effect on such 
day plus 1-1/4% and (c) the Federal Funds Effective Rate in 
effect on such day plus 5/8 of 1%. "Prime Rate" shall mean 
the rate of interest publicly announced from time to time by 
the Agent at its principal office in New York City as its 
prime rate. For purposes of this Agreement, any chdllge in 
the Alternate Base Rate due to a change in the Prime Rate 
shall be effective on the date such change in the Prime Rate 
is announced and has been declared effective. "Base CD 
Ratu" shall mean the sum of (a) the product of (i) the 
Average Weekly Three-Month Secondary CD Rate times 
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(ii) Statutory Reserves and (b) the Assessment Rate. 
''Average Weekly Three-Month Secondary CD Rate" shall mean 
the secondary market rate ("Secondary CD Rate") for 
three-month certificates of deposit {secondary market) of 
major United States money market banks for the most recent 
weekly period ending Friday reported in the Federal Reserve 
Statistical release entitled "Selected Interest Rates" 
(currently publication H.15) or any successor publication 
relea.sed during the w">ek immediately preceding the week for 
which tt.e Secondary CU Rate is being determined. The 
Secondary CD Rate so reported shall be in effect, for the 
purpose of this definition, for each day of the week 
commencing the Monday following the release date of such 
publication. If such publication or a substitute containing 
the foregoing rate information is not published by the 
Federal Reserve for any week, such average rate shall be 
determined by the Agent on the first Business Day of the 
week succeeding such week for which such rate information is 
not published on the basis of bids quoted to the Agent by 
three New York City negotiable certificate of deposit 
dealers of recognized standing for secondary market morning 
offerings of negotiable certificates of deposit of major 
United States money market banks with maturities of three 
months. Any change in the Alte:-nate Base Rate due to a 
change in the Average Weekly :r·hree-Month Secondary CD Rate 
shall be effective on the effective date of such change in 
the Secondary CD Rate. "Federal Funds Effective Rate" shall 
mean, for any period, a fluctuating interest rate pe~ annum 
equal for each day during such period to the weighted 
average of the ra~es on overnight Federal funds transactions 
with members of the Federal Reserve System arranged by 
Federal. funds brokers, as published for such day {or, if 
such day is not a Business Day, for the next preceding 
Business Day) by the Federal Reserve Bank of Ne~ York, or, 
if such rate is not so published for any day which is a 
Business Day, the average of the quotations for such day on 
such transactions received by the Agent from thn?e Federal 
funds brokers of recognized standing selected by lt. For 
purposes of this Agreement, any change in the Alternate Base 
Rate due to a change in the Federal Funds Effective Rate 
shall be effective on the effective date of such change in 
the Federal Funds Effective Rate. If for any retison the 
Agent shall have determined (which determination .shall be' 
conclusive absent manifest error) that it is unable to 
ascertain for any reason, including, without limitation, the 
inability or failure of the Agent to obtain sufficient bids 
or publications in accordance with the terms thereof, 
(i) the Base CD Rate, then the Alternate Base Rate shall be 
the greater of (x) the Federal Funds Effective Rate plus 5/8 

• ' ~...-- •• ' ' "" ... • ' • < 
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of 1% and (y) the Prime Rate, (ii) the Federal Funds 
Effective R&te, then the Alternate Base Rate shall be the 
greater of {x) the Base CD R~te plus 1-1/4% and (y) the 
Prime Rate ·or (iii} the Base CD Rate and the Federal Funds 
Effective Rate, then the Alternate Base Rate shall be the 
Prlh;O) Rate, .in each case until the circ.•.rmstances giving rise 
to such inability no longer exist. 

"Assessment Rate" shall mean for any date the 
annual rate (rounded upward~. if necessary, to the. next 
higher 1/100 of l%) most recently estimated by th~ Agent as 
the then current net annual assessment rate that will b~ 
employed for determining amounts payc.: le by the Agent to the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (or any successor) for 
insurance by such Corporation (or such successor) of time 
deposits made in dollars at the Agent's domestic offices. 

''Assignment and Acceptance" shall mean an assign­
ment and accept•nce entered into by a Bank and an assignee, 
and accepted by the Agent, precisely in the form of Exhib­
it F hereto. 

"Attributable Debt" shall mean, as to any lease, 
at any date as of which the amount thereof is to be deter­
mined, the total net amount of the rental payments (dis­
coll?;ted from t•he respective due dates thereof at a rate per 
annum equal to 3% plus the prevailing market int~rest rate, 
at the time such lease was entered into, on United States 
Treasury obligations having a maturity substantially the 
same •s the term of such lease) required to be made by the 
lessee thereunder during the remaining term thereof. The 
net amount of the rental payments required to be made under 
any such lease shall be the total amount of the rent payable 
by the lessee, but excluding amounts required to be paid on 
account of maintenance and repairs, insurance, taxes, 
assessments, water rates and similar charges. In the case 
of any lease which is terminable by the lessee upon the 
payment.of a penalty, such net amount shall also include the 
amount of such penalty, but not any rentals accruing after 
the first date upori which such lease may be so terminated. 
In the case of any lee1se under which the amount of the 
rental payments is indeterminate (e.g., where rent is based 
on sales or profita}, the net amount of the rental payments 
required to be made during any fis~al year shall be the 
amount of the rental payments made (or which would have been 
required to be made i-.ad such lease been in~'°'f".fect) during 
the most recently elapsed fiscal year. 
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"Boarcl0 shall mean the Eioard of Governors of tile 
Federal Reserve System of the United States. 
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''Borrowers'' shall mean the Company and the 
Borrowing Subsidiaries, collectively. 

"Borrowing Sub.:",idiary" shall mean any Subsidiary 
which shall have execut&& and delivered to the Agert and 
aach Bank a Borrowing Sub~idiary Agreement and 2ach Subsi­
jiary which assumes the obligations of a Borrowing Subsi­
diary pursuant to Section 5.01. 

"Borrowing Subsidiary Agreement" shall mean an 
agreement, in the form of Exhibit A h1~reto, duly executed by 
the Company and a Subsidiary. 

"Business Day" shall .n;iean any day, other than a 
Saturday, Sunday o~ legal holiday in the State of New York, 
on which banks.are open for substantially all their banking 
busine•~ in New York City, except that, if any deter~ination 
of a ''Business Day'' shall relate to a Eurodbllar Loan, the 
term ;'Business Day" shall in addition excludf~ any day on 
which banks are not open for dealings in dollar deposits in 
the London Interbank Market. 

"Certificate of Deposit Loan" shall mean a Loan 
based on 1.:he Adjusted CD Rate in accordance with Article II 
hereof. 

"Closina Date" shall mean the date of the first 
borrowing under this Agreement. 

"_r.ommi tment" shall mean.•1 with respect to each 
Bank, the C -:imitment of such Bank hereunder as set forth i.n 
Section 2.01 as the same may be adjus;ted from time to timi;, 
pursuant to Section 2.08. The Commit:ment of each Bank shall 
be deemed permanently terminated on the Maturity Date. 

"Commitment Fee" shall have the meaning assigned 
such term in Section 2.07. 

"Competitive Bid" shall mean an offer by a Bank to 
make a Competitive Loan pursuant to Section 2.02. 

,Competitive Bid Request" shall mean a request 
made purstr'1nt to Section 2.02 in the form of Exhibit B-1. 

"Comoetitive Borrowing" shall mean a borrowing 
consisting of simultaneous Competitive Loans from each of 
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the Banks whose Competiti~e Bid as a part of such borrowing 
has been accepted by the Borrower under the bidding prc~e­
dure described in Sec ti.on 2. 02. 

"Comoetitive Loan" shall mean any Loa~ offered by 
a Bank pursuant to Section 2·.02, which shall be based upon 
an absolute percentage rate per annum selected by such Bank, 
expressed as a decimal (to no more than four decima-~ . 
. ··.· ces), which the Borrower shal,l ·have elected to accept. 

"Competitive Note" shall mean a promissory note of 
the Borrower in the form.of Exhibit E-1 hereto, executed and 
delivered as provided in Section 2.05 hereof. 

"Consolidated Net Income" shall mear\ the r,et 
income of the Company and the Subsidiaries, computed and 
consolidated in accordance with generally accepted account­
ing principles consistently applied, but excluding net gains 
or net losses on sales of properties and assets other than 
in the ordinary course of business. 

"Consolidated Net north" shall mean, at any date, 
the excess of (1) the net value of the assets of the Company 
and Subsidiaries after all appropriate deductions in accor­
dance with generally accepted accounting principles (includ­
ing, without limitation, reserves for doubtful receivables, 
obsolescence, depreciati~n and amortization), but excluding 
fro1;; 'the net value of such assets the amount of any write-up 
subsequent to September 30, 1985, in the book value of any 
asset owned on such date resulting from the revaluation 
thereof ~ubsequent to such date and any write-up of any 
asset acquired subsequent to such date to a value in excess 
of the purchase price of such asset, over (ii) the conooli·· 
dated liabilities (including tax and other proper accrual~ 
and including mandatorily redeemable preferred stock) of the 
Company and its Subsidiaries, in each case compu~ed and 
consolidated ln accordance with generally accepted account­
ing principles consistently applied. 

"Eligible Assignee" shall mean (i) a commercial 
bank organized under the laws of the United States, or any 
State thereof, and having total gssets in excess of 
$1,000,000,000; (ii) a savings and loan association or 
savings bank organized under the laws of the United States, 
or any State thereof, and having a net worth of at least 
$100,000,000, calculated in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles; (iii) a commercial bank 
organized under the laws of any other coun~ry which is a 
member of the OECD, or a political subdivision of any such 
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country, and having total assets in excess of 
Sl,000,000,0~0, provided that such bank is acting through a 
branch or agency located in the country in which it is 
organized or another country which is also a member of the 
OECD; and (iv) the central bank of any Gountry which is a 
member of the OECD. 

"ERISA" shall mean the Employee Retirement Income 
Se~ ;;ty Act of 1974, as amended from time to time. 

"Eurodollar Loan" shall mean a Loan based on t.he 
Adjusted LIBO Rate in accordance with Article II hereof. 

"Ev.ttnt of Default" shall have the meaning assigned 
such term in Article VII hereof. 

"Guarantee" shall mean any obligation, contingent 
or otherwise, of any person guaranteeing or having the 
economic effect of guaranteeing any Indebtedness or obliga­
tion of any other p~rson in any manner, whether directly or 
indirectly, and including, without limitation, any 
obligation of such person, direct or indirect, (i) to 
purchase or pay (or advance or supply fun(~ for the purchase 
or payment of) such Indebtedness or to purchase (or to 
advance or supply funds for !:he purchase of) any security 
for the payment of such Indebtedness, ( i.~) to purchase 
property, securities or services for the', purpose of assuring 
the owner of such Indebtedness of the payment of sµch 
Indebtedness, or (iii) to maintain working capital, equity 
capital or other financial statement·condition of the 
primary obliger so as to enable the primary obliger to pay 
such Indebtedness; ~rovided, however, that the term 
Guaraiitee shall not include endorsements for collection or 
deposit, in either case in the ordinary coutse of business. 

"Indebtedness" shall mean, with respect to any 
person, (a) all obligations of such person for borrowed 
money, or with respect to deposits or advances of any kind, 
ibl all obligations of such person evidenced by bonds, 
debentures, notes or similar instruments, (c) all obliga­
tions of such person upon which interest charges are custom­
arily paid, (d) all obligations of such person under condi­
tional sale or other title retention agreements relating to 
pcoperty purchased by such person, (e) all obligations of 
such person issued or assumed a~ the deferred purchase price 
of property or services, (f) all obligations of such person· 
under· leases required to be accounted for as capital leases 



under generally accepted accounting principles and (g) all 
Guarantees of such person. 
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"Interest Paym!~t Date'' shall mean, as to any 
Loan, the last day of the.Interest Period applicable to such 
Loan (and, in the case of any Interest Period having a 
duration equal to or greater than six months or 180 days, 
the dates that would be the last days of successive Interest 
Period .. ithe first of which commences on the first day of 
such I:1c.:rest Period) of three months' (in the case of 
Eurodo~~ar Loans) or 90 days' (in all other cases) duration) 
and the date of any refinancing of such Loan with a Loan of 
a dif.terent type. 

"Interest Period" shall mean: (i) as to any Euro­
dollar Loan, the period commencing on the date of such Loan 
and ending on the numerically corresponding day (or, if 
there is no numerically corresponding day, on the last day) 
in the calendar month that is 1, 2, 3 or 6 months there­
after, as the Borrower may elect, (ii) as to any Certificate 
of Deposit Loan, a period of 30, 60, 90 or 180 days' dura­
tion, as the Borrower may elect, commencing on the date of 
such Certificate of Deposit Loan, (iii) as to any Alternate 
B~se Loan, the period commencing on the date of such Alter­
nate Base Loan and ending on the next March 31, June 30, 
September 30 or December 31 or, if earlier, on the Maturity 
Date and (iv) as to any Competitive Loan, the period 
commencing on the date of such Loan and encl.ing on the date 
specified in the Competitive Bid in which the offer to make 
the Competitive Loan was extended; provided, however, that 
(x) if any Interest Period would end on a day that shall not 
be a Business Day, such Interest Period shall be extended to 
the next s1Jcceeding Business Day unless, with respect to 
Eurodollc.r Loans only, such next succeeding Business Day 
would frill in the next calendar month, in which case such 
Interest Period shall end on the next preceding Business 
Day, (y) with respect to a Standby Loan comprised of a 
Eurodollar Loan or a Certificate of Deposit Loan, and with 
respect to any Competitive Loan, no Interest Period may be 
selected which ends later than the Maturity Date and 
(z) interes~ shall accrue from and including the first day 
of an Interest Period to but excluding the last day of such 
Intgrest Period. 

"Loan" shall mean a Standby Loan, a Competitive 
Loan, a Certificate of Deposit Loan, a Eurodollar Loan or an 
Alternate Base Loan. 



''Margin Stock" shall have the meaning assigned 
such term in Regulation U. 

''Maturity Date" shall mean, as to any Bank, 
June 30, 1990. 
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"Merger" shall mean the merger of Acquisition with 
and into ABC provided for in the Merger Agreement. 

"~!erger Agreement" shall mean the Agreement and 
Plan of Merge• dated as of March 18, 1985, among the Com­
pany, Acquisition and ABC, amended and restated as of May 8, 
1.985. 

"Note" shall mean a promissory note of a Borrower, 
executed an'd""Oelivered as provided in Section 2.05 hereof. 

"OECD" shall mean the Organization for Economic 
Cooperation-and Development. 

"person" shall mean any natural person, corpora­
tion, business trust, associat.:ion, company, joint venture, 
partnership or government or rsny agency or political sub­
division thereof. 

"Plan" shall mean any employee plan which is 
subject to the provisions of Title IV of ERISA and which is 
maintained (in whole or in part) for employees of the 
Company or a Subsidiary. 

"Rate" shall mean the effective interest rate 
contained iililCompetitive Bid specified by r~ference to an 
annual percentage rate per annum computed or. the basis of 
the actual number of days elapsed in a year of 360 days. 

"Register" shall have the meaning assigned s-.ch 
term in Section 10.04(c). 

"Regulation G" shall mean Regulation G of the 
Board, as the same is from time to time in effect, and all 
official rulings and interpretations thereunder or thereof. 

"Regulation U" shall mean ~egul~;ion U of the 
Board, ras the same is from time to time in effect, and all 
officia·l rulings and interpretations thereunder or thereof. 

"Regulation X" shall mean Regulation X of the 
Board, as the same is from time to time in effect, and all 
official rulings and interpretations thereunder or thereof. 
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''Reportable Event" shall mean a Reportable Event 
as defined in Section 4043(b) of ERISA. 

''Responsible Officer'' shall mean any executive 
offiter, or the chief financial officer or controller, of 
the Company. 

"Required Banks" shall mean at any time Banks 
having Conun'I ··::knts representing 66-2/3% of the Total Conunit­
ment, ex~ept ttat for purposes of determining the Banks 
entitled to ~cclare the Notes to be forthwith due and 
payable pursuant to Article VII, "Required Banks" shall mean 
Bank;, holding 66-2/3% of the aggregate principal amount of 
the Loans at the time outstanding. 

"Sale and Leaseback Transaction'' shall have the 
meaning assigned such term in Section 6.02. 

"Standby Borrowing" shall mean a borrowing con­
sisting of simultaneous Standby Loans from each of the Banks 
distributed ratably among the Banks in accordance with their 
respective unutilized Conunitments. 

"Standby Loan" shall have the meaning given such 
term in Section 2.01. 

"Standby Note" shall mean a promissory note of the 
Borrower in the form of Exhibit E-2 hereto, executed and 
delivered as provided in Section 2.05 hereof. 

"Statutory Reserves" shall mean a fraction 
(expressed as a decimal), the numerator of which is the 
number one and the deno~inator of which is the number one 
minus the aggregate of the maximum reserve percentages 
(including, without limitation, any marginal, special, 
emergency, or supplemental reserves) expressed as a decimal 
established by the Board and any other banking authority to 
which the Agent is subject (a) with respect to the Adjusted 
CD Rate or the Base CD Rate, for new negotiable time 
deposits in dollars of over $100,000 with maturities 
approximately equal to the applicable Interest Period, and 
(b) with respect to the Adjusted LIBO Rate, for Eurocurrency 
Liabilities (as defined in Regulation D of the Board). Such 
reserve percentages shall include, without limitation, those 
imposed under such Regulation D. Eurodollar Loans shall be 
deemed to constitute Eurocurrency Liabilities and as such 
shall be deemed to be subject to such reserve requirements 
without benefit of or credit for proration, exceptions or 
offsets which may be available from time to time to any Bank 



under such Regulation D. 
adjusted automatically on 
any change in any reserve 

Statutory Reserves shall be 
and as of the effective date of 
percentage. 
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"subsidia~y'' shall mean, with respect to any 
person (the "parent"), any corporation, association or other 
business entity of which securities or other ownership 
interests representing more than 50\ of the ordinary voting 
power are, at l;.:; time as of which any determination is 
being made, owne•J or controlled by the parent or one or more 
subsidiaries of ~ne parent o• by the parent and one or more 
subsidiaries of the parent. 

"Subsidiary" shall mean a subsidiary of the 

"Total Commitment" shall mean at any time the 
aggregate amount of the Banks' Commitments, as in effect at 
such time. 

Except as otherwise herein specifically provided, 
each accounting term used herein shall have the meaning 
given it under generally accepted accounting principles in 
effect from time to time applied on a basis consistent with 
those used in preparing the financial statements referred to 
in Section 3.05; provided, however, that each reference in 
Article VI hereof, or in the definition of any term used in 
Article VI hereof, to generally accepted accounting princi­
ples shall mean generally accepted accounting principles as 
in effect on the date hereof and as applied by tlle Company 
in preparing the financial statements referred to in Sec­
tion 3.05. 

II. THE LOANS 

SECTION 2.01. Commitments. (a) Subject to the 
terms and conditions and relying upon the representations 
and warranties herein set forth, each Bank, severally and 
not jointly, agrees to make standby revolving credit loans 
("Standby Loans") to the Borrowers, at any time and from 
time to time from the date hereof to the Maturity Date, or 
until the earlier termination of the Commitment of such Bank 
in accordance with the terms hereof, subject, however, to 
the condition that at no time shall (A) the sum of (x) the 
outstanding aggregate principal amount of all Standby Loans 
made by a Bank and (y) the outstanding aggregate principal 
amount of all Competitive Loans made by a Bank exceed (B) 
the Commitment of such Bank as set forth opposite its name 



below, as such Commitment may be adjusted from time to time 
pursuant to Section 2.08: 

Chemical Bank 
277 Park Avenue 
New York, New York 10172 

Attention: Thomas L. James 
Vice President 

The Bank of New York 
530 Fifth Avenue 
New York, New York 10036 

Attention: Gerald L. Hassell 
Senior Vice President 

The Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A. 
One Chase Manhattan Plaza 
New York, New York 10081 

Attention: Bruce L. Gregory 
Vice President 

Morgan Guaranty Trust Cdm~any 
of New York 

23 Wall Street 
New York, New York 10015 

Attention: Bruce Langenkamp 
Vice President 

Manufacturers Hanover Trust 
Company 

270 Park Avenue 
New York, New York 10017 

Attention: Leslie S. Florio 
Vice President 

Percent of 
Commitment Commitment~ 

$ 146,000,000 14.6% 

93,000,000 9.3% 

93,000,000 9.3% 

93,000,000 9.3% 

93,000,000 9.3% 



Bank of America National Trust 
and Savings Association 

N.A.D. Corporate Service Center 
1850 Gateway Boulevard 
Concord, California 94520 

Attention: Wendy Frear 

with a copy to Bank of America 
National Trust and Savings 
Association 

335 Madison Avenue 
New York, New York 10017 

Attention: Raymond Martin 
Vice President 

Bankers Trust Company 
280 Park Avenue, 5 East 
New York, New York 10015 

Attention: Alexander T. Mason 
Managing Director 
Media Division 

Marine Midland Bank, N.A. 
140 Broadway 
New York, New York 10015 

Attention: Alison E. Melick 
Assistant Vice President 

The First National Bank of Chicago 
153 w. 5lst Street 
Bth Floor 
New York, New York 10019 

Attention: William J. Hake 
Vice President 

Continental Illinois National 
Bank and Trust Company of 
Chicago 

520 Madison Avenue 
New York, New York 10022 

Attention: Donald E. Pollard 
Banking Associate 

lJ 

93,000,000 9.3% 

75,000,000 7.5% 

52,000,000 5.2% 

52,000,000 5.2% 

47,000,000 4.7% 



National Bank of Detroit 
611 Woodward Avenue 
Detroit, Michigan 48226 

Attention: Carolyn Parks 
Vice President 

Security Pacific National Bank 
Security Pacific Plaza 
333 South Hope Street 
Los Angeles, Cali{~rnia 90071 

Attention: Caron C. Brandlin 
Vice President 

The First National Bank of Boston 
100 Federal Street 
Boston, Massachusetts 02106 

Attention: John s. Rudberg, Jr. 
Assistant Vice President 

Conunerce Bank of Kansas City 
922 Walnut Street 
Kansas City, Missouri 64106 

Attention: David H. Lindsey 
Senior Vice President 

United Missouri Bank of 
Kansas City, N.A. 

1010 Grand Avenue 
Kansas City, Missouri 64105 

Attention: Walter Beck 

Total Conunitment: 

47,000,000 4.7% 

47,000,000 4.7% 

47,000,000 4.7% 

11,000,000 1.1% 

11,000,000 1.1% 

$1,000,000,000 100.0% 

Within the foregoing limits, the Borrowers may 
borrow, repay and reborrow, on or after the date hereof and 
prior to the Maturity Date, all or any portion of the Com­
mitments hereunder, subject to the terms, provisions and 
limitations set forth herein, including, without limitation, 
the requirement that no borrowing shall be made hereunder if 
after giving effect thereto the principal amount of the 
Loans of any Bank outstanding hereunder would exceed the 
Conunitment of such Bank or the aggregate principal amount of 
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all the Loans outstanding hereunder would exceed the Total 
Commitment. 

SECTION 2.02. Competitive Bid Procedure. (a) In 
order to request CompetitIVe Bids, the appropriate Borrower 
shall hand deliver or telex to the Agent a duly completed 
Competitive Bid Request in the form of Exhibit B-1 hereto, 
to be received by the Agent not later than 10:00 a.m. New 
York time, two Business Da: .... before a proposed Competitive 
Borrowing. Competitive Bic' Requests that do not conform 
substantially to the format 0f Exhibit B-1 shall be rejected 
and the Agent shall notify the appropriate Borrower of such 
rejection by telex or telecopier not later than 10:30 a.m. 
New York time on the date of receipt. Such request shall in 
each case refer to this Agreement and specify (x) the date 
of such Loans (which shall be a Business Day) and the 
aggregate principal amount thereof (which shall be an 
integral multiple of $50,000,000), and (y) the Interest 
Period with respect thereto (which may not end after the 
Maturity Date). Not later than 11:00 a.m. New York time on 
the date of receipt by the Agent of a Competitive Bid 
Request, the Agent shall invite by telex or telecopier (in 
the form sec forth in Exhibit C hereto) the Banks to bid, on 
the terms and conditicns of this Agreement, to make Competi­
tive Loans pursuant to the Competitive Bid Request. Each 
Borrower shall pay to the Agent a transaction fee in the 
amount agreed upon in the Letter Agreement dated as of 
June 30, 1987, b~tween the Company and the Agent, for each 
Competitive Bid Request it makes that is not rejected by the 
Agent, irrespective of whether such Borrower receives, 
accepts or rejects any responding Competitive Bids. 

(b) Each Bank may, in its sole discretion, make 
one or more Competitive Bids to the appropriate Borrower 
responsive to the Competitive Bid Request. Each Competitive 
Bid by a Bank must be received by the Agent via telex or 
telecopier, in the form of Exhibit D hereto (each of which 
form may accomodate a number of Competitive Bids of each 
Bank), net later than 9:30 a.m. New York time, one Business 
Day before a proposed Competitive Borrowing. Competitive 
Bids that do not conform precisely to the format of 
Exhibit D may be rejected by such Borrower upon notice to 
the Agent and the Agent shall notify the Bank of such rejec­
tion by telex or telecopier as soon as practicable after 
receipt from the Company of a notification of rejection. 
Each Competitive Bid shall refer to this Agreement and 
specify (x) the prin··ipal amount of the Competitive Loan 
that the Bank is willing to make to such Borrower with 
respect to each of such Bank's Competitive Bids (each such 
Competitive Bid to be in a minimum principal amount of 
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$5,000,000 and in integral multiples of $1,000,000, aR~ the 
aggregate of such Competitive Bids of such Bank not to 
exceed such Bank's available Commitment) and (y) the Rate at 
which the Bank is prepared to make each such Competitive 
Loan. If any Bank shall elect not to make a Competitive 
Bid, such Bank shall so notify the Agent via telex or 
telecopier not later than 9:30 a.m. New York time, one 
Business Day before a proposed Competitive Borrowingi 
provided, however, that failu:e by any Bank to give such 
notice shall not cause such Ba11i.: to be obligated to make any 
Competitive Loan as part of sur~, Competitive Borrowing. A. 
Competit5.ve Bid submitted by a Bank pursuant to this para­
graph (b) shall be irrevocable. 

(c) The Agent shall notify the appropriate 
Borrower by telex or telecopier not later than 10:00 a.m. 
New York time, one Business Day before a proposed 
Competitive Borrowing of the number of Competitive Bids 
made, the Rate and the principal amounts of each Competitive 
Loan in respect of which a Competitive Bid was made and the 
identity of the Bank making each bid. The Agent shall send 
a copy of all Competitive Bids to such Borrower and, if such 
Borrower is not the Company, to the Company on behalf of 
such Borrower, as soon as practicable after receipt by 
telecopier as provided in Section 10.01. 

(d) The appropriate Borrower may in its sole and 
absolute discretion, subject only to the provisions of this 
paragraph, accept or reject any Competitive Bid referred to 
in paragraph (c) above. Such Borrower shall notify the 
Agent by telex or telecopier whether and to what extent it 
has decided to accept or reject any of or all the bids 
referred to in paragraph (c) above, and whether and to what 
extent it has decided to make an Alternate Base Loan in 
place of all or a part of the Competitive Borrowing it shall 
have proposed (for which Alternate Base Loan it shall 
provide the Agent with written or telex notice of its 
request in the form of Exhibit B-2 hereto) not later than 
11:00 a.m. New York time, one Business Day before a proposed 
Competitive Borrowing; provided, however, that (x) such 
Borrower shall not accept a bid made at any Rate if such 
Borrower has decided to reject a bid made at a lower Rate, 
(y) if such Borrower declines to borrow, or if it is 
restricted by other conditions hereof from borrowing, the 
aggregate principal amount of Competitive Loans in respect 
of which bids at a particular Rate have been made, then such 
Borrower shall accept a pro rata portion of each bid made at 
the same Rate, based as nearly as possible on the ratio of 
the aggregate principal amounts of Competitive Loans for 
which each such bid at such Rate was made, as is necessary 
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in order to satisfy the amount of Competitive Loans it shall 
have decided to make and (z) no bid shall be accepted for a 
Competitive Loan unless such Competitive Loan is part of a 
Competitive Eorrowing in a minimum principal amoun.I: of 
$50,000,000, unless such Borrower shall have requested an 
Alternate Base Loan to replace a portion (but not all) of 
the proposed Competitive Borrowing, in which case such 
Competitive Borrowing together with any s.uch requested 
Alternate Base Loan shall be in .... ::inimum aggregate 
principal amount of $50,000,000. A notice given by the 
appropriate Borrower pursuant to this paragraph (d) shall be 
irrevocable. 

(~) The Agent shall notify the Banks whether or 
not any of• their Competitive Bids have been accepted (and if 
so, in what amount or .::;mounts and at what Rate or Rates) ami 
whether any Alt1.?rna'te Base Loan shall have been requested 
(and each Bank's portion 01: any such requested Alternate 
Base Loan) by telex or telecopier sent by the Agent not 
later than 12: 00 ·noon New York time, one day before the 
Compe•ti tive Borrowing, and each successful bidder will 
thereupon become bound, subject to the other applicable 
conditic\lS hereof, to make the Competitive Loan or 
Competitive Loans in respect of which its offer has been 
accepted (and if an Alternate Base Loan shall have been 
requested, then each Bank shall thereupon become bound to 
make a portion of s1.v;h Alternate Base Loan in proportion to 
,;_ts respective unutf.lized Commitment). 

(f) A Competitive Borrowing shall not be made 
within seven Business Days of the date of any other Competi­
tive Borrowing. 

(g) If the Agent shall elect to submit a Competi­
tive Bid or Competitive Bids, it shall submit such bid or 
bids to the appropriate Borrower 30 minutes earlier than the 
latest time at which the other Banks are required to submit 
their bids to the Agent pursuant to Section 2.02(b). 

(h) All notices required by thi.11 Section 2.02 
shall be made in accordance with Section ltl.01. 

SECTION 2.03. Standby Borrowing Procedure. In 
order to effect a Standby Borrowing, the appropriate Bor­
rower shall give the Agent written or telex notice, in the 
form of Exhibit B-2 hereto, (i) in the case of Eurodollar 
Loans, not later than 10:00 a.m. New York time, three 
Business Days before a Standby Borrowing, (ii) in the case 
of Certificate of Deposit Loans, not later than 10:00 a.m. 

I 
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New York time, two Business Days before a Standby Borrowing 
acid (iii) in the case of Alternate Base Loans, not later 
tnan 11:00 a.m. New York time, one Busi~ess Day before a 
Standby Borrowing, Such notice shall be irrevocable and 
shall i.n each case refer to this Agreement and specify 
(v) whether the Loans then being requested are to be Certif­
icate of Deposit Loans, Eurodollar Loans or Alternate Base 
Loans, (w) the date of such Loans (which shall be a Business 
Day) and the aggregate amount there.~ (which shall be an 
integral multiple of $50,000,000 (e::cl:pt in the case of 
Alternate Base Loans replacing a port· ion· of a proposed 
Competitive Borrowing, as provided in paragraph (d) of 
Section 2.02)) and (x) the Interest Period with respect 
thereto (which shall nc.t end later than the Maturity D;1t<::). 
If no Interest Period with reepect to any Certificate of 
Deposit Loan or Eurodollar Loan is specified in any such 
natice, then (y) in the case of a Certificate of Deposit 
Loan, such Borrower shall be deemed to have selected an 
Interest Period of 30 days' duration and (z) in the case of 
a Eurodollar Loan, such Borrower shall be deemed to have 
selected an Interest Period of one mcmth's duration. The 
Agent shall promptly aavise the other B<mks of any notice 
given pursuant to this Section 2.03 and of each Bank's 
portion of the requested Standby Borrowing by telex or 
':elecopier. 

SECTION 2. 04. Loans. (a) Cor:ipeti tive Loans 
shall be made to the extent accepted by the approprl.ate 
Borrower in accordance with Section 2.02(d) and Standby 
Loans shall be made ratably by the Banks in accordance with 
their respective unutilized Commitments on the date of the 
Standby Borrowing (which respective unutilized Commitments 
on the date of such Standby Borrowing may be in a different 
proportion than their respective Commitments if Competitive 
Loans, which are not made on a pro rata basis, are 
outstanding on the date of such Standby Borrowing); 
provided;. however, that the ~ailure of any Bank to ~ake any 
Loan shall not in itself relieve any other Bank of its 
obligation to lend hereunder. The initial Competitive Loan 
and the ini ti<1l Standby Loan bi• each Bank to each Borrower 
shall be made against delivery to such Bank of an appropri­
ate Competj.tive Note or Standby Note, payable to the order 
of such Bank, as referred to in Section 2.05. 

(b) Each Loan shall be either a Standby Loan, 
which shall be comprised of a Certificate of Deposit Loan, a 
Eurodollar Loan or an Alternate Base Loan, or shall be a 
Competitive Loan, as the Borrower to which such Loan is to 
be made may request subject to and in accordance with 
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Section 2.02, Section 2.03 or Section 2.09, as applicable. 
Each Bank may at its option make any Eurodollar Loan by 
causing a foreign branch or affiliate of such Bank to make 
such Loan; provided, however, that any exercise of such 
option shall not affect the obligation of the appropriate 
Borrower to ,.!'!pay ~uch Loan in accordance with the terms of 
the applicable Note. Loans of more than one interest rate 
option may be outstanding at the same time; erovided fur­
ther, however., that no Borrower shall ">c entitled to request 
any Loan which, if made, would result .in an aggregate of 
more than ten separate Loans of any Bani< being outstanding 
hereunder at any one time. For purposes of the foregoing, 
Loans having different Interest Periods, regardless of 
whether they commence on the same date, shall be considered 
separate Loans. 

(c) Subject to Section 2.11, each Bank shall make 
its portion of each competitive Borrowi11g and each Standby 
Borrowing on the proposed date thereof by paying the amount 
required to the Agent in New York, New 'lrork in immediately 
available funds not late• than 12:00 noon New York time, and 
the Agent sh~ll by 3:00 p.m. New York time credit the 
amounts so received to the general deposit account of. the 
appropriate Borrower with the Agent or, if Loans are not 
made on such date because any condition precedent to a 
borrowing herein specified shall not have been met, return 
che amounts so received to the respective Banks. 

SECTION 2.05. Notes. The Competitive Loans and 
Stan2oy Loans made by each B.ank to each Borrower shall be. 
evidenced by a competitive Note or Standby Note, as the r:ase 
may be, duly executed on behalf of such Borrower, dated the 
date of the first such Loan, in substantially tile forms 
attached hereto as Exhibits E-1 and E-2, respectively, with 
the blanks appropriately filled, payable to the order of 
!WCh Bank in a principal amount equal to the commitment of 
stich Bank. The outstanding principal balance of each 
competitive Loan and Standby Loan, as evidenced by a Note, 
shall be payable on the lastcday of the Interest Period 
applicable to such Loan. Eac:h Note shall bear interest from 
the date of the ·first borrowing evidenced by such Note on 
the outstanding principal balance thereof as set forth in 
Section 2.06. Each Bank shall, and is hereby authorized by 
each Borrower to, endorse on the schedule attached to each 
Note of such Bank (or on a continuation of such schedule 
attached to each such Note and made a part thereof) an 
appropriate notation evidencing the date and amount of each 
Loan of such Bank, each payment or prepayment of p·r incipal 
of any Loan and the other information provided for on such 
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schedule; provided, however, that the failure of any Bank to 
make such a notation or any error therein shall not in any 
manner affect the obligation of the appropriate Borrower IO 
repay the Loans made by such Bank in accordance with the 
terms of such Note. As soon as practicable after the 
Maturity Date or the earlier termination of Loans or Commit­
ments under this Aq~eement, as applicable, and upon payment 
by the Borrower in full of all amounts due and owing on any 
Note, the Banks shall return the canceled .~.-.mpeti ti ve Note 
and Standby Note to the appropt iate · Borro•4er. 

SECTION 2.06. Interest on Loans. (~l Subjer.t to 
t.he provisions of Section 2. 09, each Competitive Loan shall 
bear interest at a rate per am\Um (computed on the basis of 
the actual number of days elapsed over a year of 360 days) 
equal to the absolute percentage rate per annum, expressed 
as a decimal (to no more than four decimal places) off2red 
by the Bank making such Loan and accepted by the appropriate 
Borrower pursuant to Section 2.02. Interest on each 
Competitive Loan. shall be payable on each applicable 
Interest Payment Date. 

(b) Subject to the provisions of Section 2.09, 
each Certificate of Deposit Loan shall bear interest at a 
rate per annum (computed on the basis of the actual number 
of days elapsed over a year of 360 days) equal to the 
Adjusted CD Rate for the Interest Period in effect for such 
Loan plus 1/2 of 1%. Interest on each Certificate of 
Deposit Loan shall be payable on each applicable Interest 
Payment Date. The applicable Adjusted CD Rate shall be 
determined by the Agent, and such determination shall be 
conclusive absent manifest error. The Agent shall promptly 
advise the Company and each Bank of such determination. 

(c) Subject to the provisions of Section 2.09, 
each Eurodollar Loan shall bear interest at a rate per annum 
(computed on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed 
ovet a year of 360 days) equal to the Adjusted LIBO Rate for 
the Interest Period in effect for such Loan plus 3/8 of 1\. 
Interest on each Eurodollar Loan shall be payable on each 
applicable Intere:s.t Payment Date. The Adjusted LIBO Rate 
shall be determined by the Agent, and such determination 
shall be conclusive absent manifest error. T~.e Agent shall 
promptly advise the Company and each Bank of ~•ucl1 determina­
tion. 

(d) Subject to the provisions of Section 2.09, 
each Alternate Base Loan shall bear interest on each day at 
a rate per annum (computed on the basis of the actual number 
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of days elapsed over a year of 360 days, except where the 
applicable interest rate for such Loan is the Prime Rate, in 
which case the rate per annum shall be computed on the basis 
of the actual number of days elapsed ovP.t a year of 365 or 
366 days, as the case may be) equal to the Alternate Base 
Rate in effect for such day. Interest on each Alternate 
Base Loan shall be payable on each applicable Interest 
Payment Date. The applicable Alternate Base Rate for each 
day shall be determined by the Agent, and su~~ determination 
shall be conclusive absent manifest error. 

SECTION 2.07. Commitment Fee. The Company shall 
pay each Bank, through the Agent, on the last day of each 
March, June, September and December, and on the Maturity 
Date, in immediately available funds, a commitment fee (a 
"Commitment Fee") of (a) 1/4 of 1\ per annum from 
December 20, 1985, through March 20, 1986, (b) 3/16 of 1\ 
per annum from and including March 21, 1986, up to but 
excluding June 30, 1987, and (c) 1/8 of 1\ per annum from 
and after June 30, 1987, on the average daily unutilized 
amount of the Commitment of such Bank during the quarter (or 
shorter period ending with any date on which the Commitment 
of such Bank shall be terminated or with the Maturity Date) 
ending on such date. All Commitment Fees under this Sec­
tion 2.07 shall be computed on the basis of the actual 
number of days elapsed in a year of 360 days. The 
Commitment Fees due to each Bank shall cease to accrue on 
the earlier of the Maturity Date and the termination of the 
Commitment of such Bank as provided herein. 

SECTION 2.08. Termination and Reduction of 
Commitments. (a) Upon at least 30 days' prior written or 
telex notice to the Agent, the Company may at any time in 
whole permanently terminate, or from time to time perma­
nently reduce, the Total Commitment, ratably among the Banks 
in accordance with their respective Commitments; provided, 
however, that each partial reduction of the Total Commitment 
shall be in an integral multiple of $50,000,000. On the 
date of any termination or reduction of the C?mmitment 
pursuant to this paragraph, the Company shall pay or repay 
so much of the Loans of such Bank as may be required under 
Section 2.lO(b). 

(b) In the event the Company and the Subsidiaries 
shall incur any Indebtedness for borrowed money (other than 
Indebtedness existing on the date hereof, Indebtedness 
incurred pursuant to short-term borrowing arrangements with 
banks and commercial paper maturing not more than 270 days 
after the date of its issuance) maturing prior to the 



Maturity Date, then the Required Banks may, on one or more 
occasions, upon at least 30 days' prior written or telex 
notice to the Company and the other Banks, permanently 
reduce the Total Commitment, ratably among the Banks in 
accordance with their respective Commitments, by an 
aggregate amount not greater than the maximum amount of such 
Indebtedness at any time outstanding. 

( c) In the event that the Cammi tment f' any Bank 
is terminated pursuant to paragraph (e) of Sect:t'n 2.12, the 
Company shall have the right, subject to the pr .. );: written 
consent of the Agent which consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld, to replace such Bank with such successor bank or 
banks qualified to be an Eligible Assignee or Eligible 
Assignees, as the case may be; provided that any such bank 
shall, pursuant to a written instrument in form and 
substance satisfactory to the Agent, effectively agree to 
become a party hereto and a "Bank" hereunder and be bound by 
the terms hereof. The Agent shall promptly notify the 
remaining Banks of any such replacement. In the event that 
the Commitment of any Bank is so terminated, the Company 
may, through the Agent, request one or more of the remaining 
Banks to assume any part of the Commitment of such 
terminated Bank; provided, however, that none of the Banks 
shall have any obligation to assume any part of such Commit­
ment, and provided further that, other than pursuant to the 
next succeeding sentence, none of the remaining Banks shall 
be entitled to assume any part of the Commitment of such 
terminated Bank without the prior written consent of the 
Required Banks and the Agent. Notwithstanding anything 
herein to the contrary, with respect to a terminated Bank 
that became a Bank hereunder pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 10.04, the Company must first offer to the original 
assignor Bank or assignor Banks, as the case may be, the 
portion of the Commitment of any such terminated assignee 
Bank attributable to assignment by such original assignor 
Bank or Banks before the Company may replace such terminated 
assignee Bank with any other bank or request any other Bank 
to assume any part of the Commitment of such terminated 
assignee Bank. 

(d) Simultaneously with any termination or reduc­
tion of Commitments pursuant to paragraph (a), (b) or (c) of 
this Section 2.08, the Company shall pay to the Agent for 
the account of the Banks whose Commitments are being termi­
nated or reduced the Commitment Fees on the amount of the 
Commitments so terminated or reduced owed through the date 
of such termination or reduction. 
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SECTION 2.09. Interest on Overdue Amounts; 
Alternative Rate of Interest. (a) If any Borrower shall 
default in the payment of the principal of or interest on 
any Loan or any other amount becoming due hereunder, by 
acceleration or otherwise, such Borrower shall on demand 
from time to time pay interest, to the extent permitted by 
law, on such defaulted amount up to the date of actual 
payment (after as well as before judgment): 

(i) in the case of the payment of princi:?al of or 
interest on a Certificate of Deposit Loan or ·'•.1::odollar 
Loan, at a rate 2\ above the rate which would otherwise 
be payable under Section 2.06(b) or (c), as the case 
may be; 

(ii) in the case of the payment of principal of or 
interest on a Competitive Loan, at a rate 2\ above the 
greater of (x) the interest rate designated for such 
Competitive r.oan and (y) the Alternate Base Rate; and 

(iii) in the case of the payment of principal of or 
interest on an Alternate Base Loan or any other amount 
payable hereunder (other than principal of or interest 
on any Loan referred to in clause (i) or (ii) above), 
at a rate 2% above the Alternate Base Rate. 

(b) In the event, and on each occasion, that on 
the day two Business Days prior to the commencement of any 
Interest Period for a Eurodollar Loan, the Agent or the 
Required Banks shall have determined (which determination 
shall be conclusive and binding upon the Borrowers) that 
dollar neposits in the amount of the requested principal 
amount of such Eurodollar Loan are not generally available 
in the London Interbank Market, or that the rate at which 
dollar deposits are being offered will not adequately and 
fairly reflect the cost to any Bank of m~king or maintaining 
the principal amount of such Eurodollar ~can during such 
Interest Period, or reasonable means do not exist for 
ascertaining the Adjusted LIBO Rate, the Agent shall as soon 
as practicable thereafter give written or telex notice of 
such determination to the Company and the other Banks, and 
any request by a Borrower for the making or refinancing of a 
Eurodollar Loan pursuant to Section 2.03 or 2.11 shall, 
until the circumstances giving rise to such notica no longer 
exist, be deemed to be a request for an Alternate Base Loan. 
Each determination of the Agent hereunder shall be 
conclusive absent manifest error. 

(c) In the event, and on each occasion, that on 
or before the day on which the Adjusted CD Rate for a 
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Certificate of Deposit Loan is to be determined, the Agent 
shall have determined (which determination shall be conclu­
sive and binding upon the Borrowers) that the Adjusted CD 
Rate for such Loan cannot be ascertained for any reason, 
including, without limitation, the inability or failure of 
the Agent to obtain sufficient bids in accordance with the 
terms of the definition of Fixed Certificate of Deposit 
Rate, or the Agent shall determine that the Adjusted CD Rate 
for such Certificate of Deposit Loan will not adequat~iv and 
fairly reflect the cost to any Bank of making or mainta,ning 
the principal amount of such Certificate of Deposit Loan 
during such Interest Period, the Agent shall, as soon as 
practicable thereafter, give written or telex notice of such 
determination to the Company and the other Banks, and any 
request by a Borrower for the making or refinancing of a 
Certificate of Deposit Loan pursuant to Section 2.03 or 2.11 
shall, until the circumstances giving rise to such notice no 
longer exist, be deemed to be a request for an Alternate 
Base Loan. Each determination b. the Agent hereunder shall 
be conclusive absent manifest error. 

SECTION 2.10. Prepayment of Loans. (a) Each 
Borrower shall have the right at any time and from time to 
time to prepay any Loan, in whole or in part, subject to the 
requirements of Section 2.14 but otherwise without premium 
or penalty, upon at least three Business Days' prior written 
or telex notice to the Agent; ;rovided, however, that each 
such partial prepayment shalle in an integral multiple of 
$50,000,000. 

(b) On the date of any termination or reduction 
of the Commitment of any Bank pursuant to Section 2.0B(a), 
the Company shall pay or prepay so much of the Loans of such 
Bank (up to the amount by which such Commitment is as 
terminated or reduced) as shall be necessary in order that 
the aggregate principal amount of the Loans of such Bank 
outstanding will not exceed the Commitment of such Bank 
following such termination or reduction. All prepayments 
under this paragraph shall be subject to Section 2.14. 

(c) Each notice of prepayment shall specify the 
prepayment date and the principal amount of each Loan (or 
portion thereof) to be prepaid, shall be irrevocable and 
shall commit the Borrower giving such notice to prepay such 
Loan by the amount stated therein on the date stated 
therein. All prepayments shall be accompanied by accrued 
interest on the principal amount being prepaid to the date 
of prepayment. 



25 

SECTION 2.11. Refinancing of Loans. Any Borrower 
may refinance all or any part of any of its Loans with a 
Loan of the same or a different type made pursuant to 
Section 2.02 or Section 2.03, subject to the conditions and 
limitatlbds set forth herein and elsewhere in this 
Agreement, including, without limitation, refinancings of 
Competitive Loans with Standby Loans and Standby Loans with 
Competitive Loans. Any Loan or part thereof so refinanced 
shall be deemed to be repaid in accordance with Section : 05 
with the proceeds of a new borrowing hereunder and the 
proceeds of the new Loan, to the extent they do not exce'~ 
the principal amount of the Loan being refinanced, shall not 
be paid by the Banks to the Agent or by the Agent to the 
Borrower pursuant to Section 2.04(c): provided, however, 
that (i) if the principal amount extended by a Bank in a 
refinancing is greater than the principal amount extended by 
such Bank in the borrowing being refinanced, then the Bank 
shall pay such difference to the Agent for distribution to 
the Banks described in (ii) below, (ii) if the principal 
amount extended by a Bank in the borrowing being refinanced 
is greater than the principal amount being extended by such 
Bank in the refinancing, the Agent shall return the 
difference to such Bank out of amounts received pursuant to 
(i) above, (iii) to the extent any Bank fails to pay the 
~~qnt amounts due from it pursuant to (i) above, any Loan or 
portion thereof being refinanced shall not be deemed repaid 
in accordance with Section 2.05 to the extent of such 
failure and the appropriate Borrower shall pay such amount 
to the Agent pursuant to Section 2.05, (iv) in the case of a 
refinancing of less than all Loans of any Borrow~r, the 
Loans refinanced shall be in an integral multiple of 
$50,000,000, (v) the Interest Period with respect to any new 
Loan made in respect of a refinancing shall commence on the 
date of refinancing, (vi) any portion of a Loan maturing or 
required to be prepaid in less than 30 days may not be 
refinanced with a Certificate of Deposit Loan and any 
portion of a Loan maturing or required to be prepaid in less 
than one month may not be refinanced with a Eurodollar Loan, 
(vii) a Loan may be refinanced only on the last day of the 
applicable Interest Period, (viii) no Loan (or portion 
thereof) may be refinanced with a Certificat~. of Deposit 
Loan or Eurodollar Loan if, after such refin~ncing, an 
aggregate of more than ten separate Certificate of Deposit 
Loans and Eurodollar Loans of any Bank would be outstanding 
hereunder (determined as set forth in Section 2.04(b)) and 
(ix) no Loan shall be refinanced if the new Loan by any Bank 
would be greater than the amount by which its Commitment 
exceeds the amount of its other Loans at the time outstand­
ing. The Agent shall communicate the information contained 
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in each irrevocable notice delivered by a Borrower pursuant 
to this Section 2.11 to the appropriate Banks promptly after 
its receipt of the same. 

The Interest Period applicable to any Certificate 
of Deposit Loan or Eurodollar Loan resulting from a refi­
nancing shall be specified by the applicable Borrower in the 
irrevocable notice of refinancing delivered pursuant to this 
Section; provided, however, that if no such Interest Perio~ 
shall be specified, such Borrower shall be deemed to have 
selected an Interest Period in the case of a Certificate of 
Deposit Loan of 30 days' duration, and in the case of a 
Eurodollar Loan of one month's duration. 

For purposes of this Section 2.11, notice received 
by the Agent from the applicable Borrower after 10:00 a.m. 
New York time, in the case of a request for a Eurodollar 
Loan or a Certificate of Deposit Loan, or 2:00 p.m. New York 
time, in the case of a request for an Alternate Base Loan, 
on a Business Day shall be deemed to be received on the 
immediately succeeding Business Day. 

SECTION 2.12. Change in Circumstances. (a) Not­
withstanding any other provision herein, if after the date 
of this Agreement any change in applicable law or regulation 
or in the interpretation or administration thereof by any 
governmental authority charged with the interpretation or 
administration thereof (whether or not having the force of 
law) shall change the basis of taxation of payments to any 
Bank of the principal of or interest on any Certificate of 
Deposit Loan or Eurodollar Loan made by such Bank or any 
other fees or amounts payable hereunder (other than taxes 
imposed on the overall net income of such Bank by the 
jurisdiction in which such Bank has its principal office or 
by any political subdivision or taxing authority therein), 
or shall impqse, modify or deem applicable any reserve, 
special deposit or similar requirement against assets of, 
deposits with or for the account of, or credit extended by, 
such Bank (except any such reserve requirement which is 
reflected in the Adjusted LIBO Rate or the Adjusted CD Rate) 
or shall impose on such Bank or the London Interbank Market 
any other condition affecting this Agreement or the Certifi­
cate of Deposit Loans or Eurodollar Loans made by such Bank 
and the result of any of the foregoing shall be to increase 
the cost to such Bank of making or maintaining any Certifi­
cate of Deposit Loan or Eurodollar Loan or to reduce the 
amount of any sum received or receivable by such Bank 
hereunder (whether of principal, interest or otherwise) in 
respect thereof, by an amount deemed by such Bank to be 
material, then such additional amount or amounts as will 
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compensate such Bank for such additional costs or reduction 
will be paid to such Bank upon demand (i) if such additional 
costs or reduction shall relate to a particular Loan, by the 
Borrower to which such Loan was made and (ii) otherwise, by 
the Company. 

(b) If, after the date of this Agreement, any 
Bank shall have determined that the adoption of any applica­
ble law, rule, regulation or guideline regarding capital 
adequacy or capital maintenance, or any change therein, or 
any change in the interpretation or administration thereof 
by any governmental authority, central bank or comparable 
agency charged with the interpretation or administration 
thereof, or compliance by any Bank (or any lending office of 
such Bank) with any request or d.:.rective regarding capital 
adequacy or c~pital maintenance (whether or not having the 
force of law) of any such authority, central bank or 
comparable agency, has or would have the effect of reducing 
the rate of return on such Bank's capital as a consequence 
of its obligations hereunder to a level below that which 
such Bank could have achieved but for such adoption, change 
or compliance (taking into consideration such Bank's poli­
cies with respect to capital adequacy or capital 
maintenance, as the case may be) by an amount deemed by such 
Bank to be material, then from time to time such additional 
amount or amounts as will compensate such Bank for such 
reduction will be paid to such Bank (i) if such additional 
costs or reduction shall relate to a particular Loan, by the 
Borrower to which such Loan was made and (ii) otherwise, by 
the Company. 

(c) A certificate of each Bank setting forth such 
amount or amounts as shall be necessary to compensate such 
Bank as specified in paragraph (a) or (b) above, as the case 
may be, shall be delivered to the applicable Borrower or to 
the Company and shall be conclusive absent manifest error. 
The applicable Borrower or the Company, as the case may be, 
shall pay each Bank the amount shown as due on any such 
certificate within 10 days after its receipt of the same. 

(d) Each Bank shall endeavor in good faith to 
notify the Company (x) of any official notice it shall have 
received from the Board or any governmental or other 
authority described in paragraph (a) or (b) above informing 
such Bank of the effectiveness of any reserve requirement, 
change, adoption or compliance described in paragraph (a) or 
(b) above (a "Change"), as soon as is practicable after it 
shall have received such notice and shall have determined in 
its reasonable judgment that such Change might result in its 
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requesting from the Company or the applicable Borrower, as 
the case may be, compensation under this Section 2.12, and 
(y) of increased costs or reductions for which it has 
determined that compensation is due to it under this 
Section 2.12 as soon as practicable after it has determined 
that it will request such compensation. If such increased 
costs or reduction relate (or are reasonably expected to 
relate) to an outstanding Loan, then such notice should 
specify the last day of the Interest Period of such Loan. 
If such increased costs or reduction will not relate (or are 
not reasonably expected to relate) to any outstanding Loan, 
or, due to retroactive application of such Change, will 
relate (or are reasonably expected to relate) to a Loan or 
Loans with Interest Periods ended prior to the effective 
date of such Change, then such notice should specify the 
later of the date of public announcement and effective date 
of such Change. Failure on the part of any Bank to demand 
compensation for any increased costs or reduction in amounts 
received or receivable with respect to any Interest Period 
shall not constitute a waiver of such Bank's rights to 
demand compensation for any increased costs or reduction in 
amounts received or receivable in such Interest Period or in 
any other Interest Period: provided, however, that no Bank 
shall be entitled to compensation for any increased costs or 
reduction unless it shall have submitted a certificate under 
paragraph (c) above with respect thereto (i) if such 
increased costs or reduction relate to an outstanding Loan, 
not more than 60 days after the end of the Interest Period 
of such Loan during which such increased costs shall have 
been incurred or such reduction suffered or (ii) if such 
increased costs or reduction do not relate to any 
outstanding Loan, or if due to retroactive application of 
any Change such increased costs or reduction correspond to 
Loans with Interest Periods ended prior to the effective 
date of such Change, not more than 60 days from the later of 
(x) the date of public announcement and (y) the effective 
date of such Change: ~rovided further that no Bank shall be 
entitled to compensation under paragraph (b) above for any 
increased costs incurred or reduction suffered prior to 
June 30, 1987. The protection of this Section 2.12 shall be 
available to each Bank regardless of any possible contention 
of the invalidity or inapplicability of any law, regulation 
or other condition which shall give rise to any demand by 
such Bank for compensation. 

(e) In the event any Bank shall have notified the 
Company of increased costs or reduction pursuant to 
clause (x) or (y) of paragraph (d) above and the Company 
shall not have received similar notice from the Required 
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Banks (including such Bank), if such incurred costs or 
reduction relate to an outstanding Loan, within 63 days 
after the end of the Interest Period of such Loan during 
which such increased costs shall have been increased or such 
reduction suffered, or, if such increased costs or reduction 
do not relate to any outstanding Loan, or if due to 
retroactive application of any Change, such increased costs 
or reduction cor::espond to Loans with Interest Periods ended 
prior to the effective date of such Change, within 63 days 
from the later of (x) the date of public announcement and 
(y) the effective date of any such Change, the Company, 
notwithstanding the provisions of Section 2.0B(a), shall 
have the right to cancel the Commitment of such Bank 
hereunder in full by (i) giving 7 days' prior written notice 
of such election to the relevant Bank and the Agent, 
specifying an effective date for such cancelation and 
(ii) on such effective date for such cancelation repaying, 
or causing each applicable Borrower to repay, as the case 
may be, in full all Loans made to it, together with all 
accrued interest, Commitment Fees and all other amounts 
(including without limitation all amounts payable under this 
Section or under Section 2.14) owing hereunder to any such 
Bank as at such effective date: erovided, however, that no 
such cancelation shall be effective if, at or prior to the 
effective date for such cancelation, there shall exist any 
Event of Default or event or condition which, upon notice or 
lapse of time or both, would constitute an Event of Default. 
Upon any such cancelation, the Company may replace such Bank 
or allocate its canceled Commitment pursuant to and subject 
to the provisions of Section 2.0B(c). 

SECTION 2.13. Change in Legalit¥· (a) N~t­
withstanding anything to the contrary herein contain~d, if 
any change in any law or regulation or in the interpfetation 
thereof by any governmental authority charged with the 
administration or interpretation thereof shall make it 
unlawful for any Bank to make or maintain any Eurodollar 
Loan or to give effect to its obligations as contemplated 
hereby, then, by written notice to the Company and to the 
Agent, such Bank may: 

(i) declare that Eurodollar Loans will not there­
after be made by such Bank hereunder, whereupon the 

Borrowers shall be prohibited from requesting Euro­
dollar Loans from such Bank hereunder unless such 
declaration is subsequently withdrawn; and 



(ii) require that all outstanding Eurodollar Loans 
made by it be repaid or prepaid, as necessary, and 
refinanced with Alternate Base Loans, in whi-ch event 
(A) all such Eurodollar Loans shall be automatically 
deemed to be repaid or prepaid, as necessary, with 
Alternate Base Loans as of the effective date of such 
notice as provided in paragraph (b) below (not­
withstanding the provisions of Section 2.11), (BJ all 
payments and prepayments of principal which would 
otherwise have been applied to repay the repald or 
prepaid (as the case may be) Eurodollar Loans shall 
instead be applied to repay the Alternate Base Loans 
resulting from the repayment or prepayment (as the case 
may be) of such Eurodollar Loans and (C) the Alternate 
Base Loans resulting from the repayment or prepayment 
(as the case may be) of such Eurodollar Loans shall be 
prepayable only at the times the repaid or prepaid (as 
the case may be) Eurodollar Loans would have been 
prepayable, notwithstanding the provisions of 
Section 2.10. 

(b) For purposes of Section 2.13(a), a notice to 
the Company by any Bank shall be effective, if lawful, on 
the last day of the then current Interest Period or, if 
there are then two or more current Interest Periods, on the 
last day of each such Interest Period, respectively; other­
wise, such notice shall be effective on the date of receipt 
by the Company. 

SECTION 2.14. Indemnity. Each Borrower shall 
indemnify each Bank against any loss or expense which such 
Bank may sustain or incur as ~ consequence of any failure by 
such Borrower to fulfill on the date of any borrowing 
hereunder the applicable conditions set forth in Article IV, 
any failure by such Borrower to borrow her~under or to 
refinance any Loan hereunder after irrevoc;1ble notice of 
borrowing pursuant to Section 2.02 or Section 2.03 or 
irrevocable notice of refinancing pursuant to Section 2.11 
has been given, any payment or prepayment of a Certificate 
of Deposit Loan, Eurodollar Loan or Competitive Loan to such 
Borrower required by any other provision of this Agreement 
or otherwise made on a date other than the last day of the 
applicable Interest Period, any default in payment or 
prepayment of the principal amount of any Loan to such 
Borrower or any part thereof or interest accrued thereon, as 
and when oue and payable (at the due date thereof, by 
irrevocable notice of prepayment or otherwise), or. the 
occurrence of any Event of Default, including, but not 
limited to, any loss or reasonable expense $Ustained or 
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incurred or to be sustained or incurred in liquidating or 
employing deposits from third parties acquired to effect or 
m~intain such Loan or any part thereof as a Certificate of 
Deposit Loan or Eurodollar Loan. Such loss or reasonable 
expense shall include, without limitation, an amount equal 
to the excess, if any, as reasonably determined by each Bank 
of (i) its cost of obtaining the funds for the Loan being 
paid, prepaid or not borrowed or refinanced (based on the 
Adjusted CD Rate or the Adjusted LIBO Rate applicabl~ 
thereto) for the period from the date of such payment, 
prepayment or failure to borrow or refinance to the last day 
of the Interest Period for such Loan (or, in the case of a 
failure to borrow or refinance, the Interest Period for such 
Loan which would have .commenced on the date of such failure 
to borrow or refinance) over (ii) the amount of interest (as 
reasonably determil1e_d by such Bank) that would be realized 
by such Bank in reemploying the funds so paid, prepaid or 
not borrowed or refinanced by making a Loan of the same type 
in such principal amount and with a maturity comparable to 
such period. 

SECTION 2.15. Pro Rata Treatment. Except as 
permitted under Section 2.12(e), (i) each payment or prepay­
ment of principal, each payment of interest and each other 
reduction of the principal or interest outstanding under the 
Notes with respect to a Competitive Borrowing or a Standby 
Borrowing shall be made pro rata among the Banks in accor­
dance with the respective t()tal amount of principal and 
interest outstanding for thtl Loans extended by each Bank, if 
any, witt1 respect to such Competitive Borrowing or Standby 
Borrowing; provided, however, that in the e·•ent the Agent 
shall have declared the outstanding Notes due 3nd ?ayable 
pursuant to Article VII herein, then all such payments, 
prepayments and reductions of the principal or interest 
outstanding under the Notes (i'Crespective of whether such 
payment, prepayment or reduction relates to a Standby 
Borrowing or Competitive Borrowing) shall be made pro rata 
among the .Ra!l.lts in accordance with the respective total 
amount of principal and interest outstanding for all Loans 
extended by each Bank, (ii) refinancings of Standby Loans 
with Standby Loans of any type shall be made pro rata among 
the Banks in accordance with their respective unutilized 
Commitments, (iii) refinancings of Competitive Loans with 
Standby Lc.;i.ns and Standby Loans which are not refina11cings 
of other Loans shall be made pro rata among the Banks. in 
accordance with their respective unutilized Commitments, 
(iv) each reduction of the Commitments shall be made pro 
rata among the Banks in accordance with their respective 
Commitments and (v) each payment of the Commitment Fees 



shall be made pro rata among the Banks in accordance with 
their respective unutilized Commitments. 

·""· 

SECTION 2.16. Sharing of Setoffs. (a) Each Bank 
agrees that in the event the Agent shall have declared the 
outstanding Notes due and payable pursuant to Article VII 
herein, and any Bank shall thereafter in any way obtain 
payment (voluntary or involuntary) in respect of any Note of 
any Borrower held by it, including, but not limited to, 
through the exercise of a right of Qanker's lien, setoff or 
counterclaim against any Borrower or against the Company, as 
guarantor of the obligations of the Borrowing Subsidiaries 
under Article IX, including, but not limited to, a secured 
claim under Section 506 of Title 11 of the United States 
Code or other security or interest arising from, or in lieu 
of, such secured claim, received by suc.h Bank under any 
appl1icable bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law or 
otherwise, as a result of which the ratio of (w) the aggre­
gate unpaid principal amount of the Note or Notes of such 
Borrower and pa,.rticipations in Notes of such Borrower held 
by it subsequent to its having obtained such payment to 
(x) the aggregate unpaid principal amount of all Notes of 
such BorroweI' outstanding subsequent to its having obtained 
such payment .shall be less than the ratio of (y) the aggre­
gate unpaid p':cincipal amount of the Note or Notes of such 
Borrower and ~\art icipations in Notes of such Borrower held 
by it prior to its having obtained such payment to (z) the 
aggregate unpaid principal amount of all Notes of such 
Borrower outstanding prior to its having obtained such 
payment, then it shall be deemed to have simultaneously 
purchased from each other Bank a participation in the 1ilote 
or Notes of such Borrower held by each other Bank, so that 
the ratio of (w) above to (x) above is equal to the ratio of 
(y) above to (z) above. 

(b) Each Bank further agrees that in the event it 
shall in any way, (including, but not limited to, any way 
described in the preceding sentence) obtain payment at any 
time other than subsequent to a declaration by the Agent 
that the outstanding Notes are due and payable pursuant to 
Article VII, as a result of which the ratio of (w) the 
aggregate unpaid principal amount of Standby Loans made by 
it with respect to a particular Standby Borrowing and 
participations held by it in Standby Loans made with respect 
to such Standby Borrowing, outstanding subsequent to its 
having obtained such payment to (x) the aggr~gate unpaid 
principal amount of all Standby Loans made with respect to 
such Standby Borrowing, outstanding subsequent to its having 
obtained such payment shall be less than the ratio of 
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{y) the aggregate unpaid principal amount of Standby Loans 
made by it with respect to such Standby Borrowing and 
participations held by it in Standby Loans made with respect 
to such Borrowing, outstanding prior to its having obtained 
such payment to {z) the aggregate unpaid principal amount of 
all Standby Loans made with respect to such Standby Borrow­
ing, outstanding prior to its having obtained such payment, 
\';hen it shall be deemed to have simultaneously purchased 
from each other Bank a participation in the Standby Note 
held by each other Bank, so that the ratio of (w) above to 
{x) above is equal to the ratio of (y) above to (z) above. 

(c) Notwithstanding anything in this Section 2.16 
to the contrary, if any such purchane or purchases or 
adjustments shall be made pursuant to this Section 2.16 and 
the payment giving rise thereto shall thereafter be recov­
ered, such purchase or purchases or adjustments shall be 
rescinded to the extent of such recovery and the purchase 
price or prices or adjustment restored without interest. 
Each Borrower, and the Company, as guarantor of the obliga­
tions of the Borrowing Subsidiaries under Article IX, 
expressly consents to the foregoing arrangements and agrees 
that any Bank holding a participation in a Note of any 
Borrower deemed to have been so purchased may exercise any 
and all rights of banker's lien, setoff or counterclaim with 
respect to any and all moneys owing by such Borrower, or by 
the Company, as guarantor of the obligations of such 
Borrower, to such Bank as fully as if such Bank had made a 
Loan directly to such Borrower in the amount of such 
participation. 

(d) Participations deemed to be purchased from 
each other Bank under paragraph (a) of this Section 2.16 
shall be deemed to be purchar,ed in the following order until 
the requirements of paragraph {a) above shall hava bean 
satisfied: first, participations shall be purchased in 
Standby Notes, if any, held by such other Banki th~n, 
participations shall be purchased in the Competitive Notes 
of such other Bank. ' 



~ .. 

III. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

The Company represents and warrants to each of the 
Banks that: 

SECTION 3.01. Organization, Corporate Powers. 
The Company and each of the Subsidiaries is duly organized, 
validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the 
jurisdiction of its organization, has the requisite power 
and authority to own its property and assets and to carry on 
its business as now conducted and is qualified to do 
business in every jurisdiction where such qualification is 
required, except where the failure so to qualify would not 
have a material adverse effect on the condition, financial 
or otherwise, of the Company or of the Company and the 
Subsidiaries taken as a whole. The Company has the corpo­
rcate power to execute, deliver and perform its obligations 
under this Agreement, to borrow hereunder and to execute and 
deliver the Notes to be delivered by it. Each Borrowing 
Subsidiary, at the time it becomes a Borrowing Subsidiary 
and at all times thereafter, will have the corporate power 
to execute and deliver the Borrowing Subsidiary Agreement 
delivered by it and to perform its obligations thereunder 
and under this Agreement, to borrow hereunder and to execute 
and deliver the Notes to be delivered by it. Each Borrowing 
Subsidiary will be incorporated under the laws of a state of 
the United States or the District of Columbia. 

SECTION 3.02. Authorization. The execution, 
delivery and performance of this Agreement and each Borrow­
ing Subsidiary Agreement, the borrowings hereunder, the 
execution and delivery of the Notes and the consummation of 
the Merger (a) have been (or, in the case of any Borrowing 
Subsidiary Agreement and the Notes delivered by any Borrow­
ing Subsidiary, will at the time they are delivered have 
been) duly authorized by all requisite corporate and, if 
required, stockholder action on the part of the Company or 
the applicable Borrowing Subsidiary, as the case may be, and 
(b) will not (i) violate (A) any provision of law, statute, 
rule or regulation or the certificate or articles of incor­
poration or other constitutive d'-.Jcuments or the ay-laws or 
regulations of the Company o• any Subsidiary, (B) any order 
of any court, or any rule, regulation or order of any other 
agency of government binding upon the Company or any Subsid­
iary or (C) any provisions of any indenture, agreement or 
other instrument to which the Company or any Subsidiary is a 
party, or by which the Company or any Subsidiary or any of 
their respective properties or assets are or may be bound, 
(ii) be in conflict with, result in a breach of or 
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constitute (alone or with notice or lapse of time or both) a 
default un~~r any indenture, agreement or other instrument 
referred to in (b)(i)(C) above or (iii) result in the 
creation or imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance of 
any nature whatsoever upon any property or assets of the 
Company or any Subsidiary. 

SECTION 3.03. Governmental Approval. No regis­
tration with or consent or approval of, or other action by, 
any Federal, state or other governmental agency, authority 
or regulatory body is or will be required in connection with 
the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement or 
any Borrowing Subsidiary Agreement by the Company or any 
Borrowing Subsidiary, the execution and delivery of the 
Notes by the Company or any Borrowing Subsidiary or the 
borrowings hereunder by the Company or any Borrowing Subsid­
iary. 

SECTION 3.04. Enforceability. This Agreement 
constitutes: a legal, valid and binding obligation of the 
Company and will, upon the execution and delivery of a 
Borrowing Subsidiary Agreement by any Borrowing Subsidiary, 
constitute a legal, valid and binding obligation of such 
Borrowing Subsidiary, and the Notes, when duly executed and 
delivered by the Borrowers, will constitute legal, valid and 
binding obligations of the Borrowers, in each case enforce­
able in accordance with their respective terms (subject, as 
to t.he enforcement of remedies, to applicable bankruptcy, 
reorganization, insolvency, moratorium and similar laws 
affecting creditors' rights generally). 

SECTION 3.05. Financial Statements. The Company 
has heretofore furnished to each of the Banks (i) consoli­
dated balance sheets and statements of income and changes in 
financial position as of and for the fiscal years ended 
December 28, 1986 and December 31, 1985, all audited and 
certified by Arthur Young ' Company, independent public 
accountants, and (ii) consolidated balance sheets and 
statements of income and changes in financial position for 
the fiscal quarter ended March 28, 1987, certified by the 
chief financial officer of the Company. Such balance sheets 
and statements of income and changes in financial position 
~resent fairly the financial condition and results of 
operations of the Company and the Subsidiaries as of the 
dates and for the periods indicated (subject to year-end 
audit adjustments in the case of the statements referred to 
in clause (ii) of the preceeding sentence). Such balance 
sheets and the notes thereto disclose all material 



liabilities, direct or contingent, of the Company and the 
Subsidiaries as of the dates thereof. The financial state­
ments referred to in this Section 3.05 have been-prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
applied on a consistent basis. There has been no material 
adverse change in the businesses, assets, operations or 
condition, financial or otherwise, of the Company or the 
Company and the Subsidiaries taken as a whole since 
March 28, 1987. 

SECTION 3.06. Litigation; Comeliance with Laws; 
etc. (a) There are not any actions, suits or proceedings 
at law or in equity or by or before any governmental instru­
mentality or other ~9ency or regulatory authority now 
pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened 
against or affecting the Company or any Subsidiary or the 
businesses, assets or rights of the Company or any Subsidi­
ary (i) which involve this Agreement, the Merger Agreement 
or any of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby or 
(ii) as to which there is a reasonable possibility of an 
adverse determination and which, if adversely determined, 
could, individually or in the aggregate, materially impair 
the ability of the Company or the Company and the Subsid­
iaries taken as a whole to conduct business substantially as 
now conducted, or materially and adversely affect the 
businesses, assets, operations, prospects or condition, 
financial or otherwise, of the Company or the Company and 
the Subsidiaries taken as .a whole, or impair the validity or 
enforceability of or the ability of the Company or any 
Borrowing Subsidiary to perform its obligations under this 
Agreement, any Borrowing Subsidiary Agreement or any of the 
Notes. 

(b) Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary is in 
violation of any law, or in default with respect to any 
judgment, writ, injunction, decree, rule or regulation of 
any court or governmental agency or instrumentality, where 
such violation or default could have a materially adverse 
effect on the businesses, assets, operations or condition, 
financial or otherwise, of the Company or the Company and 
the Subsidiaries taken as a whole. 

SECTION 3.07. Merger. (a) All consents and 
approvals of, filings and registrations with and other 
actions in respect of all governmental agencies, authorities 
or instrumentalities required in order to consummate the 
Merger have been or, prior to the time when required, will 
have been, obtained, given, filed or taken and are or will 
at such time be in full force and effect. At the time of 
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the first borrowing hereunder, the Merger will have been 
duly consummated in accordance with all laws, rules and 
regulations applicable thereto, and ABC will be owned by the 
Company and the Subsidiaries, in each case as described in 
Schedule 3.07 hereto. 

(b) The Joint Proxy Statement dated May 10, 1985, 
mailed by the Company and ABC to their respective share­
holders pursuant to the Merger Agreement does not contain 
any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any 
material fact necessary in order to make statements therein, 
in the light of the circumstances under which they are made, 
not misleading. 

SECTION 3.08. Federal Reserve Regulations. 
(a) Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary is engaged 
principally, or as one of its important activities, in the 
business of extending credit for the purpose of purchasing 
or carrying Margin Stock. 

(b) No part of the proceeds of the Loans will be 
used, whether directly or indirectly, and whether imme­
diately, incidentally or ultimately, (i) to purchase or 
carry Margin Stock or to extend credit to others for the 
purpose of purchasing or carrying Margin Stock (except, in 
each case, common stock of ABC acquired through the consum­
mation of the Merger) or to refund indebtedness originally 
incurred for such purpose, or (ii) for any purpose which 
entails a violation of, or which is inconsistent with, the 
provisions of the Regulations of the Board of Governors of 
the Federal Reserve System of the United States, including, 
without limitation, Regulations G, U or x thereof. 

(c) On the date of, and after giving effect to, 
any borrowing which results in an increase in the aggregate 
principal amount of the Loans outstanding hereunder, not 
more than 25% of the value (as determined by the Banks in 
accordance with the provisions of Regulation U) of (i) the 
assets of the Borrower making such borrowing or (ii) the 
assets of the Company and the Subsidiaries taken as a whole 
which in either case shall be subject to the negative pledge 
of Section 6.01 or to any negative pledge contained in any 
other agreement with a Bank evidencing Indebtedness will be 
represented by Margin Stock. 

SECTION 3.09. Taxes. The Company and the Subi;id­
iaries have filed or caused tc be filed all Federal, state 
and local tax returns which are required to be filed by 
them, and have paid or caused to be paid all taxes shown to 
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be due and payable on such returns or on any assessments 
received by any of them, other than any taxes or assessments 
the validity of which the Company or any Subsidiary is 
contesting in good faith by appropriate proceedings, and 
with respect to which the Company or such Subsidiary shall, 
to the extent required by generally accepted accounting 
principles applied on a consistent basis, have set aside on 
its books adequate reserves. 

SECTION 3.10. Employee Benefit Plans. Each of 
the Company and the Subsidiaries is in compliance in all 
material respects with those provisions of ERISA and the 
regulations and public interpretations thereunder which are 
applicable to the Company and the Subsidiaries. As of the 
date hereof, no Reportable Event has occurred with respect 
to any Plan as to which the Company was required to file a 
report with the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation, and no 
material unfunded vested liabilities exist under any Plan. 

SECTION 3.11. No Material Misstatements. No 
information, report, financial statement, exhibit or sched­
ul.':! prepared or furnished by any Borrower to any Bank in 
connection with this Agreement or the Notes. or included 
therein contained or contains any material misstatement of 
fact or omitted or omits to state any material fact neces­
sary to make the statements therein, in the light of the 
c.ircumstances under which they were made, not misleading. 

SECTION 3.12. Investment Company Act. Neither 
the Company nor any Subsidiary is an "investment company" as 
defined in, or subject to regulation under, the Investment 
Company Act of 1940. 

IV. CONDITIONS OF LENDING 

The obligations of the Banks to make Loans hereun­
der shall be subject to the following conditions precedent: 

SEC'r:i:ON 4.01. All Borrowings. 
each borrowing hereunder, including each 
pursuant to Section 2.11: 

On the date of 
refinancing 

(a) The Agent shall have received a notice of 
such borrowing as required by Section 2.02, 2.03 or 
2 .11. 

(b) The representations and warranties set forth 
in Article III hereof (except, in the case of any 



refinancing pursuant to Section 2.11, where the 
proceeds of a new borrowing do not exceed the principal 
amount of the Loan being refinanced, the representa­
tions and warranties contained in the last sentence of 
Section 3.05, in Section 3.06 and in Section 3.10) 
shall be true and correct in all material respects with 
the same effect 11s though made on and as of such date. 

(c) Each Borrower shall be in compliance with all 
the terms and provisions contained herein on its part 
to be observed or performed, and at the time of and 
immediately after such borrowing no Event of Default or 
event which with notice or lapse of time or both would 
constitute an Event of Default shall have occurred and 
be continuing. 

(d) In, the case of any borrowing the proceeds of 
which are to be used to pay for shares of ABC common 
stock in co.·.mection wit:h the consummation of the 
Merger, all governmental consents and approvals 
required in order that the proceeds of such borrowing 
may be so used shall have been obtained, there shall 
not exist any order, injunction or other restraint 
which prohibits or has the effect of prohibiting the 
consummation of the Merger, the conditions to the 
Merger set forth in Section 7.1 of the Merger Agreement 
shall have been satisfied (or, in the case of the 
conditions set forth in clauses (c)(ii) and (c)(iii) of 
such Section 7.1, waived) and the Merger shall have 
been duly and validly consummated and the Company shall 
own, directly or indirectly, all the outstanding 
capital stock of ABC, in each case as set forth in 
Schedule 3.07 hereto. 

(e) In the case of any borrowing which results in 
an increase in the aggregate principal amount of the 
Loans ou.tstanding hereunder, the Borrower making such 
borrowing shall have delivered for each Bank a state­
ment on Federal Reserve Form U-1 in conformity with the 
requirements of Regulation u. 

(f) Each Bank shall have received a Competitive 
Note or Standby Note, as applicable, duly executed by 
the Company or a Borrowing Subsidiary, as applicable, 
payable to its order and otherwise complying with the 
provisions of Section 2.05. 

Each borrowing hereunder shall be deemed to be a representa­
tion and warranty by each Borrower on the date of such 



borrowing as to the matters specified in paragraphs (b), 
(c), and, if applicable, (d) of this Section 4.01. 
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SECTION 4.02. First Borrowing by Each Borrowing 
Subsidiary. The obligations of the Banks to make Loans to 
each Borrowing Subsidiary hereunder on the first date on 
which Loans are made to such Borrowing Subsidiary are 
subject to the following additional conditions precedent: 

(a) The Banks shall have received the favorable 
.. writ ten opinion of Hall, Dickler, Lawler, Kent ' 
Friedman or other counsel satisfactory to the Banks, 
dated the date of such Loans, addressed to the Banks 
and satisfactory to Cravath, Swaine ' Moore, special 
counsel for the Banks, to the effect set forth in 
Exhibit G hereto. 

(b) All legal matters incident to this Agreement, 
the Notes and the borrowings hereunder shall be satis­
factory to Cravath, Swaine & Moore, special counsel for 
the Banks. 

(c) The Banks shall have received (i) a certifi­
cate of the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of such 
Borrowing Subsidiary dated the date on which such Loans 
are to be made and certifying (A) that attached thereto 
are true and completP. copies of the certificate of 
incorporation and the by-laws of such Borrowing Subsi­
diary as in effect on the date of such certificate and 
at all times since a date prior to the date of the 
resolution of such Borrowing Subsidiary described in 
item (B) below, (B) that attached thereto is a true and 
complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of such Borrowing Subsidiary authorizing the 
execution, delivery and performance of the Borrowing 
Subsidiary Agreement and the Notes delivered by such 
Borrowing Subsidiary and the borrowings hereunder by 
such Borrowing Subsidiary, and that such resolution has 
not been modified, rescinded or amended and is in full 
force and effect, and (C) as to the incumbency and 
specimen signature of each officer of such Borrowing 
Subsidiary executing the Borrowing Subsidiary Agreement 
and the Notes delivered by such Borrowing Subsidiary or 
any other document delivered in connection herewith or 
therewith; (ii) a certificate of another officer of 
such Borrowing Subsidiary as to the incumbency and 
signature of the Secretary or such Assistant Secretary 
of such Borrowing Subsidiary; and (iii) such other 
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documents as any Bank or Cravath, Swaine & Moore, 
special counsel for the Banks, may reasonably request. 

(d) Each Bank shall have received a copy of the 
Borrowing Subsidiary Agreement executed by such Borrow­
ing Subsidiary. 

(e) The Banks shall have received a certificate, 
dated such date and signed by the chief financial 
officer of the Company, confirming compliance with the 
conditions precedent set forth in paragraphs (b) and 
(c) of Section 4.01. 

V. AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS 

The Company covenants and agrees with each Bank 
that, so long as this Agreement shall remain in effect or 
the principal of or interest on any Note, any Commitment Fee 
or any other expense or amount payable hereunder shall be 
unpaid, unless the Required Banks shall otherwise consent in 
writing, it will, and will cause each of the Subsidiaries 
to: 

SECTION 5.01. Corporate Existence. Do or cause 
to be done all things necessary to preserve, renew and keep 
in full force and effect its legal existence, except as 
otherwise permitted by Section 6.03, and except that any 
Subsidiary may be merged or liquidated into the Company or 
another Subsidiary; provided, in the case of a Borrowing 
Subsidiary, that the corporation into which it is merged or 
liquid<1ted first assumes all the obligations of such 
Borrowing Subsidiary under this Agreement and the Notes 
delivered by it by a written instrument satisfactory in form 
and substance to the Agent. 

SECTION 5.02. Businesses and Properties. At all 
times do or cause to be done all things necessary to pre­
serve, renew and keep in full force and effect the rights, 
licenses, permits, franchises, patents, copyrights, trade­
marks and trade names material to the conduct of its busi­
nesses; maintain and operate such businesses in substan­
tially the manner in which they are presently conducted and 
operated (subject to changes in the ordinary course of 
business); comply in all material respects with all laws and 
regulations applicable to the operation of such businesses 
whether now in effect or hereafter enacted and with all 
other applicable laws and regulations; take all action which 
may be required to obtain, preserve, renew and extend all 
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licenses, permits and other authorizations which may be 
material to the operation of such businesses; and at all 
times maintain, preserve and protect all property material 
to the conduct of such businesses and keep such property in 
good repair, working order and condition and from time to 
time make, or cause to be made, all needful and proper 
repairs, renewals, additions, improvements and replacements 
thereto. 

SECTION 5.03. Insurance. (a) Keep its insurable 
~·operties adequately insured at all times by financially 
sound and reputable insurers, (b) maintain such other 
insurance, to such extent and against such risks, including 
fire and other risks insured against by extended coverage, 
as is customary with companies similarly situated and in the 
same or similar businesses, (c) maintain in full force and 
effect public liability insurance against claims for per­
sonal injury or death or property damage occurring upon, in, 
about or in connection with the use of any prope•ties owned, 
occupied or controlled by the Company or any Subsidiary, in 
such amount as the Company or such Subsidiary shall reason­
ably deem necessary, and (d) maintain such other insurance 
as may be required by law. 

SECTION 5.04. Obligations and Taxes. Pay all 
indebtedness and obligations promptly when due in accordance 
with their terms, and pay and discharge promptly when due 
all taxes, assessments and governmental charges or levies 
imposed upon it or upon its income or profits or in respect 
of its property before the same shall become delinquent or 
in default, as well as all lawful claims for labor, mate­
rials and supplies or otherwise, which, if unpaid, might 
give rise to liens or charges upon such properties or any 
part thereof; ~rovided, however, that neither the Company 
nor any Subsidiary shall be required to pay and discharge or 
to cause to be paid and discharged any such tax, assessment, 
charge, levy or claim so long as the validity or amount 
thereof shall be contested in good faith by appropriate 
proceedings and the company or such Subsidiary shall, to the 
extent required by generally accepted accounting principles 
applied on a consistent basis, have set aside on its books 
adequate reserves with respect thereto. 

SECTION 5.05. Financial Statements; Reports. In 
the case of the Company, furn~sh to each Bank: 

(a) within 120 days after the end of each fiscal 
year of the company, a consolidated balance sheet of 
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the Company and related statements of income and 
changes in financial position showing the financial 
condition of the Company and the Subsidiaries as of the 
close of such fiscal year and their results of their 
ope~ations during such year, all audited by Arthur 
Young & Company or other independent certif i~d public 
accountants of recognized national standing and accom­
panied by an opinion of such accountants (which shall 
not be qualified in any material respect) to the effect 
chat such financial statements fairly present the 
fi.nancial condition and results of operations of the 
Company al'!.d the Subsidiaries in acc:ordance with gene­
rally accepted accounting ·princi:ples consistently 
applied; 

( b) wi'~.hin 60' days after the end of each of the 
first three quarters in each fiscal year of the Com­
pany, a consolid~'ted balance sheet and related state­
ments of income a»'.ld changes in financial position 
showing the financial condition of the Company and the 
Subsidiaries as of the close of such quarter and their 
results of operations for such quarter and the then 
elapsed portion of the fiscal year, all certified by 
the chief financial officer or the chief accounting 
officer of the Company as fairly presenting the finan­
cial condition and results of operations nf the Company 
and the Subsid,:i.ries in accordance with g<~nerally 
accepted accou>:dng principles applied cori1'.istently 
with those used in preparing the statements delivered 
pursuant to (a} above; 

(c) concur~ently with any delivery under (a) or 
(b) above, a certificate of the chief financial officer 
or the chief accounting officer of the Company certify­
ing (i) that no Event of Default, or event or condicion 
which with notice or lapse of time or both would 
constitute an Event of Default, has occurred or, if 
such an Event cf Default or event or condition has 
occurred, specifying the nature and extent thereof and 
(ii) setting forth computations evidencing compliance 
with the provisions of Section 6.04 and demonstrating 
that the sum of (i) the obligations secured by liens 
permitted under Section 6.0l(k) and (ii} the Attribut­
able Debt in respect of Sale and Lease~ack Transactions 
entered into by the Company and the Subsidiaries does 
not exceed 10% of Consolidated Net Worth; 

(d) promptly upon their becoming available, copies 
of all regular and periodic reports, proxy statements 
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and other materials filed by the Company or any Subsi­
diary with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or 
any governmental authority succeeding to any of or all 
the functions of said Commission, or with any n~tional 
securities exchange, or distributed to the shareholders 
of the Company; and 

(e) promptly, from time to time, such other infor­
_·:.~~ion regarding the Merger or the operations, business 
affairs and financial condition of the Company and the 
E•;iJsidiar ies as the Agent may reasonably request. 

SECTION 5.06. Litigation and Other Notices. Give 
each Sank prompt written notice of the following: 

(a) the issuance by any court or governmental 
agency or authority of any injunction, order or other. 
restraint prohibiting, or having the effect of prohib­
iting, the making of the Loans or the consummation of 
the Merger, or the initiation of any litigation seeking 
any such injunction, order or other restraint; 

(b) the filing or commencement of any action, suit 
or proceeding, whether at law or in equity or by or 
before any court or any Federal, state, municipal or 
other governmental agency or authority as to which 
there is a reasonable possibility of an adverse deter­
mination and which, if adversely determined, could 
materially impair the right of the Company and the 
Subsidiaries taken as a whole to carry on business 
substantially as then conducted or mater i.:..lly and 
adversely affect the business, assets, operations, 
prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of the 
Company and the Subsidiaries taken as a whole; 

(c) any Event of Default or event or condition 
which, upon notice or l~pse of time or both, would 
constitute an Event of Default, specifying the nature 
and extent thereof and the action (if any) which is 
proposed to be taken with respect thereto; and 

(d) any development in the business or affairs of 
the Company or any Subsidiary which has resulted in or 
which is likely, in the reasonable judgment of the 
Company, to result in a material adverse change in the 
business, assets, operations or condition (financial or 
otherwise) of the Company and the Subsidiaries taken as 
a whole. 
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SECTION 5.07. ERISA. (a) Comply in all material 
respects with the applicable provisions of ERISA and 
(b) furnish to each Bank, (i) as soon as possible, and in 
any event within 30 days after any Responsible Officer of 
the Company knows or has reason to know that there has 
occurred any Reportable Event with respect to any Plan that, 
alone or together with any other Repo"table Event with 
respect to the same or another Plan, has a reasonable 
possibil.: c ·; of resulting in liability of the Company or any 
Subsidiary to the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation in an 
aggregatl• i:lmount exceeding $5, 000, 000, a !Jtatement of the 
1;hief financial officer or the chief accounting officer of 

. the Company setting forth details as to such Reportabl:! 
Event and the action which the Company proposes to take with 
respect thereto, together with a copy of the notice of such 
Reportable Event given to the Pension Benefit Guaranty 
Corporation if any notice is required to be given to said 
Corporation, and (ii) promptly after receipt thereof, a copy 
of any notice the Company or any Subsidiary may receive from 
the P<!nsion Benefit Guaranty Corporation relating to the 
intention of said Corporation to terminate any Plan or 
Plans, or to appoint a trustee to administer any Plan or 
Plans. 

SECTION 5.08. Maintaininq Records: Access to 
Properties and Inspections. Maintain financial records in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
and, upon reasonable notice, at all reasonabie times, permit 
any authorized representative designated by .;:·~ Agent to 
visit and inspe<:t the properties of the Company and of any 
Subsidiary and permit any authorized representative desig­
nated by any Bank to discuss the affairs, finances and 
condition of the Company and the Subsidiaries with the 
Company's chief financial officer and chief accounting 
officer and such other officers as the Company shall deem 
appropriate. 

VI. NEGATIVE COVENANTS 

The C<Jmpany covenants and agrees with each Bank 
that, so long as this Agreement shall remain in effect or 
the principal of or interest on any Note, any Commitment Fee 
or any other e~pense or amount payable hereunder shall be 
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unpaid, unless the Required Banks shall otherwise consent in 
writing, it will not, and it will not cause or permit any 
Subsidiary to, either directly or indirectly: 

SECTION 6.01. Liens. Incur, create, assume or 
permit to exist any mortgage, pledge, security interest, 
lien, charge or other encumbrance of any nature whatsoever, 
including conditional sale or other title retention agree­
ments (co11 .. ,;L.ively, "liens") on any of its property or 
assets, whet.her owned at the date hereof or hereafter 
acquired, o• dSSign or convey any rights to or security 
interests in any future revenues, except: 

(a) liens incurred and pledges and deposits made 
in the ordinary course of business in connection with 
workmen's compensation, unemployment insurance, old-age 
pensions and other social security benefits; 

(b) liens securing the performance of bids, 
tenders, leases, contracts (other than for the repay­
ment of borro~ed money), statutory obligations, surety, 
customs and appeal bonds and other obligations of like 
nature, incurred as an incident to and in the ordinary 
course of business; 

(c) liens imposed by law, such as carriers', 
warehousemen's, mechanics', materialmen's and vendors' 
liens, incurred in good faith in the ordinary course of 
business and securing obligations which are not yet due 
·or which are being contested in good faith by appro­
priate proceedings; 

((3) liens securing the payment of taxes, assess­
ments and governmental charges or levies, either 
(i) not delinquent or (ii) being contested in good 
faith by appropriat:'e legal or adminis.trativP proceed­
ings and as to which the Company or a Subsidiary, as 
the case may be, shall have set aside on its books 
adequate reserves; 

(e) zoning restrictions, easements, licenses, 
reservations, provisione, covenants, conditions, 
wai~2rs, restrictions on the use of property or minor 
irregularities of title (and with respect to leasehold 
interests, mortgages, obligations, liens and other 
encumbrances incurred, created, assumed or permitted to 
exist and arising by, through or under or asserted by a 
landlord or owner of the leased property, with or 
without consent of the lessee), none of which 
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materially impairs the use of any parcel of property 
material to the operation of the business of the 
Company or any Subsidiary or the value of such property 
for the purpose of such business; 

(f) liens upon any property acquired, constructed 
or improved by the Company or any Subsidiary which are 
crea~ed or incu,r.red contemporaneously with or within 
90 days ai'P: such acquisition, construction or 
improvemen: 1.0 secure or provide for the payment of any 
part of th< purchase price of such property or the cost 
of such construction or improvement (but no other 
amounts); provided that any such mortgage, lien or 
security interest"°shall not apply to any other property 
of the Company or any Subsidiary; 

(g) liens on property existing at the time such 
property is acquired by the Company or a Subsidiary, 
and liens on property of a Subsidiary existing at the 
time it becomes a Subsidiary: provided, in each case, 
that such liens were not created in contemplation of 
the acquisition by the Company or such Subsidiary of 
such property or the acquisition by the Company of such 
Subsidiary; 

(h) liens on the property or assets of any Subsid­
iary in favor of the Company or another Subsidiary; 

(i) liens existing on the date of this Agreement 
and disclosed in the financial statements referred to 
in Section 3.05 or the notes thereto; 

(j) extensions, renewals and replacements of liens 
referred to in paragraphs (a) through (i) of this 
Section 6.01; provided that any such extension, renewal 
or replacement lien shall be limited to the property or 
assets covered by the lien extended, renewed or 
replaced and that the obligations secured by any such 
extension, renewal or replacement lien shall be in an 
amount not greater than the amount of the obligations 
secured by the lien extended, renewed or replaced; and 

(k) other liens securing obligations the·aggregate 
amount of which, together with the amount of all 
Attributable Debt of the Company and the Subsidiaries 
in respect of Sale and Leaseback Transactions, does not 
at any time exceed 10\ of Consolidated Net Worth. 
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SECTION 6.02. Sale and Leaseback Transactions. 
Enter into any arrangement, directly or indirectly, with any 
person whereby the Company or any Subsidiary shall sell or 
transfer any property, real o~ personal, and used or useful 
in its business, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, 
and thereafter rent or lease such property or other property 
which the Company or such Subsidiary intends to use for 
substantially the same purpose or purposes as the property 
being sold or tra azferred (any such arrangement being called 
a "Sale and LeaseJack Transaction"), without the prior 
written consent o: ~he Required Banks'; provided that the 
Company and the Subsidiaries may enter into Sale and Lease­
back Transactions the Attributable Debt with respect to 
which does not in the aggregate at any time exceed 10\ of 
Consolidated Net Worth. 

SECTION 6.03. Consolidations, Mergers and Sales 
of Assets. Merge with or into or consolidate with any other 
person or sell, lease, transfer or assign to any person or 
otherwise dispose of (~hether in one transaction or a series 
of transactions) all or substantially all its assets (whe­
ther now owned or hereafter acquired), except that so long 
as immediately thereafter and after giving effect thereto no 
Event of Default, and no event or conditi1;m which with the 
giving of notice or lapse of time or both would constitute 
an Event of Default, has occurred and is continuing (a) the 
Company and the Subsidiaries may dispose of any properties 
and assets required to be disposed of under the Memorandum 
Opinion and Order dated November 25, 1985, of the Federal 
Communications Commission approving the acquisition by the 
Company of control of ABC and (b) any Subsidiary may merge 
into, or sell, lease, transfer or assign all or substan­
tially all its assets to, the Company or a direct or 
indirect wholly owned Subsidiary, and may merge with or into 
or consolidate with any other person if the surviving 
corporation in such merger or consolidation shall be a 
direct or indirect wholly owned Subsidiary; provided, 
however, that no Borrowing Subsidiary may merge into or 
consolidate with, or sell, lease, transfer or assign all or 
substantially all its assets, other than pursuant to 
clause (a) above, to, any person unless such person, or, in 
the event of a merger or consolidation, the surviving 
entity, shall assume all tne obligations of such Borrowing 
Subsidiary under this Agreement and the Notes delivered by 
it by an instrument in writing satisfactory to the Agent. 

SECTION 6.04. Consolidated Net Worth. Permit 
Consolidated Net Worth to be less at any time than (a) dur­
ing the fiscal year ending December 31, 1986, $1,400,000,000 

,, 
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and (b} during each subsequent fiscal year, an amount equal 
to (i} the Consolidated Net Worth required to be maintained 
under this Section during the immediately preceding fiscal 
year plus (ii} 33\ of Consolidated Net Income, if positive, 
for such immediately preceding fiscal year. 

SECTION 6.05. Fiscal Year. Change its fiscal 
year to end on any date other than the Sunday closest to 
December 31. 

VII. EVENTS OF DEFAULT 

In case of the happening of any of the following 
events (herein called Events of Default}: 

(a} any representation or warranty made or deemed 
made in or in connection with t.his Agreement or the 
Notes or the borrowings hereundt.'r or in any report, 
certificate, financial statement or other instrument 
furnished in connection with this Agreement or the 
execution and delivery of the Notes or the borrowings 
hereunder shall prove to have been false or misleading 
in any material respect when made; 

(b) default shall be made in the payment of any 
principal of any Note when and as the same shall become 
due and payable, whether at the due date thereof or at 
a date fixed for prepayment thereof or by acceleration 
thereof or otherwise; 

(c) default shall be made in the payment of any 
interest on any Note or any Commitment Fee or any other 
amount (other than an amount r.eferred to in (b} above} 
due under this Agreement, when and as the same shall 
become due and payable, and such default shall continue 
for a period of 10 days; 

(d) default shall be made in the due observance or 
performance of any other covenant, condition or agree­
ment to be observed or performed on the part of the 
Company or any Borrowing Subsidiary pursuant to the 
terms of this Agreement and, in the case of any cove­
nant, condition or agreement contained in Article V 
(other than Section 5.01 or 5.06), such default shall 
continue for a period of 10 days after written or 
telegraphic notice thereof from any Bank to the Com­
pany; 
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(e) the Company or any Subsidiary shall (i) volun­
tarily commence any proceeding or file any petition 
seeking relief under Title 11 of the United States Code 
or any other Federal or state bankruptcy, insolvency, 
liquidation or similar law, (ii! consent to the insti­
tution of, or fail to contravene in a timely and appro­
priate manner, any such proceeding or the filing of any 
such petition, (iii) apply for or consent to the 
appointment of a r?.c.:-iver, trustee, custodian, seques­
trator or similar )Fficial for.tha Company or such 
Subsidiary or for ~ substantial part of its property or 
assets, (iv) file an answer admitting the material 
allegacions of a ·petition filed against it in any such 
proceeding, (v) make a general assignment for the 
benefit of creditors, (vi) become unable, admit in 
writing its inability or fail generally to pay its 
debts as they become due or (vii) take corporate action 
for the purpose of effecting any of the foregoing; 

(f) an involuntary proceeding shall be commenced 
or an involuntary petition shall be filed in a court of 
competent jurisdiction seeking (i) relief in respect of 
the Company or any Subsidiary, or of a substantial part 
of the property or assets of the Company or any Subsid­
iary, under Title 11 of the United States Cod'a or any 
other Federal or state ban:'.i:uptcy, insolvency, receiv­
ership or similar law, (ii) the appointment of a 
receiver, trustee, custodian, sequestrator or similar 
official for the Company or any Subsi.diary or for a 
substantial part of the property of the Company or any 
Subsidiary or (iii) the winding-up or liquidation of 
the Company or any Subsidiary; and such proceeding or 
petition shall continue undismissed for 60 days or an 
order or decree approving or ordering any of the 
foregoing shall continue unstayed and in effect for 
30 days; 

(g) default shall be made with respect to any 
Indebtedness of the Company or any Subsidiary if the 
effect of any such default shall be to accelerate, or 
to permit the holder or obligee of any Indebtedness (or 
any trustee on behalf of such holder or obligee) to 
accelerate (with or without notice or lapse of time or 
both), the maturity of Indebtedness in an aggregate 
amount in excess of $5,000,000; or any payment of 
principal or interest, regardless of amount, on any 
Indebtedness of the Company or a Subsidiary in an 
aggregate principal amount in excess of $5,000,000, 
shall not be paid when due, whether at maturity, by 

. 



acceleration or otherwise (after giving effect to any 
period of grace specified in the instrument evidencing 
or governing such Indebtedness); 

(h) a Reportable Event or Reportable Events shall 
have occurred with respect to any Plan or Plans that 
reasonabl)' could be expected to result in liability of 
the Company or any Subsidiary to the Pension Benefit 
Guaranty Corporation ;.,, an aggregate amount in excess 
of $5,000,000 and wit1ir. 30 days after the reporting of 
such Reportable Event "'" Reportable Events to the Banks 
the Agent shall have notified the Company in writing 
that (i) i.t has determined that on the basis of such 
Reportable Event er Reportable Events there are reason­
able grounds for termination of the Plan by the Pension 
Benefit Guaranty Corporation or for the appointment by 
the appropriate United States District. Court of a 
trustee to administer such Plan and (ii) as a result of 
such determination, an Event of Default exists here­
under; or the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation 
shall have instituted proceedings to terminate any Plan 
or Plans, or a trustee shall have been appointed by a 
United States District Court to administer any Plan or 
Plans, with vested unfunded liabilities aggregating in 
excess of $5,000,000; or 

(i) a final judgment for the payment of money in 
excess of $5,000,000 shall be rendered by a court or 
other tribunal against the Company or any Subsidiary 
and shall remain undischarged for a period of 45 
consecutive days during which execution of such judg­
ment shall not have been stayed effectively; 

then, and in any such event (other than an event with 
respect to a Borrower described in paragraph (e) or (f) 
above), and at any time thereafter during the continuance of 
such event, the Agent may, and at the request of the 
Required Banks shall, by written or telegraphic notice to 
the Company, take either or both of the following actions at 
the same or different times: (i) terminate forthwith the 
Commitments of the Banks hereunder and (ii) declare the 
Notes then outstanding to be forthwith due and payable, 
whereupon the principal of the Notes, together with accrued 
interest thereon and any unpaid accrued Commitment Fees and 
all other liabilities of the Borrowers accrued hereunder, 
shall become forthwith due and payable both as to principal 
and interest, without presentment, demand, protest or any 
other notice of any kind, all of which are hereby expressly 
waived by the Borrowers, anything c~ntained herein or in any 
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Note to the contrary notwithstanding; and in any event with 
respect to a Borrower described in paragraph (e) or (f) 
above, the Commitments of the Banks shall automatically 
terminate and the Notes shall automatically become due and 
payable, both as to principal and interest, without present­
ment, demand, protest or other notice of any kind, all of 
which are hereby expressly waived by the Borrowers, anything 
contained herein or in any Note to the contrary notwith­
standing. 

VIII. THE AGENT 

In order to expedite the various transactions con­
templated by this Agreement, Chemical Bank is hereby 
appointed to act as Agent on behalf of the Banks. Each of 
the Banks hereby irrevocably authorizes and directs the 
Agent to take such action on behalf of such Bank under the 
terms and provisions of this Agreement and to exercise such 
powers hereunder a:s are specifically delegated to or 
required of the Agent by the terrns and provisions hereof, 
together with such powers as are reasonably incidental 
thereto. The Agent is hereby expressly authorized on behalf 
of the Banks, without hereby limiting any implied authority, 
(a) to receive on behalf of each of the Banks any payment of 
principal of or interest on the Notes outstanding hereunder 
and all other amounts accrued hereunder paid to the Agent, 
and promptly to distribute to each Bank its proper share of 
all payments so received; (b) to give notice within a 
reasonable time on behalf of each of the Banks to the 
Company of any Event of Default specified in this Agreement 
of which the Agent has ~ctual knowledge acquired in connec­
tion with its agency hereunder; and (c) to distribute to 
each Bank copies of all notices, agreements and other 
m3terial as provided for in this Agreement as received by 
such Agent. 

Neither the Agent nor any of its directors, 
officers, employees or agents shall be liable as such for 
any action taken or omitted by any of them hereunder except 
for its or his own gross negligence or wilful misconduct, or 
be responsible for any statement, warranty or representation 
herein or the contents of any document delivered in connec­
tion herewith or be required to ascertain or to make any 
inquiry concerning the performance or observance by any 
Borrower of any of the terms, conditions, covenants or 
agreements of this Agreement. The Agent shall not be 
responsible to the Banks for the due execution, genuineness, 
validity, enforceability or effectiveness of this Agreement, 
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the Notes or any other instrument to which reference is made 
herein. The Agent may deem and treat the payee of any Note 
as the owner thereof for all purposes hereof until it shall 
have received from the payee of such Note notice, given as 
provided herein, of the transfer thereof. The Agent shall 
in all cases be fully protected in acting, or refraining 
from acting, in accordance with written instructions signed 
by the Required Banks, and, except as otherwise specifically 
p~ovided herein, such instructic .. ~ and any action taken or 
failure to act pursuant thereto sha.11 be binding on all the 
Banks. The Agent shall, in the ~Paence of knowledge to the 
contrary, be entitled to rely on any paper or document 
believed by it in good faith to be genuine and correct and 
to have been signed or sent by the proper person or perso11s. 
Neither the Agent nor any of its directors, officers, 
employees or agents shall have any responsibility to any 
Borrower on account of the failure or delay in performance 
or breach by any Bank of any of its obligations hereunder or 
to any Bank on account of the failure of or delay i~ perfor­
mance or breach by any other Bank or any Borrower of any of 
their respective obligations hereunder or in connection 
herewith. The Agent may execute any and all duties here­
under by or through agents or employees and shall be enti­
tled to advice of legal counsel selected by it with respect 
to all matters arising hereunder and shall not be liable for 
any action taken or suffered in good faith by it in accor­
dance with the advice of such counsel. 

With respect to the Loans made by it hereunder and 
the Notes issued to it, the Agent in its individual capacity 
and not as an Agent shall have the same rights and powers 
hereunder and under any other agreement executed in connec­
tior, herewith as any other Bank and may exercise the same as 
though it were not an Agent, and the Agent and its affili­
ates may accept deposits from, lend money to and generally 
engage in any kind of business with the Company or any 
Subsidiary or other affiliate thereof as if it were not the 
Agent. 

Each Bank agrees (i) to reimburse the Agent in the 
amount of such Bank's pro rata share (based on its Commit­
ment hereunder) of any expenses incurred for the benefit of 
the Banks by the Agent, including counsel fees and compen­
sation of agents and employees paid for services rendered on 
behalf of the Banks, not reimbursed by any Borrower and 
(ii) to indemnify and hold harmless the Agent and any of its 
directors, officers, employees or agents, on demand, in the 
amount of its pro rata share, from and against any and all 
liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, 
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actions, judgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements 
of any kind or nature whatsoever which may be imposed on, 
incurred by or asserted against it in its capacity as the 
Agent or ~ny of them in any way relating to or arising out 
of this Agreement or any action taken or omitted by it or 
any of them under this Agreement, to the extent not reim­
bursed by any Borrower, provided that no Bank shall be 
liable to the Agent for any portion of such liabilities, 
obligations, losses, damages, penal!: i'!s, actions, judgments, 
suits, costs, expenses or disbursements resulting from the 
gross negligence or wilful misconduct of the Agent or any of 
its directors, officers, employees or agents. 

Each Bank acknowledges that it has, independently 
and without reliance upon the Agent or any other Bank and 
based on such documents and information as it has deemed 
appropriate, made its own credit analysis and decision to 
enter into this Agreement. Each Bank also acknowledges that 
it will, independently and without reliance upon the Agent 
or any other Bank and based on such documents and informa­
tion as it shall deem appropriate at the time, continue to 
make its own decisions in taking or not taking action under 
or based upon this Agreement, any related agreement or any 
document furnished hereunder. 

IX. GUARANTEE 

The Company unconditionally guarantees, as a 
primary obliger and not merely as a surety, the due and 
punctual payment of principal of and interest on each Note 
of a Borrowing Subsidiary, when and as due, whether at 
maturity, by acceleration, by notice of prepayment or 
otherwise, and all other monetary obligations of the Borrow­
ing Subsidiaries to the Banks undex this Agreement (collec­
tively, the "Obligations''). The Company further agrees that 
the Obligations may be extended c~ renewed, in whole or in 
part, without notice or further assent from it, and that it 
will remain bound upon its guarantee notwithstanding any 
extension or renewal of any Obligation. 

The Company waives presentment to, demand of 
payment from and protest to the Borrowing Subsidiaries of 
any of the Obligations, and also waives notice of acceptance 
of its guarantee and notice of protest for nonpayment. The 
obligations of the Company under this Article IX shall not 
be affected by (a) the failure of any Bank to assert any 
claim or demand or to enforce any right or remedy against 
any Borrowing Subsidiary under the provisions of this 
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Agreement or otherwise; (b) any rescission, waiver, amend­
ment or modification of any of the terms or provisions of 
this Agreement, the Notes, any guarantee or any other 
agreement; (c) the release of ar.y security held by any Bank 
for the Obligations or any of them; or (d) tb2 failure of 
any Bank to exercise any riqnt or remedy against any other 
guarantor of the ObligationE'. 

; ·; 

The Company further agr"ees : :•.,t its guarantee 
constitutes a guarantee of payment whee. due and not of 
collection, an~ waives any right· to re~uire that any resort 
be had by any Bank to any security held for payment of the 
Obligations or to any balance of any deposit account or 
credit on the books of such Bank in favor of any Borrowing 
Subsidiary or any other person. 

The obligations of the Company under this Arti­
cle IX shall not be subject t~ any reduction, limitation, 
impairment or termination for any reason, i?1cluding, without 
limitation, any claim of waiver, release, 1Jurrender, altei:a­
tion or compromise, and shall not be subject to any defense 
or setoff, counte.i:claim, recoupment or termination whatso­
ever by reason of the invalidity, illegality or unenforce­
ability ·nf the Obligations or otherwise. Without limiting 
the generality of the foregoing, the obligations of the 
Company under this Article IX shall not be discharge,, or 
impaired or otherwise affected by the failure of any Bank to 
assert any claim or demand or to enforce any remedy under 
this Agreement, any Note, any guarantee or any. other agree­
ment, by any waiver or modification of any thereof, by any 
default, failure or delay, wilful or otherwise, in the 
performance of the Obligations, or by any other act or 
omissi,on which may or might in any manner or to any extent 
vary the risk of the Company or otherwise operate as a 
discharge of the Compa1'ly as a matter of law or equity. 

The Company further agrees that its guarantee 
shall continue to be effective or be reinstated, as the case 
may be, if at any time payment, or any part thereof, of 
principal of or interest on any Obligation (including, 
without limitation, any payment pursuant to this Guarantee) 
is rescinded or must otherwise be restored by any Bank upon 
the bankruptcy or reorganlzation of any Borrowing Subsidiary 
or otherwise. 

In furtherance af the foregoing and not in limita­
tion of any other right wh:ich any Bank may have at law or in 
equity against the Company py virtue hereof, upon the 
failure of any Borrowing Subsidiary to pay any Obligation 
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when and as the same shall become due, whether at maturity, 
by acceleration, after notice of prepayment or otherwise, 
the Company hereby promises to and will, upon ~eceipt of 
written demand by any Bank, forthwith pay, or cause to be 
paid, to the Agent for distribution to the Banks in cash the 
amount of such unpaid Obligations, and thereupon each Bank 
shall, in a reasonable manner, assigr.. the amount of the 
Obligations owed to it and paid by the Company pursuant to 
this guarantee to the Company, such assig· ... :-nt to be ~ro 
tanto to the eixtent to which the Obligatic•ns in question 
were discharged by the Comtiany, or make Sl•<":1 other disposi­
tion thereof as the Company shall direct (all wit.bout 
recourse to such Bank and without any representation or 
warranty by such Bank). 

Upon payment by the Company of any sums to a Bank 
as provided above, all rights of the Company agai.,st any 
Borrowing Subsidi'ary arising as a result thereof by·;;·.ay of 
right of subrogation or otherwise shall in all respects be 
subordinated and junior in right of pay111ent to the prior 
indefeasible payment in full of all the Obligations to the 
Banks. 

X. MISCELLANEOUS 

SECTION 10.01. Notices. Notices and other com­
munications provided for herein shall be in writing and 
shall be delivered or mailed (or in the case of telegraphic 
communication, delivered by telex, graphic scanning or other 
telegraphic communications equipment) addressed, 

(a) if to the Company, at 24 East 5lst Street, New 
York, N.Y. 10022, Attention of Ronald J. Doerfler, 
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
(Telecopy No.: (212) 308-1391), with a copy to Hall, 
Dickler, Lawler, Kent & Friedman, 460 Park Avenue, New 
York, N.Y. 10022, Attention of Edmund S. Wartels, ~sq. 
(Tele copy No.: ( 212) 935-3121 or ( 212) 751-5020): 
[include telex and telecopy numbers): 

(b) if to the Agent, to it at 277 Park Avenue, New 
York, N.Y. 10172, to the attention of Robert C. Ruocco, 
Banking & Corporate Finance, and Stephen M. reeney, 
Syndications, and at 52 Broadway (4th Floor), New York, 
N.Y. 10004, to the attention of Rufus Kearney, Loan 
Department (Telex: NY:423623 Answerback: CSYND) 
(Telecopy No.: (212) 319-0720 Confirm: James B. Lee, 
(212) 310-4300): and 
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(c) if to a Bank, at its address set forth in 
Section 2.01 hereof. 
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All notices and other communications given to any party 
hereto in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement 
shall be deemed to have been given on the date of receipt if 
hand delivered or three days after being sent by registered 
or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt 
requested, if by mail, or upon receipt if by ·"y telegraphic 
or telex communications equipment, in eac!l casP. addressed to 
such party as provided in this Section .or in accordance with 
the .latest unrevoked direction from such party. 

SECTION 10.02. Survival of Agreement. All cove­
nants, agreements, representations and war;.anties made by 
the Borrowers herein and in the certificates or other 
instruments prepared or delivered in connection with this 
Agreement shall be considered to have been relied upon by 
the Banks and shall survive the making by the Banks of the 
Loans and the execution and delivery to the Banks of the 
Notes evidencing such Loans and shall continue in full force 
and effect as long as the principal of or any accrued 
interest on any Note or any Commitment Fee or any other fee 
or amount payable under the Notes or this Agreement is 
outstanding and unpaid and so long as the Commitments have 
not been terminated. 

SECTION 10. 03. Binding EffE:Ct. This Agreement 
shall become effective when it shall have been executed by 
the Company and the Agent and when the Agent shall have been 
notified by each Bank that such Bank has executed it and 
thereafter shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 
th• Borrowers, the Agent and each Bank and their respective 
successorE and assigns, except that no Borrower shall have 
the right to assign its rights hereunder or any interest 
herein without the prior consent of all the Banks. 

SECTION 10.04. Assignments and Participations. 
(a) Each Bank may assign to one or more Eligible Assignees 
all or a portion of its interests, rights and obligations 
under this Agreement (including, without limitation, all or 
a portion of its Commitment and the same portion of the 
Loans at the time owing to it); provided, however, that 
(i) the Company shall have given its prior written cons~nt, 
which shall not be unreasonably withheld, (ii) each such 
assignment shall be of a constant, and not a var7ing 
percentage of all the assigning Bank's rights ~1ild obliga­
tions under this Agreement, (iii) the amount of the Commit­
ment of the assigning Bank subject to each suc:h assignment 
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(determined as of the date the Assignment and Acceptance 
with respect to such assignment is delivered to the Agent) 
shall in no event be less than the lesser of (A) $25,000,000 
and ( B) the' tc.tal CollUlli tment of such assigning Bank (as set 
forth in Section 2.01 and as may be adjusted from time to 
time pursuant to Section 2.08), and shall be in an amount 
which is an integral multiple of $1,000,000, and (iv) the 
parties to each such assignment shall execute and deliver to 
the Agent, for its acceptance and recording in ·h; Register, 
an Assignment and Acceptance, together with a P"·'•' essing and 
recordation fee of $2,000. Upon such execution, delivery, 
acceptance and recording, from and after the effective date 
specified in each Assignment and Acceptance, which effective 
date shall be at least five Business Days after the execu­
tion thereof, (x) the assignee thereunder shall be a party 
hereto and, to the extent provided in such Assignment and 
Acceptance, have the rights and obligations of a Bank 
hereunder and (y) the Bank assignor thereunder shall, to the 
extent provided in such Assignment and Acceptance, relin­
quish its rights (other than under Section 10.05) and be 
released from its obligations under this Agreement (and, in 
the case of an Assignment and Acceptance covering all or the 
remaining portion of an assigning Bank's rights and obliga­
tions under this Agreement, such Bank shall cease to be a 
party hereto). 

(b) By executing and delivering an Assignment and 
Acceptance, the Bank assignor thereunder and the assignee 
thereunder confirm to and agree with each other and the 
other parties hereto as follows: (i) other than the repre­
sentation and warranty that it is the legal and beneficial 
owner of the interest being assigned thereby free and clear 
of any adverse claim, such Bank assignor makes no represen­
tation or warranty and assumes no responsibility with 
respect to any statements, warranties or representations 
made in or in connection with this Agreement or the execu­
tion, legality, validity, enforceability, genuineness, 
sufficiency or value of this Agreement or any other instru­
ment or document furnished pursuant hereto; (ii) such Bank 
assignor makes no representation or warranty and assumes no 
responsibility with respect to the financial condition of 
any of the Borrowers or the performance or ob~ervance by any 
of the Borrowers of any of their respective obligations 
ul)der this Agreement or any other instrument or document 
furnished pursuant hereto; (iii) such assignee confirms that 
it has received a copy of this Agreement, together with 
copies of the financial statements referred to in 
Section 5.05 ano such other documents and information as it 
has deemed appropriate to make its own credit analysis and 



decision to enter into such Assignment and Acceptance; 
(iv) such assignee will, igdependently and without reliance 
upon the Agent, such Bank' ·1ssignor or any other Bank and 
based on such documents a~~ information as it shall deem 
appropriate at the time, ~ntinue to make its own credit 
decisions in taking or not taking action under this 
Agreement; (v) such assignee confirms that it is an Eligible 
Assignee; (vi) except as such assignee shall have previously 
disclosed to the Company, such assignee is not awe: ·• of any 
facts that in its reasonable judgment would requir' 't to 
notify the Company pursuant to the first sentence ,~·" para­
graph (e) of Section 2.12; (vii) such assignee appoints and 
authorizes the Agent to take such action as agent on its 
behalf and to exercise such powers under this Agreement as 
are delegated to the Agent by the terms hereof, together 
with such powers as are reasonably incidental thereto; and 
(viii) such assignee agrees that it will perform in accor­
dance with their term~ ~~~ of the obligations which by the 
terms of this Agreement are required to be performed by it 
as a Bank. 

(c) The Agent shall maintain at its offices at 
52 Broadway, New York, N.Y. a copy of each Assignment and 
Acceptance delivered to it and a register for the recorda­
tion of the names and addresses of the Banks and the Commit­
ment of, and principal amount of the Loans owing to, each 
Bank from time to time (the "Register"). The entries in the 
Register shall be conclusive, in the absence of manifest 
error, and the Borrowers, the Agent and the Banks may treat 
each person whose name is recorded in the Register as a Bank 
hereunder for all purposes of this Agreement. The Register 
shall be available for inspection by the Company or any Bank 
at any reasonable time and from time to time upon reasonable 
prior notice. 

(d) Upon its receipt of an Assignment and Accept­
ance executed by an assigning Bank and an Eligible Assignee, 
the Agent shall, if such Assignment and Acceptance has been 
completed and is in the form of Exhibit F hereto, and has 
been consented to by the Company (i) accept such Assignment 
and Acceptance, (ii) record the information contained 
therein in the. Register and (iii) give prompt notice thereof 
to the Bank and the appropriate Borrower. The Agent shall 
provide the Company, within 100 days after the end of each 
fiscal year, and within 50 days after the end of the first 
three quarters of each fiscal year, of the Company, a list, 
current as of the date delivered, of all Banks that as of 
such date are parties hereto (including Banks that as of 
such date shall have become parties hereto pursuant to this 
Section) upon which list the Company shall rely in complying 
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with its obligations under Section 5.05 to deliver documents 
to the Banks. 

(e) Each Bank may without the consent of any 
Borrower sell participations to one or more banks or other 
entities in all or a portion of its rights and obligations 
under this Agreement (including,. without limitation, all or 
a portion of its Commitment and tnc 1.oans owing to it) i 
Jtri:-vided, however, that (i) such llank's obligations ··~r!er 
this Agreement shall remain unchanged, (ii) such Bani: enall 
remain solely responsible to the other parties heretc, for 
the performance of such obligationa and (iii) the Borrowers, 
the Agent and the other Banks shall continue to deal solely 
and directly with such Bank in connection with such Bank's 
rights and obligations under this Agreement. 

(f) Any Bank may, in connection with any assign­
ment or participation or proposed assignment or participa­
tion pursuant to this Section 10.04, disclose to the 
assignee or participant or proposed assignee or participant, 
any information relating to the Company furnished to such 
Bank by or on behalf of the Companyi provided that prior to 
any such disclosure, each such assignee or participant or 
proposed assignee or participant shall agree to preserve the 
confidentiality of any confidential information relating to 
the Company received from such Bank in accordance with its 
respective customary procedures with respect to confidential 
information. 

SECTION 10.05. Exeenses of the Banksi IndemnitY.:. 
(a) The Borrowers agree, jointly and severally, to pay all 
out-of-pocket expenses reasonably incurred by the Agent in 
connection with the preparation of this Agreement and the 
Notes or with any amendments, modifications or waivers of 
the provisions hereof (whether or not the transactions 
hereb::r· contemplated shall be consummated) or reasonably 
incurred by the Agent or any Bank in connection with the 
enforcement or protection of their rights in i::onnection with 
this Agreement or with the Loans made or the Notes issued 
hereunder, including, but not limited to, the rP.asonable 
fees and disbursements of Cravath, Swaine & Moore, special 
counsel for the Banks, and, in connection with such enforce­
ment or protection, the reasonable fees and disbursements of 
other counsel for any Bank. The Company further agrees that 
it shall indemnify the Banks from and hold them harmless 
against any documentary taxes, assessments or charges made 
by any governmental authority t- :' reason of the execution and 
delivery of this Agreement or any of the Notes. 
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(b) The Borrowers agree, jointly at;d severally, 
to indemnify the Banks and their directors, oificers, 
employees and agents against, and to hold the Banks and such 
persons harmless from, any and all losses, claimi;, damages, 
liabilities and related expenses, including couni:el feG.:; and 
expenses, incurred by or asserted against the Banks or any 
such persons arising out of, in any way connected with, or 
as a result of (i) the M~rger or the consummation of the 
tra.nsactions conte!llplated by the Merger Agreement, (ii) ::>te 
use of any of the proceeds of the r.oans, in conne•::tion IHth 
the Merger er. otherwise, (iii) the acquisition or owner:<!·::.p 
of MIC, (iv) this Agreement and the other documents contem­
plated hereby, the performance by the parties hereto and 
thereto of their. respective oblir;:.;tions hereunder and 
thereunder (including but not l.'<~1ited to the making of the 
Commitments) and consummation of the transactions contem­
plated hereby and thereby, ot (b) any claim, litigation, 
investigation or proceedings relating to any of the fore~ 
going, whether or not any Bank or any such person is a party 
thE!reto; provided that such indemnity shall not, as to any 
Bank, apply to any such losses, claims, damages, liabilities 
or related expenses arising from (A) any unexcused breach by 
such B<1nk of any of its obligations under this Agreement or 
(B) the gross negligence or wilful misconduct of such Bank. 

(c) The provisions of this Section 10.05 shall 
remain operative and in full force and effect regardless of 
the expiration of the term of this Agreement, the consumma­
tion of the transactions contemplated hereby, the repayment 
of any of the Loans, the invalidity or unenforceability of 
any term or provision of this Agreement or any Note, or any 
investigation made by or on behalf of any Bank. All amounts 
due under this Section 10.05 shall be payable on written 
demand therefor. 

SECTION 10.06. Right of Setoff. If an Event of 
Default shall have occurred and be continuing and any Bank 
shall have requested the Agent to declare the Notes immedi­
ately due and payable pursuant to Article VII, each Bank is 
hereby authorized at any time and from time to time, to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, to set off and apply any 
and all deposits (general or special, time or demand, 
provisional or final) at any time held and other indebted­
ness at any time owing by such Bank to or for the credi~ or 
the account of any Borrower against any of and all the 
obligations of such Borrower (and, in the case of the 
Company, any Borrowing Subsidiary) now or hereafter existing 
under this Agreement and the Note held by such Bank, irn~s­
pective of whether or not such Bank shall have made any 
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demand under this Agreement.or such Note and although such 
obligations may be unmatured. Each Bank agrees promptly to 
notify the Company Jfter any such setoff and application_ 
made by such Bank, but the failure to give such notice shall 
not affect the 7alidity of such setoff and application. The 
rights of each Dank under this Section are in addition to 
other rights and remedies (including, without limitation, 
other rights-of.setoff) which· such Bank may have. 

SECTION 10.07. Applicable Law. This Agreement 
and the Notes shall be construed in accordance with and 
governed by the laws of the State of New York. 

SEC,T.J.ON 10. OB. Payments on Business Days. Should 
the principal of or interest on the Notes or any Commitment 
Fee or any otller fee or amount payable hereunder become due 
and payable on other than a Business Day, payment in respect 
thereof may be made on the next succeeding Business Day, and 
such extension o[ time shall in such case be included in 
computing interest, if any, in connection with such payment. 

SECTION 10.09. Waivers; 'Amendmrmts. (a) No 
failure or de:lay of any Bank in exerc1s1ng any power or 
right hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall 
any single or partial exercise of any such right or power, 
or any abandonment or discontinuanc.e of steps to enforce 
such a right or power, preclude any other or further e~er­
cise thereof or the exercise of any other ri~ht or power. 
The rights and remedies of the Banks hereunde1• are cumula­
·tive and not exclusive of any rights or remedies which they 
would otherwise have. No waiver of any provision of this 
Agreement or the Notes or consent to any departure by any 
Borrower therefrom shall in any event be effective unless 
the same shall be authorized as provided in paragraph (b) 
below, and then such waiver or consent shall be effective 
only in the specific instance and for the purpose for which 
given. No notice or demand on any Borrower in any case. 
shall entitle such Borrower to any other or further notice 
or demand in similar or other circumstances. Each holder of 
any of the Notes shall be bound by any amendment, modifica­
tion, waiver or consent authorized as provided herein, 
whether or not such Note shall have been marked to indicate 
such amendment, modification, waiver or consent. 

(b) Neither this Agreement nor any provision 
hereof may be waived, amended or modified except pursuant to 
an agreement or ag~eements in writing entered into by the 
Company and the Required Banks (except that the Cominitments 
may be adjusted as provided in Section 2.08); provided, 



u.) 

hc·,1ever, that no such agreei:nent shall ( i) change the pr inci­
pal amount of, or e'Xtend or advance the maturity of o.r any 
date for the paymeot of any princip;,,J. of or interest on, any 
Note, or waive or tixcuse any such payment or any part 
thereof, or -change ~he rate of intere~t on any Note, without 
the written consent of each holder affected th<!reby, 
(ii) change the Co1111ilitment of any Bank without the written 
consent, of such Bank, or change the Cornrni tment Fees without 
the written consent of each Bank, or (iii) amend er modify 
the provisions of this Section, Sec<_ions 2.09 through 2.16, 
Section 10.03 and 10.04 o.r Article IX or the definition of 
the "Required Banks", without the written consent of each 
Bank; and provided further that no r,uch agretment shall 
amend, modify or otherwise affect the rights or duties of 
the Agent hereu~der without the written consent of the 
Agent. Each Bank and holder of any Note shall be bound by 
any mvdif ication or amendment authorized by this Section 
regardless of whether its Notes shall be marked to make 
reference thereto, and any consent by any Bank or holder of 
a Note pursuant to this Section shall bind any person 
subsequently acquiring a Note from it, whether or not such 
Note shall be so marked. 

SECTION 10.10. Severability. In the event any 
one or more of the pr.'Jvisions contained in this Agreement or 
in th~ Notes should be held invalid, illegal or unenforce­
able in any respect, the validity; legality and enforce­
ability of the remaining pcovisions contained herein or 
therein sha~~ not in any w<.1y be affected or impr.;ired there­
by. The parties shall endeavor in good-faith negotiations 
to replace the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provisions 
with valid provisions the economic eff":.::·t· of which comes as 
close as possible to that of the invalid, illegal or unen­
forceable provisions. 

SECTION 10.11. Counterparts. This Agreement may 
be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall 
constitute an original but all of which when taken together 
shall constitute but one contract, and shall become effec­
tive as provided in Section 10.03. 

SECTION 10.12. He&dings. Article and Section 
headings and the Table of Contents used herein are for 
convenience of reference only and are not to affect the 
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. ------
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construction of, or to be taken into consideration in 
interpreting, this Agreement. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company, the Banks and the 
Agent have caused this Agreem~nt to ~e duly executed by 
their respective authorized office:a as of the day and year 
first above written. 

CAPITAL CITIES/ABC, INC., 

by 

Title: 

CHEMICAL BANK, individually and as 
Agent, 

by 

Title: 

THE BANK OF NEW YORK,. 

by 

Title: 

THE CHASE MANHATTAN BANK, N.A., 

by 

Title: 

MORGAN GUARANTY TRUST COMPANY OF 
NEW YORK, 

by 

Title: 

11111111n111111i~w11·111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111m11r.11 
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MORGAN GUARA~1TY TRUST COMPANY OF 
NEW YORK, <:;hannel Islands Branch, 

by 

Title: 

MANUFACTURERS HANOVER TRUST COM­
PANY, 

by 

Title:. 

BANK OF AMERICA NATIONAL TRUST AND 
SAVINGS ASSOCIATION, 

by 

Title: 

BANKERS TRUST COMPANY, 

by 

Titlei 

MARINE MIDLAND BANK, N.A., 

by 

Title: 

THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CHICAGO, 

by 

Title: 
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.., .., 

CONTINENTAL ILLINOIS NATIONAL BANK 
AND TRUST COMPANY OF CHICAGO, 

by 

Title: 

NATIONAL BANK OF DETROIT, 

by 

Title: 

SECURITY PACIFIC lllATIONAL B.!',NK 1 

by 

Title: 

THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF BOSTON, 

by 

Tttle: 

COM.MERCE BANK OF KANSAS CITY, 

by 

Title: 

UNITED MISSOURI BANK OF KANSAS 
CITY, N.A., 

by 

Title: 



Schedule 3.07 

Descriotion of Merger and of_ Ownership 
of ABC by the Company 
Following the Merger 

On the date of the Merger, Acquisition will be 

merged with and into ABC, which will be the surviving 

corpcoration in the Merger. The Company will own, directly 

or indirectly, all the issued and outstanding common stock 

of ABC, which will be the only stock of ABC issued and 

outstanding. Approximately 76% of such common stock will be 

owned by approximately 35 direct, wholly owned subsidiaries 

of ABC Holding Company, Inc., a direct, wholly owned subsid­

iary of the Company. Of the remaining ABC common stock, 

approximately 17% will be owned directly by the Company and 

approximatP.ly 7% will be owned directly by CC Texas Holding 

Co., Inc., a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. 



EXHIBIT A 

BORROWING SUBSIDIARY AGREEMENT dated as 
of , 19 , among CAPITAL 
CITIES/ABC, INC. (formerly Capital Cities_ 
Communications, Inc.), a New York corporation 
(the "Company"), [Name of Subsidiary], 
a corporation (the 
"Subsidiary"), and CHEMICAL BANK, ·a New York 
banking corporation, as agent (the "Agent") 
for the banks (the "Banks") party to the 
Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of 
January 3, 1986, as amended by a First 
Amendment dated as of June 30, 1987 (the 
"Credit Agreement"), among the Company, the 
Agent and the Bank.s. 

Under the Credit Agreemt:!!t, the Banks have agref!d, 
upon the terms and subject to the conditions therein set 
forth, to make revolving credit loans to the Company and t·o 
subsidiaries (as defined in the Credit Agreement) of the 
Company which execute and deliver to the Agent Borrowing 
Subsidiary Agreements in the form of this Agreement. The 
Company represents that the Subsidiary is a subsidiary (as 
so defined) of the Company. In consideration of being 
permitted to borrow under the Credit Agreement upon the 
terms and subject to the conditions set forth tb~rein, the 
Subsidiary agrees that from and after the date of this 
Agreement it will be, and will be liable for the observance 
and performance of all the obligations of, a Borrowing 
Subsidiary under the Credit Agreement, as the same may· be 
amended from time to time, to the same extent as if it had 
been one of the original parties to the Credit Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and; •. '.:1e Subsidiary 
have caused this Agreement to be duly execute( by their 
authorized officers as of the date first appearing above. 

CAPITAL CITIES/ABC, INC., 

by 



Accepted as of the date 
first appearing above: 

CHEMICAL BANK, as Agent, 

by 

2 

[Name of Subsidiary] 

by 



FORM OF COMPETITIVE BID REQUEST 

Chemical Bank, as Agent 
for the Banks parties 
to the Credit Agreement 
referred to below 
[Address] 
New York, .New York 
Attention: 

Dear Sirs: 

The undersigned, , a 

EXHIBIT B·-1 

[Date] 

corporation !the "Borrower"), refers to the 
Revolving Credit Agreement," dated as of January 3, 1986, as 
amended by the First Amendment dated as of June 30, 1987 
(the "Credit Agreement"), among Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. 
(formerly Capital Cities Communications, Inc.), the Banks 
named therein and Chemical Bank, as Agent for the Banks. 
Capitalized terms used herein and not defined shall have the 
meanings assigned to such terms in the Credit Agreement. 
The Borrower hereby gives you notice pursuant to Sec-
tion 2.02(a) of the Credit Agreement that it requests a 
Competitive Borrowing under the Credit Agreement, anq in 
that connection sets forth below the terms on which such 
Competitive Borrowing is requested to be made: 

(A) Date of Competitive Borrowing 

(B) Aggregate Principal Amount of 
Competitive Borrowing l/ 

(C) Interest Period 1/ 

1/ Not less than $50,000,000 and in integral multiples of 
$50,000,000. 

~/ Which shall end not later than the Maturity Date. 
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Upon acceptance of any or all of the Loans offered 
by Banks in response to this request, the Company shall be 
deemed to affirm as of such date the representations and 
warranties made in the Credit Agreement to the extent 
specified in Article IV thereof. 

Very truly yours, 

[Name of Borrower], 

By 

Title: [Responsible Officer] 



EXHIBIT B- . 

FORM OF STANDBY BORROWING REQUEST 

Chemical Bank, as Agent 
for the Banks parties 
to the Credit Agreement 
ref erred to below 
[Address) 
New York, New York 
Attention: 

Dear Sirs: 

The undersigned, , a 

[Date) 

corporation (the "Borrower"), refers to the 
Credit Agreement, dated as of January 3, 1986, as amended by 
the First Amendment dated as of June 30, 1987 (the "Credit 
Agreement"), among Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. (formerly 
Capital Cities Conununications, Inc.), the Banks named 
therein an6 Chemical Bank, as Agent for the Banks. Capital­
ized terms used herein and not defined shall have the 
meanings assigned to such terms in the Credit Agreement. 
The Bo:crower hereby gives you notice pursuant to Sec-
tion 2.03 of the Credit Agreement that it requests a Standby 
Borrowing under the Credit Agreement, and in that connection 
sets forth below the terms on which such Standby Borrowing 
is requested to be made: 

(A) Date of Standby Borrowing 

( B) Aggregate Principal Amount of 
Standby Borrowing 1/ 

( c) Interest rate basis ~/ 

( D) Interest Period J/ 

1/ Not less than $50,000,000 and in integral multiples of 
$50,000,000 (except in the case of Alternate Base Loans 
replacing a portion of a proposed Competitive Borrowing, as 
provided in paragraph (d) of Section 2.02). 

2/ Certificate of Deposit Loan, Eurodollar Loan or 
Alternate Base Loan. 

ll Which shall end not later than the Maturity Date. 
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Upon acceptance of any or all of the Loans offered 
by Banks in response to this request, the Company shall be 
deemed to affirm as of such date the representations and 
warranties made in the Credit Agreement to the extent 
specified in Article IV thereof. 

Very truly yours, 

[Name of Borrower), 

By 

Title: [Responsible Officer) 
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FORP. OF NOTICE OF COMPETITIVE BID REQUEST 

[Name of Bank] 
[Address] 
New York, New York 
Attention: 

Dear Sirs: 

EX:!IBIT C 

[Date] 

Reference is made to the Revolving Credit Agree­
ment, dated as of January 3, 1986, as amended by the First 
Amendment dated as of June 30, 1987 (the "Credit Agree­
ment"), among Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. (formerly Capital 
Cities Communications, Inc.), the Banks l1amed therein and 
Chemical Bank, as Agent for the Banks. Capitalized terms 
used herein and not defined shall have the meanings assigned 
to such terms in the Credit Agreement. , a 

corporation, made a Competitive Bid Request on 
, 19 pursuant to Section 2.02(a) of the Credit 

Agreement, and in that connection you are invited to submit 
a Competitive Bid by [Date] Your Competitive Bid 
must be received by the Agent not later than 9:30 a.m. New 
York time, one Business D;;iy before a proposed Competitive 
Borrowing. Your Competitive Bid must comply with Sec-
tion 2.02(b) of the Credit Agreement and the terms set forth 
below on which the Competitive Bid Request was made: 

(A) Date of Competitive Borrowing 

(B) Aggregate principal amouut of 
Competitive Borrowing 

(C) Interest Period 

Very truly yours, 

CHEMICAL BANK, as Agent for 
the Banks, 

By 

Title: 



FORM OF COMPETITIVE BID 

Chemical Bank, as Agent for the 
Banks parties to the Credit 
Agreement referred to below 
[Address] New York, New York 
Attention: 

Dear Sirs: 

BXHIBIT D 

[Date] 

The< undersigned, [Name of Bank], refers to the 
RE!vol v ing Credit Agreement, dated as of January 3, 1986, as 
amended· by the First. Amendment dated as of June 30, 1987 
(the "Credit Agreement"), among Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. 
(formerly Capital Cities Communications, Inc.), the Banks 
named therein and Chemical Bank, as Agent for the Banks. 
Capitalized terms used herein and not defined shall have the 
meanings assigned to such terms in the Credit Agreement. 
The undersigned hereby .makes [a Competitive Bid] [Competi­
tive Bids] pursuant to Section 2.02(b) of the Credit Agree­
ment, in response to the Competitive Bid Request made by 

, a corporation (the "Borrower"), on 
, 19 , and in that connection sets forth below the 

terms on which such [Competitive Bid is] [Competitive Bids 
are) made: 

Principal Amount!/ 

Bid(s) 

The undersigned hereby confirms that it is pre­
pared to extend credit to the Borrower upon acceptance by 
the Company of [this bid] [these bids] in accordance with 
Section 2.02(d) of the Credit Agreement. 

very truly yours, 

[NAME OF BANK] [ADDRESS], 

By 

Title: 

1/ Each bid must be in an amount of at least $5,000,000 
and in int~gral multiples of $1,000,000. The aggregate of 
the principal amounts of all bids specified by the 
undersigned may not exceed its unused individual Commitment. 



FORM OF COMPETITIVE NOTE 

$[insert amount of Bank's Commitment) 

EXHIBI'.; E-1 

New York, Ne•1 York 
[Date of Initial 

Borrowing) 

FOR VALUE'· RECEIVED, the undersigned, 
, a corporation (the "Borrower"), 

hereby promises to pay to the order of (the 
~sank"), at the office of Chemical Bank (the "Agent"), at 

, on (i) th£ last day of each 
Interest Period as defined i,n the Revolving Credit 
Agreement, dated as of January 3, 1986, as amended by the 
First Amendment dated as of June 30, 1987 (the "Credit 
Agreement"), among Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. (formerly 
Capit11l Citie.s Communications, Inc.), the Banks named 
there.in and chemical 'Bank, as Agent, the aggregate unpaid 
principal amount of all Competitive Loans made by the Bank 
to the Borrower pursuant to Sections 2.01 and 2.02 of the 
Credit Agreement to, which such Interest Period applies and 
(ii) on June 30, 1990 1 the lesser of the principal sum of 

Dol.lars ( $ ) .and the 
aggregate unpaid principal amount of all Competitive Loans 
made by the Bank to the Borrower .pursuant to Sections 2.01 
and 2.02 of the Credit Agreemenc, in lawful money of the 
Uni tad States of America in sar.1e day funds, and to pay 
interest from the date hereof;.on such principal amount from 
time to time outstanding, in like funds, at said office, at 
a rate or rates per annum and payable on such dates as 
determined pursuant to the Credit Agreement. 

The Borrower promises to pay interest, on demand, 
on any overdue principal and, to the extent permitted by 
law, overdu,P. interest from their due dates at a rate or 
rates detet~ined as set forth in the Credit Agreemect. 

The Borrower hereby waives diligence, prese,'i'otment, 
demand, protest and notice of any kind whatsoever. The 
nonexercise by the holder of any of its rights hereunder in 
any particular instance shall not constitute a waiver 
thereof in that or any subsequent instance. 

All borrowings evidenced by this Competitive Note 
and all payments and prepayments of the principal hereof and 
interest hereon and the respective dates thereof shall be 
endorsed by the holder hereof on th~ schedule attach~d 
hereto and mn~e a part hereof, or on a continuation thereof 
which shall be attached hereto and made a part hereof, or 
otherwise recorded by such holder in its internal records; 



I 

provi•::ied, howe~, that any failure of the holder hereof to 
make such a nc,tation or any error in such notation shall not 
in any manner affect the oblig;Jtion of the Borrower to mak<.• 
payments of principal and inte't·est in accordance with the 
terms of this Competitive Note and the Credit Agreement. 

This Competitive Note is one of the Competitive 
Notes referred to in the Credit Agreement which, among other 
things, contains provisions for the acceleration of the 
maturity hereof upon the happening of certain events, for 
optional prepayment of the principal hereof prior to the 
1matur i ty thereof and for the amendment or waiver of certain 
provisions of the Credit Agreement, all upon the terms and 
conditions therein specified. This Competitive Note shall 
be c.::rastrued in accordance with and governt:!d by the laws of 
the State of New York and any applicable laws of the United 
States of America. 

[Name of Borrower], 

by 

Title: 

E-1 continued 

/ , . 
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FORM OF STANDBY NOTE 

$[insert amount of Bank's Commitment] 

EXHH.·IT E-2 

New York, New York 
[Date of Initial 

Borrowing 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, 
, a corporation (the "Borrower"), hereby 

prom i:ies to pay to the order of (the 
"Ba~k"), at the office of Chemical Bank (the "Agent"), at 

, on (i) the last day of each 
Interest Period<tS defined in the Revolving Credit 
Agreement, dated as of January 3, 1986, as amended by the 
First Amendment dated as of June 30, 1987 (the "Credit 
Agreement"), among Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. (formerly 
Capital Cities Communications, Inc.), the Banks named 
therein and Chemical Bank, as Agent, the aggregate unpaid 
principal amount of all portions of Standby Loans made by 
the Bank to the Borrower pursuant to Sections 2.01 and 2.03 
of the Credit Agreement to which such Interest Period 
applies and (ii} on June 30, 1990, the lesser of the 
principal sum of Dollars ($ } and the 
aggregate unpaid principal amount of all portions of Standby 
Loans made by the Bank to the Borrower pursuant to 
Sections 2.01 and 2.03 of the Credit Agreement, in lawful 
money of the United States of America in same day funds, and 
to pay interest from the date hereof on such principal 
amount from time to time outstanding, in like funds, at said 
off.ice, at a rate or rates per annum and payable on such 
dates as determined pursuant to the Credit Agreement. 

The Ber.rower promises to pay interest, on demand, 
on any overdue pri,pcipal and, to the extent permitted by 
law, overdue interest from their due dates at a rate or 
rates determined as set forth in the Credit A1,1reement. 

The Borrower hereby waives diligence, presentment, 
demand, protest and notice of any kind whatsoever. The 
nonexercise by the holder of any of its rights hereunder in 
any particular instance shall not constitute a waiver 
thereof in that or any subsequent instance. 

All borrowings evidenced by this Standby Note and 
all payments and prepayments of the principal hereof and 
interest hereon and the respective dates thereof shall be 
endorsed by the holder hereof on the schedule attached 
hereto and made a part hereof, or on a.-.:ontinuation thereof 
which shall be attached hereto and made a part hereof, or 
otherwise recorded by such holder in its internal records; 



provided, however, that any failure of the holder hereof to 
make such a notation or any error in such notation shall not 
in any manner affect the obligation of the Borrower to make 
payments of principal and interest in accordance with the 
terms of this Standby Note and the Credit Agreement. 

This Standby Note is one of the Standby Notes 
referred to in the Credit Agreement which, among other 
thing: , contains provisions for the acceleration of the 
maturity hereof upon the happening of certain events, for 
optio~3l prepayment of the principal hereof prior to the 
maturity thereof and for the illl/endment or waiver of certain 
provisions of the Credit Agreement, all upon the terms and 
conditions therein specified. This Standby Note shall be 
construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the 
State of New York and any applicable laws of the United 
States of America. 

[Name of Borrower], 

by 

Title: 

E-2 continued 
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Exhibit F 

ASSIGNMENT ANO ACCEPTANCE 

Dated , 19_ 

Reference is made to the Revolving Credit Agree­
ment dated as of January 3, 1986, as amended by the First 
Amendment dated as of June 30, 1987 (the "Credit Agree­
ment"), amo•"J :api tal Ci ties/ABC, Inc. (formerly Capital 
Cities Commtni:ations, Inc.), a New York corporation (the 
"Company"), ~he Banks (as defined in the Credit Agreement) 
named therein and Chemical Bank, as Agent for the Banks (the 
"Agent"). Terms defined in the Credit Agreement are used 
herein with the same meaning. 

(the "Assignor") and 
(the "ASSI9nee") agree as follows: 

l. The Assignor hereby sells and assigns to the 
Assignee, and the Assignee hereby purchases and assumes from 
the Assignor, without recourse to the Assignor, a \ 
interest in and to all the Assignor's rights and obligations 
under the Credit Agreement as of the Effective Date (as 
defined below) (including, without limitation, a \ 
interest (which on the Effective Date hereof is $-­
~~---> in the Commitment of the Assignor on the 
Effective Date and auch percentage interest in all unpa~d 
commitment fees accrued to the Effective Date, and a 

\ interest (which on the Effective Date hereof is 
'$"- ) in the Loans owing to the Assignor 
outstanding on the Effective Date together with such 
percentage interest in all unpaid interest ~I such Loans 
accrued to the Effective Date, and a \ interest in the 
Standby Note [eond Competitive Note] herilby the Assignor 
(which on the Effective Date hereof is$ )). 

2. The Assignor (i) represents that as of the 
date hereof, its Commitment (without giving effect to 
assignments thereof which have not yet become effective) is 
$ and the outstanding balance of its Loans 
(unreduced by any assignments thereof which have not yet 
become effective) is $ i (ii) represents that it is 
in receipt of the written consent of the Company I'i!quired by 
clause (i) of paragraph (a) of Section 10.04 of tl::te Credit 
Agreement i (iii) makes no representation or warra11ty and 
assumes no responsibility with respect to any statements, 
warranties or representations made in or in conn~ction with 
the Credit Agreement or the execution, legality, validity, 
enforceability, genuineness, suffi'ciency or value of the 
Credit Agreement or any other instrument or document fur-
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nished pursuant thereto, other than that it is the legal and 
beneficial owner of the interest being assigned by it 
hereunder and that such interest is free and clear of any 
adverse claim; (iv) makes no representation or warranty and 
assumes no responsibility with respect to the financial 
condition of the Company or the performance or observance by 
the Company of any of its obligations under the Credit 
Agreement or any other instrument or document furnished 
pursuant there:~. and (v) attaches the Standby Note [and 
Competitive Note] referred to in paragraph 1 above and 
requests that the Agent exchange such Standby Note [and 
Competitive Note] for [for a new Standby Note [and 
Competitive Note] dated , 19 ~' in the principal 
amount of $ payable to t~~ order of the 
Assignee] [new Standby Notes [and Competitive Notes] as 
follows: a Standby Note dated , 19 , in the 
principal amount of $ payable to th~order of 
the Assignor and a Standby Note dated , 19 ~' 
in the principal amount of $ payable to the 
order of the Assignee [and a Compet1t1ve Note dated 

, 19 , in the principal amount of $ 
_p_a_y_a_b~l-e~t-o the order of the Assignor and a. Compe-t~1-t~1-v-e-=N~ot-e 
dated , 19 , in the principal amount of 
$ ~~~~-p-a-y-able tO-the order of the Assignee]], 

3. The Assignee (i) represents and warrants that 
it is legally authorized to enter into this Assignment and 
Acceptance; (ii) confirms that it has received a copy of the 
Credit Agreement, together with copies of the most recent 
financial statements delivered pursuant to Section 5.05 
thereof and such other documents and information as it has 
deemed appropriate to make its own credit analysis and 
decision to enter into this Assignment and Acceptance; 
(iii) confirms that it is an Eligible Assignee; (iv) agrees 
that it will, independently and without reliance upon the 
Agent, the Assignor or any other Bank and based on such 
documents and information as it shall deem appropriate at 
the time, continue to make its own credit decisions in 
taking or not taking action under the Credit Agreement; 
(v) appoints and authorizes the Agent to take such action as 
agent on its behalf and to exercise such powers under the 
Credit Agreement as are delegated to the Agent by the terms 
thereof, together with such powers as are reasonably inci­
dental thereto; (vi) agrees that it will perform in accor­
dance with their terms all the obligations which by the 
terms of the Credit Agreement are required to be performed 
by it as a Bank; (vii) agrees that it will keep confidential 
all information with respect to the Company furnished to it 
by the Company or the Assignor (other than information 
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generally available to the public or otherwise available to 
the Assignor on a nonconfidential basis); (viii) ~pecifies 
as its address for notices the offices set forth beneath its 
name on the signature pages hereof; and (ix) attaches the 
forms prescribed by the Internal Revenue Service of the 
United States certifying as to the Assignee's exemption from 
United States withholding taxes with respect to all payments 
to be made to the Assignee under the. Credit Agreement or 
such other docume<!i.:i as are necessary to indicate that all 
such payments are su':iject to such tax at a rate reduced by 
an applicable tax ':eaty. !/ 

4. The effective date for this Assignment and 
Acceptance shall be (the "Effective Date"). 2/ 
Following the execution of this Assignment and Acceptance~ 
it will be delivered to the Agent for acceptance and record­
ing by the Agent. 

5. Upon such acceptance and recording, from and 
after the Effective Date, (i) the Assignee shall be a party 
to the i?":"adit Agreement and, to the extent provided in this 
Assignment and Acceptance, have the rights and obligations 
of a Bank thereunder and (ii) the Assignor shall, to the 
extent provided in this Assignment and Acceptance, relin­
quish its rights (other than under Section 10.05 of the 
Credit Agreement) and be released from its obligations under 
the Credit Agreement. 

l/ If the Assignee is organized under the laws of a 
jurisdiction outside the United States. 

2/ See Section 10.04. 
Business Days after the 
Acceptance and delivery 

Such date shall be at least 
execution of this Assignment 
thereof to the Agent. 

five 
and 
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6. Upon such acceptance and recording, from and 
after the Effective Date, the Agent shall make all payments 
in respect of the interest assigned hereby (including 
payments of principal, interest, fees and other amounts) to 
the Assignee. The Assignor and Assignee shall make all 
appropriate adjustments in payments for periods prior to the 
Effective Date by the Agent or with respect to the making of 
this assignment directly between themselves. 

1. 
governed by, 
the State of 

This A11si;inment and Acceptance shall be 
and con~trued in accordance with, the laws of 
New York. 

Accepted this 
of , 19 

CHEMICAL BANK, 
as Agent 

day 

[NAME OF ASSIGNOR] 

[NAME OF ASSIGNEE] 

Address for Notices: 

' 
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1988 1987 

$4, 773,453,000 $4,440,346,000 
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Capital Cities/ ABC 

To Our Shareholders 

Capital Cities/ ABC, Inc. had another good 
year in 1988. Consolidated net revenues 
increased 8 percent to $4, 773,000,000, while 
income per share rose to $22.31, a gain of 36 
percent on approximately 2 percent more 
average shares outstanding. 

Most segments of the Broadcast Group 
produced fine results. The ABC Television 
Network Group achieved some encouraging 
audience ratings improvement, particularly in 
the prime evening hours. Principally as a 
result of special-event programming, 
however, the network incurred a small loss in 
1988 compared with a modest profit in 1987. 
The Publishing Group experienced another 
reduction in earnings, with gains in 
newspapers being more than offset. by further 
declines for several of the specialized business 
and consumer publications. 

Though income from operations was up for 
the year as a whole, much of the substantial 
gain in earnings per share came from the 
reduced Federal tax rate and lower net 
financing expense. A summary of the 
Company's operating results for 1988 (52-
week year ending January 1, 1989) compared 
with 1987 (53-week year ending January 3, 
1988) follows: 

Percent 
(Dollars in millions) 1988 1987 change 

Net revenues $4,773.4 $4,440.4 8% 

Operating costs 3,797.6 3,536.1 7% 
Depreciation and 

amortization 159.8 158.3 1% 

Total costs 3,957.4 3,594.4 7% 

Operating income 816.0 746.0 9% 
Interest and 

other, net (128.7) (182.0) (29)% 

Income before taxes 687.3 564.0 22% 
Income taxes (300.2) (284.9) 5% 

Net income $ 387.1 $ 279.1 39% 

Income per share $22.31 $16.46 36% 

Exhibit (13) 

At the date of acquisition of ABC, January 3, 
1986, the historic value of certain ABC 
Television Network commitments for 
entertainment programming and sports rights 
exceeded their fair market value by 
approximately $280,000,000, net of related 
income tax benefits. The resultant reduction 
in 1988 and 1987 in network program rights 
benefited earnings by $6.60 and $3.85 per 
share, respectively. Amortization of 
intangible assets arising from the ABC 
acquisition amounted to $3.03 and $3.13 per 
share being charged to earnings in 1988 and 
1987, respectively. Excluding these two 
noncash acquisition-related factors, earnings 
per share increased 19 percent from $15.74 
in 1987 to $18.74 in 1988. 

Most of the general business and industry 
trends continued to affect the Company in 
predictable ways during 1988. There was one 
exception. In past years, the quadrennial 
combination of Winter and Summer Olympics 
and presidential election campaign coverage 
has caused reductions in the amount of 
television advertising time available for sale 
in customary patterns. This constriction has 
historically led to significant upward pressure 
on prices. In our report to you last year, we 
expressed doubts that television pricing 
buoyancy would prevail in 1988, and indeed 
it did not. More competition for viewing time 
(particularly in cabled homes), a new audience 
measurement technique, and high advertising 
unit-pricing levels for the Calgary and Seoul 
Games were the primary reasons why revenue 
growth for the three television networks and 
the United States television station industry 
increased by only 8 percent and 6 percent, 
respectively. 

The national rate of inflation was slightly over 
4 percent for 1988. The Company was able 
to keep the rate of increase for internally 
generated expenses below that level for the 
year, but the cost of most entertainment 
programs and sports rights purchased from 
outside the Company rose more than either 
the cost of living or the rate of revenue 
increase. 



The Company had another year which 
resulted in a significant strengthening of its 
balance sheet. Cash flow from operations, net 
of amounts reinvested in the business, was 
$439,700,000. The exercise of 1,767,500 
warrants prior to their July 29, 1988 
expiration date brought in $441,900,000 of 
additional cash while adding a comparable 
number of common shares to the total 
outstanding. At year-end 1988, debt 
outstanding, net of cash, had fallen to 
$560,000,000 from the year-end 1987 total 
of $1,363,000,000. During the same twelve 
months, the Company's debt to total capital 
ratio was reduced from 41 to 34 percent. 

The Company continued to maintain a 
relatively modest $100,000,000 of commercial 
paper outstanding in order to have ready 
access to this convenient form of financing. 
All other debt, aggregating $1,594,000,000, 
is at fixed interest rates, averaging 10.3 
percent. There are no meaningful amounts 
of principal due until 1991, when the 
payments on ABC acquisition-related debt of 
approximately $94,000,000 per year (or less 
than 25 percent of 1988 cash flow) begins. 
Since 1986, tg~.<Jompany's cash and short­
term cash inv.:,•inents have accumulated to 
more than $1,100,000,000. There are no 
current plans to prepay our long-term debt, 
which is at attractive fixed rates and terms. 
The combination of such debt, together with 
the Company's current cash position provides 
Capital Cities/ ABC with great financial 
flexibility for future internal and external 
growth ,opportunities. 

Highlights follow for the Company's three 
operating groups and for corporate activities 
as well. More details are available in separate 

· sections of this report. 

As mentioned, the ABC Television Network 
Group experienced a small loss in 1988 
compared with a modest profit in 1987. 
Despite this apparent lack of progress, we 
feel that 1988 was generally satisfactory, 
Two major events with negative consequences 
deserve comment. First, although the 
television network's coverage of the February 

1988 Winter Olympics at Calgary was widely 
acclaimed and developed satisfactory 
audience levels, the cash loss for the network 
was substantial, as had been expected. The 
rights cost negotiated four years earlier was 
simply much too high. Second, the network's 
major presentation in November of the first 
segment of Herman Wouk's World War II 
epic, War and Remembrance, resulted in 
ratings that were less than anticipated despite 
the fact that many critics regarded the 
program as one of the finest productions ever 
prepared for television. The program 
appealed mainly to older viewers, and there 
is evidence that at 18 hours, the time 
commitment may have been considered 
excessive. 

ABC News had another outstanding year in 
terms of service to the American people, 
programming excellence and financial results. 
Crowded and very lengthy primary 
campaigns, party conventions and the 
national election were added to the regular 
demands on the News Division, but the men 
and women of ABC News responded very 
well. 

The ABC Sports Division distinguished itself 
again in 1988. The Company remains very 
proud of the coverage which ABC Sports 
brought to America from the Calgary Winter 
Olympics. Approximately 1,000 employees 
from ABC Sports, Broadcast Operations and 
Engineering, and other units of the television 
network labored very effectively to broadcast 
95 hours of highly praised programming. 
ABC Sports began the year with coverage of 
Super Bowl XXII and completed the year with 
its first-ever Rose Bowl telecast. 

ABG Entertainment made important progress 
in i988. Most new ABC prime-time series 
introduced in the fall of 1987, with the 
exception of thirtysomething, Full House and 
Hoope:rman, were not successful. Scheduling 
changes, the Calgary Olympics and new 
programs, such as The Wonder Years, 
introduced .in the spring of 1988, helped to 
lift ABC to a second-place finish for the 1987-
88 prime-time season. Roseanne, which 
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premiered on ABC in the fall of 1988, is the 
biggest hit of the new season. It is an 
important building block for future years. 

The Broadcast Group achieved another record 
year. The eight owned television stations 
improved or maintained their generally 
excellent ratings positions, and combined 
earnings for the Group were at an all-time 
high. Earnings for the 21 owned radio 
stations were also at record levels, while the 
radio networks, although down slightly from 
a record 198'7 had a satisfactory year. 

All elements of Video Enterprises did very 
well in 1988. ESPN, Lifetime, and Arts & 
Entertainment-cable programming 
networks owned 80 percent, 33 percent and 
38 percent, respectively, by Capital 
Cities/ ABC-all experienced substantial 
growth and record results. In early January 
1989, ESPN concluded an agreement with 
Major League Baseball for the weekly telecast 
of six national baseball games on Sunday, 
Tuesday, Wednesday and,:Friday nights for 
four seasons starting in the spring of 1990. 
The rights cost of $400,000,000 is high, and 
production expenses will also be substantial; 
but this programming is very important as a 
means of ensuring ESPN's very promising 
future. Video Enterprises' developmental 
activities also continue to show promise for 
the years ahead. 

In 1988 the Company made its first significant 
off-shore investments. Through ESPN, it 
increased to 25 percent its equity interest in 
Screen Sport, a satellite-delivered sports 
service available throughout Western Europe. 
In early 1989, Capital Cities/ ABC acquired a 
significant interest in Tele-Munchen K.G., a 
program production and distribution company 
he~.dquartered in Munich, West Germany. 

The Publishing Group had its third 
consecutive down year in terms of operating 
profits. Major expense increases for postage 
and paper were difficult to offset in a year 
when adequate. price increases for most print 
media were'generally not sustainable. 
Newspapers and shopping guides were up 
nicely, but continued re~·enue weakness for 
many of the specialized business and 

consumer publications more than offset these 
gains. 

When we look at 1989, we ha·•e several 
concerns. The television network's major loss 
on the Calgary Winter Olympics during the 
first quarter of 1988 was largely obscured by 
purchase price adjustments. The owned 
television stations and the radio networks 
garnered substantial incremental profits from 
this coverage. This combined positive result 
will not recur in 1989. The first quarter of 
1988 also contained a very profitable NFL 
Super Bowl, and ABC will not present another 
one under the current contract which expires 
in early 1990. The absence of the financial 
benefits of these events in 1989 will make 
year-to-year progress more difficult, 
especially in the first quarter. 

We are, on balance, cautiously optimistic 
about 1989. Though many of Capital 
Cities/ ABC's operating assets might be 
considered mature, or at least approaching 
maturity, they are still fir,1e businesses with 
excellent prospects, particularly when they 
are vigorously managed in terms of changing 
viewer, listener, and reader tastes and needs. 
The rate at which the inajor television 
networks are losing audiences continues to 
moderate. Increases in programming cosl:s 
will continue to be a problem since many of 
the cost reduction opportunities presented by 
the merger have now been achieved. Capital 
Cities/ ABC also has some large and growing 
assets, such as ESPN, which by no standard 
would be termed mature. While we continue 
to have confidence that the Company's 
established businesses can produce 
predictable and growing operating profits, we 
believe that the Company's capacity to 
annually generate substantial amounts of free 
cash flow is its greatest asset for c.ontinued 
long-term growth. Management remains 
committed to a continuing program of 
investment in business activities which will 
ensure its pr0spects in the years ahead. 

The American economy continues to 
demonstrate a capacity to evolve and adapt 
itself. Capital Cities/ ABC clearly has the 
financial resources necessary toi.compete 



effectively in a changing environment. The 
development of high definition television, new 
information and entertainment delivery 
systems based on fiber optics, and 
modifications in the operation Citthe financial 
interest and syndication rules are just a few 
of the changes which may well lie ahead for 
broadcasting media companies. We believe 
the Company has the people, the 
organizational structure and the 
determination it will need to meet such 
challenges effectively and profitably. 

The Company's partnership with the Publie. 
Broadcasting Service in Project Literacy U.S. 
(PLUS) continued to both draw attention to · 
and help alleviate the serious national proble!h 
of illiteracy. In 1988, PLUS focused on 
literacy in youth, in an effort to foster a family 
reading environment and volunteerism for the 
program. Both the Broadcast and Publishing 
Groups stepped up their involvement in PLUS 
in conjunction with the vigorous campaign of 
the ABC Television Network. 

In 1988, Capital Cities/ ABC continued its 
strong support of tl1e Dr:µg-Free America 
public service advertising· campaign. These 
powerful mes»ages dramatize the 
consequences of drug abuse, and follow-up 
research shows that the Drug-Free America 
campaign is helping reshape public attitudes 
about illegal drug use. The broadcast and 
print advertising donated by the Company to 
this program in 1988 was worth more than 
$27 million. 

During 1988, Gerald Dickier, Frederick S. 
Pierce and John B. Poole left our Board of 
Directors. We thank them for their many 
contributions and wish them well in their 
ft,ture endeavors. We are pleased to welcome 
to the Board of Directors of Capital 
Cities/ ABC, Inc. Ann Dibble Jordan, fotmer 
Director of the Social Service Department, 
University of Chkago Medical School; and 
Frank S. Jones, Ford Professor of Urban 
Affairs, Massachusetts Institute of 
Technology. Mr. Dickier, a founder of the 
Company and a member of its Board of 
J)irectors since 1964, was elected Director 
Bmeritus. 

We are most grateful to our 19, 700 fellow 
employees for their loyalty and continuing 
outstanding contributions, and we also wish 
to thank our shareholders for their interest 
and support. 

THOMAS S. MURPHY 

Chairman 

DANIEL B. BURKE 

President 

·"• A/)1 - r - ., 
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The Company's broadcasting operations, 
which consist of the ABC Television Network 
Group and the Broadcast Group, had 1988 
net revenues of $3,749,600,000, an increase 
of $31!>,9QJ);OQO or 9 percent over 1987, 
Operating earnings of $722,200,000 in 1988 
were up $89,300,000, or 14 percent over the 
prior year. Broadcasting operations' 1988 
and 1987 results are summarized as f9llows: 

(Dollars in 
n:'llians) 1988 1987 

Net revenues $3,749.1\ $3,433.7 

Operating costs 2,904.'4' 2,680.6 
Depreciation and 

amortization 122.7 120.2 
Total costs 3,027.4 2,800.8 

Operating income $ 722.2 $ 632.9 

The 1988 and 1987 results include acquisition­
related adjustments to fair market value for 
entertainment programming and sports rights 
of the ABC Television Network. These 
adjustments benefited 1988 and 1987 
earnings by $191,000,000 and $120,000,000, 
respectively. Additionally, both 1988 and 
1987 results include amortization of 
intangibles arising from the ABC acquisition 
of $45,000,000 and $46,000,000, 
respectively. Excluding these two noncash 
acquisition-related factors, broadcasting 
earnings would have been $576,200,000, a 
3 percent increase from the $558,900,000 
in 1987. 

Broadcasting 
Net Revenues 

S ).1illions 
4,000 

1985 1986 198i 1988 
profonna 

ABC Television Network Group 

In 1988, the ABC Television Network made 
modest progress towards improving its share 
of three-network revenues and moderating its 
overall cost growth. Reported operating 
results, however, were largely influenced by 
several extraordinary factors, among them 
the Winter Olympic Games, the presidential 
election campaign and a 22-week Writers 
Guild strike. For 1988, net revenues increased 
8 percent to almost $2,400,000,000, and 
operating expenses ( exduding purchase price 
adjustments) increased 11 percent. As a 
result, the ABC Television Network 
(excluding purchase price adjustments) 
operated at a slight loss of $4,000,000, 
compared with a profit of approximately 
$50,000,000 in 1987. On a comparable 52-
week basis, revenues increased 10 percent 
and operating expenses increased 13 percent. 

The national elections and Olympic Games 
every four years have historically produced 
strong revenue growth for the network 
economy. While three-network revenues did 
increase 8 percent in 1988, this growth rate 
was notably lower than historical levels. 
Furthennore, Olympic and political 
advertising did not tighten the network 
ri1arket,7lace as they had in previous years, 
and demand for remaining commercial 
inventory was generally soft throughout the 
year. 

Broadcasting 
Operating Income 

1985 1986 1987 1988 
proforma 



Several diverse factors affected the ABC 
Television Network's profitability in 1988 and 
made comparison with 1987 results difficult. 

• The Winter Olympic Games in Calgary 
did not generate sufficient revenues to 
offset the substantial rights cost and 
related production expenses, and 
resulted in an operating loss in excess 
of $65,000,000 (before purchase price 
adjustments) on the Games in the first 
quarter. 

• ABC News' thirty hours of primaries, 
conventions and election night 
coverage added over $20,000,000 in 
incremental costs during the year. 

• In March 1988, the Writers Guild of 
America began a 22-week strike which 
significantly delayed the start of the 
1988-89 television season. The ABC 
Television Network was unable to 
acquire the normal numher of original 
prime-time entertainment series 
episodes for the fourth qua,·ter. 
Theref0t·e, the network broadcast 
more repeat and special programming 
than usual, which resulted in lower 
revenues and costs. Additionally, the 
delay in the start of th•i 1981'-89 season 
will result in the network broadcasting 
more original episodes in 1989, 
resulting in higher program costs than 
originally planned. 

Competition for the viewer, particularly in 
prime time, remained as intense as ever. Over 
the past few years, the growth of independent 
television stations, the increase in basic cable 
ratings and the exponential growth in 
videocassette recorders have combined to 
reduce the three networks' share of prime­
time households to less than 70 percent. 
Within this environment, however, ABC's 
development of several new highly rated 
series enabled it to improve its competitive 
standing, particularly in the fourth quarter of 
1988. 

For the . .1987-88 season, ABC finished in 
second piace in the three-network prime-time 
rankings. The Winter Olympics and Super 

Bowl XXII contributed to the improvement. 
But more important to its long-term growth, 
the ABC Television Network benefited from 
two Emmy Award-winning programs, The 
Wonder Years and thirtysomething, and 
from scheduling changes for other prime-time 
series. The Wonder Years debuted in March, 
improving the network's performance in its 
time period, and was named "Outstanding 
Comedy Series" for the 1987-88 season. 
thirtysomething was named "l;utstanding 
Drama Series" for the season and enabled the 
ABC Television Network to improve its 
Tuesday night ratings. This past season was 
the first time any network had won both the 
comedy and drama Emmy Awards with new 
series. 

In October 1988, Roseanne, a situation 
comedy starring Roseanne Barr, debuted to 
strong advertiser and audience appeal. By 
the end of February 1!189, it was the second­
highest-rated prime-time show of the 1988-
89 season, contributing significantly to the 
network's strong Tuesday night performance. 
Who's The Boss~, the network's lead'•off show 
on Tuesday night, is also rated among the 
top-ten prime-time series. Growing Pains, a 
top-rated show with young adults on Tuesday 
last season, was shifted to Wednesday r.ight 
and held its audience. The program is followed 
by Head of the Class, and the two comedies 
were largely responsible for the network's 
consistent first-place fir:ish on Wednesday. On 
Friday night, the comedy block of Perfect 
Strangers and Full House from 8:00-9:00 PM 
consistently won the time period. As a result, 
ABC won ,Friday night rluring the fourth 
quarter for the first time in eleven years. Even 
though the ABC Television Network's overall 
prime-time performance was better in 1988, 
ratings on Thursday, Saturday and Sunday 
nights continued to be disappointing. 

In the fourth quarter of 1988, the ABC 
Television Network was the only network to 
improve its audience delivery across key 
demographic categories. Particularly 
gratifying was the fact that this improvement 
was generated in large part by prime-time 
series. The first part of War and 
Remembrance, a mini-series broadcast over 
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18 hours during the November sweeps, 
averaged an. 18.6 rating and also boosted 
overall ratings. 

Monday-to-Friday Daytime, a major network 
profit center, experienced a particularly 
difficult year. ABC remained the highest­
rated network among women aged 18 to 49 
due to its afternoon serials, General Hospital, 
One Life to Live and All My Children, but 
the overall delivery of young adult women 
declined significantly from 1987 levels. Soft 
advertiser demand also plagued this daypart 
throughout the year and resulted in a 
significant profit decline. Early morning 
programming also suffered an audience 
decline at a]j three networks. Despite this 
falloff, Good Morning America, with co-hosts 
Charles Gibson and Joan Lunden, remained 
the most popular information show among 
young adult women. In the fourth quarter of 
1988, ABC's Saturday morning children's 
programming significantly improved its 
ratings and was the top-rated network in the 
fourth quarter for the first time in six years. 

ABC News distinguished itself in 1988 with 
a strong lineup of regularly scheduled news 
broadcasts and 30 hours of election-year 
coverage. During the Democratic and 
Republican Conventions. and on election night 
in November, the ABC News team of Peter 
Jennings and David Brinkley attracted more 
young adult viewers than any other network. 
Of particular note, we believe that ABC was 
the first network news organization to operate 
at a profit in a presidential election year. 

World News Tonight with Peter Jennings 
was the most-watched evening news program 
among young adults. In addition, World 
News Tonight was the only network evening 
news broadcast to show growth in 1988. The 
program introduced American Agenda in 
1988, a segment which concentrated on 
stories and issues of vital importance to the 
American public which had not received 
sufficient regular media attention. Nightline, 
hosted by Ted Koppel, was awarded the 
prestigious duPont-Columbia University 

Journalism Award for its broadcast of In the 
Holy Land in April. The program featured a 
discussion of important issues among Israeli 
and Palestinian officials. Nightline also 
improved its audience demographics and was 
watched by more young adults in 1988 than 
in prior years. Barbara Walters' interview 
specials continued to be extremely popular. 
Her fiftieth broadcast in November 1988 was 
the highest-rated news special of the year. 
20120, hosted by Hugh Downs and Barbara 
Walters, was a major contributor to the 
network's improved Friday night ratings. 

ABC Sports had an extraordinary year in 
1988. The division began the year with the 
broadcast of the Washington Redskins' 
victory over the Denver Broncos in Super 
Bowl XXII. In February, ABC Sports 
originated approximately 95 hours of 
coverage of the Calgary Winter Olympic 
Games over a 16-day period. In prime time, 
the Winter Olympics averaged a 19.3 rating, 
m?~king the first time in 24 years that the 
Winter Games outperformed the Summer 
Games. ABC's Monday Night Football was 
the highest-rated regular program for young 
adult males in the fourth quarter of 1988. 
ABC Sports presented from Pasadena its first­
ever Rose Bowl. in January 1989. The 
division's ongoing coverage of major golf 
champiom1hips, Triple Crown horse racing, 
the Pro Bowlers Tour and the Indianapolis 
500 again proved to be extremely'popular. 

ABC Sports did not obtain the broadcast 
rights for the 1992 Winter and Summer 
Olympics or for the new network Major 
League Baseball contract beginning in 1990. 
Although the division's highly competitive 
bids did not prevail, the Company is committed 
to the network broadcast of major sports 
events and fully expects that ABC Sports will 
compete effectively in subsequent rights 
negotiations. 

The network's 1988 challenges continue in 
1989, with several issues commanding 
immediate attention. In 1988, the network 
reacted to softening advertiser demand and 
lower than anticipated revenue growth with 



greater cost control response. But increased 
efficiency is needed at every operating level if 
the network is to achieve consistent 
profitability. Another issue is the need to 
further refine the national television audience 
measurement system. People meters are a 
considerably more complex measurement 
methodology than the previously used diary 
method. It is imperative that this system be 
constantly reviewed so that delivered 
audiences accurately reflect viewing levels. 
Longer-term, the network is hopeful that the 
sample will incorporate out~of-home viewing, 
such as hotels and college dormitories, which 
represent sizable audiences not currently 
reflected in ratings data or advertising rates. 

On a more general level, the ABC Television 
Network recognizes it must refocus its 
marketing and pricing strategies. While 
network television remains the largest and 
most effective mass advertising medium, new 
aggressive competition from cable 
programming, barter syndication and other 
promotional techniques has weakened the 
network's status with advertisers and their 
agencies. Improving ABC's share of three­
network revenues, particularly in prime time, 
remains important, but equally important is a 
more creative and aggressive approach to 
attracting the advertising dollars that are 
flowing away from the networks. To achieve 
future growth, the ABC Television Network 
has initiated a campaign to attract new 
advertising dollars to the network 
marketplace. Twenty Questions Fai'ing 
National TV Advertisers, a sales 
presentation for major advertising agencies 
and their clients, was introduced in the fall of 
1988 and represented the first step toward a 
broader marketing approach. 

The strength of the ABC Television Network's 
affiliate lineup is also an integral part of long­
term growth. In March 1988, the network 
commissioned an independent study to 
examine the network-affiliate relationship and 
how both parties might maximize revenue and 
profit potential. The study reaffirmed the 
competitive advantages of the current system. 
To preserve this edge, however, the network 

and its affiliates need to refine and implement 
a new performance standard which will 
maximize network programming clearance 
and capitalize on cross-promotional 
capabilities. 

We believe that the most important issue 
facing the ABC Television Network is its need 
to produce more of its own programs in prime 
time and acquire financial interest in programs 
produced by others. Negotiations to date 
with representatives of the television 
production community have failed to resolve 
differences over regulatory restraints which 
sharply limit the Company in these respects. 
The Company remains hopeful, however, that 
agreement might be reached on needed 
changes in this area. 

Broadcast Group 

During 1988, the Broadcast Group again 
reached record levels of revenues and 
operating income. Net revenues increased by 
12 percent to $1,420,000,000. Operating 
income (before amortization of intangibles) 
reached $580,000,000, reflecting a 14 percent 
increase from the $507,000,000 reported in 
1987. 

Earnings at the television stations showed 
strong improvement over 1987, derived in 
part from the incremental revenue generated 
by the broadcasts of the Olympics and the 
Super Bowl. The radio division's profits also 
advanced in 1988, due primarily to the 
improved performance of the radio stations. 
Profitability of the radio networks, on the 
other hand, declined due to the soft radio 
network advertising marketplace. Video 
Enterprises significantly increased its 
revenues and operating profits in 1988 as 
ESPN ,and the division's other cable services 
achieved greater acceptance in the expanding 
cable universe. 

Television Stations 

Advertising revenues for the television 
stations increased 7 percent (on a comparable 
52-week basis) over 1987, again exceeding 
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the rate of growth within the industry. Local 
advertising revenues continued to outpace 
significantly the growth ra,~e of national sales. 
These levels were achieved despite a flat 
Houston marketplace. Although there are no 
clear indications that the economic climate in 
Houston has improved, the Company is 
encouraged by current signs. 

Effectivei~ost management continued to play 
a prominent role in the success of the 
Company's television stations. Although the 
dramatic cost decreases achieved in 1986 and 
1987 were not equaled, cost increases were 
held to less than 2 percent, despite escalating 
costs of top-rated syndicated programming 
and the pressure on programming costs in 
general. 

The Company's eight television stations 
remain the largest group in the country, 
reaching 24.39 percent of total ADI (Area of 
Dominant Influence) television homes, just 
under the 25 percent limitation established in 
rules of the Federal Communications 
Commission. 

The Oprah Winfi·ey Show, carried on seven 
of the eight television stations in 1988, was 
once again the number one talk show in 
national syndicr.tion. This show, previously 
owned by WLS-TV, was transferred to a 
company owned by Oprah Winfrey in 1988. 
The benefit of owning and producing The 
Oprah Winfrey Show for a limited future 
period was exchanged for a longer-term 
arrangement with the Group's television 
stations at equitable financial terms. 

In 1988, the stations continued to maintain 
their enviable market ratings. According to 
November 1988 ratings data, from sign-on to 
sign-off, all eight stations were number one 
in audience delivery. These results were 
achieved with a combination of effective local 
programming and a modestly improved ABC 
Television Network program schedule. 

The Company's television stations maintained 
their commitment to a strong local news 
presence. The following table reflects the 
ranking of principal news programs: 

News 
program rank 

Station Market Early Late 
and Market rank evening evening 

WABC-TV 1 1 2 
(New York) 

KABC-TV 2 l(T) 2 
(Los Angeles) 

WLS-TV 3 1 l(T) 
(Chicago) 

WPVI-TV 4 1 1 
(Philadelphia) 

KGO-TV 5 1 1 
(San Francisco) 

KTRK-TV 10 1 1 
(Houston) 

WTVD 34 2 1 
(Durham-Raleigh) 

KFSN-TV 62 1 1 
(Fr,esno) 

Souti'e~_: Nielsen, Noveniber 1988, except KFSN--'!'V 
Which is Arbitron, Noveniber 1988. 

(T) Tied 

Capital Cities/ ABC National Television Sales, 
(the in-house national sales representation 
operation launched late in 1986), has 
responsibility for national spot sales at all 
eight owned stations. In its second full year 
of operation, this unit met its goals. 

Radio 

Radio division profits rose in 1988 as a result 
of the excellent performance by the radio 
stations. The radio networks, while increasing 
their share of revenue in a declining 
marketplace, reported reduced profits as a 
result of increased programming costs and 
expanded program activity. 

The Company owns 21 radio stations, eleven 
AM and ten FM. Seven of the radio stations 
(AM and FM stations in New York, Chicago 
and Los Angeles, and an AM station in San 
Francisco) continue to operate subject to a 
temporary FCC cross-ownership waiver which 
resulted from the ABC acquisition. Late in 
1988, the FCC announced it would look 
favorably upon waiver requests that would 
permit radio and television ownership in large 
markets. Continued ownership of these 



stations would be consistent with the new 
relaxed standard, and the Company has filed 
a request for a permanent waiver. 

Radio station revenues, excluding the Denver 
stations which were acquired late in 1987, 
rose by 9 percent. The aggregate ratings 
performance of the stations showed 
significant improvement in 1988, and 
produced improved revenues and earnings. 

The Company's 21 radio stations reach 25.2 
percent of the United States population as 
shown below: 

1988 Metro 
#of population 

stations (age 12 +) 
Station Market in # %of 
and market rank market !OOO's! U.S. 
WABC-AM/WPLJ-FM 1 46 14,057 6.9% 

(New York) 
KABC-AM/KLOS-FM 2 43 9,086 4.4% 

(Los Angeles) 
WLS-AM/WYTZ-FM 3 39 6,705 3.3% 

(Chicago) 
KGO-AM 4 52 4,954 2.4% 

(San Francisco) 
WJR-AM/WHYT-FM 6 28 3,570 1.7% 

(Detroit) 
WBAP-AM/KSCS-FM 8 30 3,112 1.5% 

(Fort Worth-Dallas) 
WMAL-AM/WRQX-FM 9 27 3,077 1.5% 

(Washington, D.C.) 
WKHX-AM/FM 13 23 2,219 1.1% 

(Atlanta) 
KQRS-AM/FM 19 19 1,945 1.0% 

(Minneapolis-St. Paul) 
K.~XY-AM/FM 24 31 1,593 0.8% 

(Denver) 
WPRO-AM/FM 28 22 1,259 0.6% 

(Providence) 
Total 51,577 25.2% 
Source: Arbitron, 1988-89 Papulations in U.S. Radio 

Markets. 

The ABC Radio Networks consist of six basic 
networks that serve more than 2, 100 affiliates 
nationwide. The networks co11tinue to expand 
their broad-based audience appeal by signing 
new talent. In 1987 and early 1988, Tom 
Snyder and Sally Jessy Raphael were added 
in programs with talk-show formats. In 1988, 
Shadoe Stevens, a popular and rising 
entertainment personality whose career 

began in radio, became the new host of 
American Top 40. These talent and 
programming additions continue to 
strengthen the ABC Radio Networks which 
also carry exclusively the radio broadcasts of 
Paul Harvey. He is the most popular national 
commentator on radio. 

The ABC Radio Networks remain the pre­
eminent group in the radio network industry 
as shown by the ratings chart below: 

Audience National 
Network share rank 

Entertainment 8.7% 2 
Information 8.5% 4 
Contemporary 7.4% 5 
FM 5.8% 8 
Rock 5.4% 11 
Direction 4.8% 13 

Source: RADAR 38, fall '.98 All Broadcast. Total 
persons 12 +. 

In 1987, the ABC Radio Networks entered 
into a national sales representation 
arrangement with Satellite Music Network, a 
producer of nine 24-hour live music formats 
delivered via satellite. During 1988, the 
Company acquired approximately 14 percent 
of Satellite Music Network's outstanding 
shares. In December 1988, Capital 
Cities/ ABC offered to acquire, through a cash 
merger, the remaining shares of Satellite 
Music Network. The transaction is expected 
to be completed by the end of April 1989 for 
an aggregate purchase price of approximately 
$50,000,000. 

Video Enterprises 

Video Enterprises, which consists of cable 
program services, program distribution and 
technology development activities, had 
another highly successful year in 1988. ESPN 
enjoyed an exceptional year and solidified its 
position as the premier cable sports 
programmer in the country. The progress of 
Arts & Entertainment (A&E) and Lifetime, 
pa1tially owned by the Company, continued 
to exceed expectations. Consequently, in 1988, 
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division revenues and operating earnings 
increased significantly over 1987. 

Subscriber growth for each of these networks 
and cable household data follow: 

Aver~ subscribers 
(Millions) 1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 

ESPN 
(Launched 
Sept. 1979) 4'1.7 41.8 37.3 36.0 32.6 

A&E 
(Launched 
Feb. 1984) 31.0 26.8 20.5 18.7 10.5 

Lifetime 
(Launched 
Feb. 1984) 39.0 30.9 25.9 23.0 18.5 

Cable TV RH 47.8 43.8 41.7 39.2 36.3 
Total TVHH 90.4 88.6 87.4 85.9 84.9 
Source: Nielsen Uui-verse based on lVTI metered service. 

ESPN, 80 percent-owned by the Company, is 
the largest of the Company's cable program 
ventures and reached approximately 
49,000,000 households at year-end 1988, or 
56 percent of the nation's television 
households, more than any other cable 
network. In 1987, ESPN entered into a three­
year contract with the National Football 
League to televise 13 NFL games annually. 
Early in 1989, ESPN further enhanced its 
premier position by entering into an 
agreement with Major League Baseball to 
televise approximately 175 games annually 
for four years, beginning in 1990. This 
agreement represents a $400,000,000 
commitment by ESPN. During 1988, ESPN 
increased to 25 percent its investment in 
Screen Sport, a satellite-delivered sports 
service available throughout Western Europe. 

A&E, which is 38 percent-owned by Capital 
Cities/ABC, is a supplier of entertainment 
and cultural programming to a subscriber 
base that reached approximately 33,000,000 
households at year-end 1988. Lifetime 
programming is primarily targeted toward 
women viewers. Its schedule and ratings have 
been enhanced by off-network programming 
acquisitions. The Company owns 33 percent 
of Lifetime, which has a subscriber base that 
had grown to 42,000,000 households at year­
end 1988. Both A&E and Lifetime continue 
to increase significantly in profitability. 

ABC Distribution is responsible for the 
international sales and licensing of ABC­
owned entertainment, sports and news 
programs and for other programs not 
produced for over-the-air television 
broadcasting. This unit is also involved in the 
sale of ABC-owned programs on 
videocassettes. In early 1989, the Company 
acquired an interest in Tele-Munchen K.G., a 
program production and distribution company 
headquartered in Munich, West Germany. 

Video Enterprises also continues to function 
as Capital Cities/ ABC's primary research and 
development arm in the electronic media, and 
is responsible for several projects in different 
stages of development. Current projects 
include Indesys, an operation with several 
promising orders for its high-speed 
communications service employing satellite 
and FM sideband transmissions and 
Playcount, which expects to begin a video­
cassette revenue-sharing system. 

The Brnadcast Group continues to serve its 
local and national cable communities with 
quality programming. Award highlights in 
1988 include: 

• WTVD - Radio/TV News Directors 
Association of the Carolinas Award for 
"Best Feature Story" for an investigative 
report, "Hazardous Waste Plant". 

• WPVI-TV - IRIS Award for the program 
Prime Time for Best Magazine Format 
Program. 

• ESPN - Emmy Award in Graphics by the 
Academy of Television Arts & Sciences. 

•ABC Radio Networks - Peabody Award 
for its program Ernest Will - Americans 
in the Gulf and CEBA Awards for the 
programs Freedmn March and From the 
Pages of History. 

• WJR-AM - United Press International 
Award for "Station of the Year" in 
Michigan. 

• WMAL-AM - Chesapeake Associated 
Press Broadcasters Award for overall 
excellence in news operations. 



Publishing 

The Publishing Group had another difficult 
year in 1988. Net revenues of $1,023,900,000 
were up only 2 percent from 1987. Expenses 
were $894,200,000, an increase of 
$34,300,000, or 4 percent. Operating income 
was down for the third consecutive year to 
$129,700,000, a decline of $17,000,000 or 12 
percent from 1987, as summarized below: 

(Dollars in 
millions) 1988 1987 

Net revenues $1,023.9 $1,006.6 

Operating costs 858.1 822.1 
Depreciation and 

amortization 36.l 37.8 
Total costs 894.2 859.9 

Operating income $ 129.7 $ 146.7 

Lower profitability did not occur throughout 
all the operating units of the Group. The 
combined profits of the Company's 
newspapers and shopping guides were at 
record levels in 1988, as were several Fairchild 
titles and the majority of the ABC Publishing 
units. These gains, however, were more than 
offset by significant declines elsewhere. The 
problems encountered were varied-general 
market softness, competitive factors, and cost 
increases which could not be passed along in 
higher advertising rates. Nine small 
acquisitions took place in 1988, for an 
aggregate purchase price of $10,120,000. All 
were either in geographic areas where the 
Company currently operates or in specialized 

Publishing 
Net Revenues 

1985 1986 1987 1988 
proforma 

publishing markets the Company presently 
serves. 

Specialized Publications 
Overall revenues of the specialized 
publications division were approximately flat 
with 1987. Total expenses increased 6 
percent, and operating income was down 30 
percent. 

Revenues at Fairchild Publications were 
virtually unchanged from 1987. Higher 
expenses, related principally to start-ups, 
publication repositioning and circulation and 
postal increases, resulted in a substantial 
decline in operating profits. At the end of 
1988, several publications were realigned by 
market category. The largest change was the 
creation of the Fairchild Fashion Group. This 
combination of 10 publications will enable 
Fairchild to consolidate its market position 
and react more quickly to changing conditions. 

Wand M, Fairchild's two consumer fashion 
publications, achieved record revenues and 
paid circulation levels. Women's Wear Daily 
revenues. were down slightly from 1987. 
Publication of Scene as a stand-alone younger 
women's consumer fashion magazine was 
halted while still in the test phase and is now 
a feature section of W: 

Several publications achieved new highs in 
revenues and profits. HFD reached the 
$20,000,000 advertising mark for the first 

Publishing 
Operating Income 

1985 1986 1987 1988 
pro fonna 
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time. American Metal Market had the largest 
one-year circulation gain in its more than 100-
year history, while Multichannel News 
continued to dominate its market with a 
redesigned and upgraded product. The 
International Medical News Group.'s sales and 
profit increases came in the face of declining 
revenues in several medical categories. 

Children's Business became profitable in its 
third year of operation, while winning its 
industry's award for excellence in graphic 
design and fashion photography. Electronic 
News reversed its profit erosion through 
careful cost control, while at the same time 
upgrading its printing and editorial product. 
Metalworking News increased its market 
share significantly. 

Investments were made in redesigning and 
expanding the circulation of Travel Agent 
magazine; launching Automotive Electronic 
News, which debuted in 1989; creating a 
commercially printed edition of Daily News 
Record on Monday; and producing a consumer 
publication, Travel Today, which was 
subsequently suspended when initial reader 
acceptance did not materialize. These 
investments had a significant negative impact 
on Fairchild operating income. 

ABC Publishing experienced slight revenue 
growth in 1988, with a moderate decline in 
operating profits due largely to an increase in 
non-controllable costs related to the 
production and delivery of its publications. 

The Chilton Company, the largest of the ABC 
Publishing operations, once again achieved a 
year-to-year profit increase, along with 
continuing growth in revenues. During the 
year, the Chilton Company assumed 
responsibility for all financial and 
administrative support fundions of the ABC 
Consumer Magazines group, another 
operation of ABC Publishing, in an effort to 
generate operating efficiencies. At year-end, , 
Chilton acquired Outdoor Power Equipment 
magazine, adding to its successful line of 
trade publications. 

ABC Consumer Magazines experienced a very 
disappointing year in 1!?88. with both 

revenues and operating income substantially 
below prior year levels. The move to 
consolidate support functions with the Chilton 
Company will position the group more 
effectively to compete in its very challenging 
marketplaces. 

Los Angeles Magazine finished 1988 ahead 
of 1987 in revenues, with flat operating 
income. The national sales office, established 
in 1987, continued to be a major contributor 
to national advertising sales for Los Angeles 
Magazine, as well as for a combined group of 
California city magazines. 

NILS (National Insurance Law Service) 
experienced another record year in 1988, with 
both revenues and operating income up over 
1987 results. NILS' indispensible national 
data base of regulatory information for the 
insurance industry is delivered in both print 
and electronic form to customers in the 
insurance and legal professions. 

Word, Incorporated had a strong year in 1988, 
with revenue growth and operating income 
up substantially over the prior year. Word's 
performance was bolstered by exceptionally 
strong product releases during the year, 
combined with streamlined operations. At 
year-end, Word acquired Worthy Publishing, 
bringing a respected line of bible products and 
other religious publications to augment 
Word's established presence in the market. 

Hitchcock Publishing was down in both 
revenues and operating income in 1988, due 
to softness in the manufacturing industries 
served by its publications. As a result of the 
softening market demand, Hitchcock 
suspended publication of MITE, a 1987 start­
up publication, and Infosystems. PEMCO, 
Hitchcock's trade show operation, had a 
strong year in 1988 and 2.cquired a new show, 
the International Fastener Exposition, during 
the year. 

The ABC Publishing Agricultural Group 
experienced a slight revenue increase in 1988 
and a decline in operating income. The 
expansion into eight editions of the state farm 
publications strengthened its position in the 
market, with the initial costs to develop and 



promote the expansion causing some short­
term profit deterioration. The national 
agricultural publications had a strong year, 
driven by improvements in editorial, sales and 
circulation. 

Institutional Investor's revenues and 
operating income significantly declined in 
1988 as a consequence of contraction in the 
worldwide financial services industry 
following the October 1987 stock market 
decline. The decrease in advertising revenue 
in Institutional Investor magazine was 
partially offset by strength in reader demand 
for that company's other magazines and 
newsletters, as well as attendance at the 
company's sponsored conferences. The 
company also launched the European 
Institutional Investor Institute as well as a 
daily newspaper edition of Institutional 
Investor published for the annual meetings of 
The International Monetary Fund and The 
World Bank. 

In late 1988, Capital Cities/ ABC became the 
majority in.vestor in Practical Homeowner, a 
750;000 circulation special-interest consumer 
magazinz. 

Newspapers and Shopping Guides 

The Company's newspapers achieved record 
revenues, operating income and unduplicated 
daily, Saturday and Sunday circulation levels 
in 1988. Total revenues, expenses and 
operating income were all up approximately 
6 percent from 1987. Newsprint prices per 
ton averaged 9 percent higher in 1988 
compared with 1987. Total newsprint 
expense, however, was up only slightly 
because of lower consumption, attributed to 
the continuing shift from ROP linage to 
inserts, and a planned reduction in evening 
circulation in Kansai; City. There were also 
dramatic reductions in newsprint waste in 
Fort Worth compared with the higher levels 
experienced in 1987 in connection with the 
introduction of its new offset press. 

The Kansas City Star and Times again 
achieved new records for total revenues and 
operating profit. In·.paper advertising linage 
was down 6 percent from 1987, but a strong 

performance in inserts and classified 
generat--od a 6 percent increase in advertising 
revenues. Classified linage remained 
particularly strong, registering a gain of 
almost 4 percent. 

Circulation gains were achieved in the 
morning and Saturday editions while Sunday 
circulation remained at 1987 levels. Evening 
circulation decreased 29,000, due largely to a 
decision to eliminate delivery of the evening 
Kansas City Star in areas outside the Kansas 
City metro.politan area. Net unduplicated 
daily circulation remained unchanged, with 
circulation revenue increasing 6 percent. 

After two years of revenue declines and 
sharply lower earnings, the Fort Worth Star­
Telegram experienced a turnaround in 1988. 
Revenues increased less than 1 percent, but 
operating income was up 3 percent because 
expenses were virtually unchanged from 1987 
levels. Circulation was flat due to a year-long 
effort to discontinue some forms of 
discounting and the effect of a fourth quarter 
increase of $1.00 a month in home delivery 
prices. Introduction in the spring of a new 
tabloid business section, Tarrant Business, 
in the Monday morning edition, was met with 
wide reader and advertiser acceptance. 

At The Oakland Press in Pontiac, Michigan, 
advertising revenues grew a healthy 10 
percent, but circulation revenues were flat as 
the overall Detroit market awaited approval 
of a joint operating agreement between the 
Detroit newspapers (announced and then 
deferred in August). The newspaper's 
investment in promotion and product, 
associated with the upcoming Detroit market 
change, caused profits to drop slightly from 
1987, but advertising levels improved. 
Installation of a new offset press commenced, 
with conversion expected early in 1989. 

The Belleville News-Democrat experienced 
another record year in revenues and operating 
income. During 1988, the acquisition of the 
remaining 50 percent ownership of Legal 
Communications Corporation in St. Louis, 
Missouri, and the O'Fallon, Illinois Progress, 
were completed. The Company now owns and 
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operates 10 daily and weekly newspapers in 
the Greater St. Louis area. 

The Times Leader in Wilkes-Barre, 
Pennsylvania completed its first full year of 
seven-day publication and its second 
consecutive year of profitable operations. The 
Sunday edition helped boost net revenue 10 
percent. Paid circulation on Sunday was 
52,000 at year-end, 8 percent ahead of the 
daily average. 

The New England Newspaper group 
continued to expand operations. One 
publication was acquired and five were sta1ted 
in Connecticut. In Rhode Island, two 
publications increased their frequency to 
twice-weekly. 

The Oregon Newspaper group of two small 
dailies and six weeklies had lower revenues 
and expenses than in 1987. Operating income 
declined slightly. 

Record operating income and profit margins 
were achieved at Sutton Industries in 1988. 
Advertising revenues were flat, while 
expenses were 4 percent below 1987. Sutton 
distributes over 1,500,000 copies of the 
weekly PennySave1· in Southern and Northern 
California. 

Pennypower Shopping News headquartered 
in Wichita, Kansas had a positive year. With 
relatively flat revenues and lower expenses 
than in 1987, operating income was up 20 
percent. Pennypower distributes 370,000 
shopping guides weekly in Wichita and 
Topeka, Kansas, and Springfield, Missouri. 
"Nickel" publications in Seattle-Tacoma and 
Spokane, Washington, and in Portland, 
Oregon, with approximately 500,000 in total 
weekly distribution, suffered their first year­
to-year decline in operating income since 
being acquired by the Company. 

The Company's newspapers continued to 
strive for editorial excellence. Significant 
awards received in 1988 include: 

• The Kansas City Times received the 
National Press Club's Edwin M. Hood 
Award for diplomatic correspondence and 
a first-place award for investigative 

repmting by the Inland Daily Press 
Association. The evening Kansas City Star 
received Missouri Press Association Awards 
for best news content and best news story. 

• The Fort Wotth Star-Telegram received 
two first-place awards of particular merit. 
Coverage of Delta's Flight 1141 crash at 
Dallas-Fo1t Wmth Airport won first place 
for spot news in the Texas Headliners 
contest in direct competition with the two 
Dallas newspapers. The paper's series on 
the drug problem in Nmth Texas, Tragic 
Pleasures, won first place in the state Gavel 
Awards. 

• The Belleville News-Democrat won 13 
Illinois Press Association Awards (four first 
places) and the Associated Press Illinois 
Member Paper of the Year Award. 

• For the third time in the past seven years, 
The Times Leader received the 
Sweepstakes Award in state press 
association competition. 



------------------~,~,--------~--------------------"""';::;;om---------Financial Overview 

Managemenf s Discussion and 
Analysis of Results of Operations 
and Fimmciai Condition 

Results of Operations -
1988 Compared to 1987 

Consolidated net revenues for 1988 (52-week 
year ending January 1, 1989) were 
$4, 773,453,ooo, compared with 
$4,440,346,000 in 1987 (53-week year 
ending·fanuary 3, 1988), an 8% increase. 
Broadcasting net revenues for 1988 were 
$3,749,557,000, compared with 
$3/133,749,000 in 1987, a 9% increase. 
Publishing Group net revenues incre.ased only 
2%, from $1,006;597,000 in 1987 t:·, 
$1,023,896,000 in 1988. On a comparable 
52-week basis consolidated net revenues 
increased 9% in 1988. 

Net revenues in 1!)88 forthe ABC T,bl.evision 
Network, on a compa:rable 52-week basis. 
increased 10% compared with 1987, primarily 
as a result of the telecasts of the 1988 Winter 
Olympic Games and the Super Bowl. Local 
advertising strength at several major-market 
television stations and a strong performance 
at ESPN also contributed to the 1988 increase 
in bn>adcasting revenues. The Company's 
radio operations reported modest revenue 
gains in 1988. Newspaper revenues inr.reased 
moderately, principaily as a result of increased 
classified advertising and insert revenue. 
These gains, however, were largely offset by 
advertising shortfalls at certain of the 
specialized business and consumer 
publications. 

Total costs and expenses for 1988 were 
$3,957,424,000 compared with 
$3,694,356,000 in 1987, a 7% increase. 
Excluding purchase price adju3tments and the 
53rd week in 1987, total costs and expenses 
for the Company increased 10%. 
Broadcasting costs in 1988 (excluding 
purchase price adjur;tments and the 53rd 
week) increased 12% from 1987. Virtually all 
of the increase in broadcasting expenses was 
related to costs associated with the telecasts 
of special-event programming such as the 
Winter Olympic Games, War & Remembrance 

and cover~,ge of the presidential election 
campaign.· Costs at the ABC Television 
Ni!.twork were favorably influenced by the 
impact ofexpense savings associated with the 
delay in the start of the fall prime-time season 
as a result of the Writers Guild strike. Costs 
and expenses in 1988 for the Company's 
publishing operations were 4 % higher than 
1987. Higher postage and pape• expense and 
investment spending in start-up publications 
were responsible for much of the increase. 

Operating income for 1988 was 
$816,029,000, compared with $7 45,990,000 
in 1987, a 9% increase. ~rcadcasting 
operations reported a 14% increase, while 
publishing operations deci:11ed 12%. Results 
for 1988 and 1987 reflect a reduction in 
entertainment programming and sports rights 
at the l.i.BC Television Network from historic 
costs to fair market values recorded in 
connection with the acquisition of ABC of 
$191,000,000 and $120,000,000, 
respectively. These reduced costs (net of 
income taxes) benefited per share earnin65 by 
$K60 and $3.85 in 1988 and 1987, 
respectively. The Company anticipates the 
effect of &uch reductions will be approximately 
$90,000,000 in 1989 ($3.00 per share, net of 
income taxes) and immaterial amounts in 
1990 and thereafter. Results for 1988 and 
1987 include a charge uf $3.03.~r Ehare and 
$3.13 per share, respectively, for amortization 
of intangible assets arising from the ABC 
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acquisition. The effect of the amortization of 
all intangible assets of the Company was to 
reduce earnings per share by $3. 70 and $3.86 
in 1988 and 1987, respectively. 

Net financial expense (interest e)Cpense less 
interest income) for 1988 decreased 
$45,762,000 from 1987. This net decline 
resulted primarily from higher interest income 
due to a substantially increased level of cash 
invested at higher interest rates. Interest of 
$10,304,000 and $8,067,000 was capitalized 
in 1988 and 1987, respectively. 

The Company's effective tax rate was 43. 7% 
in 1988 and 50.5% in 1987. The reduction 
in the effective tax rate is primarily due to a 
reduction in the 1',ederal tax rate prescribed 
by the Tax Reforn1 Act of 1986. 

Consolidated net income for 1988 amounted 
to $387,076,000, an increase of 39% from the 
$279,078,000 earned in 1987. Earnings per 
share for 1988 were $22.31, a 36% gain over 
the $16.46 reported in 1987. Average shares 
outstanding for 1988 were 17,350,000 
compared with 16,950,000 in 1987, the 
increase primarily reflecting the exercise of 
warrants issued in connection with the 
acquisition of ABC. 

Results of Operations -
1987 Compared to 1986 

Consolidated net revenues for 1987 (53-wc:iik 
year ending January 3, 1988) were 
$4,440,346,000, compared with 
$4,124,374,000 in 1986 (52-week year ending 
December 28, 1986), an 8% increase. 
Broadcasting net revenues for 1987 were 
$3,433,749,000, compared with 
$3,153,619,000 in 1986, a 9% increase. 
Publishing net revenues increased only 4%, 
from $970,755,000 in 1986 to $1,006,597,000 
in 1987. On a comparable 52-week basis 
consolidated net revenues increased 6% in 
1987. 

Revenues fer the ABC Television Network, 
which had been down slightly for the first 
nine months of J 987, rebounded in the fourth 
quarter due to strong advertising demand. 
As a result, net revenues in 1987 for the ABC 

Television Network, on a comparable 52-week 
basis, increased 3% compared with 1986, 
despite the persistence of disappointing 
ratings levels, primarily in prime time. Strong 
local advertising growth in the larger 
television markets and increased advertising 
revenues and cable affiliate fees at ESPN also 
contributed to the 1987 increase in 
broadcasting revenues. The Company's radio 
operations reported slight revenue gains due 
to the weak demand for national advertising. 
Newspaper revenues increased modestly, 
principally as a result of circulation rate 
increases. These gains, however, were largely 
offset by advertising shortfalls at certain of 
the specialized business and consumer 
publications. 

Total costs and expenses for 1987 were 
$3,694,356,000 compared with 
$3,521,696,000 in 1986, a f>% increase. 
Excluding purchase price adjustments and the 
impact of the 53rd week in 1987, total costs 
and expenses for the Company increased 
slightly over 1 % . Broadcasting costs in 1987 
(excluding purchase price adjustments) 
increased 2% from 1986. Virtually all of the 
increase in broadcasting expenses was related 
to costs associated with ESPN's telecast of 
12 NFL games. Broadcasting costs were 
favorably influenced by the impact of 
continued cost containment programs at the 
ABC Television Network and at the former 
ABC television stations. Costs and expenses 
for 1987 for the Company's publishing 
operations were 6% higher than 1986, with 
most of the increase in the newspaper group. 
Higher newsprint costs, delivery expense, and 
costs associated with the new production 
facility at the Fort Worth Star-Telegram 
were responsible for most of this increase. 

Operating income for 1987 was $7 45,990,000 
compared with $602,678,000 in 1986, a 24% 
increase. Broadcasting operations reported 
a 33% increase while publishing operations 
declined 8%. Results for 1987 and 1986 reflect 
a reduction in entertainment programming 
and sports rights at the ABC Television 
Network from historic costs to fair market 
values recorded in connection with the 



acquisition of ABC of $120,000,000 and 
$180,000,000, respectively. These reduced 
cosl's (net of income taxes) benefited per share 
eamings by $3.85 and $5.60 in 1987 and 
19fl6, respectively. Results fm· 1987 and 1986 
indude a charge of $3.13 per share and $3.19 
pe.r share, respectively, for amortization of 
intangible assets arising from the ABC 
acquisition. The effect of the amortization of 
all intangible assets of the Company was to 
reduce e:rrrings per share by $3.86 and $3.90 
in 1987 and 1986, respectively. 

Net financial expense (interest expense less 
interest income) for 1987 decreased 
$1,540,000 from 1986. The decrease is 
primarily attributable to the effect of the 
repayment of a substantial portion of the 
outstanding commercial paper and higher 
interest income from investment of cash, 
offset by lower capitalized interest. Interest 
of $8,067,000 and $11,414,000 was 
capitalized in 1987 and 1986, respectively. 

The Company's effective tax rate was 50.5% 
in 1987 and 57.0% in 1986. The reduction 
in the effective tax rate is primarily due to a 
reduction in the Federal tax rate prescribed 
by the Tax Reform Act of 1986. 

Consolidated net income for 1987 amounted 
to $279,078,000, an increase of 53% from the 
$181,943,000 (before extrawdinary items) 
earned in 1986. Earnings per share for 1987 
were $16.46, a 47% gain over the $11.20 
(before extraordinary items) reported in 1986. 
Average shares outstanding for 1987 were 
16,950,000 compared with 16,250,000 in 
1986, the increase primarily reflecting the 
dilutive effect of outstanding warrants. In the 
first and third quarters of 1986, the Company 
reported (net of income taxes) an 
extraordinary gain of $279,996,000 and an 
extraordinary charge of $14,250,000, 
respectively (see Note 6 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements). 

Available Cash Flow 

Available cash flow is defined by the Company 
as cash from operations before changes in 
operating assets and liabilities, less amounts 
reinvested in such operations for capital 

expenditure~ and program licenses and rights. 
In 1988, the Company's available cash flow 
was $439, 714,000, representing an increase 
of $131,977,000, or 43%, over tha 
$307, 737 ,000 reported in 1987. This growth 
was primarily attributable to the increase in 
net income. 
Unlike most industrial companies, the 
Company has not been required to reinvest 
large amounts of capital each year in physical 
assets, inventories and programming licenses 
and rights to maintain the same level of 
operations. As a result of the acquisition of 
ABC, the Company acquired a substantial 
investment in prepaid entertainment 
programming and sports rights at. the ABC 
Television Network and at ESPN. Tr.e 
Company, however, does not anticipate 
significant year to :·~ar increases in prepaid 
rights in the future. · 

The Company's available cash flows have 
historically been almost equal to or higher 
than reported net income. In 1988 and 1987, 
available cash flow exceeded net income by 
$52,638,000 and $28,659,000, respectively. 
The continued generation of such available 
cash flow has allowed the Company to make 
selective acquisitions, invest in new business 
start-ups, reduce debt and, when deemed 
appropriate, repurchase its common stock. 
The continued judicious employment of 
available rash flow should enhance the 
Company's future growth in earnings and 
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stockholders' equity and enable it to reduce 
outstanding debt. 

The available cash flow for 1988 of 
$439,714,000 was increased by $407,604,000 
of net proceeds from common stock warrant 
activity, $19,072,000 from the disposition of 
an operating property and $17, 7 42,000 from 
other sources, and resulted in total cash 
provided of $884,132,000. The decrease in 
working capital items required $55,096,000, 
acquisitions of operating properties required 
$18,143,000 and other applications required 
$1(1,529,000 which resulted in total cash 
applied of $83, 768,000. The excess of cash 
provided over cash applied resulted in an 
increase. of $800,364,000 in cash and cash 
investments from January 3, 1988. 

Capita:! Expenditures and 
Program Commitments 

In 1988, capital expend'itures amounted to 
$153,413,000 compared with $116,309,000 
in 1987. The largest portion of 1988 capital 
spending was in the Company's broadcasting 
operations where $138,043,000 was spent. 
Of this amount, $51,322,000 was for the 
continued construction of a new headquarters 
building. Also, $34,430,000 was for other 
facility improvements including a new studio 
at the ABC Television Center in Los Angeles, 
and the completion of rebuilding the WLS-TV 
broadcasting facilities in Chicago. The 
remaining $52,291,000 was for broadcast 
equipment to support current operations. In 
1988, the Publishing Group spent 
$15,085,000 for ongoing operations, with an 
offset press conversion at The Oakland Press 
representing the largest expenditure. 

The Company anticipates that 1989 capital 
expenditures will approximate $140,000,000. 
This amount includes $38,000,000 for the 
completion of the new headquarters building 
along with $20,000,000 for other facility 
improvements. The remaining ·~xpenditures 
for broadcast and publishing equipment to 
support ongoing operations is expected to be 
$82,000,000, which is less than annual 
depreciation expense. 

As the operator of the ABC Television 

Capital Expenditures 

78 79 80 81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 

Network, ESPN and eight television stations, 
the Company will continue to enter into 
programming commitments to purchase the 
broadcast rights to various feature films, 
sports events and other programming. Total 
commitments to purchase broadcast 
programming were approximately 
$1,715,000,000 at the end of 1988 (including 
E$PN's commitment with Major League 
Baseball made on January 5, 1989). This 
amount is substantially payable over the next 
five years. 

The Company plans to fund its operations and 
commitments from internally generated funds 
and, if nrcded, from various external sources 
of funds which are available. 

Capital Structure 

The Company's capital structure is made up 
of four components: stockholders' equity, 
interest-bearing debt, minority interest and 
deferred income taxes. 

Stockholders' equity amounted to 
$3,025,505,000 at January 1, 1989, an 
increase of $800,584,000 from the 1987 year­
end total of $2,224,9.21,000. The increase 
was primarily attributable to the addition 
of $387,076,000 of net income and 
$407,604,000 of net proceeds from common 
stock warrant activity. The warrants were 
issued in connection with the acquisition of 
ABC. 



At January 1, 1989, total interest-bearing 
debt was $1,693,543,000, a net decrease of 
$3,358,000 from 1987. As more fully 
described in Note 5 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, total interest-bearing 
debt at January 1, 1989 includes 
$100,000,000 of commercial paper supported 
by a $1,000,000,000 bank revolving credit 
agreement, $1,575,000,000 of public and 
privately placed notes and debentures and 
$18,543,000 of other long-term debt. At 
~anuary 1, 1989, the weighted average 
mterest rate of the commercial paper, and of 
all other long-term instruments, was 9.0% and 
10.3%, respectively. 

At January 1, 1989, deferred income taxes 
~mounte_d to $168,836,000 and minority 
mterest m the Company's consolidated 
subsidiaries was $60,591,000. 

The Company's ratio of debt to total capital 
for the last five years ;vas as follows: 

Debt to 
total 

(Dollars in Total capital 
~m~il~li~o>_is;;..J ____ ,;D,;;;•b;,;t __ ....:;:•a:;ip::;it;:al~-..!.ir;1tio 

1988 .................. $1,693.5 $4,948.5 34% 
1987 .................. $1,696.9 $4,128.9 41% 
1986 .................. $1,821.8 $3,964. 7 46% 
1985 .................. $ 714.3 $1,644.7 43% 
1984 .................. $ 223.0 $ 997.4 22% 

Return on Equity 

Return on equity is an important 
measurement of the effectiveness with which 
th~ stockholders' equity is being employed. 
It 1s exp~essed as the percentage relationship 
that net mcome (before extraordinary items) 
bears to average stockholders' equity. The 
Company's return on average stockholders' 
equity was 14. 7% in 1988, 13.4% in 1987 and 
9.7% in 1986. In years prior to 1986, the 
Company's return on equity had benefited 
both from its historical ability to finance its 
growth from internally generated capital and 
?ebt rather than new equity capital, and from 
its program of repurchasing its common stock. 

In 1986, the return on equity dropped 
substantially as a result of transactions 

related to the acquisition of ABC. The 
significant resulting decline in return on equity 
was reversed beginning in 1987 as the 
Company's historical operating patterns 
returned. 

On May 19, 1988, the Board of Directors of 
the Company authorized the repurchase of up 
to 1,000,000 shares of the Company's 
common stock. The repurchases will be made 
from time to time in the open market at prices 
then prevailing. As of February 28, 1989, 
the Company has repurchased 39 300 shares 
of its common stock under this a~thorization. 

Intangible Assets 

At January 1, 1989, the Company's intangible 
assets, before accumulated amortization, 
totaled $2,454,215,000 of which 
$2,060,332,000 arose from the acquisition of 
ABC. These intangible assets accounted for 
approximately 40% of the Company's total 
assets. 

Intangible assets represent the excess of the 
purchase price over the underlying fair market 
value of tangible assets acquired. In 
accordance with Accounting Principles 
Boa:rd Opinion No. 17, the Company 
amortizes substantially all intangible assets 
over 40 years. This practice is arbitrarily 
mandated by Opinion No. 17 without regard 
to whether these assets haw; or have not 
decliner! in value. 

All of the Company's intangible assets have 
resulted '.ro~ the acquisition of broadcasting 
~nd pu_bh;;hmg properties. Historically, such 
~ntangible assets have substantially increased 
m value and have long and productive lives. 
We believe that the Company's intangible 
asse~s have appreciated in value, and that the 
requirements of Opinion No. 17, when 
applied to such publishing and broadcasting 
assets, understate net income and 
stockholders' equity. The amortization of 
intangible assets had the effect of reducing 
1988 net income by $64,128,000, or $3.';() a 
~hare .. The amoi:tization of substantially all 
mtangible assets 1s not a deductible item in 
computing income taxes. 
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(Dollars in tlumsands except per share data) 

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR 
Net revenues 

1988 

Broadcasting ..................................................... , ......................... $3,749,557 
Publishing ................................................................................... 1,023,896 

Total ............................................................................... . 4,773,453 

Operating income 
Broadcasting .... ... . . .. ....... ...... ..... ...... ....... ........ ..... ...... .. ...... ..... ..... $ 722,171 

129,720 Publishing .................................................................................. . 

Income from operations ..................................................... . 
General corporate expense ................. .> ...................................... . 

Total ............................................................................... . 

Income before extraordinary items (a) ........................................... $ 
Income per share before extraordinary items (a) .......................... . 
Cash dividends per common share ................................................. . 
Average shares (OOO's omitted) ..................................................... . 
Return on average stockholders' equity (b) ................................... . 

SELECTED CASH FLOW DATA 
Cash provided 

Operations, before changes in operating assets and liabilities .. . $ 
Available cash flow (c) ............................................................... . 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt ................................. . 
Proceeds from disposition of operating companies .................... . 

Cash applied 
Acquisition of operating companies ........................................... . $ 
Common stock purchased for treasury ...................................... . 
Capital expenditures .................................................................. . 
Reduction of long-term debt ..................................................... . 
Dividends .................................................................................... . 

AT YEAR-END 

851,891 
(35,862) 

816,029 

387,076 
$22.31 
$ 0.20 
17,350 
14.7% 

558,633 
439,714 

500 
19,072 

18,143 
3,644 

153,413 
3,458 
3,427 

Working capital ............................................................................. . $1,504,954 
Total assets .................................................................................... . 6,088,871 
Long-term debt .............................................................................. . 1,693,543 
Stockholders' equity ....................................................................... . 3,025,505 
Number of shares outstanding (OOO's omitted) ............................. . 17,999 
Price range of common stock 

Closing market price .................................................................. . $36214 
High for the year ....................................................................... . 369% 
Low for the year ........................................................................ . 297 

1987 

$3,433,749 
1,006,597 

4,440,346 

$ 632,910 
146,717 

779,627 
(33,637) 

745,990 

$ 279,078 
$16.46 
$ 0.20 
16,950 
13.4% 

$ 468,380 
307,737 

$ 13,248 
576 

116,309 
124,904 

3,231 

$ 640,574 
5,378,372 
1,696,901 
2,224,921 

16,193 

$345 
450 
26714 

1986 

$3,153,619 
970,755 

4,124,374 

$ 474,535 
158,999 

633,534 
(30,856) 

602,678 

$ 181,943 
$11.20 
$ 0.20 
16,250 

9.7% 

$ 268,162 
112,343 

1,350,507 
703,378 

$3,162,661 
1,075 

153,082 
367,528 

3,219 

$ 416,230 
5,191,416 
1,821,805 
1,948,627 

16,126 

$267¥2 
279% 
20814 

(a) Extraordinary items amounted to $265,746,000 ($16.35 per share) in 1986, $7,585,000 ($0.58 per share) in 
1984 and $2,430,000 ($0.18 per share) in 1980. 

(b) Income before extraordinary items divided by average stockholders' equity. 
(c) Cash provided from operations before changes in operating assets and liabilities, less amounts reinvested for 

capital expenditures and program license and rights. 



1985 1984 1983 1982 1981 1980 1979 1978 

$ 378,297 $ 348,106 $ 302,785 $274,298 $214,498 $167,010 $151,327 $133,360 
642,583 591,616 459,510 389,282 359,286 305,098 263,563 234,116 

1,020,880 939,722 762,295 663,580 573,784 472,108 414,890 367,476 

$ 150,970 $ 144,182 $ 124,696 $117,906 $ 99,134 $ 85,394 $ 80,319 $ 70,080 
138,512 133,179 104,034 79,010 67,520 58,186 50,668 48,781 

289,482 277,361 228,730 196,916 166,654 143,580 130,987 118,861 
(11,981) (9,849) (8,366) (7,128) (7,468) (6,205) (5,334) (4,563) 

277,501 267,512 220,364 189,788 159,186 137,375 125,653 114,298 

$ 142,222 $ 135,193 $ 114,704 $ 96,317 $ 80,518 $ 70,783 $ 63,758 $ 54,033 
$10.87 $10.40 $8.53 $7.25 $6.12 $5.38 $4.68 $3.80 
$ 0.20 $ 0.20 $0.20 $0.20 $0.20 $0.20 $0.20 $0.175 
13,080 13,000 13,455 13,280 13,150 13,165 13,615 14,220 
17.5% 19.9% 19.6% 19.5% 20.1% 21.5% 22.9% 21.8% 

$ 223,296 $ 196,600 $ 169,363 $137,529 $108,208 $ 86,589 $ 77,888 $ 66,811 
146,179 142,734 124,945 103,677 79,940 62,978 59,710 50,497 
493,329 18,065 202,527 1,944 111,640 3,834 1,900 2,696 

7,222 5,000 3,200 13,808 15,526 

$ 51,109 $ 146,843 $ 22,016 $ 21,588 $157,128 $ 32,308 $ 10,017 
484 46,135 43,619 676 125 14,753 $ 24,736 31,097 

75,384 53,866 47,595 51,651 48,634 23,611 18,178 16,314 
7,872 16,030 32,766 55,867 67,935 23,122 26,928 25,970 
2,595 2,570 2,656 2,627 2,603 2,573 2,669 2,438 

$ 830,986 $ 240,985 $ 265,847 $ 16,353 $ 4,288 $ 35,408 $ 34,428 $ 18,980 
1,884,931 1,208,172 1,052,912 776,013 697,620 519,958 473,134 444,797 

714,298 222,995 220,960 48,449 102,372 58,667 77,955 102,983 
889,260 734,455 625,255 544,267 443,822 359,081 298,497 259,691 

12,998 12,867 13,103 13,180 13,025 12,902 13,058 13,514 

$224¥2 $164% $144 $119% $73% $58% $48% $39% 
229 174¥2 157¥2 136% 80¥2 72 49% 47% 
152'A 123¥2 114% 64% 56Yz 40 36% 27~ 
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Consolidated Statement of Income 

(Dollars in thousands except per share amounts) 

1988 

Net revenues .............................................................................. . $4,773,453 

Costs and expenses 
Direct operating expenses ....................................................... . 2,908,481 
Seliing, general and administrative ........................................ . 889,110 
Depreciation ........................................................................... . 95,7C5 
Amortization of intangible assets ........................................... . 64,128 

3,957,424 

Operating income ....................................................................... . 816,029 

Other income (expense) 
Interest expense ..................................................................... . (182,362) 
Interest income ....................................................................... . 53,092 
Miscellaneous, net .................................................................. . 517 

(128,'1 ;)3) 

Income before income taxes ....................................................... . 687,276 

Income taxes 
Federal ................................................................................... . 241,500 
State and local ........................................................................ . 58,700 

300,200 

Income beforE· extraordinary items ............................................ . 387,076 
Extraordinary items, net of taxes .............................................. . 

Net income ................................................................................. . $ 387,076 

Income per share 
Before extraordinary items .................................................... . $22.31 
Extraordinary items ............................................................... . 

Net income ...........................................................•.................. $22.31 

Average shares outstanding (OOO's omitted) ............................. . 17,350 

See accompanying notes 
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1987 

$4,440,346 

2,664,444 
871,606 

92,900 
65,406 

3,694,356 

745,990 

(190,806) 
15,774 
(6,980) 

(182,012) 

563,978 

235,400 
49,500 

284,900 

279,078 

$ 279,078 

$16.46 

$16.46 

16,950 

1986 

$4,124,374 

2,534,503 
828,590 

95,201 
__ 63,402 

3,521,696 

602,678 

(185,511) 
8,939 

(3,363) 

$ 

(179,935) 

422,743 

206,400 
34,400 

240,800 

181,943 
265,746 

447,689 

$11.20 
16.35 

$27.55 

16,250 

,, 



'Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

(Dollars in thrrnsands) 

1988 1987 1986 

Cash flows from operating actiyities 
Net income....................................................................................... $ 387,1176 $ 279,078 $ 447,689 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

Noncash and nonoperating items 
Deprecia:ion ............................................................................ . 
Amortization of intangible assets ........................................... . 
Increase iu deferred liabilities ................................................. . 
Extraordinary gain on disposition of operating companies ..... . 
Other noncash items ............................................................... . 

Cash from operations before changes in operating assets 
and liabilities ........................................................................... . 
Decrease (increase) in program assets and liabilities, net. ..... . 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable .............................. . 
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses 

and other current liabilities ................................................. . 
(Increase) decrease in other operating assets, net. ................. . 

Net cash provided by operating activities ........................................... . 
Cash flows from investing activities 

Capital expanditures ....................................................................... . 
Acquisition of operating companies ................................................ . 
Proceeds from disposition of operating companies ......................... . 
Proceeds from disposition of real estate ......................................... . 
Other investing activities, net.. ....................................................... . 

Net cash used in investing activities .................................................. . 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Net proceeds (payments) from common stock warrant activity ..... . 
Common stock purchased for treasury ........................................... . 
Dividends ........................................................................................ . 
Red11d.i~n of long-term debt ........................................................... . 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt ..................................... . 
Proceeds from common stock sold to Berkshire Hathaway Inc ..... . 
Other financing activities ................................................................ . 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ............................ . 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and short-term cash investments ..... . 
Cash and short-term cash investments 

95,705 
64,128 

9,866 

1,858 

558,633 
34,494 
(1,107) 

(34,506) 
(19,483) 

538,031 

(153,413) 
(18,143) 
19,072 

4,267 

(148,217) 

407,604 
(3,644) 
(3,427) 
(3,458) 

500 

12,975 

410,550 

800,364 

Begim:;ng of period......................................................................... 333,630 

End of period................................................................................... $1,133,994 

See accompanying notes 

92,900 
65,406 
16,029 

14,967 

468,380 
(44,334) 
86,874 

48,044 
(30,642) 

528,322 

(116,309) 
(13,248) 

20,161 
26,583 

(82,813) 

(12,120} 
(576) 

(3,231) 
(124,904) 

13,143 

(127,688) 

317,821 

15,809 

$ 333,630 

95,201 
63,402 
98,032 

(436,796) 
634 

268,162 
(2,737) 

(152,034) 

35,573 
26,465 

175,429 

(153,082) 
(3,162,661) 

703,378 
162,165 

24,257 

(2,425,943) 

(J 6,569} 
(1,075) 
(3,219) 

(367,528) 
1,350,507 

517,500 
17,848 

1,497,464 

(753,050) 

768,859 

$ 15,809 
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Capital Cities/ ABC 

Consolidated Balance Sheet 

January 1, 1989 and January 3, 1988 
(pollars in thousands) 

·Assets 

Current assets 
Cash ........................................................................................................................ . 
Short-term cash investments .................................................................................. . 
Accounts and notes receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of 

$37,702 in 1988 and $37,798 in 1987) ............................................................... . 
Program licenses and rights ................................................................................... . 
Other current assets ............................................................................................... . 

Total current assets ..................................................................................... . 

Property, plant and equipment, at cost 
Land ........................................................................................................................ . 
Buildings and improvements ................................................................................... . 
Broadcasting and publishing equipment ................................................................. . 
Other, including construction-in-progress .............................................................. . 

Less accumulated depreciation ............................................................................... . 

Property, plant and equipment, net ............................................................. . 

Intangible assets (net of accumulated amortization of $236,848 in 1988 
and $177,878 in 1987) ............................................................................................ . 

Program licenses and rights, noncurrent .................................................................... . 
Other assets ................................................................................................................ . 

See accompanying notes 
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1988 

25,714 
1,108,280 

694,955 
375,273 
166,927 

2,371,149 

399,400 
495,313 
512,427 
165,174_ 

1,572,314 

376,433 

1,195,881 

2,217,367 
181,614 
122,860 

$6,088,871 

$ 

1987 

9,946 
323,684 

695,426 
369,844 
146,602 

1,545,502 

395,097 
459,766 
456,360 
113,325 

1,424,548 

287,415 

1,137,133 

2,272,799 
298,984 
123,954 

$5,378,372 



Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity 1988 1987 

Current liabilities 
Accounts payable ..................................................................................................... . $ 67,667 $ 80,404 
Accrued compensation ............................................................................................. . 112,246 114,753 
Accrued interest.. ..................................................................................................... . 55,778 56,289 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities ........................................................ . 213,511 208,338 
Program licenses and rights .................................................................................... . 265,383 272,478 
Taxes on income ...................................................................................................... . 150,084 171,124 
Long-term debt due within one year ....................................................................... . 1,526 1,542 

Total current liabilities ................................................................................. . 866,195 ()04,928 

Deferred compensation ................................................................................................ . 64,117 66,079 
Deferred income taxes ................................................................................................. . 168,836 159,080 
Unearned subscription revenue ................................................................................... . 43,090 40,617 
Program licenses and rights, noncurrent ..................................................................... . 72,316 142,668 
Other liabilities ............................................................................................................ . 96,204 96,697 
Long-term debt due after one year .............................................................................. . 1,692,017 1,695,359 

Total liabilities .............................................................................................. . 3,002,775 3,105,428 

Minority interest .......................................................................................................... . 60,591 48,023 
Stockholders' equity 

Preferred stock, no par value (4.000,000 shares authorized} .................................. . 
Common stock, $1 par value (80,000,000 shares authorized) ................................. . 18,394 18,394 
Additional paid-in capital ......................................................................................... . 961,647 646,124 
Retained earnings .................................................................................................... . 2,101,193 1,717,544 

3,081,234 2,382,062 

Less common stock in treasury, at cost (394,073 shares in 1988 
and 2,200,957 shares in 1987) ............................................................................ . 55,729 157,141 

Total stockholders' equity ............................................................................ . 3,025,505 2,224,921 

$6,088,871 $5,378,372 
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Capital Cities/ ABC 

Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity 

(Dollars -in thousan<fo) 
Additional 

Co111n1011 11aid-i11 ltetained 'l'reasury 
stock capital earnings stock Total 

Balance December 31, 1985 ............................. $15,394 $ 37,844 $ 997,227 $(161,205) $ 889,260 

Net income for 1986 ..................................... 447,689 447,689 
3,000,000 shares sold to Berkshire Hathaway 

Inc. ···························································· 3,000 514,500 517,500 
2,906, 703 warrants issued ............................ 97,193 97,193 
116,013 warrants redeemed ......................... (3,879) (3,879) 

246,100 warrants purchased ........................ (12,802) (12,802) 

449 warrants exercised ................................. 99 13 112 
44,67 4 shares issued under Employee Stock 

Purchase Plan ............................................ 7,092 l,279 8,371 
87,666 shares issued on exercise of employee 

stock options .............................................. 6,974 2,503 9,477 
4,201 shares purchased for treasury ............. (1,075) (1,075) 
Cash dividends .............................................. _(3,219) (3,219) 

Balance December 28, 1986 ............................. 18,394 647,021 1,441,697 (158,485) 1,948,627 

Net income for 1987 ..................................... 279,078 279,078 

205,478 warrants purchas~d ........................ (13,888) (13,888) 
7 ,072 warrants exercised .............................. 1,567 201 1,768 

33,893 shares issued under Employee Stock 
Purchase Plan ............................................ 6,374 960 7,334 

26,728 shares issued on exercise of employee 
stock options .............................................. 5,050 759 5,809 

1,407 shares purchased for treasury ............. (576) (576) 
Cash dividends .............................................. (3,231) (3,231) ---

Balance January 3, 1988 ......................•........... 18,394 646,124 1,717,544 (157,141) 2,224,921 

Net income for 1988 ..................................... 387,076 387,076 

541,016 warrants purchased ......................... (34,266) (34,266) 
1,767,478 warrants exercised ........................ 339,451 102,419 441,870 

27,701 shares issued under Employee Stock 
Purchase Plan ............................................ 7,215 996 8,211 

22,432 shares issued on exercise of 
employee stock options ............................... 3,123 1,641 4,764 

10,727 shares purchased for treasury ........... (3,644) (3,644) 

Cash dividends .............................................. (3,427) (3,427) 

Balance .January 1, 1989 .................................. $18,394 $961,647 $2,101,193 $ (55,72~) $3,0~fi,505 

See accompanying notes 
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-----------··------------------------Notes to Consolidated Final1cial Statements 

I. Accounting Policies 

Principles of Consolidation-The consolidated finan­
cial statements include the accounts of all significant 
subsidiaries. Investments in other companies which 
are at least 20% owned are reported on the equity 
method. All significant intercompany accounts and 
transactions have been eliminated. 

Properly, Plant and Equipment-Depreciation-De­
preciation is computed on the straight-line method 
for financial accounting purposes and on accelerated 
methods for tax purposes. Estimated useful lives for 
major asset categories are 10-40 years for buildings 
and improvements, 4-8 years for broadcasting equip­
ment, and 5-20 years for publishing machinery and 
equipment. Leasehold improvements are a..'Ilortized 
over the terms of the leases. 

Intangible Assels-lr!tangible assets consist of 
amounts by which the cost of acquisitions exceeded 
the values assigned to net tangible assets. The broad­
casting and publishing intangible assets, all of which 
may be characterized as scarce assets with very long 
and productive lives, have his~orically increased in 
value with the passage of time. In accordance with 
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 17, sub­
stantially all of these intangible assets are being amor­
tized over petiods of up to 40 years, even though in the 
opinion of management there has been no diminution of 
value of the underlying assets. 

Program Licenses and Rights-Program licenses and 
rights and the related liabilities are recorded when the 
license period begins and the program is available for 
use. Television network and station rights for theatri­
cal movies and other long-form programming are 

2. Income Per Share 

The calculation of average common shares and common 
share equivalents outstanding during the year is as 
follows (OOO's omitted): 

charged to expense primarily on accelerated bases 
related to the usage of the program. Television network 
series costs are charged to expense based on the flow 
of anticipated revenue. Sports rights are generally 
charged to expense when the event is telecast. 

Uneamed Subscription Revenue-Subscription rev­
enue is recorded as earned over the life of the 
subscriptions. Costs in connection with the procure­
ment of subscriptions are generally charged to expense 
as incurred. 

Capitalized Jnter11st-Interest is car:talized in 
accordance with Financial Accounting Standards 
Board Statement No. 34. As a result, $10,304,000, 
$8,067,000, and $11,414,000 was capitalized in 1988, 
1987 and 1986, respectively. 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows-In 1988, the 
Company adopted Financial Accmmting Standards 
Board Statement No. 95, "Statement of Cash Flows," 
and accordingly, prior years' statement of changes in 
financial position has been restated to conform to the 
1988 presentation. For purposes of the Statement, 
short-term investments which have a maturity of three 
months or less a.t the time '}f purchase, are considered 
cash equivalents. 

Reporting Year-T.he Company's reporting year is a 
fiscal year ending the Sunday closest to December 31. 
Results for 1988 are for the 52-week year ended 
January 1, 1989, for 1987 for the 53-week year ended 
January 3, 1988, and for 1986 for the 52-week year 
ended December 28, 1986. 

1988 1987 1986 

Common shares ....................... 16,965 16,165 16,090 
Stock options ........................... 75 90 95 
Warrants .................................. 310 695 65 

Total ................................. 17,350 16,95U 16,250 
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3. Acquisitions 

1988-During 1988, the Company increased its equity 
interest to 25% in a European cable television program­
ming service, and also acquired several sinall publishing 
operations. The combined cash purchase price for 
these acquisitions was $18,143,000. 

1987-In 1987, the Company acquired radio stations 
KRXY-AM/FM, serving the Denver, Colorado market, 
and several small publishing operations for a combined 
cash purchase price of $13,248,000. 

1986-0n January 3, 1986, the Company acquired 
l\merican Broadcasting Companies, Inc. (ABC) for 
an aggregate cash purchase price of $3,150,102,000. 
Each share of ABC common stock entitled the holder 
to receive $l18.108 plus 0.1024 of a warrant. Each 
warrant provided the holder the right to purchase one. 
share of the Company's common stock at $250.00 per 
share until July 29, 1988. The non-cash value of the 
2,906,703 warrants nf $97,193,0QO was included in 
additional paid-in capital. 

The aggregate cash purchase price was financed by 
proceeds from the disposal of certain of the Company's 
and ABC's operating prope1ties (see Note 6), the 

4. Commitments 

At January 1, 1989, the Company is committed for the 
purchase of broadcast rights for various feature films, 
sports events and other programming aggregating 
approximately $1,715,000,000. This amount includes 
ESPN's commitm<i'nt with Major League Baseball made 
on January 5, 1989. 

The aggregate paym~nts related to these commitments 
during the next five years are summarized as follows: 
1989 $762,161,000; 1990 $267,635,000; 
1991 $204,073,000; 1992 - $203,151,000; 
1993 $166,467 ,000. 

The Company anticipates 1989 capital expenditures 
for property, plant and equipment will approximate 
$140,000,000. 

Rental expense under operating leases amolinted to 
$88,008,000, $85,678,000 an($83,814,000 for £988, 
1987 and 1986; respectively. 

~o 

issuance of $1.,375,000,000 of fixed rate long-term 
debt, the sale of 3,000,000 shares of .the Company's 
common stock to Berkshire Hathaway Inc. for 
$517,500,000, the issuance of comme<.:~ial paper and 
from available cash. 

In 1986, the Company also acquired radio stations 
KQRS-AM/FM serving the Minneapolis-St. Paul, Min­
nesota market, and PEMCO; a trade show exhibition 
company, for a combined cash pµrchase price of 
$12,559,000. 

In connection with the above acquisitions, liabilities 
assumed and other ·non-cash transactions were as 
follows (OOO's omitted): 

1988 1987 1986 
~ ...... 

Recorded value bi' 
assets acquired ..... $25,547 $17,689 $4,804,169 

Liabilities assumed ... (7;112) (4,441) (1,320,562) 

Common stock 
\Varrants issued .... (97,193) 

Less cash acquired ... - (292) (223,753) 

Net cash paid for 
acquisitions ........... $18,143 $13,248 $3,162,661 

Future minimum annual rental payments und2r non­
cancelable leases are as follows (OOO's omitte<!O: 

Capital 
leases 

1989 ············································ $ 5,256 
1990 ············································ 4,7:18 
1991 ············································ 3,735 
1992 ············································ 3,320 
1993 ············································ 2,919 
1994 and thereafter..................... 134,709 

Minimum lease 
payments................................. 154,677 

Imputed interest ......................... (124,389) 

Present value of minimum 
lease payments ....................... $ 30,288 

Operating 
leases 

$ 77,223 
58,537 
52,890 
44,531 
36,743 

152,541 

$422,465 

Total minimum payments for operating leases have 
not been reduced for futm·.q minimum sublease 
rentals aggregating $60,237,00b. 



5. Long-Term Debt 

Long-term debt at January 1, 1989 and January 3, 
1988, is as follows (OOO's omitted): 

1988 1987 

Commercial paper suppm1ed by 
bank revolving credit 
agreement.. .............................. $ 100,000 $ 101,916 

10.8% Senior Notes due 1994, 
with annual sinking fund 
payments of $93,750 
beginning in 1991 .................. .. 

814% notes due 1996 ................... . 

1011<% notes due 1997 ................ .. 

11 'Ii% subordinated debentures 
due 2013, with annual 
sinking fund payments 

375,noo 
200,000 

200,000 

beginning in 1994.................... 200,000 

11%% debentures due 2015, 
with annual sinking fund 
payments beginning in 1996 ... 300,000 

8'1i% debentures due 2016, with 
annual sinking fund payments 
beginning in 1997 .................... 300,000 

Other long-term dobt................... 18,543 

$1,693,543 

375,000 

200,000 

200,000 

200,000 

300,000 

300,000 

19,985 

$1,696,901 

The aggregate payments oflong-tenn debt outstanding 
at January 1, 1989 for the next five years, excluding 
commercial paper, are summarized as follows: 1989-
$1,526,000; 1990-$2,429,000; 1991--$95,306,000; 
1992-$95,307,000; 1993-$95,140,000. 

Interest paid on long-term debt during 1988, 1987 and 
1986, amounted to $193,177,000, $196,908,000 and 
$164,202,000, respectively. 

A subsidiary of the Company has issued commercial 
paper, $100,000,000 of which was outstanding at 
January 1, 1989, at a weighted avernge inte!'cst rate 
of 9.0%. The commercial paper is supported by a 

$1,000,000,000 bank revolving credit agreement ter­
minating on June 30, 1990, unless othenvise extended. 
The agreement requires a commitment fee on the 
unused po1tion of the available credit of Ii%. Under 
terms of the bank revolving credit agreement, the 
Company and its consolidated subsidiaries m·e reqttit'ed 
to maintain a consolidated net wmth of $1,552,137,000 
at January 1, 1989, increasing annually by 33 percent 
of the consolidated net income of the previous year. 

The commercial papr,r outstanding at January 1, 1989 
is classified as long-term, since the Company intends 
to renew or replace with long-term borrowings all, or 
substantially all, of the commercial paper. However, 
the amount of commercial paper outstanding in 1989 
is expected to fluctuate and may be reduced from time 
to time. 

The 8%% debentures, 11%% debentures and 11%% 
debentures are redeemable at the option of the Com­
pany, in whnle or in pm1, at a declining premium to 
par until 2006, 2005 and 2003, respectively, and at 
par thereafter; provided, howevet", that these deben­
tures not be redeemed from, or in anticipation of, funds 
borrowed at cettain specified lower interest rateo for a 
pel'iod of ten years from theit· dates of issuance. The 
10Y:!% notes and 8!11% notes are redeemable at pm· 
stm1ing in 1992 and 1993, respectively. The 10.8% 
Senior Notes are not redeemable pl'ior to 1992, at 
which time they may be redeemed at a price of 104% 
of par until maturity. 

The Company has unconditionally guaranteed the 
10.8% Senior Notes, the 8V.% notes, the 8%% deben­
tures which have been issued by a wholly-owned subsid­
iary, and ·che commercial paper, and any borrowings 
which may be made by a subsidiary under the bank 
revolving credit agreement. 

The proceeds from the issuance of virtually all of the 
outstanding debt were used to finance the acquisition 
of ABC in 1986. 
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6. Extraortlinary Items-1986 

In transactions related to the acquisition of ABC, and 
to comply with certain regulations of the Federal 
Communications Commission, during January 1986 
the Company sold certain broadcasting properties and 
all of its cable television systems. The cash proceeds 
of these sales were $703,378,000 and resulted in an 
extraordinary gain of $279,996,000 (net of income 
taxes of $156,800,000). 

7 .. Employees' Profit Sharing 
and Pension Plans 

The Company has defined benefit pension plans or 
qualified profit sharing plans covering substantially all 
of its emnloyees not covered by union plans. The 
profit sharing plans provide for contributions by the 
Company in such amount as the Board of Directors 
may annually determine. Contributions to the pro­
fit sharing plans of $6,616,000, $6,261,000 and 
$5,339,000 were charged to expense in 1988, 1987 
and 1986, respectively. 

With respect to the defined benefit pension plans, the 
Company's policy is to fund amounts as are necessary 
on an actuarial basis to provide for benefits in accord­
ance with the requirements of ERISA. Benefits are 
generally based on years of service and compensation. 

The weighted average discount rate used in determin­
ing the actuarial present value of the projected benefit 
obligation was 9% and 8% at year-end 1988 and 
1987, respectively. The rate of increase in future 
compensatigh levels and the expected long-term rate 
qf ri\turn oil. assets were 5% and 8%, respectively, in 
1988 and 1987. ·: 

;~: 

During the third quarter of 1986, the Company and its 
subsidiary, The Kansas City Star Company (the Star), 
settled actions brought against them by the Star's 
independent contract carriers concerning its newspaper 
delivery routes and distribution system. The settlement 
resulted in an extraordinary charge of $14,250,000 
(net of income taxes of $14,252,000). 

The components of net pension cost for 1988, 1987 
and 1986 were as follows (OOO's omitted): 

1988 1987 1986 

Service cost of current 
period ......................... $ 13,078 $ 11,900 $ 13,142 

Interest cost on 
projected benefit 
obligation................... 25,419 

Actual return on plan 

23,088 22,177 

assets ....•.................... (42,729) (24,897) (51,112) 

Net amortization and 
deferral...................... 10,4 7 4 (6,819) 21,991 

Net pension cost.. .......... $ 6,242 $ 3,272 $ 6,198 

The following table sets fo<1r the pension plans' funded 
status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet at 
January 1, 1989 and January 3, 1988 (OOO's omitted): 

1988 1987 

Actuarial present value of accumulated pfan benefits including vested benefits of $230,911 
($234,024 in 1987) ...•...................................................................................................................... $ 244,802 

Plan assets at fair value, primarily publicly tradadsecurities and short-term cash investments ........ $ 414,849 
Projected benefit obligation for service rendered to date.................................................................... (299,532) 

P!:in assets in excess of projected benefit obligation........................................................................... 115,317 
Prior servic~ cost not yet recognized in net periodic pension cost....................................................... 5,877 
Unrecognized net gain from past experience different from that assumed......................................... (68,077) 
Unrecognized net asset (transition amount) being recognized principally over 15 1•ears ................... (26,961) 

Prepaid pension cost included in balance sheet ................................................................................... $ 26;156 =--

$ 250,087 

$ 386,736 
_Ji!04,098) 

82,638 
(1,164) 

(24,677) 
(29,206) 

$ 27,591 



8. Segment Data 

The Company operates the ABC Television Network 
and eight affiliated television stations, six radio net­
works and 21 radio stations, and provides program­
ming for cable television. The Company publishes 
newspapers, shopping guides, various specialized busi­
ness and consumer periodicals and books; and also 
distributes information from data bases. Operations 
are classified into two business segments: Broadcasting 

1988 

Broadcasting 
Net revenues .......................................................... $3,749,557 

Direct operating costs ........................................ 2,904,668 
Depreciation ....................................................... 76,303 
Amortization of intangible assets ....................... 46,415 

Total operating costs .............................................. 3,027,386 

Income from operations ......................................... $ 722,171 

Assets at year-end .................................................. $3,927,891 
Capital expenditures .............................................. 138,043 

Publishing 
Net revenues .......................................................... $1,023,896 

Direct operating costs ........................................ 858,102 
Depreciation ....................................................... 18,361 
Amortization of intangible assets ....................... 17,713 

Total operating costs .............................................. 894,176 

Income from operations ......................................... $ 129,720 

Assets at year-end .................................................. $ 898,608 
Capital expenditures .............................................. 15,085 

Consolidated 
Net revenues .......................................................... $4,773,453 

Income from operations ......................................... $ 851,891 

and Publishing. There are no product transfers bet7 

ween segments of the Company, and virtually all of 
the Company's business i~conducted within the United 
States. Prior to 1986, tile Company owned and oper­
ated cable television sy~tems. They were classified as 
a separate business segment and are included below 
in the Broadcasting segment. The segment data 
follows {OOO's omitted): 

1987 1986 1985 1984 

$3,433,749 $3,153,619 $ 378,297 $ 348,106 

2,680,582 2,554,932 192,249 172,867 
73,730 78,952 26,711 23,257 
46,527 45,200 8,367 7,800 

2,800,839 2,679,084 227,327 203,924 

$ 632,910 $ 474,535 $ 150,970 $ 144,182 

$4,018,775 $4,186,650 $ 537,797 $ 507,433 
102,425 104,278 26,327 26,370 

$1,006,597 $ 970,755 $ 642,583 $ 591,616 

822,123 778,201 482,333 438,414 
18,878 15,353 10,395 10,190 
18,879 18,202 11,343 9,833 

859,880 811,756 504,071 458,437 

$ 146,717 $ 158,999 $ 138,512 $ 133,179 

$ 908,193 $ 920,896 $ 455,274 $ 430,997 
13,114 48,589 45,869 26,700 

$4,440,346 $4,124,374 $1,020,880 $ 939,722 

$ 779,627 $ 633,534 $ 289,482 $ 277,361 
General corporate expense ................................. (35,862) (33,637) (30,856) (11,981) (9,849) 

Operating income ................................................... 816,029 745,990 602,678 277,501 267,512 
Interest expense ....................................... -......... (182,362) (190,806) (185,511) (22, 738) (27,161) 
Interest and other income .................................. 53,609 8,794 5,576 22,059 28,442 

Income before income taxes ................................... $ 687,276 $ 563,978 $ 422,743 $ 276,822 $ 268,793 

Assets employed by segments ................................ $4,826,499 $4,926,968 $5,107,546 $ 993,071 $ 938,430 
Cash investments and other corporate assets ........ 1,262,372 451,404 83,870 891,860 269,742 

Total assets at year-end ......................................... $6,088,871 $5,378,372 $5,191,416 $1,884,931 $1,208,172 
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9. Income Taxes 

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount 
of tax determined by applying the Federal statutory 
rate for the following reasons (OOO's omitted): 

1988 
Amount 

1987 
% Amount 

1986 
% Amount % _,_ 

fncome before income taxes .................................... . 

Income tax expense at statutory Federal rate ......... . 

$687,276 

$233,674 34.0 

$563,978 

$225,591 40.0 

$422,743 

$194,462 46.0 
State and local income taxes, net 

of Federal benefit .................................................. . 
Amortization of intangibles ...................................... . 
Other, net ................................................................. . 

38,750 
21,804 
5,972 

5.6 
3.2 
0.9 

29,700 
26,162 
3,447 

5.3 
4.6 
0.6 

18,576 4.4 
28,705 6.8 

(943) (0.2) 

Total. ........................................................................ . $300,200 43.7 $284,900 50.5 $240,800 57.0 

Income tax expense is comprised of the following 
(OOO's omitted): 

1988 

Federal 
Current ...................... $239,600 
Deferred..................... 1,900 

241,500 
State and local 

Current...................... 58,000 
Deferred..................... 700 

58,700 
Total .............................. $300,200 

1987 1986 

$246, 700 $205,800 
(11,300) 600 
235,400 206,400 

52,600 34,300 
(3,100) 100 
49,500 34,400 

$284,900 $240,800 

The provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes repre­
sents the tax effect of transactions reported in different 
periods for financial and income tax reporting purposes, 
and results from the following timing differences (OOO's 
omitted): 

Accelerated 
depreciation ............... $ 

Program costs ............... . 
Defer.red compensation .. 
Other. ............................ . 
Total .............................. $ 

1988 1987 

13,600 $ 19,200 
(1,800) (12,900) 
(1,900) (12,600) 
(7,300) (8,100) 

1986 

$ 22,500 
(15,600) 
(8,100) 
1,900 

2,600 $ (14,400) =$ =7=0=0 

Income taxes paid, net of refunds received, during 
1988, 1987 and 1986 amounted to $228,570,000, 
$135,767,000 and $107,302,000, respectively. 
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The I. 86 extraordinaty gain on the disposition of 
certain of the Company's broadcasting and cable prop­
erties is net of income taxes of $156,800,00(l (see Note 
6). Of this amount, approximately $67,000,000 has 
been deferred pursuant to Section 1071 Qf the Internal 
Revenue Code, under which the Company received tax 
ce1tificates from the Federal Communications Commis· 
sion deferring the taxes related to these dispositions 
until disposition of the replacement prope1ties. De­
ferred income taxes at January 1, 1989 also include 
approximately $66,000,000 of taxes relating to the 
disposition ofbroadcastingpropeities by ABC, in 1986, 
deferred undt>r the provisions of Section 1071. 

In December 1987, Financial Accounting Standards 
Board Statement No. 96 was issued which requires a 
change in the method of accounting for income taxes. 
This statement must be implemented by 1990. Upon 
adoption of FAS No. 96, the Company has the option 
of restating prior years' financial st::itements. The 
Company does not expect to adopt the standard prhr 
to 1990 and does not presently intend to restate foe 
L.ancial statements of prior years upon adoption. 
Accordingly, there would be no effect on the 1988 
financial statements, and the effect on the 1990 finan­
cial statements of implementing the change is not 
estimated to be material. 
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10. Stock Option, Stock Purchase 
and Savings Plans 

The Company has stock option plans under which 
certain ke)' .personnel have been granted the right to 
purchase shares of com!non stock over a 10- or 11-
year period from the date Qf grant at pricP5 equal to 
market value on the grant 'late. Each option ' . 

Outstanding options, beginning of year ........•........................... 

Granted .................................................................................... . 

Cancelled or expired ................................................................ . 

Exercised .................................................................................. . 

Outstanding options, etrd of year ............................................. . 

Average price of options exercised during the year ................ . 

Exercise price of outstanding options, end of year ......... : ........ . 

Options exercisable, end of year .............................................. . 

Options available for future grant .... '" ..................................... . 

The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan 
which allows eligible employees, through contributions 
of up to 15% of their compensation, to purchase shares 
at 85% of the lower of fair market value at the Grant 
Date or at the Purchase Date (normally one year 
subsequent). Employees purchased 27,701, 33,893 
and 44,67 4 shares under the Plan in 1988, 1987 and 
1986, respectively. As of January 1, 1989, 395,872 
shares remain available to be purchased through the 
period ending April 1992. 

11. Common .Stock, Warrant and 
Stvckholder Information (Unaudited) 

As of Pebruary 28, 1989, the approximate number of 
holders of common stock was 6,270. Dividends of $.05 
per share have been paid for each quarter of 1988 and 
1987. The commo1\stock is traded or the New York 

His;h 

1st quart•,r ................................................................ $357\t, 
2nd quartl'r ............................................................... 364 
3rd quart,.r ······························································· 362 
4th quart r ······························································· 369% 

Ia connection with the 1986 acquisition of ABC, 
2,906,703 warrants were issued. Each wan·ant enti­
tled the holder to purchase one share of common stock 
at $250.00 per share until July 29, 1988. During the 

cumulatively exercisable as to 25% ofthe totnl ~hat·es 
represented thereby for each of the first four years 
after grant, provided that the individual remains in the 
employ of the Company. The following information 
pe1tains to the Company's stock option plf.ns: 

1988 1987 1986 

143,055 166,t~33 2G5,799 
4,500 

(250) (1,150} (11,700) 
(22,432) (26,728) (87,666) 

120,373 143,055 166,433 

$75.74 $96.19 $41.90 
$40.13 to $383.38 $23.94 to $383.38 $23.94 to $220.69 

112,037 128,083 132,525 
501,455 501,205 204,555 

The Company also has the Savings & Investment Plan 
which allows eligible employees to allocate up to 10% 
of salary through payroll deduction among a Company 
stock fund, a diversified equity fund and a guaranteed 
income fund. The Company matches 50% of the 
employee's contribution, up to 5% of salary. In 1988, 
1987 and 1986, the cost of this plan (net of forfeitures) 
was $6,942,000, $6,479,000 and $5,877,000, respec­
tively. 

and Pacific Stock Exchanges. The high, low and 
closing prices of the Company's common stock for each 
quarter of 1988 and 1987 are as follows: 

1988 1987 ---· 
Low Close HiiS:h Low Close 

$309 $341\t, $355 $267111 $347% 
297 317\.B 394 324 385% 
307 355Y, 450 378~ 419\t, 
343 362~ 447 297 345 

time the warrants were outstanding, the Company 
purchased and redeemed 1,108,607 wllrrants at an 
average cost of $58.48 per warrant, and received 
$443,750,000 from the exercise of 1,77 4,999 warrants. 
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12. Quarh.:rly Fiuancic.1 Data (Faaudited) 

The following summarizes the Company's results of 
operations fpr each qua1t.er of 1988, 1987 and 1986 
(OOO's omitted, except per share amounts). The net 
income per share computation for each quart~r and the 

1988 

First 
quarter 

Net revenues........................................................... $1,288,807 
Costs and expenses ................. ,........................ 1,121,846 

Operating income ................................................. , .. 
Interest expense ............................................. . 
Interest and other income ............................... . 

Income before income taxes ................................... . 
Income taxes ................................................... . 

166,961 
(46,370) 

6,754 

127,345 
57,000 

Net income.............................................................. $ 70,345 

Net income per ,;hare.............................................. $4.16 

1987 
Net revenues........................................................... $ 959,201 

Costs rnd expenses.......................................... 861,858 

Operating inc'lme ................................................... . 
Interest expense ............................................. . 
Interest and other income ............................... . 

Income before income taxes ................................... . 
Income taxes ................................................. .. 

Net income.............................................................. $ 

Net income per share ............................................. . 

1986 
Net revenues........................................................... $ 

Costs and expenses ......................................... . 

Operating income ................................................... . 
Int~rest expense ............................................. . 
Interest and other income ............................... . 

Income before income taxes ................................... . 
income taxes .................................................. . 

Income before extraordinary items ........................ . 
Extraordinary items ....................................... . 

97,343 
(48,004) 

487 

49,826 
25,900 

23,926 

$1.43 

912,337 
855,574 

56,763 
(42,343) 

1,950 

16,370 
14,400 

1,970 
279,996 

year are separate calculations. Accordingly, the sum 
of the quarterly net income per share amounts may 
not equal the net income per share for the yem·. 

Second. 
quarter 

$1,159,486 
914,809 

244,677 
(45,805) 

8,0ll 

206,886 
93,000 

$ 113,886 

$6.78 

$1,126,795 
871,615 

$ 

255,180 
(47,470) 

2,822 

210,532 
110,800 

99,732 

$5.88 

$1,065,674 
866,273 

199,401 
(47,387) 

2,015 

154,029 
87,000 
67,029 

Third 
quarter 

$1,009,555 
871,295 

1H8,260 
(45,494) 
17,068 

109,834 
47,200 

$ 62,634 

$3.55 

$ 946,211 
829,124 

117,087 
(45,566) 

$ 

4,815 

76,336 
37,900 

38,43~ 

$2.23 

$ 959,039 
830,806 

128,233 
(45, 152) 

39 

83,120 
50,500 
32,620 

(14,250) 

Fourth 
quarter Year 

$1,315,605 $4,773,453 
1,049,474 3,957,424 

266,131 
(44,693) 
21,773 

243,211 
103,000 

816,029 
(182.362) 

53,609 

687,276 
300,200 

$ 140,21l $ 387,076 

$7.76 $22.31 
== 

$1,408,139 $4,440,346 
1,131,759 3,694,356 

276,380 
(49,766) 

670 

227,284 
110,30()_ 

$ 116,384 

--~ 

$1,187,324 
969,043 

218,281 
(50,629) 

1,572 

169,224 
88,900 
80,324 

745,990 
(190,806) 

8,794 

563,978 
284,900_ 

$ 279,078 

=$16.46 

$4,i24,374 
3,521,696 

602,678 
(185,511) 

5,576 

422,743 
240,800 
181,943 
265,74~6 

Net income .............................................. .,.............. $ 281,966 $ 67,029 $ 18,370 $ 80,324 !__!!~ 

Income per share 
Before extraordinary items ............................ . 
Extraordinary items ....................................... . 

Net income per share ............................................. . 

$ 0.12 
17.36 ---

$17.48 

$4.15 

$4.15 

$2.01 
(0.88) 

$1.13 

$4.90 

$4.90 

$11.20 
16.35 ---

$27.55 
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Report of Independent Public Accountants 

The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet 
of Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. at January 1, 1989 and January 3, 
1988, and the related consolidated statemen(- Jf income, 
stockholders' equity, and cash Oows for each of the three years 
in the period ended January 1, 1989. These financial statements 
are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also .includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the ove1·all financial statement 
presentation. We, believe tha1< our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinbn. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position 
of Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. at January 1, 1989 and January 3, 
1988, and the consolidated results of operations and cash flows 
for each of the three years in the period ended January 1, 1989 
in conformity with generally acceptecl accounting principles. 

~~:~ 
New York, Ne.JI York(/ 
February 28, l\l89 · 

- -- . ~ 
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Capital Cities/ ABC 

Report of Management 

The management of Capital Citb<J/ABC, Inc. is responsible for 
the information included in th~ con°nlidated financial 
statements. These statements, including the accompanying 
notes, have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles and include amounts which are based 
upon, management's best estimates and judgments. 

In recognition of its responsibility for the integrity a1.1d reliability 
ofthe data contained in the financial statements, management 
maintains a system of internal controls. Internal controls are 
designed to provide reasonable but not abso\'ate assurance at 
appropriate cos~ that assets are safeguarded from loss or 
unauth1Jrized use; 'and that the financial records are reliable for 
the pr•Jparation of financial statements. 

'l'he Audit Committt;e of the Board of Directors, which is 
composed of five outside directors, meets periodically with 
management, the independent auditors and the internal auditors 
to ensure that each is carrying out its responsibilities. The 
Audit Committee reports its conclusions and recommendatk1hs 
to the Boat )l of Directors. Both the independent and intern:il 
auditors !five free and direct access to the A !ldit Committee. 

The financial statements have been audited by the Company's 
independent public accountants in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards. In tha\ connection, the 
independent public accountants devefop and ma ;ntain an 
understandirn of the Company's accounting controls and 
conduct such· .e~ls and related procedures as they deem 
necessary to render their opinion as to the fairness Cl!' the 
presentation in all material respects of the financial : tatements 
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

~tt4 S'. ~ 
Thomas S. Murphy 
Chief Executive Officer 

E:.11 L D""fL-
Ronald J. Doerfler 
Chief Financial Officer 



Capital Cities/ ABC 

Publishing Group 
Phillip J. Meek, President 

Specialized Publications 
FAIRCHILD PUBLICATIONS (New York, NY) 

John B. Fairchild, Chairo1an and 
Chief Execi~tive Officer 

Phillip J. Meek, President 
Kenneth S. Share, Execul'ive Vice Presi6rit 
David S. Branch, Seniar Vice President 
Michael F. Coady, Senior Vice President 
John E. Coots, Senior Vice President 
Richard J. Lynch, Senior Vice President 
Philip L. McGo'.·em, Senior Vice President 
Charles J. Siegel, Senior Vice· President 
'Stephen G. Stonebum, Senior Vice President 

INSTITUTIONAL INVESTOR (New York, NY) 
Gilbert E. Kaplan, Chainnan and 

Chief Executi.•1e Officer 
Pete\ A-:Derow, President 

PRACTICAL HOMEOWNER (New York, NY) 
Harry C. Egner, President 

.\BC PUBLISHlllG 
R:ibert G. Burton, President 

ABC PUBLISHiliG AGRICULTURAL GROUP 
(Carol Stream, IL} 
Allan R. Johnson, Senior Vice President, 

General Afanager 

CHILTON COMPANY (Radnor, PA) 
Richard D. Bay, Senior i.·:cePresident 
Done.Id ·w. Chestnut, SeniQT Vice President 
P.onald A. Hoxter, Senior Vice President 

AFG CONSUMER MAGAZINES 
(New York, NY and Greensboro, NC) 

HITCHCOCK PUBLISHING COMPANY 
(Cnrol Stream, IL) 
Loren M. Walsh, President 

LOS. ANGELES MAGAZINE (Los Angeles, CA) 
D:. F. Dene· Monache, Vice President, Publisher 

NILS PUBLISHING COMPANY (Chatsworth, CA) 
William H. Bang, President 

WORD, INCORPORATED (Irving, TXJ 
Gary R. Ir.gersoll, President 

Newspapers 
THE KANSAS CITY STAR/TIMES (Kansas City, MO) 

James H. Hale, Chainnan of the Boa:-(, Publisher 
Robert C. Woodworth, President 

FORT WORTH STAR-TELEGRAM (Fort Worth, TX) 
Richard L Connor, Pre.~ident, Publisher 

THE OAKLAND PRESS (Pontiac, Ml) 
Bnu:c H. Mcintyre, Presiden~ Publisher 

BELLEVILLE NEWS-DEMOCRAT (Belleville, IL) 
Gary L. Berkley, President, Pltblisher 

THE TIMES LEADER (Wilkc'·Barre, PA) 
Dale A. Duncan, PreS1°dfml,· Pubh'sher 

OREGON NEWSPAPERS (Albany, OR) 
Glenn C. Cushman, President 
Richard F. Anderson, General A-fanager 

NEW ENGLAND NEWSPAPER GROUP (Guilford, CT) 
John C. Peterson, Pr,esident, Publisher 

HIGHLAND NEWS-EEADER (Highland, IL) 

O'FALLON PROGRESS (O'Fallon, IL) 

LEGAL COMMUNICATIONS (St. Louis, MO) 

Shopping Guides 
SUTION INDUSTRIES (Orange and 
San Diego Counties, Sacramento and Stockton, GA) 

\Vesley R. Turner, Pre51"dent 

PENNYPOWER SHOPPING NEWS (Wichita and 
Tvpeka, KS; and Springfield, MO) 

R. Thomas Cronk, President 

NORTHWEST NICKELS (Seattle-Tacoma and 
Spokane, \V Ai and Portland, OR) 
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Capital Cities/ ABC 

Corporate 
Thomas S. Murphy, Chairnzan of the Board and 

Chief Executive Officer 
Daniel B. Bt1rke, President a.nd 

Chief Op.,ratfog Officer 
John B. Fairchild, Execntive Vice President; Chairnian 

and Chief Executive Officer, Fairclu'ld Publications 
John B. Sias, Executi·ve Vice President; 

President, ABC Television Network Group 
Ronald J. ·Doerfler, Senior Vice President and 

C!tief Financial Officer 
1'-1ichae~, if· Mallardi, Senior Vice President; 

President, Broadcast Group 
Phillip J. Meek, Senior Vice President; 

President, Publishing Group 
Stephen A. \Veiswasser, Se1u"or Vice Presldent and 

General Co1uisel 

• 

ABC Television Network Group 
John B. Sias, President 
Robert A. Iger, Executive Vice President 
Ann Maynard Gray, Senior ''ice President 
.Alan \Vurtzel,,Senior Vlce President 

ABC Entertainment (Los Angeles, CA) 

Brandon Stoddard, President 

ABC News and Sports (New York, NY) 
Roone Arledge, Group President 

ABC News 
Roone Arledge, President 
Richard C. Wald, Senior Vice President 
Irwin W. Weiner, Senior Vice President 

• • • 

Philip R. Beuth, Vice President 
Allan J. Edelson. Vice President and Controller 
.Joseph M. Fitzgerald, Vice Pl"esidenl 
John E. Frisoli, Vice President 
James M. Goldberg, Vice President 
Robert T. Goldman, l'ice President 
Andre\V E. Jackson, \T1"ce President 
David S. Loewith, \Tice President and ;lssistanl Controller 
Patricia J. l\.1atson, Vice President 
Jeffrey Ruthizer, \!fee President 
Alfred R. Schneider, Vice President 
David J. Vondrak, \l"fce Pre.sident and TreaSl.tter 
Philip R. Farns\vorth, Secretary 
Allen S. Bomes, 1\saistanl Treasurer 

• • 

ABC Sports 
Dennis D. Swanson, President 
Dennis Le\vin, Senior Vice President 
Stephen J. Solomon, Senior Vice Preside;;,.~ 

ABC Television Network (New York, NY) 
Mark Mandala, President 
H. \Veller Keever, Executii·e Vice President 
George H. Ne\vi, Senior Vice President 

ABC Communications (New York, NY) 
James E. Duffy, President 



Capital Cities/ ABC 

Broadcast Group 
Michael P. Ma11ardi, President 
James J. Allegro, Senior Vice President 

Television Stations - East 
Lawrence J .. Pollock, President 
Robert.0. Niles, Vice President 

W ABC-TV (New York, NY) 
Walter C. Liss, Jr., President, General Jlfanager 

WLS-TV (Chicago, IL) 
Joseph J. Ahern, President, General Manager 

WPVI-TV (Philadelphia, PA) 
Richard F. Spinner, President, General Manager 

WTVD (Durham-Raleigh, NC) 
G. Alan Nesbitt, Presfrlent, General Manager 

Television Stations - West 
Kenneth M. Johnson, President 
James E. Masucci, Vice President 

KABC-TV (Los Angeles, CA) 
Terry Crofoot, President, General Manager 

KGO-TV (San Francisco, CA) 
James G. Topping, President, General Manager 

KTRK-TV (Houston, TX) 
Paul L. Bures, Jr., President, General.flr!anager 

KFSN-TV (Fresno, CA) 
Marc Edwards, President, General Manager 

National Television Sales (New York, NY) 

John B. Watkins, Prem"dent 

Video Enterprises 
Herbert A. Granath, President 
Bruce Maggin, Executive Vice President 

ABC DISTRIBUTION (New York, NY) 
John T. Healy, President 

ESPN (Bristol, CT) 
Roger L. Werner, Jr., Prem"dent 

ARTS & ENTERTAINMENT (New York, NY) 
LIFETIME (New York, NY) 

Broadcast Operations & Engineering 
Julius Barnathan, President 

Radio 
James P. Arcara, President 

ABC Radio Networks 
Aaron Al. Danit::J<:, :President 

Radio >:'tatiol!S - Group I 
Don f;. Boulonkos, President 

\VABC-ki>!o{i{ew York, NY) 
Frederick D. \Veinhaus, President, General Manager 

\VPLJ-FM (New York, NY) 
R. Dana Horner, PreS'ident, Ge11eral ,\.tanager 

KABC-AM (Los Angeles, CA) 
George Green, President, General ilfanager 

KLOS-FM (Los Angeles, CA) 
Bill Sommers, President., General ilfanager 

KGO-AA1 (San Francisco, CA) 
1\-!ichael Luckoff, President, General ilf!i.1i.<!.9er 

WJR-AM (Detroit, MI) 
James E. Long, President, General Afanager 

WHYT-FM (Detroit, Ml) 
John E. Cravens, President, General Manager 

KRXY-AM/FM (Denver, CO) 
Joseph E. Parish, President, General J\{anager 

WPRO-AM/FM (Providence, RI) 
J. Mitchell Dolan, President, General ilfanager 

Radio Stations - Group II 
Norman S. Schrott, President 

WLS-AM/WYTZ-FM (CNcago, IL) 
WBAP-AM (Fort Worth-Dallas, TX) 

'Villiam J. Hare, President, General Manager 
KSCS-FM (Fort Worth-Dallas, TX) 

Victor J. Sansone, President, General Manager 
WMAL-AM (Washington, DC) 

Thomas J. Bresnahan, President, General Manager 
WRQX-FM (Washington, DC) 

Maureen Lesourd, President, General Manager 
WKHX-AM/FM (Atlanta, GA) 

Verners J. Ore, President, General Manager 
KQRS-AM/FM (Minneapolis, MN) 

Mark S. Steinmetz, President, General Manager 



Board of Directors 

THOMAS s. MURPHY 
Chairman of the Board .itnd Chief Execlltive Officer 

DANIEL B. BURKE 
President and Chief Operating Officer 

ROBERT P. BAUMAN 
rl"" Chairman of the Board, Beecham Group p.l.c. 

i WARREN E. BUFFETT 

,, 

Chairutan O.f the Board an¢ Chief Executive Officer, 
Berkshire. Hathaway Inc. 

FRANK T. CARY 
Former Choirman of the Board, 
Internlz#onal Bnsiness Machines Carporation 

JOSEPH P. DOUGHERTY 
Fonner Executive VU.e President 

JoHN B. FAIRcmLD 
Executive Vice President; 
Chairman and Chief ExeClltive Officer, 
Fairchild Publications 

LEoNARD H. GOLDENSON 
· Chainnan of the Executive Cominittee; 
Retired Chairman of the Board, 
American Broadcasting Campanies, In::. 

L!'.ONHESS 
Chairman of the Board and Chief ExeClltive Officer, 
Amerada Hess Corporatiim 

GEORGE .P. JENKINS 
Consultant to W. R. Grace & Co.; 
Retired Chairman of the Board, 
MetrQPolitan Life Insnrance Company 

FRANK s. JONES 
Ford Professor of Urban Affairs, 
Massachusetts Institute ofTechnolofJ1J 

ANN DIF.BLE JORDAN 
Fo_nner .Director of Social Service Department, 
University of Chicago Medical School 

THOMAS M. MACIOCE 
Partner, Shea & Gould, AttorneJJS at La·w; Fonner 
Chairman of the Board and Chief ExeClltive Officer, 
Allied Stores Corporation 

JOHN H. MULLER, JR. 
Chainnan, President and Chief Executive Officer, 
General Housewa·res Corp. 

JOHN B. SIAS 
Executive Vice President; 
President, ABC Television Net1vork Group 

WILLIAM I. SPENCER 
Retired President and Chief Administrative Officer, 
Citicorp and Citibank, NA. 

M. CABELL WOODWARD, JR. 
Vice Chair1nan and Chief Financial Officer, 
ITT Carporation 

Director Emeritus 
GERALD DICKLER 
Senior Coitnsel, 
Hall, Diclcler, Lawler, Kent & Fried1nan, 
Attorneys at Law 

Transfer Agent and Registrar 
Harris Trust Company of New York 
77 Water Street 
New )'ork, New York 10005 

The Company's Comm<m Stock is listedfor trading on the 
New York and Pacific Stock Exchanges (Symbol: CCB) 



Exhibit (22) 

As of January l, 1989 

Subsidiaries of Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. 

Jurisdiction of 
Incorporation 

Capital Citie>./ABC, Inc. {parent) New York 
ABC Holdi;:~ Company, Inc. Delaware 

ABC Consumer Magazines Holding Company, Inc. Delaware 
ABC Consumer Magazines, Inc. Del aware 

ABC Daytime Circle, Inc. Del aware 
ABC Network Holding Company, Inc. Delaware 

ABC Equipment Leasing, Inc. New York 
ABC Motion Pictures, Inc. Delaware 
ABC Records, Inc. New York 

ABC Circle Music, Inc. New York 
American Broadcasting Music, Inc. New York 

ABC Theatre Holdings, Inc. Del aware 
ABC Interstate Theatres, Inc. Del aware 
ABC Southeastern Theatres, Inc. Delaware 

Ambro Land Holdings, Inc. Del aware 
Ambroco Development Corp. New York 
Broadway Development Corp. New York 
Columbus West Development Corp. New York 
67th Street Development Corp. New York 
66th Street Development Corp. New York 

Circle Location Services, Inc. Del aware 
Stage Five Productions, Inc. California 
TNC Company, Inc. Del aware 

ABC News Holding Company, Inc. Del aware 
ABC News, Inc. Delaware 
ABC News Intercontinental, Inc. Delaware 
ABC tlews Overseas Sales, Inc. Del aware 

ABC Radio Network, Inc. Delaware 
ABC Radio Network Sales, Inc. New York 
ABC/Watennark, Inc. Delaware 
SMN Holding Company, Inc. Del aware 

ABC Sports Holding Company, Inc. Delaware 
ABC Sports, Inc. New York 

ABC Sports Intercontinental S.A.K.L. france 
ABC Sports Marketing, Inc. Del aware 

American Broadcasting Companies, Inc. Delaware 
Capital Cities/ABC National Television Sales, Inc. Del aware 
Capital Cities/ABC Video Enterprises, Inc. Delaware 

ABC Merchandising, Inc. New York 
ABC Sports International, Inc. Delaware 



Capita 1 
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Cities/ABC, Inc. (parent)(continued) 
Ho l ding Company, Inc. (continued) 
Capital Cities/ABC Video Enterprises, Inc. (continued) 

Capital Cities/ABC Video Publishing, Inc. 
Capital Cities/ASC Video Systems, Inc. 
Capital Cities/ABC Video Worldwide 

Holdings, Inc. 
Chilton Holding Company, Inc. 

Ghil ton Company 
The Center for Curriculum Development, Inc. 

Compute Holding Company, Inc. 
COMPUTE! Publications, Inc. 

ESPN Holding Company, Inc. 
ESPN, Inc. 

English Sports, Inc. 
ESPN 88 

Farm Progress Holding Company, Inc. 
Farm Prugress Companies, Inc. 

Farm Progress Insurance Services, Inc. 
Indiana Prairie Fanner Insurance 

Services, Inc. 
The Miller Publishing Company, Inc. 

Hitchcock Holding Company, Inc. 
Hitchcock Publishing Company 

Professional Exposition Management 
Company, Inc. 

KABC-AM Radio, Inc. 
KGO-AM Radio, Inc. 
KGO Television, Inc. 
KLOS-FM Radio, Inc. 
L. I.C. Warehouse Realty Company, Inc. 
Los Angeles Magazine Holding Comp1my, Inc. 

Los Angeles Magazine, Inc. 
NILS Holding Company, Inc. 

NILS Publishing Company 
National Price Service, Inc. 
Schwann Publications, Inc. 

101 West 67th Realty Company, Inc. 
77 West 66 Realty Company, Inc. 
1313 Vine Realty Company, Inc. 
36 & 40 West 66 Realty Company, Inc. 
WABC-AM Radio, Inc. 
WABC Television, Inc. 
WLS-AM Holding Company, Inc. 

WLS, Inc. 
WLS Television, Inc. 
WMAL Holding Company, Inc. 

WMAL, Inc. 
Word Holding Company, Inc. 

Word, Incorporated 
Word Di rect Marketing Services, Inc. 
Word (U.K.) Limited 

Del aware 
Del aware 

Del aware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Del aware 
Del aware 
North Carolina 
Del aware 
Del aware 
Del aware 
United Kingdom 
Del aware 
Illinois 
Illinois 

Indiana 
Minnesota 
Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 
Del aware 
Del aware 
Del aware 
Del aware 
Del aware 
Del aware 
Del aware 
Del a1'/are 
Del aware 
Del aware 
Del aware 
Del aware 
Del aware 
Delaware 
Del aware 
Del aware 
Del aware 
Delaware 
Del aware 
Delaware 
Del aware 
Del aware 
Del aware 
Texas 
Texas 
United Kingdom 
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Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. (parent)(continued) 
ABC Holding Company, Inc. (continued) 

WWPR-FM Radio, Inc. 
(name changed to UPLJ-FM Radio, Inc. 

on January 5, 1989) 
WYTZ-FM Radio, Inc. 

ABC/Kane Productions International, Inc. 
ABC Television, Inc. 
Cablecom-General, Inc. 
Capital Cities Entertainment Systems, Inc. 
Capital Cities Media, Inc. 

Guilford Publishing Company, Inc. 
Newside Publications, Inc. 
Practical Homeowner Holding Company, Inc. 

Capital Citie~. Vision, Inc. 
CC Finance Holding Corpora ti on 

Capital Cities/ABC Finance Company, Inc. 
CC Texas Holding Co., Inc. 

WXYZ, Inc. 
(name changed to KTRK Television, Inc. on 1/3/89) 

Southfield Realty Company, Inc. 
CCC Properties, Inc. 
Institutional Investor, Inc. 
The Kansas City Star Company (also owns the 

preferred stock of Capital Cities Media, Inc.) 
KQRS Holding Corporation 

KQRS, Inc. 
KRXY Holding Corporation 

KRXY Radio, Inc. 
Legal Com of Delaware, Inc. 

Legal Communications Corporation 
The Oakland Press Company 

Tri-County Newspapers, Inc. 
Pennypower of Kansas, Inc. (formerly Capital Cities 

of Kansas, Inc.) 
Pennypower Shopping News, Inc. 

Star-Telegram, Inc. 
Medi a Transport, Inc. 

Sutton Industries, Inc. 
Texas Media Holding Company, Inc. 

TV Connection, Inc. 
WBAP-KSCS, Inc. 

Wilson Publishing Company 

Del aware 

Delaware 
Del aware 
New York 
Oklahoma 
Delaware 
New York 
Del aware 
Delaware 
New York 
New York 
Del aware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Michigan 

Michigan 
New York 
Delaware 
Missouri 

Delaware 
Del aware 
Del aware 
Delaware 
Del aware 
Missouri 
Michigan 
Michigan 
Del aware 

Kansas 
Del aware 
Texas 
Delaware 
Del aware 
Del aware 
Delaware 
Rhode Island 



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM 11-K 
ANNUAL REPORT 

Pursuant to Section 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 

For- the Plan Year ended December 31, 1988 

Exhibit (28)(a) 

A. Full title of t1-,e plan and the address of the plan, if different from that of 
the issuer named below: 

ABC SAVINGS & INVESTMENT PLAN 
(effective January 1, 1989: Captial Cities/ABC, Inc. Savings & Investment Plan l 

Tl West 66 Street 
New York, New York 10023 

B. Name of issuer of the securities held pursuant to the plan and the address of 
its principal execut·ive office: 

CAPITAL CITIES/ ABC, INC. 
77 West 66 Street 

Hew York, New Yo1-k 10023 



I.tern .1 Char19.e5 .in. ..t.he .. I'lan 

This item is not applicable. 

This item is not applicable. 

ltem .... 3 C_Qntribut_ions J.lnP.ElL tbe. Plan 

This item is not applicable. 

There were approximately 6,919 employees participating in the Plan at 
tile end of its fiscal year. 

(a) The Plan is administered by the Employee Benefits Committee. 
The members of such Committee as of December 31, 1988 are 
Ronald J. Doerfler, Thomas J .. Gorey, Jr. and David J. Vond1·ak. 
Communications to members of the Committee should be addressed 
to them at 77 West 66 Street, New York, New York 10023. 

Ronald J. Doerfler is Senior Vice President and Chief Financial 
Officer, Thomas J. Gorey, Jr. is Vice President, Employee 
Benefits and Human Resources Information Systems and David J. 
Vondrak is Vice President and Treasurer of Capital Cities/ABC, 
Inc. 

(b) Total amount of compensation received from the Plan by each of 
the administrators: 

None. 

(a) Trustee of the Plan which acts as custodian of any of the 
securities or other investments of the Plan is: 

Bankers Trust Companr 
280 Park Avenue 
New York, New York 10017 

(b) Compensation received from the Plan by the Trustee: 

None from the Pl an. 

(c) Nature and amount of any bond furnished by the Trustee: 

None. 

- 2 -



I:t.!lfli 7 Re.Ports to Participa:ting Emp)oyees 

Each member is furnis\1ed a statement at the end of each calendar· 
quarter showing: 

(a) Member's account 

(1) Current investment direction 
(2) Cumulative contribution to Plan, net of withdr·awals, plus 

loans 
(3) Opening balanc~ (ma;-ket value) of each fund in wh1ch 

participant is invested 
(4) Current quarter's contribution 
(5) Investment results 
(6) Dividends 
(7) Fund realloc~tion 

(8) Closing balance 
(9) Vested value 

(10) Number of shares and uninvested cash in Fund A 
( 11) Loans and 1 oan repayments 
(12) Withdrawals 

(b) Company's account 

(1) Opening balance - all Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. common 
stock 

(2) Current quarter's contributions 
(3) Investment results 
(4) Dividends 
(5) Closing balance 
(6) Vested value 
(7) Number of shares and uninvested cash in Fund A 
(8) Withdrawals 

(a) (1) The aggregate dollar amount of brokerage commissions paid by 
the Plan during the three most recent fiscal years is 
$171,449. 

(2) During the three most recent fiscal years, Neuberger & 
Berman, Inc., an affiliate of the Plan's Investment Manager, 
was paid brokerage commissions for purchases of securities 
for Fund B, totaling $66,073. During 1988, the commissions 
paid to Neuber·ger & Berman, Inc. constituted 32.8 percent of 
the total brokerage commissions paid by the Plan. The 
dollar amount of transactions involving the payment of 
commissions to Neuberger· & Berman, Inc. constituted 19. 9 
per-cent of the aggregate dollar amount of transactions 
dui·ing 1988. The difference in the two percentages is due 
mainly to the type of transactions handled by Neuberger & 
Berman, Inc. which are generally smaller in number of shares 
and dollar amount. Transactions of this type tend to have a 
relatively higher commission rate than the larger trades 
handled by other brokers. 

- 3 -



. . • . . . . t 

It;.em. 8 lnves.tment. of Funds (cont' cl) 

(bl During the calendar year 1988, neither the Plan nor its 
investment manager dii-ected the Plan's brokerage 
transactions to a broker or brokers because of resea1-ch 
services. 

IJ.~m 9 Finaoc:;ial 8.t;;.tements andJ:;xhibits 

(a) Financial Statements: 

Independent Public Accountants' Report 

Comb,ined Statements of F1nan·~ial Condition as of 
Dec-;mber 31 , 1988 and 1987 

Combined Statements of .Income and Changes in Plan Equity for 
the years ended Decembf,r 31 , 1988, 1987 and 1986. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Supplemental Schedules: 

Investments at December 31, 1988 

Combining Statements of Financial Condition as of 
December 31, l'11l8 and 1987 

Combining S'.:atements of Income and Changes in Plan Equity 
for tl1e yea1-s ended December 31, 1988, 1987 and 198G. 

Consent of Arthur Young & Company 

(b) Exhibits: 

None. 

- 4 -



S I G N A T U R E S 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the trustees 
(or other persons who administer the Plan) have caused this annual repc,:-t to be 
signed by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 

Date: March 24, 1999 

Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. Savings & Investment Plan 

By ~it/~ 
David J. tl:urak, amem:r-­

of the Empioyee Benefits Committee 

- 5 -
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INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT 

The Board of Directors 
Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. 

We have audited the combined statements of the ABC Savings & Investment 
Ple."l and related schedules listed in the accompanying index to financial 
statements (Item 9 (a)). These financial statements are the responsibility of 
the Plan's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the combined financial statements and supplemental 
schedules as mentioned above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the ABC Savings & Investment Plan at December 31, 
1988 and 1987 and the income and changes in plan equity for the three years 
in the period ended December 31, 1988 in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

~ f!cR*1; j ~r 
ARTHUR YOUNG & COMPANY 

New York, New York 
March 24, 1989 



ABC SAVINGS & INVESTMENT PLAN 

Combined Statements of Financial Condition 

December 31, 1988 and 1987 

Investments, at market (notes 1 and 3): 
Equity Securities: 

Capital Cities/ABC Inc. common stock 
(cost of $99,311,722 and $89,974,304 
in 1988 and 1987, respectively) 

Other (cost of $14,616,048 and 
$12,542,504 in 1988 and 1987, 

respectively/ 
Total equity securities 

Other investments: 
Bankers Trust Gene1-alized Employee Benefit 

Trust Inte1-im Investment Fund 

Funds on deposit with insurance 
company 
Total other investments 

Total investments 

Due from participants (note 2) 
Interest and dividends receivable 
Due from Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. 
Rece.ivables from sales of investments 

Total assets 

Lia.bjJitj_e_$_.anct....P.lao_Es1YJ_tY. 

Due to former participants 
Payables for purchases of investments 
Plan equity 

Total liabilities and plan equity 

$151,784,561 

__ J!i .L6§_,u;i 
--1J.t6~.5.5J_,_2 .. 9A 

2,132,519 

.... AQ. •. 81-L_\l..4-7 
_4_9_,_Qj_Q_,_4_6J:I 

_2_15_,_5_6_1,J_il_Q 

2,875,333 
422, 194 
417,374 

_____ _j_2Q_,J.!E 

.$.2J.~.~3.9.§,!JlAJ;l 

$ 2,720,083 
1,296,263 

___ 21.s_,_3a_o_,"~-o.2 

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements. 

$ 136,060,065 

____ lLJ.2_2_, 8JJi 
._J_4I,lS.2 .• aJ,IQ 

5,212,540 

____ 3.I~A9J ..... 2.13 
__ 42_,_9_5;i_,J_7_3 

___ 1a 9_,a5_5_,_6!i3 

1,292,483 
365,457 

2,031,769 
.. _____ .. J.7_3_,9_3_a 

$ 3,977,236 
306,491 

__ Ul9_.A_2_Q.,_(i 7 3. 

!=1:~~!bl-2-·-~QP, 



ABC SAVINGS & INVESTMENT PLAN 

Combined Statements of Income and 
Changes in Plan Equity 

Years ended December 31, 1988, 1987 and 1986 

Investment income: 
Dividends 
Interest 

Total investment income 

Appreciation of Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. 
common stock and warrants distri­
buted to terminated and withdrawing 
pa rt ic i pants (note 1) 

Net gain• on tender of American Broad­
casting Companies, Inc. common stock 
(net of unrealized gains at the 
beginning of 1986 of $78,649,963) 

Net gain on sales of other common stock 
Net increase in unrealized appreciation 

of plan assets held at year end 
(note 1) 

Contributions: 
Participants (note 2) 
Employer (notes 1 and 2) 

Total contributions 

Interest on participants' loans (note 2) 

Total 

Distributions to terminated and 
withdrawing participants 
(note 1): 

Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. common 
stock at market value 

Cash 
Total distributions 

Change in plan equity 

Plan equity: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

1988 

$ 587' 779 
. .. . 3 •. 8.6.6 ,A Ifi. 
__ _A,_,UA,258 

1,296,099 

1,027,944 

___ _7_,_9!;i1.d4J1 
_J.:t_,_1]_5-.. T4.I 

20,674,930 
_I.,JJ>Jl.,.99_Q 
_ .. 2L.6§_t •. 9ZQ 

_, ___ UL6_,J.66. 

__ !2 ... _7.2..4.d.53. 

3,167,098 
___ u_,_60.3 ... .!l.2 2. 
_.J.6.,LLQ,_1.i_24 

_ _2_5 .... 9_1,i_3 .. Jl.2.9. 

189,426,573 

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements. 

1987 

$ 484,844 
·-- .3 •. 2.35 .... 8!i8 
-· 3 .. I2_0 ,J.Q 2 

1,139,770 

1'561'690 

__ 2 .. s .... o_a_1:1_,13_3 
__ H .... 5J.Q .•. 2.9.!;i 

15,849,443 
____ 6_,_QJ\9_,Jl_S \l. 
..... 2J ..•. ~3.9 .... 3.3 .. 2. 

_____ 93_, .34 .. 9 

. _5_6,J.iA.2 .... ~7-e. 

4, 5:>4, 258 
_1.3 ... .2.Q.2,44.6. 
_J_LJ.3.6_,J_Q!i 

_,_3JL.8.Q6 ... 2LQ 

150,620,303 

1986 

$ 432,733 
.. 5.,JI2 ... 428. 

_____ 5 .6.05 .J.61 

498,230 

886,103 
1,609,427 

_tQ.,.t!iJL.9.3 .. 6 
... -24. .. 7-9-5 ..... 6.9.1 

13,670,223 
___ $_,.7_4 .. L.290. 
_1.9_.4.11 .... 5..1-3 

_____ !;i_9_,_3.U 

_ _A_4.,239_,J:OJ. 

6' 817 '473 
_3\l,4J§..,J.0 .. 6. 
... 4.3 ..... 2 .. 3 .. 3 .... 5..19 

_ _1,_QQ-3_,_12 2. 

149,617, 181 



ABC SAVINGS & INVESTMENT PLAN 

Notes to Combined Financial Statements 

December 31, 1988, 1987 and 1986 

(a) The accompanying combined financial statements present plan equity and 
changes therein of the ABC Savings & Investment Plan (the Plan) on an 
accrual basis. The Plan consists of three funds: 

Fund A - Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. 
Common Stock Fund 

Fund B - Diversified Equity Fund 
Fund C - Guaranteed Income Fund 

(b) The investment in common stock of Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. (Capital 
Cities/ABC) is stated at market value which is based on the year-end 
stock quotation from the New York Stock Exchange. As a result of the 
merger of American Broadcasting Companies, Inc. with Capital Cities 
Communications, Inc. (the Merger), the American Broadcasting 
Companies, Inc. common stock owned by the Plan was converted into 
cash and substantially all of the proceeds received were reinvested 
in common stock of Capital Cities/ABC purchased in the open market. 

Realized gains and losses on sales or distributions of securities are 
accounted for on a weighted average cost basis. Purchases and sales 
are recorded on a trade date basis. Dividend income is accrued on 
the ex-dividend date. Interest income is recorded on a accrual basis 
as earned. 

Investments of the Diversified Equity Fund consist of equity securities, 
stated at market value, of companies other than Capital Cities/ABC. 
Investments of the Guaranteed Income Fund consist of funds on deposit 
with an insurance company under contract which provides for a 
guaranteed minimum annual rate of interest of 9.5% for 1988. The 
Guai-anteed Income Fund is valued at cost plus interest earned. 

Uninvested cash may be temporarily invested in obligations of the U.S. 
Government or other short-term investments. 

Unrealized appreciation at the beginning and end of each year and the 
net increase for each year included in the accompanying statements of 
income and change in plan equity are as follows: 

Balance at beginning of year 
Less: Amount realized due to 

tender of American Broadcasting 
Companies, Inc. common stock 

Balance at end of year 
Net increase 

.19 .. 6.6. 
$44,666,078 

-------
44,666,078 

_&2 ...... 6 .. 23 ..... 5 .. 2..4. 
! .. 2-"""9-~_L442. 

19.!U 
$16,577 ,94"5 

----·-----16,577,945 
....4 .. 4~_6_6§ ... _QJ..a 
$;a.~.o .. e=e~ .. 11~ 

.. 19 .. !Ui 
$79,060,972 

_Ia~ .. $..4~~..!39J 
411,009 

. ..J .. 6 ..... 51-7 ..... 9-4.& 
!,1 .. §..,J_~§,,J .. ~.!1. 
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ABC SAVINGS & INVESTMENT PLAN 

Notes to Combined Financial Statements 

December 31, 1988, 1987 and 1986 

( 1) S_u!OOJarY_o[ SJgniJj_ciHJt _A.CG9Untj_n9 Policj_e.s cont'd 

(cl Distributions to terminated and withdrawing participants are based upon 
the market value of units and/or shares credited to participants' 
accounts as of the effective date of termination or withdrawal. The 
difference between the market value on the effective date of distri­
bution and the cost of shares distributed is shown separately in the 
accompanying combined statements of income and changes in plan 
equity. 

(d) Employer contributions are reported net of forfeitures of $309,730, 
$497,643 and $871,772 for 1988, 1987 and 1986, respectively. 

( 2 l ~-s_cLi.P_t.iS!i:c..'o_f....Elan 

The Plan is an employee savings and investment plan for participating employees of 
American Broadcasting Companies, Inc. (ABC) (an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of 
Capital Cities/ABC) and those othei- subsidiaries and divisions of Capital 
Cities/ABC, Inc. which were previously a part of or affiliates of ABC. Individuals 
who become employees of the corporate and other broadcasting properties of Capital 
Cities/ABC, Inc. subsequent to 1988 are eligible to participate in the Plan. 

In 1988 an employee eligible to participate in the Plan who was also eligible to 
participate in the Capital Cities/ABC Employee Stock Purchase Plan and who 
authorized a contribution to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan at any time after 
April 1, 1988 was ineligible to make any further contributions to the Plan. 
However, the employee was entitled to exercise all other rights of a participant 
under the Plan with respect to employee and employer contributions made prior to the 
date that the employee became ineligible to make further contntutions to the Plan. 
Effective April 3, 1989 this restriction has been removed. 

Under the Plan, eligible employees may authorize payroll deductions of either 2, 3, 
4 or 5% of their annual compensation to be invested in one or more of three funds. 
Such contributions may be in the form of regular after-tax contributions (taxable), 
or tax deferred contributions. Capital Cities/ABC will contribute an amount equal 
to 50% of such deductions, .to be invested in the Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. Common 
Stock Fund (Fund A). On October 1, 1987, the Plan was amended to allow employees to 
contribute an additional unmatched 2, 3, 4 or 5% of annual compensation, which may 
be designated either taxable or tax deferred contributions for any year. Total 
annual contributions by the employer and employee to a participant's account are 
limited to $30,000 for all defined contribution plans. Participants are fully 
vested with respect to their own contributions at all times. For periods covered in 
these financial statements, participants with less than 10 years of service vest 
with respect to employer contributions over a three-yea1- period, one-third each 
year. Upon completion of 10 years of service, death, permanent disability, 
retirement or termination of service after age 65, a parti'.cipant's account was 
considered fully vested. Effective January 1, 1989 in compliance with the Tax 
Reform Act of 1986, the 10 year vesting period mentioned above was amended to be 
five years of service. 

(continued) 
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ABC SAVINGS & INVESTMENT PLAN 

Notes to Combined Financial Statements 

December 31, 1988, 1987 and 1986 

( 2 l G9.!Jti_IJ!Je_c;1 

The Plan pe1-mits the Employee Benefits Committee to postpone distributions of a 
member's account in instances where a member's termination of se1-vices arises out of 
a change in ownership of stock or all 01- part of the assets of a member's employing 
unit and such member is reemployed by the acquiring ehtity if such termination is 
not deemed a "separation from service" within the meaning of the applicable income 
tax rulings 01- regulations. In such instances the Employee Benefits Committee may 
postpone the distribution until such distribution may be accomplished without 
adverse income tax consequences to the member 01- to the Plan or may allow a transfer 
to anothe1- qualified plan or allow a permissible tax-free rollover. 

Under the Plan members are allowed to obtain loans equal to the lesse1- of the amount 
of such member's account attributable to tax deferred contributions or the maximum 
amount allowable under federal tax regulations. The loans bear interest at a rate 
determined by the Employee Benefits Committee. 

The value of a participant's account is determined based upon share value fo1- Fund A 
and l!nit values for Funds Band C. Upon permanent disability or retirement, the 
amount credited to a participant's account is distributed to him or his beneficiary, 
either in a lump sum or in installments over a period not exceeding ten years. Upon 
termination of employment for reasons other than permanent disability or retirement, 
the amount credited to the pa1-ticipant's account is dist1-ibuted to him in a lump 
sum. A participant may withdraw from the Plan in 10% increments, in a lump sum, of 
the amount ct-edited to his account attributable to his contributions at any time, 
subject to certain restrictions regarding resumption of contributions and subsequent 
withdi-awals. Upon a withdrawn participant's termination, the vested amount credited 
to his account att1-ibutable to employer contributions is distributed to him. If a 
participant terminates prior to vesting with respect to employer contributions, 
forfeited funds are used to reduce the contribution of the sponso1- company. 
Distributions of Fund A are paid either in shares of Capital Cities/ABC common stock 
or cash. Distributions for Funds B and c are paid in cash. 

01. Jan<1ary 3, 1986 the Plan's investment in common stock of American Brnadcasting 
Companies, Inc. was converted into cash as a consequence of the Merger. P1-i or to 
the effective date of the Merger, the Plan was amended to permit later substitution 
of common stock of Capital Cites/P,BC as an allowable investment in Fund A and to 
enable each participant to exercise special investment elections to reallocate 
certain of their interests in the various funds of the Plan and file revised 
investment elections for future employee contributions. 

The Plan was also amended on March 21, 1986, to transfe1- the functions of the 
Investment Committee to the Employee Benefits Committee. 

As of December 31, 1988 there were 6,906 participants in Fund A, 2,268 pa1-ticipants 
in Fund B and 4,335 participants in Fund c. 

As of December 31, 1988 there we1-e 3,822,501 total units in Fund B and 17 ,813,433 
total units in Fund C with unit values of 4.04 and 2.66 respectively. 

(continued) 
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ABC SAVINGS & INVESTMENT PLAN 

Notes to Combined Financial Statements 

December 31, 1988, 1987 and 1986 

Changes in investment in equity securities, at ccst, for the years ended 
December 31, 1988 and 1987 were as fo 11 ows: 

Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. 
common stock: 

Balance at December 31, 1986 
Purchases 
Distributions to terminated and 

withdrawing participants 

Balance at December 31, 1987 
Purchases 
Distributions to terminated and 

withdrawing participants 

Balance at December 31, 1988 

Other equity securities: 

Balance at December 31, 1986 
Purchases 
Sales 

Balance at December 31, 1987 
Purchases 
Sales 

Balance at December 31, 1988 

_Ji.b.11.r:.es __ 

410,265 

394,377 
36,424 

326,260 
386, 167 

.L25..6_,_§AJ) 

453,780 
338,595 

(2_a2.,_lQQ) 

_5_Q.O.~-bl§, 

_ ___ C.Qst __ 

$93,599,051 

89,974,304 
12,068,551 

._tz.,J_3_LJ_3;?) 

-~Jl.9_,J)J~}.-b~ 

$10,076,769 
9,938,411 

_f_7-dJ.2.,Jl-1.9 ) 

12,542,504 
9,761,142 

... U~.6-8.L.5.9.8.) 

!JA_,_6_1__§_-=\l_A.8 
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ABC SAVINGS & INVESTMENT PLAN 

Notes to Combined Financial Statements 

December 31, 1988, 1987 and 1986 

( 4) Ailmioj_!l.:tr 11:tJ_on_of_the. J:J11n 

Under the terms of a trust agreement between Bankers Trust Company (the Trustee) and 
the Plan, the Trustee manages the Plan assets on behalf of the Plan. As of 
December 31, 1988, 1987 and 1986, substantially all the Plan assets were held by the 
T1·ustee. 

During the period 1986 through 1988, the cost of administering the Plan was paid 
directly by ABC; the Plan assets were not used to meet such obligations. 

Although Capital Cities/ABC has not expressed any intent to terminate the Plan, it 
may be terminated at any time by action of its Board of Directors, subject to the 
provisions of the Merger Agreement regarding maintenance of employee benefit plans. 
In the event of termination, the amounts credited to the participants' accounts 
become fully vested and the Trustee is required to distribute such amounts to 
participants or continue the ti-ust fund and pay benefits therefrom in accordance 
with the provisions of the Plan. 

( 6 ) .E..e!le.rnLlric.om!LT..a.l'&s 

ABC has received a letter of determination from the IRS stating that the Plan as 
amended through October 1, 1987 meets the requirements of Section 401(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and that the trust established thereunder is 
entitled to exemption from payment of Federal income taxes under provisions of 
Section 501(a) of the Code. 

Participants are not subject to federal income tax on employer contributions made to 
their accounts under the Plan, or on the earnings in their accounts, until amounts 
in their accounts are withdi-awn or distributed. 



SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES 



ABC SAVINGS & INVESTMENT PLAN 

Investments 

Decetnbe r 31 , 1988 

Number of Market 
l.de_!Lt.iJ;y_&n!Lde.s.GdP_t_i on ... of _j ss_11_1:i. Jlh&res _______ _ . .\l.alue ... 

Common St.ock: 

Allied Signal Inc. 10,500 $ 442, 124 $ 341,25( 
Amerada Hess Corp 12,000 334,840 378,00C 
Amei-ican Electric Power 4,000 106,889 109 ,()OC 
American President 7,000 173,518 238,00C 
American Telephone & Telegraph 9,000 227,601 258,75C 
Arvin Industries 4,000 86,280 77, 50C 
Burlington Northern 5,000 329,532 395,00C 
Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. 419,005 9~,311,722 151,784,561 
CBI Industries 10,000 290,999 253,75C 
CBS Inc. 2,000 303,753 · 341,00C 
Cigna Corp. 5,000 246,465 235,62E 
Consolidated Freightways Inc. 7,000 221,645 231,00C 
Contel Corp. 7,000 196,147 282,62E 
CSX Corp. 13,000 389,946 412,75C 
Dana Corp. 4,000 154,656 155,50( 
Diamond Shamrock R&M Inc. 18,000 293,943 27 4, 50C 
Digital Equipment Corp. 3,000 281,727 295,12E 
Dupont E I De Nemours & Co. 4,000 324,497 353,00C 
E Systems Inc. 10,000 285,890 292,50( 
Engelhard Corp. 13,500 216,113 232, SE 

General Motors Corp. 4,000 282,036 334,00C 
GTE Corp. 9,000 270,771 400,50( 
Henley Group 10,000 197,99"1 216,25( 
Hercules Inc. 7,000 332,363 311 '50( 
Ingersoll Rand Co. 10,000 350,791 342,50( 
James Riv Corp. 10,000 328,231 286,25( 
Litton Industries 4,000 310,318 287,50( 
May Dept. Stores 8,000 283,400 290,00( 
Mobil Corp. 6,500 196,566 295,75( 
Motorola Inc. 4,000 154,096 168,00C 

,; Northrop Corp. 10,000 301,953 2'77 '50( 
Occidental Pete Corp. 13,000 431,243 329' 87E 
Petrie Stores 8,000 211,751 132,00C 
Pioneer Hi Bred Int' 1. 9, 100 308,640 307, 12E 
Salomon Inc. 12,000 416,270 289,50C 
Santa Fe South Pacific Corp. 9,000 156,960 155,25( 
Sears Roebuck & Co. 10,000 363,300 408 '75( 
SL Industries 13' 100 107,735 109,71< 
Smithkline Beckman 8,000 367,325 385,00C 
Sonat Inc. 13,0'.10 409,852 377 'ooc 
Square D Co. 5,0UO 242,295 240,00C 
Sundstrand Corp. 8,000 420,278 400,00C 
Tenneco Inc. 8,000 326,795 391,00C 



ABC SAVINGS & INVESTMENT PLAN 

Investments 

December 31, 1988 

Common Stock (continued): 

Texas Industries Inc. 
Textron Inc. 
United Technologies Corp. 
Varity Corp. 
W. R. Grace & Co. 
Wang Labs Inc. 
Westinghouse Electric 
Weyerhaeuser Co. 
Whirlpool Corp. 

Total Convnon Stock 

Preferred Stock: 
American President 

Total Equity Securities 

Other Investments: 
Bankers Trust Generalized Employee 

Benefit Trust Interim Investment Fund 
Funds on Deposit with Insurance Company: 

Group Annuit)' Contracts with Aetna 
Life Insurance 

Total Other Investments 
Total I1westments 

Number of 
_ Sba[e_s ____ _ 

11 '27 3 
12,000 
10,000 
47,000 
14,000 
20,000 
7,000 

15,000 
telooo 

1,000 

S.c.heduJ.e_J (continued) 

____ C_ost . 

284,175 
347,465 
414,082 
148,410 
348,341 
266,111 
357,862 
369,222 

___ 3_(i2JJH9 

_1J:.,,_,_e_u_, z 7 o 

-~5.oJ_o_o_o 

_lUJ_9_2J.,.llO 

2,132,519 

___A.6_, Jll.1~9A_I 
._4.9_,_Qj_QJAJH.i. 
1.l62~~;1.8J.2.~ 

Market 
- .. J.all!~t ..... . 

377' 645 
285,000 
411,250 
135,125 
364,000 
175 ,000 
368,375 
376,875 

____ 3_2_t,J_5_0 

-16.!1-.A~2 ,2 9.4 

___ !2_9_,_Q_Q_Q 

. .JJ1-6.,.S.5JJ.2 .. 9A 

2,132,519 

.-A.6J_a 77 ·-~Al 
_ ...!i_9_,_0_1 o_,_.t_6_6 
l2ll2.,.5.6J,J_~_Q 



ABC SAVINGS & INVESTMENT PLAN 

Combining Statement of Financial Condition 

t\s_s_et_s 

Investn.ants, at market 
Equity Securities: 

Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. 
common stock 

Other 
Total equity 

securities 

Other investments: 
Bankers Trust Generalized 

Employee Benefit Trust 
Interim Investment Fund 

Funds on deposit with 
insurance company 

Total other 
investments 

Total investments 

Due from (to) participants 
Interest and dividends 

receivable 
Due from Capital Cities/ 

ABC, Inc. 
Receivables from sales of 

investments 
Interfund transfer receivable 

(payable) 

Total assets 

.Li11bJJjj;jjl_s_1.1m:LPJ.11u_Equ_itY 

Due to former participants 
Payable for purchase of 

investments 
Plan equity 

Total liabilities 
and plan equity 

December 31, 1988 

. $151, 784,561 
_j_4_,J_6Jl,13_~ 

... 1-6_9_,_5_5J.,_2 _9_4 

2,132,519 

.--!ls ... au_ .. 9-41 

__ 4_9 __ ,_Qj_Q __ ,A§_Q 
215,561,760 

2,875,333 

422, 194 

417 ,374 

120, 187 

-------·---.. 

~-~ 1 _9 ._~_§-.!.~~§ 

$ 2,720,083 

1,296,263 
_us. .. 3.a .. o __ ,_5_0_2 

ffe,W__, __ 3 9 !/_,_a 46. 

Fund A -
Capital Cities/ 

ABC, Inc. 
C0111110n Stock 
_____ J:u.IJ!L --

$151,784,561 

_j_5J ... 1-a_4-._5_6J 

1,041,222 

_J,Q..il,_222 
152,825,783 

2,953,940 

24,577 

417,374 

___ _l9_6_6_,_2..H!) 

ffe).55_,_23~ 45& 

$ 1,793,718 

794,486 
_j_p __ 2._, __ Q..4J_,_2.5--2 

U.~ .. ~--5 ... AM 

Fund B -
Diversified 

Equity 
___ Eund .... -

$ 
_14_,JJl§_,.L.3_3 

1,091,297 

·-----··----

_1_,_Q_9J_,_2 .. 9.I 
15,858,030 

341,107 

48,192 

120,187 

____ U_3.lt, 2 91 ) 

.ll-9~~2.a,,JJJ!-

$ 303,521 

501,777 
_l5 ... A22 ..... 92J 

~ .. L6__,__2-2J~__,_2_.rn. 

Fund C 
Guaranteed 

Income 
__ EumL ____ _ 

$ 
-

---·~--

-
-----·-~-·· 

_49 __ ,JUJ__,Jl_4_1 

_ _4 __ 6_,8.1. L.9-4 :1 
46,877 ,941 

(419,71< 

349,42£ 

___ J_,J_2 S ... Ji.lE 

~ 47 933 11:: -~-::=:!::--1_:::-.:..-=::-..::::!::.::::=· 

$ 622,844 

_41-,.3J o ... 3.2.9 

liL 933_,-!J.J 



Sctl.edule_ 2 (continued) 

ABC SAVINGS & INVESTMENT PLAN 

Combining Statement of Financia1 Condition 

December 31, 1987 

Investments, at market 
Equity Securities: 

Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. 
common stock 

Other 
Total equity 

securities 

Other investments: 
Bankers Trust Generalized 

Employee Benefit Trust 
Interim Investment Fund 

Funds on deposit with 

$136,060,065 
_lJ_,J_22_,.aJ5. 

_J4L,_ta_2,J$.llQ 

5,212,540 

insurance company ___ 3J_,A_5J_,23_3 
Total other 

investments --~-2_,J/_6_3_._IU 

Total investments 189,846,653 

Due from participant£' 1,292,483 
Interest and dividends 

receivable 365,457 
Due from (to) Capital Cities/ 

ABC, Inc. 2,031,769 
Interfund transfer receivable 

(payable) 
Receivables from sales of 

investments _____ .J (3_,_93& 

UabJJJ1J_eJLa!id.P.lan_J;qujty 

Due to former participants 
Payables for purchases of 

investments 
Plan equity 

Total liab':1ities 
and plan equity 

$ 3,977,236 

306,491 
_jJl_g_,A.2§ •• _5_L3 

~J9-~"=1-19=..~P-O 

Fund A "· 
Capital Cities/ 

ABC, Inc. 
Convnon Stock 
__ _Eund ___ _ 

$136,060,065 
______ §Jl. 

_ D_6_,_o_i;;_o_,_t3_~ 

4,429,559 

-------

140,489,692 

1,292,483 

36,891 

1, 714, 186 

358,489 

----------

$ 2,948,356 

_1AQ,_!g_3.,3.IL5. 

$-~c!,8_9J. .•. gtJ 

Fund B -
Diversified 

Equity 
_EJJnd ___ ..... . 

$ 
_JJ.,_t22_, .. 1'JJ 

_JJ_,J.22 •. H.I 

782,981 

_ _18_2 '.fl_8J 

11,905,728 

43,249 

325,758 

(549,816) 

-- _J.I.a • 9 _3_8 

$ 230,573 

306,491 
_u_,_;u;_t,I.9 3 

Fund c -
Guaranteed 

Income 
___ fJ)mL __ 

$ 
-····--···----

------·-·-

_J_Id.5J_,23.3 

__ 3_7_,_4,5J.,_2_3_3 

37,451,233 

285,317 

(8,175) 

191,327 

---- --------~- -~-· 

$ 798,307 

_:u,J 2J_,3_9_5 

_$_3_7,,.JJ-P=·=-I0.2 



ABC SAVINGS & INVESTMENT PLAN 

Combining Statement of Income and Changes in Plan Equity 

Investment income: 
Dividends 
Interest 

Total investment 
income 

Appreciation of Capital 
Cities/ABC, Inc. common 
stock. distributed to 
tecmi nate::l and withdrawing 
participants 

Net gain on sale of other 
common stock 

Net increase 'in unrealized 
appreciation of plan 
assets 

Contributions: 
Participants 
Employer 

Total contributions 

Interest on participants' 
loans 

Participants' transfers 

Total 

Distributions to terminated 
and withdrawing participants: 

Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. 
common stock, at market 
value 

Cash 
Total distributions 

Change in plan equity 

Plan equity: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

Year ended December 31, 1988 

$ 587 '779 
. _3_,_8Ji9_,AL9. 

___ _4_ ,A_LA .... 25_8 

1,296,099 

1,027,944 

- _ _l_,_9.5.1 .... 44§ 
._l!f_,1.59 ... JAJ: 

20,674,930 
__ LJJ3_6_,_9J~.O 
_2J_,_6_6J_,_9_2_0_ 

106,786 
--------

3,167,098 
-13,_6_0_3_,_42_6_ 
_LQ' 77Q,J.i2.4 

_2_;;_._!,!Ji~_,_9_2_9_ 

Fund A -
Capital Cities/ 

ABC, Inc. 
Conman Stock 
__ Eund __ _ 

$ 82,370 
__ _, __ 6_,_ll6 . 

____ JJi_~_ • .o_a_6 

1,296,099 

• _ _§_,_3Jl_7._,_Q6_L 
___ _L_8.42. .•. 2li.2 

6,610,991 
_....J~1_8_6_._9.9_Q 

_t3 ... I.9.L_9.8J. 

106,786 
____ 51a.,Jl.8_9. 

-2 .. 2., 2_q_5_,_9.Q.8. 

3,167,098 
_J_,_3_9_4_ •. 95.3. 
_to_,_;;_5_2,_0..41 

. _U_,L0.3 ... a.6-7. 

_t4.0 .... 9A.3 .... 3a_5 

ll5?.,JlAL.2li2 

Fund B -
Diversified 

Equity 
__Eund ___ _ 

$ 505,409 
__ .Jl.2. •. 59.Q 

1,027,944 

__ 1,_5_7-0,.31-9 
_3_~L6JL,.2_9.2 

1,487,553 

_t •. 3.3.4_,JJ.lJ. 
__ L_3..H_.J_6.1 

j,.Q_6J .• J.2Q 

_tt..3_6J .• J'.9.3 

.$1 5_,_4_2 ;1_,_9.2J 

Fund c -
Guaranteed 

Income 
__J:umL __ _ 

$ 
_3_,JAI,2.P.3 

__ 3_,1-4.L.20_3 

-·--------
_3_.J:AI, 2_0_3 

12,576,386 
-

----~·--·--· 

... 12.,51-6.,_3_a6 

_U.,.2.6.0_,_35_3 : 

_t5 •. 0.&3 .... 2.36 

___ 4_._a7A_,_3.Q2 
_4_,_8]_4_. 3.0.2 

_10_,J_aa .... ~_3.4 

.$_4L_3J_Q_,_;22.9 



SchedlJ.l e .. 3 (continued) 

ABC SAVINGS & INVESTMENT PLAN 

Combining Statement of Income and Changes in Plan Equity 

Investment income: 
Dividends 
Interest 

Total investment 
income 

Appreciation of Capital 
Cities/ABC, Inc. common 
stock distributed to 
terminated and with­
drawing participants 

Net gain on sales of 
other common stock 

Net increase (decrease) in 
unrealized appreciation 
of plan assets 

Contributions: 
Participants 
Employer 

Total contributions 

Interest on participants' 
loans 

Participants' transfers 
Total 

Distributions to terminated 
and withdrawing participants: 

Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. 
common stock, at market 
value 

Cash 
Total distributions 

Change in plan 
equity 

Plan equity: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

Year ended December 31, 1987 

$ 484,844 
___ 3 .•. 23.5. •. 8!iJl. 

3,720,702 

1' 139. 770 

1,561,690 

..... 2s.,_o_s_s,J.n 
- 3A.._5.to •. 2.9_5 

15,849,443 
_ _§_, 0_8_$_.8.8_9 
__ 2.t,9_3_9.,_3_32 

93,349 

4,534,258 
_1 3.._2_Q2~.4A.8. 
_J .. 7-~DJi .• l0.6-

'_t5.0_,_6.2.0_, 3Q.3 

!.JP;c!l:A.2,9 .... 5.1.3 

Fund A -
Capital Cities/ 

ABC, Inc. 
COlllDOn Stock 
___ Eund ______ _ 

$ 79,536 
__ JQ,_9J;l.8 

150,524 

1,139,770 

__ 29_,_Q_Q.2 .• .48.5 
__ 3.0J 912 .• J.7.9. 

7,931,724 
_!l~.0.8~ ... _6_1l.9. 

__ J.4. 0.2J,J,lJ.3 

93,349 
___ _.4_Q].,_9!i1 
_4.5~.4.9_5.,Ji.8_2 

4,534,258 
--1...4.1-9~J.2J. 
_1..i...Jl_5_3~.9L9 

.J . .0.1...A.QJ.,_6_S .. 2. 

Fund B -
Diversified 

Equity 
··- .. ..Eund. . .... 

$ 405,308 
. - __ ;a.a .08 s 

433,396 

1,561,690 

_.LL.59.4.,352) 
' - .4.0..0 .• .1.3.4 

2,545,577 
-----·· ··~--··- -

_2 .•.. 5..4 Q ,_f1J 7 

__ (_5_4.5_,_[_(1_3) 
_2,A.Qll_,_52 8 

.--1~ H.6JJ§9 
__ J .•. 3.46 ... J 9.9. 

Fund C -
Guaranteed 

Income 
__ Eur.act_ ... 

$ 
,_3_, 13 .. 6->.za.2 

3,136,782 

.. :i ..•. D.6 .•. IS.2 

5,372,142 
-

-·-··-----·~-... 

...... -L3I,_842 
.• Jl .• §.!!.6 ..•. 766 

_-4.d.3.5.,9.5.8 
__ 4.,!i.3_5~.9_!i_8 

. -3.2 ..•. 9J Q_,_5JU 

.$.31"").ll._,,~-5 



scbedule 3 (continued) 

ABC SAVINGS & INVESTMENT PLAN 

C~~bining Statement of Income and Changes in Plan Equity 

Investment income: 
Dividends 
Interest 

Total investment 
income 

Appreciation of Capital 
Cities/ABC, Inc. common 
stock distributed to 
terminated and with­
drawing participants 

Net tender on sale of 
American Broadcasting 
Companies, Inc. common 
stock (net of unrealized 
gains at the beginning 
of the year of 
$78,649,963) 

Net gain on sales of other 
common stock 

Net increase (dee rease) in 
unrealized appreciation 
of plan assets 

Contributions: 
Participants 
Employer 

Total contributions 

Interest on participants' 
loans 

Participants' transfers 

Total 

Year ended December 31, 1986 

$ 432, 733 
- __ !;iJJl2J.428 

5,605,161 

498,230 

886. 103 

1,609,427 

_19_,Jj/_6. L9.3Ji 
__ 2_4.,JJ)_(i_, .8Ji] 

13,670,223 
__ 5_,1.41,.29.Q 
__ J_9_,Afl,.!iJ_3. 

59,331 

Fund A -
CC\pital Cities/ 

ABC, Inc. 
C00100n Stock 
·-· _EY!ld __ _ 

$ 77 ,045 
__ j_,_s_9_eJ s_sJ 

1,973,926 

498,230 

886. 103 

_ _16.,.it0.3 .•. 2.6.9 
_rn_,L6J .• _sA.a 

6,172,383 
___ _5_,J.AJ.,2.9!1 
_ _'dJ_9J.3~9L3. 

59,331 

Fund B -
Diversified 

Equity 
__[1,md .... __ 

$ 355,688 
_____ 28.,.2.27 

383,915 

1,609,427 

__ , __ (2.3_6_,)5-3) 
_t.19JL,_9_s.9 

2,246,652 
-

·---~-···· ·-··--

___ 2_,_Q5,7_ .J 17. 

Fund C -
Guaranteed 

Inc~~e 

__Eund. 

$ 
.. -3J.2A1J_32c 

3,247,32( 

-
-~---- .. ·-··- -·- . 

5,251,18E 
-... - ... ~.-. 



$ch;;;dule._3 (continued) 

ABC SAVINGS & INVESTMENT PLAN 

Combining Statement of Income and Cllanges in Plan Equity 

Distributions to terminated 
and witlldrawing participants: 

Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. 
common stock, at market 
value 

Casll 

Total distributions 

Cllange in plan equity 

Plan equity: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

Yea1· ended December 31, 1986 

6,817,473 
. 3JL-4JJ/_,Jo_9. 

1,003,122 

_J.:HL,JU.LJ_&J 

~c'l__~-=-6_2=~}.~)l 

Fund A -
Capital Cities/ 

ABC, Inc. 
C0111110n Stock 
____ ..FJlncL. ___ . 

6,817,473 
___ 23_, __ 54_5_, 2Jij_ 

........... 3.0 .... :i.2.2. ,J 3o 

(10,679, 777) 

Fund 8 -
Diversified 

Equity 
___ fµnci . _ 

__ 2 ,5_6Jl' 586 

(511,469) 

Fund c -
Guaranteed 

Income 
.... Fund 

.1.0. .• 302,.2,(i;J 

.J.o_,302, .. 2.63 

12,194,368 

.2.Q .• J1Jl .•. 2J.9 



J.N.DE£J:tioENL_P_UBLI.C_ACC9U.NIANIS_'._c_QN.$.l:.NI 

We consent to incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No 33-2196 on 
Form S-8 of Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. of our report dated March 24, 1989, relating to 
the combined statements of financial condition of the ABC Savings & Investment Plan 
(the Plan) as of December 31, 1988 and 1987, the related combined statements of 
income and changes in plan equity for the years ended December 31, 1988, 1987 and 
1986 and the additional schedules included in the Plan's annual report (Form 11-K) 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

~f~;-1-~~ 
ARTHUR YOUNG & COMPANY 

New York, New York 
March 24, 1989 



EXhibit (28) (b) 

To Be Incorporated By Reference Into Foim S-8 Registration Statrnent No. 2-58945 

UNDERTAKINGS 

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to deliver or cause to be 
delivered with the prospectus to each employee to whom the prospectus is sent 
or given a copy of the registrant's annual report to stockholders for its last 
fiscal year, unless such employee otherwise has received a copy of such report, 
in which case the registrant shall state in the prospectus that it will prompt­
ly furnish, witrout charge, a copy of such report on written request of the 
employee. If the last fiscal year of the registrant has ended within 120 days 
prior to the use of the prospectus, the annual report of the registrant for 
the preceding fiscal year may be so delivered, but within such 120 day period 
tl~ annual report for the last fiscal year will be furnished to each such 
employee. 

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to transmit or cause to be 
transmitted to all employees participating in the plan who do not otherwise 
receive such material as stockholders of the registrant, at the time and in 
the manner such material is sent to its stockholders, copies of all reports, 
proxy statements and other communications distributed to its stockholders 
generally. 

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities 
Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of 
the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otl~rwise, the regis­
trant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange 
Conmission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in tne 
Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemni­
fication against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of 
expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the 
registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is 
asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with 
the securities beLrig registered, the registrant will, unless Lr1 the opinion of 
its counsel the matter bas been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a 
court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by 
it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed by tre 
fLrial adjudication of such issue. 


